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OUR PURPOSE

SUSTAINABILITY
THROUGH
TECHNOLOGY

DELIVERING MORE EFFICIENT
BREEDING ANIMALS TO FARMERS, TO NOURISH
THE WORLD MORE SUSTAINABLY

LEADING INTERNATIONAL MARKET POSITIONS
INVESTMENT CASE We supnly elite breeding animals, semen and

embryos to over 50,000 customers in over 80
. _ . countries, including the majority of the world's
GQHUS 15 d quk_j Jecrdtng Top 100 pig and dairy farmers. Cur international
animal genetic improvement breadth and multi-species presence reduces

I ; our reliance on individual markets or segments,
cornpor\y, with ieodersmp In contrast, many of our competitors are regional

positions in pork, beef single-specias cooperatives,
and dairy genegtics.

READ MORE ON

0.14



FOCUSED, MULTI-SPECIES,

TECHNOLOGY-DRIVEN BUSINESS MODEL

Genus is exclusively focused on pioneering animail
genetic improvement, to increase the efficiency and
sustainability of animal protein production. We employ
advanced genomics to selectively breed elite animals
in our proprietary herds. We are also pioneering

the application of proprietary sexing technology,
advanced reproductive techniques and gene editing in
our product development programmes, Our technology
and know-how can be applied across multiple species,
leveraging our strength and R&D investment.

READ MORE ON

0.04

POSITIVE LONG-TERM

MARKET FUNDAMENTALS

QOur business benefits from positive Iong-term
trends, including growing global demand for
milk and meat, and the need to produce food
more sustainably, to meet changing consumer
expectations. Genus's genetic improvement
technologies help farmers to do more with
less, reducing their resource utilisation and
emissions, and maximising their profits.

READ MORE ON

0.14

PEOPLE AND RELATIONSHIPS

Our ability to serve our customers is
underpinned by over 3,400 employees,
including over 100 PhDs. We alse have
close relationships with leading research
institutions and strategic partners, giving
us access to cutting-edge technologies
that can benefit our customers and
further extend our leadership positions.

READ MORE ON

0.34

SCALE AND FINANCIAL STRENGTH
Genus is the largest, and the only listed,
animal genetics company globally
operating in pork, beef and dairy. We
are profitable, cash-genearative and
growing, with a strong financial position
and access to strategic caprtal, meaning
we can invest in transformational
technologies to further our genetic lead.

READ MORE ON

0.50
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2021 HIGHLIGHTS
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GROUP REVENUE

o/4.

m

ADJUSTED BASIC EARNINGS PER SHARE"?

P

REVENUE GROWTH OF 4% {N ACTUAL CURRENCY
AND 10% IN CONSTANT CURRENCY?

>

Strong revenue growth of 1% in PIC, our porcine genetics business; royalty
revenue up 1% with royalty revenue in China more than doubling and
good growth in Latin America and Europe

Continued royalty growth and high breeding stock sales in China
contributed to PIC volume growth of 11% (up 5% excluding China)

Excellent revenue growth of 13%% 10 ABS, our bovine genetics business,
porticutarly in Brazil, Russia, Incia and Ching; continued success with
Sexcel! {sexed genetics) and Nukra* (beef genetics)

Record ABS volume growth of 15%, with sexed volumes up 29% and beef
up 27%

VERY STRONG ADJUSTED PROFIT BEFORE TAX ['PBT')' GROWTH,
UP 38% IN CONSTANT CURRENCY?, STATUTORY PBT AT £55.6M

>

Agjusted operating profit including joint ventures and excluding gene
editing cost’ up 37%*

Double-digit adjusted operating profit growth’ in PIC {up 16% and ABS
{up 21%%); R&D investment increased 2%?

Statutory PBT increased 21% to £55.8m, adversely impacted by a reguced
net IAS 41 non-cash fair value biological asset valuation, offset by lower
exceptional costs

Foreign currency translation adverse impact on adjusted PBT of £6 3m,
primarily reflecting weakness in LATAM currencies



STATUTORY PROFIT BEFORE TAX?

£55.8m £8Z-|-.8m

FREE CASH FLOW'

£37.5m :7)20p

STRONG CASH GENERATION, EARNINGS MOMENTUM
AND INCREASED DIVIDEND

>

Strong free cash flow' of £37.5m, net debt’ of £105.6m, net debt
to EBITDA' ratio remains strong at 0.9x

Adjusted earnings per share' up 40% in constant currency?
Recommended final dividend up 10% with 3.2x adjusted
earnings cover'

SIGNIFICANT STRATEG|C PROGRESS

>

Continued to win new customers globally, due 1o our

leading porcine and bovine genetics; genetic improvemeants
contributing to the reduction in use of energy, water and land
inanimal protein production

PIC China continues to win customers, five new key accounts
N FY21: serving over one third of top Chinese producers
Continued shift in ABS's product mix; 23% of global sales
volume comprising sexed genetics and embryos reflecting
Sexcel's” continued success and 29% beef genetics reflecting
the growing use of Nukra beef genetics in doiry herds
Acquisition in Spain of Sergal (total consideration £77m)
expands supply chain and sireline market share in the world's
fourth largest pig market

STRATEGIC REPORT 03

ADJUSTED PROFIT BEFORE TAX 3

DIVIDEND PER SHARE

GenusOne enterprise system successful roll-out continues,
with North America completed and Spain now live

Significant capex investment underway, to support expansion
of best -in -industry facilities for PIC and ABS

Good progress with carbon reduction with the primary
intensity ratio® reduced by 11% cumulative compared with
FY12 baseline

BUILDING R&D CAPABILITIES AND OPPORTUNITY PIPELINE

>

Good progress with the Parcine Reproductive Respiratary
Syndrome virus ['PRRSV') resistance development programme,
with two successful disease trials and o defined path to
regulatory approval

Next generation of intelliGen, Gen2 {‘{Gen2’) sexing technology
launched; more compact, effective and efficient than the
previocus generation technology

Rapidly built world class reproductive biology team

and secured strategic partnerships with leading

external collaborators

Strategic minority investment in Xelect (E2.4m), a genetic
improvement consultancy in the fast-growing agua

genetics market



04 GENUS PLC / ANNUAL REPORT 2021

GENUS AT A GLANCE

INNOVATIO

PRODUCING MORE SUSTAINABLE
BREEDING ANIMALS FOR FARMERS

WHAT WE DO
Genus is a world-teading
animal genetics company.

We partner with farmers to nournsh the
world more efficiently and sustainably.

We do this by breeding better pigs and
cattle, so farmers con produce high-
quality meat and milk more efficiently and
sustainably. We accurately select animals
with desirable characteristics and use
them to breed subsequent generations.

Examples of desirable characteristics

include feed efficiency, disease resistance,

growth rate, protein and fat content,
and fertility.

HOWWEDQIT

We analyse animals’ DNA
and look for markers that
we know are linked to
desirable characteristics,
which help farmers to
raise healthier and more
sustainable animails.

We then select animals with the strongest
genetic profile from our proprietary and
partner herds and breed them to produce
even better offspring, in a continuous
cycle. We distribute these genetically
superior ammals to our customers in

the form of breeding animals, semen

or embryos.

We also own technology that enables us
to screen and process semen for desirable
traits, such as producing femate offspring
for the dairy market, and license-in
technology to make precise gene edits

to animals’ DNA, which we are employing
inour R&D programmes, for example

to produce pigs which are resistant 1o
fatal disease

Qur focus is on prograssive farmers, who
are best placed 1o redlise the benefits of
superior genetics and technologias.

INVESTING TQO STRENGTHEN OUR POSITION'

T Restoted fol oweg o Aot 202TIFRIC Interpretal on Comm tlee agenda decs o tnat resuted » prevousiy

cJo tarigad seftware assets oo ng exnensad
2 Inclutes ~et rvesirents ~ bo ogca Gssats
3 I~cluges firanees lease oayments



MARKET SHARE"?

REVENUE®

ADJUSTED
OPERATING
PROFIT™*

CUSTOMERS
GLOBALLY

1 Source Government
agencies, ELrostat,
po‘k organisations,
Ganus est mates.
Market shares
represent the
estirated share of
pig oroducticnin
top g eroduction
ma-kefs

2 Source Government
agencies, LUS0DA,
QFECD. genetics
and egr cu'tue
orgamsations, Gerys
estimates Market
shares rapresent
the estimarea shars
of combined gory
and oeef velurmes in
ABS's Too 29 target
markets for dary arg
Top 8 torget markets
for beef

3 Revenie ond
Adusted Operat ng
Proft Incluaing Jont
Vertures excude
R&D reverues and
Cogts

4 For more information
or APMs see APM
Giossary
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SERVING PORK, DAIRY AND BEEF FARMERS GLOBALLY
Genus's leading porcine and bovine animal breeding divisions, PIC and ABS,
deliver genetically elite breeding animals to thousands of farmers globaily.

1PIC 16% S Competitor 4 2%
2 Competitor 1 7% 6 Competitor 5 2%
3 Competitor 2 5% 7 Internal programmes 9%
4 Competitor 3 3% 8Other 56%

1 1)

315.6m
2 000+

PIC, our global porcine genetics business, sells
genetically supericr breeding pigs and semen to
farmers, so they can breed commercial pigs with
desirable characteristics for pork production.
We also provide technical services and advice
to farmers, to maximise the performance of our
breeding animals in their farms.

PIC owns over ten elite pure-brad pig lines, housed

in strategically located biosecure facilities. These
pigs are bred out into much larger breeding

herds in over 500 predominantly sub-contracted
‘multiplication’ farms around the world, many of which
are operated by customers themselves. PIC boars
are also housad In over 400 boar studs globally,
where semen is collected for distribution to
customers and multiplication herds.

PIC genetics are sold under the PIC brand through
direct sales channels and strategic partners,

PIC divisional review can
berreadonpl8 - p.2t

1 Competitor 1 N% 5SCompetitor 4 4%
2 ABS 9% o6& Competitor 3%
3 Competitor 2 Q% 7 Cther 60%
4 Competitor 3 4%

o)

O]
4m
50000+

ABS, our global bovine genetics business, sells dairy
and beef bull semen and empryos from our superior
cattle, which are sold to farmers 1o breed their cows
through artificial insemination, The resulting calves
will then exhibit desirable characteristics for milk
and beef production. ABS's highest-gquality semen
is often sold in sexed form, which greatly increases
the probability of a female calf. ABS also provides
technical services to farmers, to maximise the
performance of their animals bred with our genetics.

N

ABS breeds genetically elite bulls in the US, Europe,
Latin Amernca and India. The best bulls come to

one of ABS's six stud locations, where their semen is
collected for distribution as o frozen 'straw’ of sermen
or used to create embryos for sale.

ABS genetics are sold through direct sales channels
and strategic partners under the ABS brand. In the
UK and France, they are sold under long-established
Genus and Bovec brands.

ABS divisional review can
bereadonp.22 —p.25
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT

PROGRESS

The Group
delivered a
strong and
balanced
performance in
2021, with both
PIC and ABS
contributing

to growth.

IAIN FERGUSON

POSITIONING THE GROUP
FOR FURTHER SUCCESS

| am delighted to be
regorting to you for the first

time as Chairman of Genus.

| want to thank my predeceassor, Bob
Lawson, for his cutstanding stewardship
of the business during his ten years as
Chairman and for handing over o business
in excellent shape, Bobh was a strong
advocate far investmeant in science and
the application of that science to our
world. The success Genus is enjoying
today is the result of that accumulated
investment over many years,

PERFORMANCE AND DIVIDEND

The Group delivered a strong and
balanced performance in 2021, with

both PIC and ABS contributing to growth.
Almaost all regions were ahead of the
previous year and trading was particularly
good in China, Brazil, Russia and ndia.
The Group's adjusted profit before tax was
£84.8m, up by 38% in constant currency
and 29% in actual currency, Statutory PBT
was £55.8m {2020 restated: £46.3m).

We recogrise the importance of
balancing our investment for the future
with ensuring an attractive return for
shareholders. The Board is therefore
recammending a final dividend of 21.7p
per share, which will give o total dividend
of 32 Op, including the intarim dividend
of 10.3p per share paid in April 2021 This
will result in growth in the total dividend
of 10%. The final dividend will be paid on
10 December 2021, ta shareholders

on the register at the close of business
on 19 November 2027,



STRATEGY

Genus is a leng-cycle business and

cne of the Board's key jobs is to keep
locking to the future. We continually
scon the horizon, 1o ensure we identify
developments in our industry and related
sactors, understand our competition and
have access to important new science
and techneclogy. This activity will undergin
the Group's continuing success over the
next five to ten years.

The Board held its annual strategy session
during the year, which confirmed to us
that the strategy remains appropriote.
Our pricrities are also unchanged. The
Group will continue to invest, to protect
and build on the strong positiens of its
bovine and porcine businesses, and we
will seak apportunities to apply Genus's
science base to other species where

they can add value for shareholders.

Genus Is purpose-led, with our vision
clearly setting out our goal of using
innovation te nourish the world. Our
strategy is aligned to this purpose, as is
cur focus on sustainability, which | see
as intrinsic to our licence to cperate.
Delivering improved outcomes for farmers,
while reducing the amount of feed and
other natural resources required, is a
care part of our breeding programmes.
We are also committed to improving
our own envircnmental footprint.

BOARD

I joined the Board as a Non-Executive
Director on 1 July 2020 and succeeded
Bob Lawson as Chairman on his
retirement, following the AGM on

25 November 2020. There were two
other changes to the Board during the
year, with Professor Jason Chin being
appointed as a Non-Executive Director
from 1 April 2021 and Professor ton Charles
retiring from the Board on 31 May 2021,

Jason has deep scientific expertise, as
Head of the Centre for Chemical and
Synthetic Biology ot the Medical Research
Council Laberatory for Molecular Biclogy,
in Cambridge. He is therefore ideally
positioned to act as scientific adviser t©
the Genus Portfolio Steenng Committee,
arole lan Charles filled with distingtion

for more than three years. We thank lan
for his significant contnbution durng his
tirme on the Board, which included helping
us to understand the biome and the
importance of reproductive biology.

PEOPLE

Genus employs over 3,400 talented and
dedicated people around the world,

They have shown real commitrment

and flexibility this year, helping us to
successfully deliver for our customers and
keep our research programmes on track
during COVID-19. The pandemic has really
underscored the strength of the working
relationships across the Group, as well

as our people's ability to take on new
challenges and adapt to new technotogy.
While the situation in countries such as the
UK and US has eased in recent months,
we have significant businesses in Indig,
Brazil and other countrias that have
continued to be hard hit. Unfortunately,
we have lost two colleagues to COVID1?
and our thoughts are with their families
and friends.

LOOKING FORWARD

Genus has the platform and resources
to invest for the future and maintain

our virtuous cycle. We will continue to
seiect the best technology, science and
partners, and work to deliver continucus
genetic improvement. By taking this to
our customers and sharing in the value
we create for them, we will continue to
reinvest in R&D, our people and world-
class facilities to further grow our market
leadership. This consistent investment is
the driver of our long-term success and
our commitment to it gives us confidence
in Genus's future.

lain Ferguson CBE
Chairman of the Boarg
8 September 2021

STRATEGIC REPORT
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CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S REVIEW

SUCCESS

SIGNIFICANT PROGRESS

The Group's financial
performance was
excellent, with

Genus achieving

its fastest profit
before tax growth
rate in over ten years.

STEPHEN WILSON

This was o very successful
year for Genus.

We delivered a very strong operational
and financial performance, made further
significant progress with our strategy and
continued to drive cur innovation agenda,
as we strive to fulfit our vision of ‘Pioneering
animal genetic improvement 1o helo
nourish the world”. Advancing sustainability
has always been fundamental to our
business and vision, and we have made
good progress with our E5G agenda in

the year.

GROUP PERFORMANCE

The Group's financial performance was
excelient, with Genus achieving its fastest
profit before tax growth rate in over ten
years despite the currency headwinds
Revenue rose by 4% and adusted profit
befare tax of £84.8m was 29% higher, or
38% in constant currency.

Both businesses achieved growth in their
key metrics, In constant currency, Genus
PIC’s revenue increased by T1% and the
strategically important porcing royalty
revenue was 11% higher, This contributed
to adjusted operating profit including joint
ventures being 1% up in constant currancy.
All regions cantributed to this growth, with
China ¢ key driver as producers restocked
as o result of African Swine Fever. Russio
and Brazil were also particularly strong

Genus ABS increased revenue and
adjusted aperating profit by 13% and 21%
raspectively. in constant currency. This was
underpinned by a 15% increase in volumes.
Sexed volumes grew by 29%, reflecting the
ongoing success of Sexcel, and global
beef volumes ware 22% higher, supported
by increased use of Nubra beef genetics
in dairy herds. Again, growth was broadhy
spread geographically, with Brazil, Russia,
Indict and China all perfarming well.

We continued 10 invest significantly in R&D,
so we can bring the benefits of the latest
and best science 1o our customers. Net
RED expenditure was £62.5min the year
{Up 2% in constant currencyl, with primary
research expenditure in addition to gene
editing INcreasing 42% in CONStaNt CUrency
to £13.3m. We have further strengthened
our differentiated and proprietary offerings
and invested in key strategic initiatives,
nclucing gena editing, the next generation
of InteliGen technology {'Gen2'), and
reproductive biology, as well as further
developing our R&D pipeline.

STRATEGIC PROGRESS

Qur PRRSv-resistance programme is making
pleasing progress, with the successiul
completion of two rounds of disease trials
of our gene-edited pigs. We have a defined
path 1o regulatory approval, including the
timakne to complete aur Faod and Drug
Adrrinistration [FFDAY submissions and the
steps we need 1o 10ke to achieve this.



OUR VALUES

CUSTOMER CENTRIC

We are one team, dedicated to helping
customaers thrive. We anticipate

their needs and help them seize
cpportunities, acting as partners to
improve quality, efficiency and output.
If we're not adding value for our
customers, we stop and think agaimn.

Reud thore en p.2 — p.3s

RESULTS DRIVEN

We are proactive, determined to be
the best we can be and to exceed
expectations. We redefine standards
for ourselves, our customers and

our industry. Every one of us takes
pride in delivering the highest level
of performance. If something can be
improved, we find a simpler, better
way to do it

Read more onp.2 - p.33

PIONEERING

We are an innovative, forward-thinking
company. We have the courage and
confidence to explore new ideas, and
the energy and enthusiasm to deliver
them. We are creative, tenacious and
resourceful in every area of our work.

Read more onp.2 - p33

PEOPLE FOCUSED

We are a business rocted in science
but built around our people. We inspire,
challenge and support everyone to
perform, develop and grow. We treat
athers with respect and we invite views
and feedback to help us improve.

Read more on p .34 — p 37

RESPONSIBLE

We are ethical to our core, We feel

a deep sense of responsibility to

our customers, colleagues, animals,
communities and sharehalders, We

are honest, reliable and trustworthy. We
mean what we say and do what we say.

Read more on p.38 ~ p 43

In China, we are collaborating successfully
with our partner BCA, which is engaging
positively with the Chinese regulatery
authorities.

We conlinue To drive innovation acress
the Group, including delivering further
improvernents to our InteliGen technclogy.
We have now launched Gen?2 of IntelliGen,
which is more compact, effective and
efficient than the previous generction
technology. It has beenintroduced in our
Dekorra, Wisconsin facifity and we plan to
introduce it shortly to our new facility at
Leeds, Wisconsin, which started to receive
bulls in the summer of 2021, In addition,

we have launched a major new R&D
programme In reproductive biclogy and
have established a new world-class

team in this areq.

The implementation of GenusOne,

our new enterprise system, is continuing.
We completed the roll out in North
America and in Spain during the year
and are now working on the roll out

to the remainder of the Group over

the next two years. GenusCne will be

a key enabler of leveraging our scale

at a Group level and giving greater
visibility of business data. As we roll out
GenusCne, we are also introducing

a new target operating modei to
standardise our procurement, and financial
processes and reporting worldwide.

Investing in our digital capabilities in our
interactions with custorners is ancther
important theme. Our ABS business in

Latin America has had great success
through digital sales during COVIR-19 and
we will intreduce more digital customer
engagement across ABS, to enhance

the customer experience. To support our
scientific programmes, we are also investing
in clata science, to help us extract new
insights from the rapidly expanding scurces
of data being genrerated by farmers.

Spain is the world's fourth largest porcine
market and we have expanded our supply
chair and market share in the male side

of the business, through the acquisition

of Sergal, o leading Spanish boar stud
cperator. In addition, we have taken ¢
minority stake in Xelect, an agua genetic
improvement consultancy based in
Scotland. We are pleased to have storted
a partnership in this space and lock
forward 1o the opportunities this may open
up to gain a sresence in the fast-growing
agua genetics market.

Finalty, we are investing at a record pace

In new facilities to lay the foundations for
continuing future growth, including new bull
housing and IntelliGen production facilities,
a major new porcine nucleus in Canada,

a boar stud in Russia and new porcine
capacity in Chinga.
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ADVANCING ESG

Sustainability in particular, is at the core

of our business. The ongoing genetic
improvement we deliver helps farmers

to produce more protein with fewer
resources and a lower carbon foctprint,
whether that is through producing pigs
which convert feed more efficiently inta
growth or enhancing the productivity of
dairy cows. We have commitments 1o
reduce our own caroon footprint by 25% by
2030 and have a roadmap and planned
inveslinents to achieve this, Inthe year our
carbon emizssions reduced by 6.8% and our
primary intensity ratio recuced by 0.2%,
with a cumulotive primary intensity ratio
reduction against the 2019 base year of
1.3% achieved towards the 2030 goal.

PEOPLE

To achieve our vision of pioneering
animal genetic improvement to help
nourish the world, we need to attract,
develop and retain outstanding peopie.
The Genus Executive Leadership Team
was unchanged during the year and

we continued to add to our strengthin
depth, hiring talented leaders to head up
data science, reproductive biology and
genomics. Our AWAKE programme, which
Cims 1o empower women to succeed in
Genus, is gathering momeantum, reflecting
the mportance we place on diversity. We
have rolled out improvements in learning
and development, to help our people
thrive. Employee engagement measured
through surveys remains high.

While the Group has demonstrated its
resilience in the face of COVID-19, we know
that the pandemic has placed a significant
strain on our people. We have consistently
focused on protecting their health and
well-being, and they in turn have risen to
the challenge of serving our customers
and keeping the business moving ahead.
As a gesture of gratitude, I was pleased to
announce a special additional payment
of £500 to all employees around the world
to thank them for their commitment and
contribution this year.

OUTLOCK

Looking ahead, the outlook for the Group
remains positive and we are conhident in
our strategy and the many ocpportunities
for Genus. Group performance in FY20 and
FY21 was very strong, with good growth
acress both ABS and PIC, led in particular
by strong growth in PIC China, where the
opportunity remains large. However, recent
volatility in the Chinese porcing market is
expected to continue for some months,
creating d short-term headwind in FY22,
primarnly for PIC China. As a result of this
headwind, and despite expected strong
performance in the other areqs of the
business, we expect Genus's growth to be
lower than our medium-tarm goalin the
current year before increasing againin FY23.

Stephen Wilson
Chief Executive
8 September 2021
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BUSINESS MODEL

DELIVERING

PRODUCING AND DELIVERING MORE
SUSTAINABLE ANIMALS TO FARMERS

PRODUCE GENETICALLY
SUPERIOR BREEDING ANIMALS

OUR STRENGTHS
AND RESOURCES

GLOBAL POSITION

Genus is uniguealy placed as a global
player, with leading brands and market
paositions, which we strengthen through
acauisitions and partnerships

ELITE ANIMALS

We own clite porcine and bavine herds,
which produce animal protein more
efficiently and have traits farmears value

PROPRIETARY TECHNOLOGY

We harness leading genetic and breeding
technologies, which we develop in-house
and through strategic partnerships

CUSTOMER RELATIONSHIPS

We serve over 50,000 custamers globally,
including most of poth the Top 100 pig
producers and daires globally

EXPERT PEOPLE

Wae have over 3,400 employees, including
over 100 PhD qualified employees, and
relationships with leading research
institutions

GLOBAL SUPPLY CHAIN

We have production focilities in key
locations worldwide, coupled with sales
forces ond ogents in over 80 countres

FINANCIAL STRENGTH AND SCALE

Our cash generative businesses and scale
aliow us to fund strategic investments and
deliver improved returns

SHARED PROPRIETARY
TECHNOLOGY PLATFORM

GENOME SCIENCE AND BIOINFORMATICS
We understand the links between DNA
and animals’ observable characteristics,
and how we can influence them

GENOMIC SELECTION

We breed successive generations of
animals by using DNA analysis to select
superior parents in our breeding herds

BICSYSTEMS ENGINEERING

We use technology to interrogate and
select cells, such as in our semen sexing
technology

GENE EDITING

We are developing more sustainatle,
disease-resistant breeding animals by
making precise changes ta their genes

REPRODUCTWE BIOLOGY

We have active R&D workstreams

in multiple advanced regroductive
technologies, such as IVF, which enable

us to select both famale and male parents
for supearnior offspring
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LINK TO STRATEGY

Delivering a differentiated proprietary
genetic offering

Focusing an large and progressive
protein producers globally

Sharing in the value delivered

Readmorconpls 7

DELIVER MORE SUSTAINABLE PRICE ACCORDING
BREEDING ANIMALS AND TO THE VALUE DELIVERED
SERVICES TO FARMERS

We have a global supply chain that efficiently delivers DELIVERING FOR

genetics to customers while mitigating risk for us, for QUR STAKEHOLDERS
example through our use of third-party multipliers.

Qur technical teams then help our customers to

get the best from our praducts on-farm, delivering CUSTOMERS

a superior customer experience

GENETICS PRIMARILY SOLD ON
MULTI-YEAR ROYALTY AGREEMENTS
Superior pigs with traits farmers value

BOARS IN STUD

40,000+

boars producing semen CUSTOMER

EXPANSION HERDS ‘IQO m
500+ MPEs produced

herds multiplying up cur
breeding animals

GENETICS PRICED ACCORDING
TO INDICES OF GENETIC MERIT

STUDS AND LABS

24m

semen straws and embryns
delivered or produced for

customers c.8m

dairy and beef

QO O+ calves born

superior dairy and beef bulls
with traits farmers value

CUSTOMER

We breed haalthier, more productive
animals for customers, which produce
meat and milk more efficiently and
sustainably. We build trust with customers
by linking pricing to on-farm perfarmance,
such as piglets produced from our sows,
and by running validation trials

CONSUMERS

We make nutritious animal protein more
affordable and sustainable, to help feed
the world

COMMUNITIES AND ENVIRONMENT

We make farming more sustainable

by reducing the use of feed and other
resources reguired to produce the same
amount of meat and milk, helping to
reduce GHGs. We are also reducing the
direct emissions from our aperations'

PEOPLE

We employ over 3,400 people globally,
who all help 1o deliver our vision of
nourishing the world

INVESTORS

By sharing in the value we deliver 1o
customers, we generate returns for
our investors

1 GHGs relates to gresnnoLse gas amissions.



12 GENUS PLC / ANNUAL REPORT 2021

STAKEHOLDER ENGAGEMENT

CUSTOMERS s CONSUMERS

Board representative;
All Directors

ENGAGING WITH WHY WE ENGAGE
OQUR STAKEHOLDERS

Qur customers depend on our genetics
to improve their businesses and their
profitability. We look to understand their
needs and to help them make the most
of our products and services. We look

to better understand end-consumer
requirements and preferences.

The Group actively engages with its HOW WE ENGAGE
stakeholders, to keep them updated
and ensure we understand their
priorities. The Board carries out some
engagement directly, while other
engagement occurs during the running
of the business, with the Board being
kept informed through reports from
management. The table opposite
describes our key stakehcolders and
examples of engagement during the
year and actions which arose.

> The Board typically visits key customers
when Board meetings are held outside
the UK, althougi this year's visits were
congucted virtually due to ongaoing
COVID-19 restrictions

= Reqular Boord updates on targeted
customers and customear wing

> Regufar customer visits as part of our
service offering, enabling our teams to
work closely with customers to better
understand their needs

> Board engagement with different lavels
of the supply chain [albeit imited by
COVID-19), including meeting with meat
packers and processors 1 understand
what they look for in genetics to meet
consumer demands

> Keeping under raview growth of
olternative non-animal proteins, in light
of consumer preference

KEY ISSUES
IDENTIFIED

ACTIONS ARISING

> Need for improved customer digital
experience

> Continued to roll out GenusCne for
customers in North Amernica and Spain

> Migroted customer support for
ordering and invoicing onto GenusOne,
1o rmake those processes more efficient
for customers

> ABS digital engogement mitiative
lgunched with new capobilities 1o be
deployed in FY22



EMPLOYEES

Board representative:
Lesley Knox, Lykele van der Broek

SHAREHOLDERS

Board representative:
lain Ferguson
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COMMUNITIES & ENVIRONMENT

Board representative:
Lysanne Gray

Qur people play a crucial role in helping
us pursue our strategic goals and
uphold the core values that underpin
our organisation. We engage, equip
and support them to achieve their full
potential while building our business.

We maintain strong relationships with
shareholders, ensuring they understand
our strategy, progress and performance
and that we understand how they view
our business.

We look to be a responsible gitizen
within our communities, offering local
recruitment, responding to crises and
supporting charities, We also look to
minimise our impact on the environment,

> Direct engagement by Workforce
Engagement Directors at virtual town
hall mestings

> Employee Your Voice survey

> Chief Executive video updates,
manager-led updates and updates
via intranet following results
announcements

> Global town hall meetings

> Leadership calls and quarterly
manager briefings

> Regular internal communications from
management

> Employee-led resource group (AWAKE
- Advancing Women's Advocacy,
Knowledge & Empowerment) to
empower women to contribute to their
full potential

> Health and safety training progromme
and regular updates/kriefings

> Investor roadshows, led by the Chief
Executive and Chief Financial Officer

> Results announcements, presentations
and live webcasts

> AGM and trading update in
November 2020
Annual Report
Regular news flow on key
developments in the business

> Engagement with investors regarding
executive remuneration, sustainability
issues and Board changes

> Capital Markets Event in June 2021

> Updated website including
sustainability section

> Arange of placement and employment
opportunities offered for students
and apprentices

> Suppoert for charities close to
local businesses

> Providing educational support
for agriculture and animal science
programmes

= Investing in activities designed 1o
reduce greenhouse gas emissions,
consistent with our Climate
Change Policy

> Key points raised from town halis
included:
- Lessons tearned from the COVID-19
pandemic
- Positive feedback on the
Company's increased focus on
sustainabiiity
- The Strategic direction of the Group
- The Company’s values and culture
> Improvernent areds raised in the Your
Voice survey:
- Learning and development
- Reward and recognition
> Continuing to oversee how
management deals with the impact of
COVID-19 on employeas

> Continued shareholder interest in
sustainability and envirenmental
nerformance (see adjacent)

> Potential impact of climate change on
the business ond our communities

> Need to link environmental perfarmance
with management incentives and
ensure sustainability issues receive
focus and engagement at appropriate
levels within the Company

> Need to respend as required to local
emergencies

> Board continued to manitor prograss
against key points raised in the Your
Voice survey and in direct feedback
from employees

> Ensuring employees have the
technology, tools and other support
needed 1o do their jobs during the
ongoing COVID-19 pandemic

> Ensuring safe working environments,
in line with local governmental advice
across all focilities

> Beard adopted an employee
engagement key perfermance
indicator {see page 17}

> Continued focus on sustainabiiity,
including the development of
clearer communications around the
Company's sustainability strategy
and performancea

> The Board continued to scrutinise
management’s strategy, plans
and actions to achieve climate
change targets

> The Board will continue to maniter
implementation of the climate change
plan and progress against targets

> The Board reviewed and approved
changes to the governance of
sustainability in the Company from
FY22 (see page 38)

> The Board recommended the inclusion
of specific environmental performance
targets in executive pay arrangements
(see page 82)

> Supported local charities
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MARKET OVERVIEW

FEEDING

THE WORLD MORE SUSTAINABLY

Each generation of farmers
has adopted new techniques
1o raise animals more
efficiently and sustainably.
The continued adoption

of selective breeding and
new technclogies will help
farmers to meet the growing
demand for protein.

DEMAND DRIVERS FOR GENETIC IMPROVEMENT

DEMAND FOR ANIMAL

PROTEIN IS GROWING

The global population is expanding and
urbanising, and seeking a more vared
and nutritious diet. Pork, milk and beef
consurmption are forecast to grow by
1-2% pa. in the next decade.

FOOD PRODUCTION MUST

BECOME MORE SUSTAINABLE
Competition for resources, such as lond
and water, and the nead 10 reduce
greenhouse gas emissions, puts pressure
on farmers 1o become mere efficient,
through the use of genetically superior
anmals and other technologias.

CONSUMERS ARE DEMANDING

BETTER PRODUCTS

Consumers are increasingly demanding
healthier and more sustainable products,
which are traceable and produced with
fewer drugs. This increcses farmers’
demand for ganetically superior breeding
animals, which are naturally more efficient
and resilient.

FARMS ARE CONSOLIDATING

AND TECHNIFYING

Progressive farmers, who are more
open to new technologies and

medasure performance in more detall,
are consolidating the secter. They
understand the benefits of genetically
superior animals and optimised breeding
strategies, such as combining the use
of sexed dairy and beef semen on dairy
herds to maximise prokt

US MILK PRODUCTION VS. DAIRY HERD 1980-2020"

¥ Soucce L30A



1

Souce L3DA
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Dairy genetics herds have
rapidly consolidated leading
to better quality animals for

dairy farmers.

TRENDS IN OUR MARKET

CONSOLIDATION OF ELITE

BREEDING HERDS

Elite breeding bulls and pigs are bred
from genetically elite breeding herds.
The increasing use of costly technology
and the scale required to keep pace with
industry leaders is driving consolidation
of these herds. As genetics consolidate,
some breeders are forming strategic
allionces with competitors, so they can
offer their customers superior genetics.

ADOPTION OF SEXING TECHNOLOGY
Cows must be impregnated to produce
milk so dairy farmers need to regularly
breed their animals and refresh their
milking herds. Using sexed semen yields
approximately 0% female offspring,
enabling dairy farmers to refresh their
milking herd with fewer, higher quality
breedings. This enables them to breed
the rest of the herd with beef semen,
which maximises the meat quality {ond
value) of the resulting calf.

BREAKTHROUGH TECHNOLOGY

AND DATA

Genus is developing innovdative solutions
to combat disease and improve animal
welfare, which also have the potential

to dramatically increase protein
sustainability. These include development
of health-focused indices to select
optimal breeding animals, as well as
employing gene editing and advanced
reproductive technologies. Progressive
farmers are also increasingly leveraging
digital technologies, which provide data
and insight 1o support decision making.

1

Source, Genls aralysis; US Holstain breeders
representaed 11 tre Top 206 NM$ rank'mgs by birth
vear, 2021 data pased on Top 200 Helsteins act ve
us ng August 2G21 data from the Councr on Daory
Catre Breedrg

Sexed rc uges embryos
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STRATEGIC FRAMEWORK

DELIVERING
AND SHARING
IN THE VALUE

We harness innovative
technologies and
know-how to breed
genetically superior
animals for progressive
farmers, and link our
pricing to the
performance of our
products on-farm.

STRATEGIC IMPLEMENTATION

Qur cverarching strategy, success
dnvers [which feed into the focus
areas of our busingss model), and
associcied KPls are determined at
Group fevel. The strategy is then

implementaed ot busingss unit level.

Our strategic progress in FY21and
near-term objectives for FY22 can
be found on pages 18 to 29

sustoinobiity les ot the heart of
our business. KPls marked with
the above icon are considered

by the Board to be indicative of
our progress in this area. For more
information see page 38

STRATEGIC PRIORITIES

DELIVERING A
DIFFERENTIATED
PROPRIETARY GENETIC
OFFERING

SUCCESS DRIVERS

ELITE ANIMALS
PROPRIETARY TECHNOLOGY
EXPERT PEQOPLE

FOCUSING ON LARGE AND
PROGRESSIVE PROTEIN
PRODUCERS GLOBALLY

SUCCESS DRIVERS
GLOBAL POSITION
GLOBAL SUPPLY CHAIN
CUSTOMER EXPERIENCE

SHARING IN THE VALUE
DELIVERED

SUCCESS DRIVERS

VALUE BASED PRICING
PRODUCT VALIDATION
LEVERAGE SCALE

SUSTAINABILITY AT THE
HEART OF OUR BUSINESS

WHAT DOES
SUCCESS LOOK LIKE?

GENETIC GAIN

Creating better breeding
animals for farmers, measured
agdinst indices comprising
economic traits that help to
drive farmers’ productivity
and sustainability.

VOLUME GROWTH

Growing volumes,
particularly with progressive
livestock farmers.

PROFITABILITY

Generating profit resulting
from the performance of

cur products in customers’
systems, and growing margin
as we leverage scale and R&D
investment across species.

Qur strategy is underpinned
by our gpproach to
sustainable business and

the strength of our people,
The Board medsures the
performonce of these key
areas using the KPIs opposite.



HOW DO WE MEASURE THAT SUCCESS IN OUR BUSINESSES?

<0

Mgasures the genetic improvement we achieve in our porcine nucleus herds, which

ultimately filters down to our customers” farms.

DEFINITION: Tre index measures the
rrarginanmprovement n customers' LS$
profitab Ity per commercial o'g per year,
ona oh ng three-year average Pror
years ndex ratngs ~ave been updoted,
to reflect the atest results f-om genomic
selectionund U e geoomic values of
por« production

PERFORMANCE: Genus continues ta
delver high rates of genet ¢ improvemenrt
through expanding and mantaimirg a
large nucteus population for mgh selection
Intensity, Morcving techmical processes
for genomic evgrnabon, implamanting
precis.cndoto o lectior fom birtn 1o
consLmer and contnu ~g to aad now
traits and data strears

Tracks our global unit sales growth in dairy and keaf,

DEFINITION: The change in darry. beef
and sexed urits of semen and embryos
de'vered of produced far customers in
the year,

Monitors porcine profitability per unit.

DEFINITION: Net porcine odjusted
operatng profit globally, exoressed per
MPE Results Inc ude cur snare of Agroceres
PIC, our Brazihan joint ventu-e.

PERFORMANCE: Boving volumes i proved
15% to 24 3 milhon units, with particuardy
strong growthn Latn Amer ca and Asia
Sexed volumes were L 29%, reflect ng
strong growth n Sexcel which also
influenced Tre use of oeef-on-dairy
gerercs, supporting a 22% norease n
glebal peef volumes.

PERFORMANCE: Ooerating profit par MPE
was £C &5, up E0.04 {up £0 08 In constant
curencyl This was orfimarly due to strong
breea ng stcck sales in China, globa!
royalty co~tract growth andene tme
nvestments In tre pror pencd to expena
globa production

Measuras the emissions intensity of the Group's operations, which are largely driven by

animal weight.

DEFINITION: The ormary intensity ratio s
ameasure of the Group's Scope Tond 2
emissions per tenre of armmal weght

PERFORMANCE: "he pr mary Intensity
ratio decreased oy 0 2% nFY21, drven
down by o change r the age profie and
balanced by an ncrease 10 the number
of aur orirag, resultirg from tse inclusion
of thrd-party sites within t~e scope of our
FY21 erussiors reporting
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Manitors how many of our bulls are highly ranked, based on econemically relevant traits

for farmers.

DEFINITION: The number of our generally
avalable Holsten bulls isted n the Top
10C Genomic Net Marnt US$ -a~kings for
ogenorically tested sires

PERFORMANCE: Genus continues to
mairta.nits genet ¢ leadersrip position
with 31 of the Too 100 Holstein culls usimg
tne Gorom ¢ Met Ment US3 -ankings ard
with o very stranc ipoline Tha snou sy
drwen oy the large properton of igh
qualty oulls sourced from our propr etaty
breed ng programmre, De Nove'

1 DeNovo Genetics LLC 15 51% owned
by Gerus

Tracks the growth in the numbaer of commercial pigs with PIC genaetics globally,

DEFINITION: The change ir volume of

both d rect and royoity animal saies,

using a standard sed MPEs measwure of
cormercial saughter anime-s tnat contain
our genet cs.

Mgenitors bovine profitability per unit.

DEFINITION: Bovine odjustea operating
profit g'obally, expressed oer dose of
semren of emoryo Gaivered or produced
for customers

PERFORMANCE: Porcine volumes grew by
N% 1t 120 milhon MPEs. Chi~a's volurres
were particularly strong due to the
increase N customer breeding projects
following the ASF outbrecks Exclud ng
Crung, volumes wee up 5% with strang
growth nBrazil, RLssa arg Span Volures
under royalty contracts grew by 13% win
all regons confrout ng

PERFORMANCE: Coerating profit per dose
was F06% Lp EC14 lup EQ 20 .ncorstant
currencyl. THis wos aue to the strong sales
growth of our premium Sexcel product
ard 'averaging our world class sales and
product aevelopment platforms.

Measures levels of employes engagement over time.

DEFINITION: "he response to the
statement "l wodld recormend a frend to
work at Gerus®

PERFORMANCE: Genus contrues to
deronstrate upper guartie avels of
erpoyee engagement, witr 74% of
employees surveyed ina pu'se survey
ir FY21 respond ng that they wou d
recornmend a fena to work at Genus
FY19. 79%)}

1 The F¥21 pu se survey was
camolated by nearly o quarter of
employees In FY19, 74% of trase
emoloyees responded affirmativery.
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OPERATING REVIEW / GENUS PIC

ACCELERATING

DR BILL CHRISTIANSON
CHIEF OPERATING OFFICER
GENUS PIC

BUSINESS PRIORITIES
SHORT TERM

Continue to strengthen our supply chain
in China and expand the local team

MEDIUM TERM

Keep expanding our global network

of elite forms, to occelercte disseminanbon
of genetic improvement and enhance
restience

LONG TERM

Successfully bring PRRSv-resistant
animals ta market

MOMENTUM

Year ended 30 June

Revernue

Adjusted operating profit exc JV
Adjusted operating profit inc JV
Adjusted operating margin exc JV

Actuol currercy Constart

T curercy

2021 2020 Change crarge
Em Em % %
315.4 2988 & 11
1229 1133 g8 14
1359 1243 @ 146
389% 379% 10pts 10pts

MARKET

African Swine Fever (ASF} remains the
largest threat and opportunity for pig
producers, both in terms of the impact of
the spread of the disease, in particular in
China, and the resulting volatility in supply
and demand in global markets. Whilst
ASF continues to cause challenges in
Asic, the disease has continued to spread
west across Europe with Eastern Germany
recently announcing the first cases of ASF
in its swine population. Complications
fromn COVID-19 including labour shortages,
meat packing capacity, retail food service
demand and international logistics delays
olso continued to impaoct globol pig
production. Feed input costs rose due 1o
weather patterns and rebust demand,
resuiting in the highast grain prices in
recent yeors. In the near-term, ASF, feed
input costs and COVID-19 imphcations will
continue to exert pressure on the global
porcine industry.

China's pork sector is expanencing
uncertainty cffecting production

and profitability due to market price
volatitty, stagnant demand and angoing
chalienges with the ASF recovery. Soaring
pork prices in 2020 suppressed dernand,
whilst domestic supply increased as
production racovered, and oreign
imports continued. Qutbreaks of ASF
during the winter months also resulted

i1 o surge of slaughter of animails in 2021,
further contributing to increased supoly.
Conseguently, domestic pig prices have
dropped approximately 50% since the
beaginning of 2021, which combined with
high input costs, caused a callapse of
producers’ margins. Despite China's
efforts to rebuld its herd, Rabobank
estimates that inventory still remains
below 2018 pre-ASF numbers due to ASF

outbreaks in 2020 and 2021, Prices are
expected to remain volatile for sorme
months reflacting producers’ investments
in production capacity coming on stream,
seasonal demand trends and the release
of iInventaries of frozen pork accumulated
by importers.

in Europe, the outbireak of ASF In Eastern
Germany, the COVID-19 pandamic and
new regulations have collectively resulted
in challenging market conditions for
producers. However, pig prices recovered
in early 2021 due to the irventary
recfuctions from sow liquidations i
severa) countries, as well as ongoing
demond from China. European pork
axports increasaed by 24% versus the prior
year, with China being the key driver.
New animal welfore and environmentol
management standards have also
caused large concerns in parts of the
European industry, especialty in Germany
ond Netherlands. These stondards will
require addiional investments and

rmay weli result in further sow inventory
reductions. Recent cancellation

of certain expaort licences grantad

by Ching, in reaction to the supply
mbalance currently experienced in
China, 15 expected to have an adverse
impact on European producers due o
the reduction of exports to Ching.

The US industry has expetienced
sustamned high pig prices throughaut

2021, due to strong domestic and
international demand, with the latter
exceeding expectations. Spot pig prices
have increased mare than $75/cwt in the
S since the start of the yeor. US pork
exports were 1% higher than the prior year,
totalling 3.83 tillion tos through June 2021,
China was the largest buyer of US pork



STRATEGIC PROGRESS
IN 2020/21

DELIVERING A
DIFFERENTIATED
PROPRIETARY GENETIC
OFFERING

> Delivered further increases in
genetic merit across all targeted
traits

> Continued to expand our network
of elite nucleus farms; started
construction on d joint venture
genetic nucleus in Brazil and o new
owned elite nucleus in Canada

> Increcsed global dissemination of
elite genetics despite constraints
created by COVID-19, flying
18,500 animats to 26 countries,
including 13,000 pureline gilts to
multiplication facilities in Russia
and Ching

FOCUSING ON LARGE AND
PROGRESSIVE PROTEIN
PRODUCERS GLOBALLY

> Grew adjusted operating profits in
Asia by 49%, driven particularly by
increasing demandg in China and
underpinned by further expansion
of our local supply chain

> Delivered adjusted operating profit
growth of 13% across Europe, aided
by our focus an large producers and
expansion of our distribution network
to support smaller customers

> Maintained previous performance
levels in North America, despite
the locai impact of COVID-19,
helped by sales of our PICBQO
boar through new accounts
with large producers

> Increcsed adjusted operating
profit in Latin America by 17%, with
particularly strong performance
from Brazil

SHARING IN THE
VALUE DELIVERED

> Agreed further royaolty contracts
around the world, so that 78% of
aur business is now conducted
on this basis {including 36% of our
business in China)

> Strengthened our relationship with
o major integrated producer in Latin
America, through ¢ contract that
will see royalty payments increase
each year, consistent with the
incremental and cumulative value
PIC genetics bring to its business

> Conducted a further 28 product
trials, involving 87,056 pigs, to show
producers the benefits of using PIC
geneatics in their systems

(23% of total exports), with Mexico close
behind. According to USDA projections,
totat US pork exports for 2021 are
expected 1o be flat to marginally lower
year on year, whila pig production

is forecast to be largely unchanged
from 2020,

Brazil's pork exports are the largest in the
South American pork industry. Its share of
global pork exports is forecast to be 11%
in 2021, with the primary destination
beaing China.

PERFORMANCE

Genus PIC's adjusted operating profits
for the year were £1359m, up 16% in
constant currency. This performance
was driven by very strong growth in
many countries, In particular China,
Russia and Brazil Volumeas were up
1%, with all regions contributing and
the highest growth in Asia and Europe.
Total revenue increased by 11% in
constant currency and strategically
important porcine royalty revenue was
alsc up 1% in constant currency.

In North America, COVID-19 caused
packing plant slowdowns in the first half
of FY21. Market conditions improved in
the second half, contributing to full year
adjusted operating profit growth of 1% in
constant currency. Volumes grew by 3%
but royalty revenue declined 1%, due to
reduced breeding activities by certain
customers affected by the impact of
plant slowdowns, and certain customers
axperiencing PRRSv outbreaks in the
second half of FY21. However, key account
wing on our damline products and strong
sales growth on the PICBCO sire ling,
provides momeantum gomg into FY22.

Latin America’s adjusted operating profit
grew by 17% in constant currency, with all
the mgjcr countries contributing. Volumes
were up 7% and royalty revenues were

up 9% in constant currency. In Brazil,
strong export demand from China fuelled
significant industry expansion and drove
almost 40% operating profit growth in our
joint venture with Agroceres. To continue
to meet Increcsing demand, Agroceres
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PIC has begun constructing a new geneatic
nucleyus farm to house 3,600 elite animals
and produce up to 710,000 breeding
animals per year.

Although revenue in Eurcpe was
essentially unchanged, adjusted
operating profit rose by 13% in constant
currency. Breeding stock sales were lower
due to large key account stockings in
the prior year. However, royclty revenues
weare up 11% in constant currency,

with nearty all countries achieving
growth. Expansion projects in Russia
continued te drive strong royalty growth
and delivered profit growth of 24% 1n
constant currency. In Spain, Genus PIC
entered into a strategic relationship with
Sergal, a leading porcine distributor,

to acquire and integrate its semen
supply chain. This will support continued
long-term growth with pork producers

N the impertant Spanish market.

Asia's adjusted operating profit grew by
49% in constant currency. The strength

in pig prices for the majority of the year
supported continued growth in customer
breeding projects, and improved margins
from by-product sales in Genus PIC's
owned farms in Ching. China's royalty
revenues grew strongly and were 121%
higher. However, country-wide health
chalienges in the second half of the year,
along with a sharp decline in market pig
prices, resulted in some near-term sales
volatility as well as impacting owned
farm profit margins from the sale of by-
product slaughter pigs. This volatility is
expected to cantinue through FY22. In
the Philippines, the industry has started
to show signs of recovery following the
impacts of COVID-19 and ASF. Despite

a volume decline of 3%, ocperating profit
increased by 48% in constant currency.
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GENUS PIC CASE STUDY

SUSTAINABLE

BUSINESS GROWTH

NEW FACILITY SUPPORTS
OUR SUSTAINABLE BUSINESS
GROWTH

In August 2020 Genus PIC began
construction of a 370,000 square-foot
nucleus farm in Canada. This focility
will house 2,000 alite females which
will enhance our capacity and support
growth in key maorkets, including Russia
and South America.

We carefully selected the farm’s location
and layout to ensure the highest health
standards. Canada is recognised as a
‘nigh health' export market and the farm
itself is isolated from other pig operations,
yet close 1o export facilities. The farm's
design will facllitate physical security,
cleaning procedures and handling of
biosecure feed and semen. The site’s
dedicated export facility and truck wash
will ensure thot high-health breeding pigs
can be exported guickly and effectively in
line with best practice.

We have designed the farm with
sustainability and animal well-being in
mind. Feotures inciude computerised
ventilation, heating and coaling, using
on-site composting 1o create fertiiser
for feed crops and energy saving
maagsures such as LED lighting. The farm
will hold pigs fram birth to maturity, so
no animals will need to be transported
during thelr growth phase, minimising
stress for the pigs. Combined with o
square footage per animal that exceeds
regulations, this witl help eqach anirmal

1o moximise its genetic exprassion,
benefiting them and our cusiomers.
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Canada 370,000 2,000

location sq. ft elite females
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OPERATING REVIEW / GENUS ABS

PARTNERIN

CREATING AND SHARING IN VALUE

DR NATE ZWALD
CHIEF OPERATING OFFICER
GENUS ABS DAIRY

JERRY THOMPSON
CHIEF OPERATING OFFICER
GENUS ABS BEEF

BUSINESS PRIORITIES
SHORT TERM

Enhance the digital customer experience

MECIUM TERM

Maove US production and talb work anto
our new Leeds site in Wisconsin

Accelerate growth in target markets
while continuing to strengthen product
development

LONG TERM

Expand our range of exclusive
relationships with producers around the
waorld, based on performance-based
contracts and prcing

Actudl currency Constam
- - - - - - curency
2021 2020 Charge chonge
Vear endea 3G June Emt Em % %
Reverug 250.1 23746 5 13
Adjusted operating profit 36.4 325 12 21
Adjusted operating margin 14.6% 137% Q%pts 10pts
MARKET
Strong global demand for dairy products
and the easing of COVID-19 lockdowns
helped drive up the Fonterra Whole OverG”
Milk Powder auction price by 25% over
the last 12 menths. Increased demand demand for
in China and other Asian markets was [}
important in supparting these pricas. ABS S prOd UCtS
Markets such as Brazil saw recard milk remdiﬂed

prices, underpinned by government
initlatives to counter the COVID-19
pandemic and inflationary pressures.

This strong demand boosted EU dairy
production in the first half of 2027, with
prices up 9% over the prior year. However,
unfavourable weather during planting
résulted in higher feed costs, dampening
profitability. The US gairy herd was 9.5
million cows by May 2021, 1ts highest

level in over 20 years Along with higher
yields, this is expected to increase milk
production by 2.4% during 2021

China dairy imports were also up through
the year, particularly in Q1 2021 which
saw mitk and cream, whey and cheese
imparts nse mare than 50% over the

prior year, when CQVID-19 hampered
international trade, These imports

were mannly fulfilled by New Zealond,
Germarny, the US and Australia.

Industry forecasts suggest 1% growthn
2027 for milk production in regicns where
supply exceeds domestic demand

This compares with 1.4% growth i 2020,
with most coming from the US and £U
However, continued feed cost Increases
in these regions will put pressure on
production marging and likely restnct
short-term supply growth,

resilient in FY21.

Worldwide beef demand was particularly
strong throughout the year. ASF's impact
on pork In China has increased import
demand for beef and the post-COVID-19
reopening of US foodservice and retail
over the last six morths also cantributed.
This has significantly increased beef
prices, partcularly in Brazil (up 40%) and
the US fup 10%). In Brazil, this has been
exacerbated by lower supply leveals

due to poor pasture growth, COVID-19
disruptions and formers holding

onto cattle unti! they reached their
desired weights.

However, Brazil still reoched a new glopal
record for beef exports in 2020 due

to rising production, a waak domestic
market, a much lower exchange rate and
strong demand from Ching. Brazilian beef
remains vary pnee competitive given its
large production capacity and heavily
depressed economy and currency. USDA
forecasts indicate that Brazilian beef
exparts could grow by 5% 1n 2021, further
challenging Australia’s market share.



STRATEGIC PROGRESS
IN 2020/21

>

DELIVERING A
DIFFERENTIATED
PROPRIETARY GENETIC
OFFERING

Continued to generate industry-
leading dairy bulls and established
our Elite Sire programme, offering
custormers early access to genomic
sires of high genetic mernt
Increased the number of Nukra
beef bulls in our nucleus facilities
and brought more of these

high genetic mert animals inte
production for customers

Grew global sales volumes of
sexed genetics {including Sexcet,
our proprietary product] by 29%,
NuEra Genetics by 53% and Beef
inFocus lour global beef-on-dairy
orand} by 15%

FOCUSING ON LARGE AND
PROGRESSIVE PROTEIN
PRODUCERS GLOBALLY

Continued to increase sales

of Sexcel in new and existing
markets, with particularly strong
performance in China (up 151%)
and Russia (up 154%)

Increased use of digital sales
platforms in Latin America,
contributing to volume growth of
20% (17% of which came from new
customers), especially in Brazil

{up 33%}

Strengthenad our service to

the largest herds in the US, by
establishing a strategic account
management team to support
current and potential customers
Enhanced our BeefAdvantage
index in the UK, by adding feed
efficiency as a selection trait, using
market-focused performance data

SHARING IN THE
VALUE DELIVERED

Enrolled over 125 large customers in
our Key Account Partner Program,
through which we become their
exclusive genetic partner and
provide @ holistic service for a
monthly fee

Conducted two beeaf validation
trigts with feeders and packers
around the world, to demonstrate
the superior performance of NuEra
Genetics and increase demand
through the supply chain

in the bovine genetics marketplace,
the significant investment required to
run competitive breeding programmes
saw a number of trading partnerships
develop during the year, particulary
between European co-operatives. This
trend is likely to continue, as a smaller
number of growing dairy and beef
producers want to partner with world-
class genetics companies, to help them
grow sustainable protein production.

PERFORMANCE

The COVID-19 pandemic continued to
challenge our customers, despite the
pandemic egsing in some countries.
However, overall demand for ABS's
products has remained resilient with
the ABS salesforce focus on obtaining
all of their customers’ business. This has
included good uptcke on new partnership
contracts which include an outcome
based pricing model,

ABS's adjusted operating profit increased
by 21%, with volumes up 15% and revenue
up 13% in constant currency. Dairy
customers continued to demand sexed
and beef genetics, with sexed volumes up
29% and beef volumes being 22% higher.
This 15 reflected in Sexcel's continued
success, the growing use of NuEra beef
genetics in dairy herds and customer
growth in the traditional beef segment.

Europe grew both volumes and revenue
by 7%, with adjusted operating profit

14% higher in constant currency. Sexed
semen volumes rose by 43%, with the

UK, Italy and the Furopean distributor
business growing fastest. In Russiq, the
business made strateqic prograss with key
accounts and delivered strong operating
profit growth of 177% in constant currency.
We also achieved strong growth in other
distributor markets, however COVID-19
lockdowns in January and February
significantly reduced customer access,
and with dairy producers limiting their
herd growth, conditions in the UK and
Europe were challenging during the
second half of the year. Good progress
was made on moving customers to
partnership-based contracts and the ABS
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breeder tag system uptake has been very
encouraging. A new third-party InteliGen
production facility that opened in Eurcpe
in the first half of the year was successfully
validated and put inte full operation.

North American revenue was unchanged
and adjusted operating profit fell by

13% in constant currency. We increased
investment in strategic key account
management and marketing dunng the
yeor, however COVID-19 travel restrictions
continued to have o short-term impact
on scles. Volumes declined by 2% due

to reduced face-to-face customer
interactions and uncertain markat
conditions causing dairy producers 1o
raticnalise their genetic inventory on-
farm, Beef-on-dairy volurnes rose 19%,
supported by proprietary NuEra genetics
selected for cross-bred beef-on-dairy
performance and sexed volumes were
1% higher, however customers used less
conventiona! product. There was also
lower IntelliGen profit due 1o a plaonned
technology transfer in the prior year.

In Latin Arnerico, revenue grew by 32% and
adjusted operating profit increased by
67% in constant currency. Performance in
Brazil was particularly good, reflecting the
strength of the Brazilian beef market, the
team's innovative digital sales campaigns
and our robust pricing policies. Overall
volumes in Latin America weare 20% higher,
with sexed volumes up 36% and beef
volumes up 37%, utilising NuEra genetics
selected for cross-bred performance of
North American sires with tropical cows.
Embryo volumes increased by 36%.

In Asia, adjusted operating profit was up
53% and volumes grew 36%. Trading grew
in China, following a period of vertical
mtegration amaong customers, as dairy
processers acquired farms. After the end
of a multi-year drought and bushfires in
2019/20, Australia’s customer demand
bounced back strongly. Sexed volumes
in Asia rose 64%, with strong Sexcel

sales in China. The year also saw strong
performance in our India business and the
signing of our fourth government sexed
semen contract in Indic.
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GENUS ABS CASE STUDY

ENGAGING

WITH PROGRESSIVE BEEF FARMERS THROUGH
INNOVATIVE SALES CHANNELS
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ENGAGING WITH
PROGRESSIVE BEEF FARMERS
THROUGH INNOVATIVE
SALES CHANNELS

Marcos Albino is a Nelore cattle breeder
at the 800 cow Maranata Ranch in
Araguiana, Brazil, and has historically
never used artificial insernination. In 2019
Marcos was invited by tho ABS teamn

to participate in ABS's 'Black Week!
digital sales event, during which Marcos
acqguired 200 ABS embryos produced
with ABS's leading Nelore genetics, sexed
with our proprietary sexing technology.

A high proportion of these breadings
resulted in high-qualty female calves,
enabling Marcus to rapidly transform the
performance and sustainability of his herd
in o single breeding event.

As a result of Marcos's pasitive experience
and support from ABS's technical services
team, he has developed a strong working
relationship with ABS und has since
invested in additional embryos. The
relationship has now progressed beyend
the acquisition of genetics and Marcos
has decided to employ ABS's VB NEO
service, which will enable hm to create
embryas from his best males and females
to breed his next generations, thereby
dramaticaolly accelerating the genetic
improvement in his herd.
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OPERATING REVIEW / GENUS R&D

PIONEERING

DRELENA RICE

CHIEF SCIENTIFIC OFFICER
AND HEAD OF R&D
GENUS RED

BUSINESS PRIORITIES
SHORT TERM

Keep enhandcing our proprietary sexing
technology and increasing fertility

MEDIUM TERM

Gain regulatory acceptance of PRRSV-
resistant pigs in target markets ond
advance our reproductive technology
1o dccelerate genetic gain

LONG TERM

Harness data anolytics ond genomic
science to develop Insights into new traits
that will enhance the sustainability of
armal agriculture

TECHNOLOGY FOR
PROTEIN PRODUCTION

Year enced 30 June

Actud’ curency Constart

Porcine product development
Bovine product development
Gene editing

Other research and development

Net expenditure in R&D'

currency
201 2020 Cnarge crange
£m £m % o
219 289 [24) (200
19.7 209 {6) 1
76 5.2 a6 54
13.3 10.2 30 42
62.5 652 (4] 2

1 Excluarg preft ottioutaple to nor-cortraling intergst

PERFORMANCE

Dunng the year, Genus continued to
strengthen its proprietary differentiated
offerings and to invest in key strategic
initiatives, including gene editing,
InteliGen production capacity and
porcing elite form nucieuses, as weall

as further developing its research and
development pipeline. Net research
and development investment increased
by 2% in canstant currency, with the
prior year having ncluded large
investmants to expand the porcine

elite nucleus poputations. External
research collaboration spend waos
lower, due to delays in spending caused
by COVID-19 constraints, and the
CGroup olso benehted from efficiencies
in its gene editing programme, oy
internalising gene editing capabllities.

Parcine product development continues
to deliver high rates of genetic
improvement, drven by tha combination
of our expanded genetic production,
implermentation of best science and our
capture of accurate and meaningful
dota. Ongoing improvernent ntiotives
are focused on further refining our
genomic evaluation, explonng precision
measurement tools utilising new
technologies such as vides imaging,
and continuing the integration of
Mollevang genetics for maximum product
differentiation. Rotes of genetic gown ond
the results from product validation trials
demanstrate that these investments

are increasing our realised rates of
improvemeant. The decreGse In parcing
product development expenditures are
prmarily refated to pne-time projects In

We've iaunched a
new programme in
reproductive bioclogy
and established a
world-class team in
this areq.

Y20, which expanded capacity in Genus
PIC's elite farms, along with favourable
markat conditions which reduced
unning costs,

Bovine product deveicpment continued
to gererate an industry leading Holstein
dairy bull portfolio, which supported
strong volume growth in ABS. The De
Novo joint venture continued to produce
more than 50% of these animals and
the strong pipeline of young kulls will
nelp susiain our leadership poasition.
Clobal demond for NuEra genetics

grew further and represented more than
30% of our total beef volumes. Recent
validation trials in customer systems
have demonstrated Nukra's significant
superiority to competitor genetics. In
addition, we have now validated and



STRATEGIC PROGRESS IN 2020/21

GENE
EDITING

Conducted further trials on our
gene-edited pigs, demonstrating
complete resistance 1o two
prevalent types of PRRSv, and
made our second submission for
regulatory approval in the US
With our partner BCA, increased
interactions with MARA and
progressed In-country lab and
production facilities

Continued our collgboration with
Kansas State University to evaluate
opportunities for combating swine
influenza and African Swine Fever

GENDER
SKEW

Introduced a second generation
of our industry-leading sexing
technelogy to enhance ease of
aperation, improve efficiency and
incrense the gender skew rate of
each unit produced

Increased production capacity to
help ABS meet global demand for
its sexed semen product, Sexcel
Continued to expand cur network
of IntelliGen Technologies
laboratories, which now number
1 owned and licensed facilities
across four continents

REPRODUCTIVE
BIOLOGY

Harnessed new technigques and
technologies to improve our system
for IVF, ennancing the quality and
guantity of embryos produced
internally and within hcensed
laboratones

Started exploring the benefits of
working with embryonic stem cells
to accelerate genetic gain, through
collaborations with the University
of California Davis and Missourt
State University

DATA
STRATEGY

Developed a data and analytics
strategy and implemented
initictives on scalable hybrig
computing, flexible storage and
cataloguing of assets to strengthen
data science capabilities and
support innoveation
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launched our IntelliGen Gen2.0 {'Gen2')
equipment at our Dekorra facility, which
will provide further production efficiencies
and further strengthen our product
quality. We continue ta invest in intelliGen
with the launch of Gen2, while amortising
previously capitalised development costs.
We expect to expand our production
capacity further, to meet increasing
demand for sexed semen.

Net gene editing expenditure rose

by 54% in the year, mainly due to FY20
having included net income of £3.2m
recognised for a milestone payment
received from our Chinase partner, BCA,
Excluding BCA income, gene editing
expenditures were 5% lower. Our waork with
Caribou completed and we internalised
our capability for producing gene

edited animals, as intended. The PRRSy
programme Is progressing as planned,
and we maintained our engagemeant

with the FDA, with whom we have a
constructive and positive relationship. We
also initiated conversations, both directly
and with local partners, on requiatory and
market acceptance in key global markets,
inciuding China and Japan.

Other research and development
expenditure increased by 42%. This
included initiating work on reproductive
biolegy and data science objectives, and
continuing efforts in our bicinformatics
platform and genome science. External
collaborations in a variety of discovery
areas also continued, though ot a slower
nace due to institutions prioritising
COVID-19 research and vaccines.
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GENUS R&D CASE STUDY

DEVELOPING

PIGS WITH RESISTANCE
TO A DEVASTATING DISEASE

PRRSv 1s a devastating disease that
causes significant animal suffenng and
billions of dollars in lesses in global pig
production annually. PRRSy cannot

be effectively preventad or eliminated
through traditional veterinary medicine
or vacoination. Genus has picneered the
development of a gene editing solution
that has proven 1o confer complete
resistance to PRRSv In pigs, making
animals healthier and cur foed supply
safer and more sustainable.

During FY21, we made great progress
and met our programme milestones

We completed ve animal challenge
trials, with our pigs demonstrating

100% resistance to both Type | {US and
Europecnt and Type it (US and Asial PRRSv,
confirming previous acodemic findings.
To commercialise our PRRSv-resistant
pigs, reguiatory approval is key. We were
therefore plecsed 1o sulbmit the first two
product claim and method filings to the
US Feod and Drug Administration.

Our path to regulatory approval and
commercial launch is clear, and this

yeur's progress has moved us closer
towards our gool of erodicating

this devastating disease
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FINANCIAL REVIEW

STRONG

PERFORMANCE FROM
A RESILIENT BUSINESS

tn the year ended
30 June 2021, the
Group’s overall
performance
was very strong.

ALISON HENRIKSEN

in the year ended 30 June 2021, the Group’s overall
performance was very strong despite some ongoing
impacts from COVID-12. The resilience of our operations was
reflected in revenue growth of 4% (10% in constant currency)
and adjusted operating profit growth including joint
ventures of 27% {36% in constant currency) on a restated
tasis (see below), This was after another year of significant
investment in R&D of £62.5m {up 2% in constant currency,
down 4% in actual currency). Excluding gene editing costs,
adjusted operating profit including jeint ventures increased
by 37% in constant currency and adjusted profit before
tax was up 38% (29% in actual currencyl,

In line with the IFRIC Interpretation Commitiea's new
agenda decision published in April 2021, the Group
has changead ks accounting palicy related to the
capitalisation of certain software assets. This change
relates 1o the capitalisation of costs of canfiguring or
customising opplicotion software under 'Software os
a Service' {SaaS] arrangements. As a result, we are
capitaiising fess of our GenusOne costs as the system
is a Microsoft Dynamics 365 Saas solution. This change
in occounting policy led 1o an increose in operating
expensas amounting to £2.7m in the current yaar and
£5.2m for FY20. All FYZ0 results are restated. For full
details of the impact see Note 2 Basis of Preparation.

On o statutory bosis, profit before tax was £55.8m {2020
restated: £46.3m). The aifference between statutory

and adjusted profit before tax principally reflected the
reduction in the non-cash fair value net 1AS 41 biclogical
assets, versus anincrease lost year, and lower exceptional
iterns, principally due to the prior year reflecting £16.4m of
iitigation fees and damages. Basic eamings per share on g
statutory basis were 72.6 pence (2020 restated: 54 4 penca).

Genus continues to report adjusted results os Alternotive
Performance Measures APMS'), which are used by the
Board to monitor undertying performance ot o Group and
operating segment level and are applied consistently
throughout. These APMs should be considered in addition
to, and not as a substitute for or a5 supetion 1o statutory
measures. For more information on Genus’'s APMS, see

the APM Glossary.

The effect of exchange rate movements on the transiation
of our overseas profits was to reduce the Group’s adjusted
profit before tax for the year by £6.3m compared with
2020, primarily gue 1o wenknass in Latn Amencan
currencies. All growth rates quated are in constant
cutrency unless otherwise stated. Constant currency
percentage movaments are calculated by restating the
results for the yeor ended 30 June 2021 ot the average
exchange rates applied to adjusted operating profit for
the year encled 30 June 2020,
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Actual currency
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Adjusted results Statutory results

Actual currency

Corstant - _
restatec’ currency restated’

2021 2020 Crange change 2021 2020 Crange
Vear endea 30 June £m Fm % % £m £ %
Revenue 5743 5H14 4 10 574.3 5514 4
Operating profit exc JVs 769 601 28 34 47.7 424 13
Operating profit inc JVs exc gene editing 974 760 28 37 n/a nfa n/a
Profit before tax 848 658 29 38 55.8 46.3 21
Profit before tax excluding Saal impact’ 875 710 23 32
Free cash flow 375 35.2 7 n/mé
Basic earnings per share (pence) 1009 773 31 0 72.6 S54.4 33
Dividend per share (pence) 32,0 291 10

I Asisset out n Note 2 Bos s of Preparat o, the Group ras changed its occourting pel oy -elated 1o the capitansator of certar sof tware assets fol owirg tha (IFRIC
Interoretation Cormmttes’s agerds dec’sion oublshed 17 A2 12021 Thschange naccountng pelay led to an norecse in opercting axpenses of £2 7 in the curre~i year
ana E5 2m for FY20 Al FY¥20 resu ts are restatea and for detar s of the full impact see Note 2 Bas s of Precaration. Profit before tax excluaing SuaS mpact' s presented only
th.s year to demonstrate the impact of cur change n accourting policy, and will not be presentedin future n the yaars

2 n’'m=not meanngful.

REVENUE

Revenue increased by 10% in constant ¢urrency and 4% in actual
currency to £574.3m {2020: £551.4m). PIC's revenue growth of 1%
in constant currency lup 6% in actual currency) continued 1o be
underpinned by Ching, as the strong pig price for much of the
year supported growth in royalty revenue and breeding stock
sales, as customers expanded preduction. In ABS, revenue was
up 13% in constant currency (5% in actual currency) reflecting
continuing success of our sexed and beef genetics, particularly
across Brozil, Russia, India and Ching.

ADJUSTED QPERATING PROFIT INCLUDING JVS

Constant
currency
Actuulcurrrsnic! . chang_a _
restated
Year gnded 30 June 200 2020 Change
Adjusted Profit Before Tax’ £m £m % %
Genus PIC 1359 1243 9 16
Genus ABS 346.4 325 12 21
R&D (62.5) (65.2) 4 {2
Central costs (200} (208 4 -
Adjusted operating profitinc Vs 89.8 708 27 35
Net finance costs (5.0) (5.0) 0 (2)
Adjusted profit before tox 848 658 29 38

1 Includes sha-e of adjusted cre-tax orofits of jort ventures and removes scare of
adjusted profits of non-control Ing interests

FY21 Fy20 F¥21 Fv20

Average Averaga Closing Closig

US Dollar/£ 135 126 138 124
Euro/E 114 11 117 110
Sraziion Real/E 715 57 687 ¢ 677
Mexican Peso/E 2814 2608 2757 2852
Chinese Yuan/E 892 889 893 875
Russion Rouble/E 10175 8517 10110 88.19

Adjusted operating profit including joint ventures was £82.8m
(2020 restated: £70.8m), reflecting ¢ high growth rate of 36% in
constant currency as mentioned abaove. Within this, Genus's
share of adjusted joint venture operating profit was higher at
£13.0m {2020: £11.3rn), primarily due to strong results in the PIC
Agroceres joint venture in Brazil and our joint venture in China.
Amounts attributable to non-controlling interests were lower at
£0.Im (2020: £0.6m) due to lower third party royalty incorme and
aramp up in dairy preduct development within our De Nove
jeint venture. Our gene editing investment, which is primarily
focused on crecting resistance in pigs against the devastating
PRRSv disease, increased £2.4m to £7.6m, lorgely becouse FY20
included net income of £3.2m from BCA, our Chingse partner.
Excluding this, gene editing expendituras reduced through
efficiencies gained from internalising our capability to produce
gene edited animals. Adjusted operating profit including joint
ventures and excluding gene editing investment increased by
37% in constant currency to £97.4m {2020 restated: £76.0m), which
far exceeded our medium-term chjective to achieve growth of
10%. The impact to profit from COVID-12 effects on trading across
the Group were largely offset by short-term travel savings of
approximately £5m compared to the prior year.

PIC performed strongly, with adjusted cperating profit including
joint ventures up 16% in constant currency, particulary benefitting
from continued strong demand in China. Volurmes were up 1%

(5% excluding Ching) with all regions contributing. Strategically
important royalty revenues were up 1%, supported by strong
growth in China of 121% and Europe of 11%. Howeaver North America
declined 1%, due ¢ some customers’ breeding activities being
impacted by COVID-19 related packing glant slowdowns in the
first half of the year and PRRSv disease outbreaks in the second
half of the year.
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FINANCIAL REVIEW CONTINUED

ABS had a particulariy strong year, with adjusted cperating
profit increasing 21% and record volume growth of 15%. Sexcel
continued to demonstrate thot it is the sexed product of choice
for progressive dairy farmers, driving overall sexed volurme growth
of 29%. The growing use of Nutra beef genetics in dairy herds
supported beef volume growth of 22%. The COVID-19 pandemic
continued to cause chailenges to cur customers and adjusted
operating profit growth was achievad in all regions except North
Americo. Both Asia and Lotin Americo ochieved strong double-
digit growth, with the latter continuing to benefit from innovative
digital sales campaigns.

Central costs were stable in constant currency ot £200m
(2020 restated: £20.8m). This included a one-time £500 award
1o every employee for recognition of their effort through the
COVID-19 pandemic, as well as investments 1o design ond start
implementing a new target operating model for our global
finance and procurement functions, Qur GenusOne enterprise
system roli-out continues to make geod progress. As reported
above, under new IFRIC guidance, the continuing costs to
configure ond implement the GenusOne cloud environment
during the year of £2.7m (FY20: £5.2m} are now being expensed
rather than capitalised, with FY20 ciso being restated. As these
costs are one-off in nature, we have determined to keep them
in Central, with the reduction over the prior year due to fess
configuration waork as the roll-out pragresses.

STATUTORY PROFIT BEFORE TAX
The table below reconciles adjusted profit before tax to statutory
profit before tax:

restoled

2001 2000
Em Lm

Adjusted Profit Before Tax 84.8 658
Operating profit attnbutable to non-controlling 0.1 a4
interest
Net 1AS 41 valuation movement on biological 31 Q.1
assets in JVs and associates
Tox on J¥s and ossociates (3.0 2.3
Adjusting iterns
Net 1AS 41 valuation movement on biological {10.8) 158
assets
Amortisation of acquired intangible assets (7.4) 85)
Share-based payment expense {7.7) (58)
Exceptional items (3.3) (192
Statutory Profit Before Tax 55.8 483

Qur statutory profit before tax was £55.8m (2020 restated:
£46.3m), largely reflecung the increase in the underlying trading
performance and the reduction in exceptional items, partially
offset by the non-cash {air value net IAS 41 biological asset
movement. Within this, there was a £6 4m uplift {2620 £13.2m
uplfty in porcine biclogical assets and a £17.2m reduction [2020:
E£2.6m uplift) in bovine biological assets, due to certain fair value
model estimate ¢hanges, Share-based payment expense was
£77m {2020: £5.8m}. These reconailing wems are primanty non-
cash, can be volatile and do net correlate 1o the underlying
trading parformance in the year.

EXCEPTIONAL ITEMS

There was a £3.3m net exceptional éxpense in the year {(2020:
E£19.2m expense), which included legal fees of £2.5m (2020
£5.6m) and with the prior year also being impacted by £10.8m

of gamages and ¢osts in relation to Genus ABS's fitigaton witn
STGenetics. A non-cash Guaranteed Mirtmum Pension 'GMP')
equolisotion charge of £2.3min respect of pension schemes has
also been recagnised due to a High Court ruling on 20 November
2020, which ruled ndividual transfer payments made by UK

pension schemes since 17 May 1990 need to be equalised for the
affects of GMP Also included is o cregit of £2.0m in relotion to o
share forfeiture exercise.

NET FINANCE COSTS

Net Ainance costs were unchanged at £S5 0m (2020: £5.0m].
Avercge facility borrowings wera compdratle year on yeaor,

with reductions in market interest rates being largely offset by
increased bank margins in relation to the Group's new Facility
Agreernent, which was executed in August 2020, as well as higher
commitment and utilsation fees

Amartisotion costs in the year included FO.2m writtan off in
respect of the previous facility, at the commencement of the
new Facility Agreement, and £0.2m from the higher monthnly
amortisation costs of the new facility which are being spread
over a shorter three-year duration.

Gther interest ingluded £0.8m {2G20: £1.0m) of IFRS 16 finance
lease interest and £0.9m {2020: E0.9m) relating to the unwind
of discount interest on the Group's pension liabilities and

put options.

TAXATION

The tax charge on the statutory profit in the year of £12.0m
(2020: £12.9m) represented an effective taxrate 'ETR) of 20.4%
{2020 restated: 26.5%) with the prior year from 24.0% as a
consequence of the Saal accounting restatement, This pricr
year increase was due 1o non-recognition of the related
deferred tax asset, as the iosses created were considered

not to be utilisable on a timely basis,

The statutory tax charge reduced by 3.6% due to the
revaluation ifrom 19% to 25%) of deferred tax assets expected

to crystatlise post April 2022 in the UK and further reduced by
2.0% for additional future utilisation of previcusly incurred losses,
particularly in Germany which has an improved trading and
profrability outlook. These credits were olfset by movements in
tox provisions of 1.2% ond a charge for prior year tax expenses
of 0.5%.

The tax charge on adjusted profits in the year was £191m

(2020: £15.6mi, which represented a tax rate of 22.5% (2020
restated: 23.7%) The odiusted tax rote s reduced by 3.3% by

the revaluation of UK deferred tax assets previously mentioned,
offset by a charge of 0 8% primarily resulting from the provision
for State Aid on CFC Finance Companies. In March 2021, HMRC
issued Genus with g charging notice for £1.2min respect of its
assessment of the state aid due to be recovered. Dunng the year,
Genus has provided a further £0.4rm (2020: E10m) in respect of
its exposure to the repayment of previously cloimed tax benefits
under this State Aid challenge but will continue 1o pursue various
avanues of appeal against both the EU Commission's original
decision and HMRC's interpretation of that decision,

as caleulated in the charging notice received.

The outlook for the Group ETR is in the range of 23%-25%,
consistent with the current year, excluding the one-off change
of rate benefit and provision increase.

EARNINGS PER SHARE

Adiusted basic earnings per share increased by 31% (40% in
constant currency) 10 100.9 pence (2020 restated: 77.73 pence)

as a result of the strong trading performance and lower tax rate.
Basic eqrnings per share on a statutory Dasis were 72.6 pence
{2020 restated: 54.4 pence), reflecting the strong trading
performance and lower exceptional charges, partially offset by
the ror~cash fair valug net 1AS 41 owlogical aszat mavemeant.

BIOLOGICAL ASSETS

A faature of the Group's net assets 1s its substantial investment

in biological assets, which under 1AS 41 ore stoted ot farr value.
At 30 June 2021, the carrying value of biological assets was
£337.3m (2020: £370.2mi, as set out 0 the table on the next page.



202 2020

Em £m

Non-current assets 2799 3101

Current O:S!:Ul; 7 I 39.5 o :7:‘?8

In_vént-o;y_ o o 17.8 203

- - 7 - 337.3 376.2- -
Represented by:

Porcine 2274 2427

Dairy and beef 1099 1275

S N 3373 3702

The movement in the overall balance sheet carrying value of

biological assets of £329m includes the effect of exchange rate

translation decreases of £35.3m. Excluding the transiation effect

there was:

> u £921mincrease in the carrying value of porcine biclogical
assets, due principally to an increase in the number of
animals held, as well as 1o the mix of animals held: and

> @ £6.7m reduction in the bovine biolegicat assets carrying
value, primarily due to current estimates, based on market
data, of the semen sales price attributable to the biclogical
asset value.

The historical cost of these assets, less depreciation, was £65.1m
at 30 June 2021 (2020: £57.5m), which 1s the basis used for the
adjusted results. The historical cost depreciation of these assets
included in adjusted results was £10.0m (2020: £11.0m).

RETIREMENT BENEFIT OBLIGATIONS

The Group's retirement benefit obligations at 30 June 2021 were
£1m (2020: £18.1m) before tax and £9.0m (2020: £14.6m) net of
related deferred tax. The largest element of this liability now
relates to some legacy unfunded pension commitments dating
prior to the acguisiticn of PIC by Genus.

During the year, contributions payable in respect of the Group's
defned benefit schemes amounted to £74m (2020: £8.4m).
Contributions to the Milk Pension Fund ['MPF) dre scheduled to
finish in September 2021 which will reduce the amounts payable
going forwards.

As the impact of COVID-19 on asset valuations reduced, robust
investment strategies and higher bond yields during the year for
our two main defined benefit obligation schemes have led to
strengthened financial positions. Both the Dalgety Pension Fund
and our share of the MPF reported IAS 19 surpluses, prior to any
IFRIC 14 amendments, despite an additional GMP equalisation
charge of £2.3m,

CASHFLOW

Cash generated by operations of £86.6m (2020 restated: £77.2mi}
represented cash conversion of 113% (2020 restated: 128%) of
adjusted operating profit excluding jaint ventures. The strong
conversion of adjusted operating profit to cash is aligned to

our medium-term objective to achieve conversion of ot least
90%. The increase in cash generation was primarity due to the
strong trading performance and a continued focus on warking
capital management.

Capital exgenditure cash flows of £33.8m (2020 restoted: £297m)
included continued investrnent in the ABS supply chain, with state-
of-the-art new bull hausing In Wisconsin, increasing PIC's supply
chain capacity, with a new genetic nucleus farm being constructed
in Canada, and investment in software development. Cash inflows
from joint ventures were higher at £3.7m (2020: £3.7m). After interest
and tax paid, total free cash flow was £37.5m {2020: £35.2m).

The cash outflow from investments was £16.9m (2020: £0.1m).
This included an upfront payment of £6.9m as part of the £77m
consideration to acquire the trade and assets of Sergal, a
leading Spanish porcine semen distributer, £2.4m to acquire a
39% minority shareholding in Xelect, an aguaculture genetics
services company, ond deferred consideration payments from
previous acquisitions of £6./m.
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The net cash inflow after investments and dividends was £1.2m
(2020: £169m}, reflecting the additionat investments and deferred
consideration payments made during the year.

restated

200 2070
Cash flow {before debt rapayments) £m £m
Cash generated by operations B&.6 772
Intrerresﬂt émd tax paid o 7 (19.1) (17_{1)-
(Ec-pi-tc:!expend\'turé 7 7 ) 7{33.8) (2‘5&7)-
Cash réééiQed from J\z’é o o 3.7 7 37
Other B To1 11
Free cash flow 375 352
iii\ctiisirtions and inves_tn;e-nt-s S (i.é;.?) 0.1}
Dividenrds o (19.5)_ -[183)
Sh(-]re issued - - 7 01 - 6.1
Net cc.lrshrinrﬂc;“; (Before debt repayment-s] ) 1.27 149

NET DEBT AND CREDIT FACILITIES

Net debt increased slightly to £105.6m at 30 June 2021{2020:
£102.6m) primarily due to new financing leases. At the end of
June 2021 there was substantial headroom of £130m under the
Group's renewed credit facilities of £240m. The new facility was
crnginaily for a three-year term to 24 August 2023, but the Group
exercised the first of two available extension options, extending
the maturity date to 24 August 2024, The facility also includes an
uncommitted £100m accordion option, which can be requested
on a maximum of three occasions over the lifetime of the facility
to fund the Group's business development plans.

The Group's financial position and borrowing ratics remain

very robust, with sufficlent cash flows available to fund internal
investments and sufficient debt finance available to pursue
acquisition opportunities. At the end of June 2021, interest cover
was at 45 times (2020: 35 times). EBTDA, as cafculated under cur
financing facilities, includes cash received from joint ventures. Net
debt as calculated under our inancing facilities excludes IFRS 16
lease liabilities up to a cap of £20m but includes bank guarantees.
The ratio of net debt to EBITDA on this basis at the year-end has
remained stable at 09 times (2020 restated”; 0.8 times). This lavel of
leverage 15 Just below our medium-term objective of having a ratio
of net debt to EBITDA of between 1.0 - 20 times.

RETURN ON ADJUSTED INVESTED CAPITAL

We measure the Group's return on adjusted invested capital using
adjusted operating prefit including joint ventures after tax, divided
by the operating net assets of the business on the historical cost
basis and excluding net debt and pension liabilities. This removes
the impact of IAS 41 fair value accounting, the related deferrac tax
and goodwill. The post-tax return on adjusted invested capital was
higher at 23.0% {2020 restated: 201%), reflecting the strong profit
growth and lower tax rate. This was partially offset by an increased
asset base from the capital investments in supply chain capacity
and the increased values of our Brazilian joint venture, Agroceres,
and our Carnbeou shareholding

DIVIDEND

Recognising the importance of balancing our investment for

the future with ensuring an attractive return for shareholders, the
Board is recommending ¢ final dividend of 217 pence per ordinary
share, an increase of 10% aver the prior year final dividend. When
combined with the interim dividend increase of 10%, this will result
in a total dividend for the year of 32.0 pence per crdinary share
(2020: 291 pence per sharel, an increase of 10% for the year.
Dividend cover from adjusted earnings remains strong at 3.2
times (2020 restated: 2.7 times), slightly above the medium-term
target of an adjusted earnings cover range of 2.5 to 3.0 times.

Alison Henriksen
Chief Financial Officer
8 September 2021

1 FY20 Net Debt to EBITDA has been restated to reflect the revises credit facil ty
termns como ered n August 2020
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PEOPLE AND CULTURE

ATTRACTING

BY BEING A PEOPLE MAGNET

ANGELLE ROSATA
GROUP HR DIRECTOR

We nurture an open,
respectful and
supportive working
environment founded
on the five Company
values of Customer
Centric, Results
Driven, Pioneering,
People Focused,

and Responsible.

Genus employs over 3,400 colleagues in
24 countries.

We provide more information on our
warkforce in the Governance section.

INCREASING INCLUSION

We aim to be a 'People Magnat’ for
current and prospective colleagues,
whoever and wherever they are.

We nurture an open, respectful and
supportive working environment,
founded on the five cornpany values
our people helped to shape.

We have established a range of global
policies to help us, for example on Anti-
Horassment and Diversity & Inclusion. We
embed their provisions into our employee
handboaok and working practices, from
recruitment assessments 1o onboarding
Aactivities, and from performance
manggement 1o employee development.

Additional activities include the work
of AWAKE to enhance gender inclusion
[chiscussed on poges 36 to 37). This
year, we also delivered 'unconsciaus
bias’ training to over 100 senior
leaders, helping them ensure current
and future employees, customers and
other stokeholders feel valued and
raspectad, regardless of differences.
Our recruitment programmes have
subseguently sourced ond considered
a more diverse range of applicants.

ATTRACTING NEW TALENT

Internships and gradudte programmes
continued to bring new talent into Genus.
Eor example, in the US, ABS brought

i 28 interns {including 19 wormen] with
three already progressing into full-

time roles. In the UK, we recruited ten
graduates, including four women.

We also developed a new orlire
recruitrent and onboarding portal, to
help us reach a broader ond more diverse
pool of candidates. We are currently
rolling this out.

DEVELOPING OUR PEQPLE
We give all employees opportunities tc
grow and thrive. For instance, we continue

to evolve development programmes

for pecple leaders at different levels,
involving 212 participants from 14 countries
(34% of whom were women, in line with our
wider workforce profilel. This year, steps
included expanding training for first-time
supervisors and piloting a new coursa for
mici- to senior-level managers who have
groduoted from previous progrommes
and are keen 10 keep improving
leadership skills.

We implemented a 'self nomination’
option for many developrment
programmes, to help mitigate
unconscious biases in delegate selection
processes. We also enhanced diversity in
succession plans by ensuring women have
sufficient opportunities to develop the
capabilities needead for future roles. In PIC
Latin America, for example, thrge women
were promoted in FY21, compared to only
one during FY20.

We also ensure that colleagues
receive training on global policies.
Far example, every employee must
complete annual training on our Anti-
Bribery and Corruption Policy and
achieve 100% in g gost-trairung test.
Employees also complate annual
training on animal well-being, anti-
harassment and cyber secunity.
Colleagues working directly with animais
raceive role-speacific safety training.

ENHANCING ENGAGEMENT

We maintained our focus on @ngaging
employees, despite constraints created by
COVID-19 We regularly shared information
on Company plans and progress, and
enhanced leadership engagement
through virtual gtotal, regional and tocal
town halls, plus CEO breakfasts with
cross-sections of collecgues.

Cur two Non-Executive Director 'employee
representatives’ - Lasley Knox and

Lykale van der Brogk — held a breakfast
discussion with employees from PIC Europe,
gaining werkplace and cultural insights

to bring back 1o the Board. They will be
holding further discussions around the
world as COVID-1? restrictions are relaxed.



We run a global employee survey every
two years and ‘pulse’ surveys with

smalier groups in between. Our ‘pulse’
survey this year gained input from nearly
a quarter of employees. 74% of those
surveyed responded favourably 1o ‘| would
recommend a friend to work at Genus',
maintaining our employee Net Promater
Score ('eNPS') despite the challenges
created by COVID-19. 82% of respondents
said they were proud of the way Genus
handled its response to the pandemic.

IMPROVING HEALTH AND SAFETY
Throughout the COVID-19 pandemic, our
pricrity has been the safety of colieagues
and their families. We intreduced
protective protocols for employees
working at production facilities, in labs
and with customers, We suspenced
overseas business travel and established
rigarous guidelines, aligned with local
public health authorities, for emplioyees
working in offices.

In addition, we introduced support for
mental health and well-being, recognising
the pandemic's impact on employees’
work and home lives. This included a
"Well-being Week', involving 25 webinars
from experts in different aspects of mental
health. We also gave employees access
to more than 60 local well-being guides.

Overall, we continued to improve health
and safety performance, reducing the
recordable injury frequency rate by 21.46%
and vehicle incident rates by 169%.

ACTING ON CONCERNS

There are many ways in which employees
can raise issues, including an independent
hotline that supports our Whistleklowing
Policy and allows employees to
ancnymously report any concerns about
unethical behaviour. Any such reports

are immediately referred to the Group
General Counsel and Company Secretary.
They are investigated and discussed

with the Group HR Director, Head of Risk
Management and Internal Audit and

the Company's Audit & Risk Committee.
This process is regularty reviewed as part
of our annual Audit & Risk Committee
activity. Five issues were reported during
the year Following full investigation, steps
taken ranged frorn further training on
relevant policias to disciplinary action.

HUMAN RIGHTS

Genus is committed to respecting the
hurman rights of workers throughout our
value chain and the local communities in
which we operate. We aim to ensure that
anyone who might be affected by Genus
can enjoy the human rights described

in the International Bill of Human Rights
and the ILC Declaration on Fundamental
Principles and Rights at Work,

We monitor this through the same process
outlined above and there were no issues
identified during the year.
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HOW WE'VE WORKED
TOGETHER DURING THE
COVID-19 PANDEMIC

Throughout the pandemic, our
people have demonstrated great
commitment, collaboration and
resilience to help each other,
serve customers and support
their local communities.

This has been facilitated by our focus
on health and safety, flexible and
remote working, and use of digital
technologies. As highlighted opposite,
our priority has been land remains)
the well-being of employees, their
families and our customers. We have
monitored and followed local public
health guidance in every country
where we operate, while local teams
have worked together on additional
steps to strengthen protections

such as staggering break times and
using white boards to communicate
handovers at shift-changes rather
than face-to-face meetings.

Qur investment in digital tools has
enabled colleagues and teams to
work together seamlessly, irrespective
of location, For example, the team
leading deplioyment of the new
microfluidic chip for cur IntelliGen
technology reploced in-person visits
to sites around the world with videos,
online training and Microsoft Teams
calls. Tools like Teams and Yammer
have clso helped colleagues remain
connected and avoid isolation when
working remotely.

We have also embraced digital tools
and platforms toc communicate with
customers, e.g. through a programme
of webinars and highly-successful
digital sales drives in Latin America.
These efforts have been underpinned
by o tremendous global team spirit
and commitment to colleagues,
customers and animals. Examples
include employees covering different
roles when collecgues have been
self-isolating and export teams finding
creative ways of continuing shipments
of animals to customers, despite the
challenges and complexities created
by COVID-19.

The effectivenass of our approach was
recognised in a recent 'pulse’ survey of
maore than 500 employees, 82% were
proud of the way Genus had handled
its response to the pandemic, 88%
said they have the technology/tools
needed to do their job and 87% knew
who 1o talk to if they needed support
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PEOPLE AND CULTURE CASE STUDY

ADVANCING

WOMEN'S ADVOCACY,
KNOWLEDGE AND EMPOWERMENT



WOMEN ACHIEVING PROMOTION

100
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AWAKE (Advancing Women's Advocacy,
Knowledge and Empowerment) is an
employee resource group working with
executive sponsors, business leaders and
colleagues acrass the Company to help
us incraase gender balance and develop
more diverse teams more broadly.

AWAKE has established a global
cammunity through which women
connect, collaborate and participate

In developrmeant programmes. The group
has o Company-wide leadership team,
regional champions, 327 members and
141 male alhes.

The group communicates with leaders
regularly and engages employees
through webinars, newsletters, Yammer
discussions and ¢ SharePoint resource
hub. In May 2021, AWAKE piloted training
focused on leadership for women.

AWAKE is one of the initiatives helping

us increase representation of wormen

in Genus. During the year, 100 women
achieved promotion (44% of all promotions
during the year) and 37 women made
Iateral moves to take on new roles and
responsibilities {46% of all such moves
during the year).

AWAKE has also established a firm
foundation for further initiatives to
increase diversity in all its forms across
our Company.
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SUSTAINABILITY REPORT

- SUSTAINABILITY

AT THE HEART OF OUR BUSINESS

Our genetic improvement
work is directly focused on
helping farmers to meet
the challenge of producing
meat and milk more
efficiently and sustainably.

Sustainability lies ot the heart of our
business. It informs our purpose of
pioneering animal genetic improvement to
help nourish the woarld and infuses the core
values that shape our wotk, every day.

We make a positive cantribution to the
world around us. According to the UN,
the global popuiation is almost 8 billion
people today and is projected 1o reach
27 biflion people by 2050. Cur genetic
improvement work is directly focused on
helping farmers to meet the challenge of
producing meat and milk more efficiently
and sustainably, increasing the availability
of high-guality, offordable animal proteain
around the world. This challenge is
exacerbated by global climate change,
and risks to food security which flow
fromit. As a result of bovine and porcine
genetic improvement, cur CUstomers use
far less land, water and other natural
resowrces to produce more milk or meat
than they did some decades ago. We
are therefore helping to nourish the world
whilst reduging the impact agriculture
has an the environment and we continue
to accelerate our genetic IMprovement
programmes as we aim 1o lead the market
in sustainable animal protein production.

in parallel, we continue 10 reduce

the emwronmental impoact of our own
operations, guided by our Chimate
Change Policy, This policy, which s
available on the Company's website,
commits us to a 25% reduction in
greenhouse gas [[GHG' emissians by
2030 and becoming a net-zero emissians
business by 2050. We will use the
primary intensity ratio 1o report emission
reductions, and we have a range of
practical activities already underway

to help us achieve this.

We fulfil our commitment by challenging
ourselves and those around us to think
differently. From small improverments in
working practices to nnovations that
address stakeholder needs, we constantly
develon and explore new ideas for
enhancing our contribution and delivenng
positive, sustainable change. During

the year, we reviewed our governance

to ensure that sustainabilty issues are
receiving focus at the highest levels of our
organisation. From FY22, the composition
of our Sustainability Committee will be
bolstered by the addition of the Chief
Executive, Chief Financial Officer, Chiaf
Scientific Officer and the Chief Operating
Officers of our business divisicns as
members. The Committee will clso be
attended by Lysanne Gray, our Non-
Executive sustamability champion, and
the Cormmittee's activities will be reported
directly to the Board of Directors, ensuring
thot oversight of sustainability is o motter
for the Board as a whaole,

We translate our bald thinking into
policies and practices that underpin aur
operations areund the world From core
principles on protecting animal well-being
to guidelines on supparting community
causes, we articulate expectations,
provide information and deliver training
whera needed to ingrain responsible
business practices across our orgonisalen
and the people we wark with,

We set and continually monitor progress
using key performance indicotors (see
page &41). We also ensure employees

have multiple routes to raise any concerns
lincluding the independeant whistieblowing
hotline explained garkier]. No materig
1ssues were reported during the year.



ENHANCING QUR NUERA PROFIT

INDEX IN THE UK

By adding feed efficiency as a selection
trait, Genus ABS is using market-focused
performance data to drive efficiency and
sustainability for customers. The results
of arecent UK trial invalving 149 calves
from six sires shows a strong correlation
etween genetic quality and GHGs, with
reduction improvement of 11% for the

highest genetic level per kilogram of meat.

DECARBONISING TRANSPORT -

FLEET TRANSFORMATION PLAN

Travel in vehicles represents around 14%
of cur carbon footprint, As we prepare
for governments to ceGse sales of petrol
and diesel vehicles we are assessing the
differences between standard diesel van
and battery electric vahicles.

During the year Genus operated six fully
electnic vehicles in 1ts UK fleet and has
plans to increase 10 15 in FY22 as part of a
fleetwide’ replacement programme. From
FY22, the Company will cease to buy any
petrol or diesel-only vehicles in the UK,
and we are working with suppliers to solve
issues for employees, such as access to
charging points at home,
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ENERGY USE AT LEEDS:

MOVING FROM ‘BROWN TO GREEN’

As part of g long-term plan to expand

its production capacity in North America,
ABS is building new preduction facilities
and laborotories ot Leeds, Wisconsin.
Due to its reliance on fossil fuels for energy
generation, the state of Wisconsin has
one of the highest electricity grid carbon
intensity figures in the US, so to support
Genus's ambitions for decarbonisation,
the Company is installing photovoltaic
panels at the site which witl supply 377 kKW
of DC energy and remove pressure

on the local power grid.

1 Bosed on Genus UK trial with st-ateqic custornar, data represents average performance of 149 offspring of s x Genus Britisn Blug sires processed v 2019 and 202G,
parcentage improvemant represents reduction 1 carbon dicox ae equ valents {carbor diaxide, methane ond nitrous axide) per kilogram of carcass, relative to worst

pe-forrung si-e 'n tnal
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SUSTAINABILITY REPORT CONTINUED

SUSTAINABILITY STRATEGY

O U R S U S TA [ N A B l l_‘ T Y PROGRESSING QUR SUSTAINABILITY STRATEGY
Our Sustainability Committee

STRATEGY COMPRISES contains experts from around our

FIVE PILLARS WHICH global Company. The Committee

sets our sustainability strategy,
articulates annual objectives and
monitors progress.

SUPPORT OUR PURPOSE

Cur progress with our sustainabiiity strategy,
including key performance indicatars where
relevant, is sumrmarnsad oppasite,

For more information on our work,
progress and Sustainability Committee,
plegse visit our dedicoted website:
www.genusple com/respansibility.



Sustanaoility objective
{ana related SRG)

Highiignts \n the yeor
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F¥22 goa's

SUSTAINABLE PROTEIN
PRODUCTION AND

FOOD QUALITY
Advancing animal genetic
improvement to help cur
customers breed more
productive and resilient
animals which produce
better mik and meat more
efficiently and sustainably.

21
end hunger

2.3
productivity and

incomes of small-scale

food producers
13.1/13.2

strengthen resilience
and adaptive
capacity to climate-
related hazards and

natural disasters in all

countries
ENVIRONMENT
Reduce the environmental

impact of cur own operations

12.5
waste/manures
7.2/1.3
renewchbles and
energy efficiency
13.2

low carbon transition

ANIMAL WELL-BEING
Centinuously improve animal

wali-being across cur business

worldwide

RESPONSIBLE EMPLOYER
QF CHOICE

Be a people magnet with a
dynamic, inclusive and safe
working emvironment

COMMUNITY
Proactively engage and
mcke a positive contribution
in communities of which we
are apart

1.5
disaster deaths

15.4
equitable sharing of
genetic resources

=

>

>

>

>

=

Drove further genetic improvements in
both porcine and bovine species
Continued our work to combat PPRSy
in pigs and completed controlled
research trials as well as submission of
regulatory information to the US Food
and Drug Administration

Undertook envircnmental cudits of

four key office and production facilities
in the US, with energy efficiency and
maintenance actions identified
Audited 89.5% of PIC-owned
production sites

Generated 315,627 kWh of energy
from biogas

Commenced implementation of
additional solar schemes in the US,
which will come onling in FY22.

Trialled electric vehicles in UK fleet
Examined siurry management actions
100% of employees with animal care
responsibilities received training on
Genus animal care standards
Continued investment in PIC and ABS
animal housing facilities

Maintained animal care standards

Reduced vehicle incidents by 169%
to 183

Reduced recordable injury frequency
rate’ by 21.46% to 2.05

Recruited 164 staff into PIC and ABS
production sites

> Continue dnving porcine and bovine genetic
improvement and rapidly disseminate the
genetics to customers globally by:
fi} increasing poraine genetic improvement index
by one standard devigtion per generation;
(i} increasing hovine genetic Improvernent index
by one standard devigtion per generation; and
(it continuing to improve beef genetics based on
feed efficiency, quality and reduce greenhouse
gas emissions.
> Continue responsible development of gene
editing technolagy, to aid disease resistance and
animal well-being

> Launch environmental sustainability initiatives

across the Company consistent with Climate
Change Policy targets for GHG emission
reductions

> Execute and explore opportunities for wider
deployment of renewable energy solutions across
ABS and PIC sites

> Work to address slurry and manure management
challenges by exploring technological innovations

> Conduct envirenmental audits of material facilities

> Maintain scope and measures of PIC audits on
owned production, inchuding 80% of owned sites

> Ensure employees with animal care responsibilities
are regularly trained on Genus animai care
standards

> Continue investment in animal housing facilities

> Maintain and improve animal care standards and
operating procedures, to ensure alignment with

best practice

> Maintain or improve employee engagement,
making Genus an enjoyable and fulfiling place
o work

> Achieve a rolling 5% year-on-year reduction in
occupational rood risk to 193 vehicle incidents
or fewer

> Achieve a rolling 5% year-on-year reduction in
recordable injury frequency rate to 2.36 or less

> Support measures to prevent and continue to
respond to local community crises, recruit into
local farms and encourage support for charties
close to the local businesses and aligned with
our mission

1 Recordaple inLry frequancy rate 15 the number of work related incidents that result ininury or ilness, work restnction, o require treatment other than first aia,
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SUSTAINABILITY REPORT CONTINUED

CLIMATE CHANGE POLICY AND
GREENHOUSE GAS {'GHG') REPORTING

Genus acknowledges the reality of
climate change and recognises the
lasting negative impact it will have
on our business and our communities.

Genus has committed to take action

on climate change in o number of ways,

including:

> driving porcing and bovine genetic
imgprovemeants which support
productivity gains ond improve feed
efficiency, enabling o reduction in the
production of GHG emiissions per unit
of milk or meat produced;

= reducing the carlbon footpnnt of our
own operations through developing
o better understanding of how
energy is used In our business. We
are committed to the sustainable
development of new facilities and are
evaluating the use of renewable power
sclutions on a number of our farms: and

> partner and advocate for policies that
advance positive climate goals and
identified United Nations Sustainable
Development Goals {'SDGs’

QUR REPORTING APPROACH

In FY20 we refined our methods to
measure GHG enssions and developed
a Tier 2 FY19 emission baseéline {'FY19
Baseling). Subject to restaternent dug
to caollection of more accurate data,
the FY19 Baseline is used to measure
future iImprovements,

We are committed to reducing GHG
emissions in our operations and will use
the primary intensity ratio’ to report
emission reductions. We aim to reduce
the primary intensity ratio by 25% by 2030
and to have net zero GHG emissions

by 2050, This means that even as our
business Qrows, we are seeking to

ensure that our GHG emissions shrink

We use operational control as our
reporting approach. We have determined
and reported the emissions we are
responsible for within this boundary

and believe there are no material
amissions. As part of the review of Tier

2 methadology we include our share of
Jont venture emissions ard omit some
vestock held by third parties, due to our
limited control over nperating policies.

GHG EMISSIONS REPORTING QUTCOMES
COur GHG emissions are orimarnly mathane
produced by our animals, carbon dioxide

fram consuming fue! and other materials,

and from transport.

Cur total GHG emissions decreased by
6.8% and primary Intensity ratio decreased
by 0.2%, driven down by a change in the
age profile and balanced by anincrease
in the number of cur animatls resulting from
the inclusion of thirgd-party sites within the
scope of our FY21 emissions repaorting.

In FY21 we have ¢lso applied more
detailled assessments of our source data
and reporting of emissions factors relating
to animal fesds, and have restated

our reported FY20 and FY1? numbers
accordingly.

ASSESSMENT METHODOLOGY

Worid Resources Institute/World Business
Council for Sustainable Development The
Greenhouse Gas Protocol A Corporate
Accounting and Reporting Standard”

DEFRA ‘Guidance on haw to measure and
report your greenhouse gas emissions’

DEFRA ‘Environmental Reporting
Guidelines: Including mandatory
greenhouse gas emissions reporting
guidance’

Emissions Factor Data Source
IPCC 'Guidelines for National Greenhouse
Gas inventories’

DEFRA/DECC ‘Conversion Factors for
Company Reporting’

Energy Efficiency

We use significant volumes of energy
to power our vehicles, bulldings and
equipment. Where we are not abile to
access low carbon sources of power,
we use ‘nigh carbon' fuels, Including
coal to heat our buildings. We have
started to replace these with lower
carbon alternatives or renewables

At our Benxi and Chunhua sites in
China, we will cease use of coal in
FY22 as we implement energy efficient
replacement heating systems,

At our Dekorra Campus in Wisconsin,
we operate a solar PV energy system
producing between 1.5-8.4 MwH
energy per month and have invested
in additional solar generation at
our new site in Leeds, Wisconsin,

We have continued 1o invest in and
support our facilities teams over FY21
and have completed targeted energy
efficiency audits at five ABS sites. Jur
R&D tearm have implemented awdarensass
and schermes which target laboratory
energy efficiency and waste which has
led to a reduction in downstream carbon
emissions in hazardous waste disposal.

Whilst FY21 saw an overall reduction in
‘Scope 3 related emissions from flying,
we successfully implemented enterprise
remote working and undertook essential
travel in company cars. Overall, we

have noted a 22% reduction In transport
related emissions 1IN FY21. Over this time,
we have started to implement our fleet
transformatian plan in FY21, we operated
six electric and 35 hybnd vehicles in the UK
and continued our focus on technolegy -
based solutions and telematics to help
ouwr fleet drivers reguce ther energy use
and emissions

Genus Energy Data

In line with the UK Government’'s energy
and carbon reporting requirements,
further information on our engrgy
consumption far the last two years across
Genus is set out opposite. This is sourced
from data for the carbon data reported
In this secticn and is tracked internatlly. All
data 1s collected from metered data for
electricity. Biogas combustion information
15 calculated using assumptions based
on records in China and Brazil. Fuel use

1s reported based on inancial records

of fuel purchased. We have applied
ossumptions on stondard calorfic volues
to convert all liquid and gas fuel types 10
a commaon anergy metric (kWh) and data
is reported for the period 1 July 2020 to
30 June 2021,
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%

change
FY21 FY¥20 frostated) FY1% (rastatea) fram FY19
Errissions from Tonres of COe Tonnes of CO e Tonnes of COe Baselire
Giouul iz obal Gloonal
JKanag  lexchding UK JKand  lexcudirg UK UK ana  lexcludierg UK
offsrore oo offsnarel offsrore ar~d offsrorg] Of‘fShOfE‘ and offsrore)
Scope 1 - combustion of fuel, own transport and 2626 72,314 2,630 77673 3 178 78773 -2%
livestock emissions
Scope 2 - purchased electneity, steam, heat 130 5,695 168 6,850 171 7268 -8%
and cooling
Total Scope 1and 2 2 756 7‘? OOQ 2798 84523 3,349 86,041 -9%
Scope 3 - material usage and waste, third-party 1a éé& 16,119 21,489 -32%
distribution and business travel
Total emissions 94,429 103,440 110,879 -13%
anary |ntens|ty meaQsure — ammol wenght {tonne) 2832 10, a88 9543 3%
Secondary mtensny measure - turnover (£m) 574 3 5514 -’488 S 18%
Primary intensity ratio — Scope 1and 2 8.31 833 9.37 -11%
(tCO,e/tonne animal weight}
Secondary intensity ratio — Scope 1,2and 3 1579 1876 22689 -26%

{tCO,e/turnover)

Annual emissions figures have been calculated based on actual nine-month data for July to March for travel and distribution and ten-

month data for July to Aptil, with both extrapclated to full year.

% change from

Frergy Type Source Units Fy21 FY20 Fv19 F¥1% Baselne
Electricity Electncwty \mported kWh 15 309577 20156010 1759 380 7139’
Flectricity generated from renewable sources and kwh 38& Ol2 334,670 303 800 26%
used on site
Electricity generated from renewables sources kwWh 0 0 0 -
c:nd exported
Gos fuels Gos |mported from the grid kWh lO 876 063 2617802 é; 491 962 142%
Liquid fue\s Fuel used by p\ont (gos oil and dlesel) KWh 18 548 964 18,268,089 18003,380 3%
Total Toto! energy used (ie. annual quantity of energy kKWh hS 118 616 48,376,571 40, 398 522 12%
consumed from activities for which the Company is
responsible, including combustion of fuel and
operation of rocmtles)
Total energy imported {i.e. onnuo\ quantity of energy  kWh 26,185,640 29773812 22,091,342 19%
consumed resulting from the purchase of electricity
c:nd gas. No imports of heot, steom ar cooling)
Proportlon of energy use UK} kwWh l 081,538 1,156,200 965,524
Proportion of energy use (ROW) KWh &4 037078 47220371 30432096
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NON-FINANCIAL INFORMATION STATEMENT

The table below, and the information it refers 1o, is intended 1o help stakeholders understand our position on key non-financial matters
in line with the non-financial reporting reguirements contained in Sections 414CA and 414CB of the Companies Act 2006,

Reporting
realuirement

Envircnmentdal matters

Employees

Human rights

Social matters
Anti-corruption and anti-bribery

Policy embedding, due diligence and outcomes

Description of principol risks and impact
of business activity

Daescription of the business model

Non-financial key performance indicators

Pouc-es and standards which
govern Qur appraach

Sustainability Framework

Global Employee Handbook;  See pages 34 to 37

Whistleblower Policy

Whistleblower Policy

Anti-Bribery and Corruption
Policy

Global Employee Handbock

See pages 38 o 4l

Global Employee Handbook;  See page 35

Charitable Denations Policy See pages 38 1o 4l

See Strategic Repoert on pages 1to 49

Risk management ana
oadiignal informaticon

See pages 34 to 35

n/o See Principol Risks ond Uncertainties

Sustainatility Framework

n/a See Business Model on pages 10 ta 11

on pages 46 1o 48

See page 41

SECTION 172 STATEMENT

Section 172(1} of the Companies Act

2006 imposes a general duty on every

company director to act, in good faith, in

the way they consider would be most likely

to promote the success of the company

for the benefit of its shareholders. In doing

so, directors must take into account a list

of factors that includs:

> the likely long-term consequences of
board decisions;

> how the company’s actions and
behaviours affect customers,
employees, suppliers, the community
and the environment;

= the desirability of maintaining a
reputation for high standards of
business conduct; and

> the need to act fairly batween
shareholders.,

This statement explains how the Board
complies with its abligations under
section 172

LONG-TERM CONSEQUENCES OF BOARD
DECISIONS

Genus has a business model and strategy
that delver results on o multi-year

basis. For example, we target customers
wheare we can build long-term and
mutuQily beneficial reiationships, rather
than seeking one-off transactions. Qur
investment in R&D can also take several
years to result in revenue generating
products, meaning our success in the
short-term depends on long-term
decisions taken in previous years. As a
canseguence, long-term decision making
is a natural part of the Board's approach.

Examples of decisions and their likely
long-term Impoct are set out below.

MANAGING CUR STAKEHOLDER
RELATIONSHIPS

To effectively consider the impact of
decisions on our stakeholders, we must
have a good understanding of their
needs and issues. We therefore actively
listen to our stakeholders at all leveis

of the arganisation, 1o ensure we take
account of and respond to their intarests.
Information on how we engage with our
stakehalders, including the Board's direct
and indirect engagement with them, can
be found on pages 12 to 13,

The agenda for each Board meeting
Indicates the relevant stakeholder groups
against each item, ensunng the Directors
are aware of the stakeholder interests
they need to consider i thair decisions.

STANDARDS OF BUSINESS CONDUCT
The Board is aware of the need to
maintain high standards of business
conduct. The Group has a strong ethical
culture, underpinned by our values and

policies, which are endorsed by the Board.

The Group also has specific policies
and procedures 1o prevent bribery and
corruption, as described on page 34
and as made available on our website
genusplc.com,.

Maintaining high standards of business
conduct alsa relies on having the

right culture within the Group. Page

6l describes how the Board maintains
oversight of culture,

ENVIRONMENTAL IMPACT
Information on the Group's environmental
impact can be found on pages 38 to 4l

Lysanne Gray is the Board's Sustainability
Sponsor. She receives reguiar updates
from the Sustoinabibty Committee, which
monitors progress against the five pillars
of the Group's sustainability framework
including the actions identified in the
Group's Climate Change Policy.

TREATING SHAREHOLDERS FAIRLY

The Company's shares are owned by o
wide range of institutional and individual
sharehalders, with no shareholder having
a majornty holding or significant influence
over the Group. As a result, no situations
arise in which any shareholders can be
treated differently, ensuring fair treatment
for all.
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KEY BOARD DECISIONS
Examgples of key Board decisions during the year, ncluding how the Board considered the interests of relevant stakeholders, are set
out below.

DECISION1

Background

During the year, the Board approved two investments to enhance ABS's facilities ot Dekorra and Leeds in Wisconsin. This invelved
the construction of new bull housing at both locations and the building of an IntelliGen production facility at Leeds.

Relevant Stakeholders and Their Interests

The relevant stakehalders with intorests in the proposul were.

> customers, who were lcoking for ABS to have the capacity to support therr needs, including the ability to meet their rapidly
growing demand for sexed semen;

> communities, in particular around our nearby DeForest site, where the growing town had begun to encroach on the facility; and

> shargholders, given the investment was necessary 1o support cur plannad growth.

The proposal also supperted the weifare of the bulls themselves, by providing them with state-of-the art housing.

Actions Taken

The first bull barn at Leeds, with capacity for 120 animals, was populated on 28 June 2021. A second barn at Leeds and the
combined Sexcel and conventional lalzoratory will open in September 2021, Work on ¢ further 40 spaces at Dekorra and a third
barn and solar project at Leeds all started in July 2021,

Likely Long-Term Consequences
The Board's decisions to improve the two investments will support ABS's ability to meet customer needs over the coming years and
to gencrate growth and returns for shareholders in the process.

DECISION 2
Background
Bio-security is fundamental 1o cur business and therefore we've been ahead of the curve In our response to COVID-19.

We ware acutely aware of the potential impact and consequences of the pandemic and were therefore able to guickly respond,
for example by restricting travel in and cut of China ahecd of advice from western governments.

We continued to operate in a COVID-secure way for all employees at ail locations, and did not require any government support.

Relevant Stakeholders and Their Interests
Employees and customers.

Actions Taken

COVID-secure working arangements were implemented across different sites, with offices moving to home working; production
sites and laboratories cperating with reduced staffing ond staggered breaks; and changing advice for customer farm visits such as
limiting face to face contact, maintaining social distancing and enhanced hygiene practices.

We leveraged recent investments that had been made 1in IT meaning that our staff have been able to easily work from home,
lirmiting the need to visit offices, customer contact has shifted towards remote teleworking, and limited or no travel has been
taking place.

There has been a global effort from the Health & Safety team to coordinate local health and safety advice, and the Company's
response in each country has been inline with local government guidance.

During the year, a mental well-being week was rolled out, with 25 different webinars covering mental health awareness and self
help and self care. The webinars, provided by expert advisers, were held across six countries ensuring local, culturally sympathetic
perspectives were covered.

Likely Long-Term Consequences

The business has continued 1o cperate throughout the pandemic in a COVID-secure way, with no material business disruption
for customers, and without furioughing any employees. Employees have generally responded that they have felt supported and
enabled to continue to do their jobs throughout the pandemic.
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PRINCIPAL RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES

ROBUST

APPROACH TO RISK

LINK TO STRATEGY

Genus is exposed to a wide range of risks and
uncertainties as it fulfils its purpese of providing
farmers with superior genetics, which in turn
supports the fulfilment of its vision.

Some of these risks relate to the current
business operations in our glokbal
agncuttural markets, while others relate
1o future commercial exploitation of our
leading-edge R&D programmes, We are
also expesed to global economic and
political risks such as trade restrictions.

As part of our risk management process
we monitor emerging risks and consider
when to include them in our main risk
assassment process. This year we
updated our evaluation of two of our
emerging risks. The first is changing
consumption potterns and the emergence
of alternative proteing such as lab-bosed
meat. The second is our ability to continue
to support sustainable protein production,
while reducing the environmental impact
of our own operations. We determined
that sustoinability has become a principal
risk due to the growing global focus

on climate change and is explained
further ocpposite. Additionalty, due to the
improved funding position of our pension
plans, we No longer consider pension
funding a principal risk.

In considering cur risks during the year,
we also performed detailed assessments
of the impact of the global outbreak of
COVID-19 and Brexit. The assessment
covered the impact of these two risks

on our people, our custormners and our
supply chain, We also assessed the
short- and long-term risks associated
with the expected global economic
disruption affecting cur industry and the
markets where we operate. Whilst we
continue 1o evaluate the iImpact of these
two risks, our assessment is that they are
not principal risks for Genus,

From our broad nsk universe, we

have identified ten principal nsks, which
we regularly evaluate based on an
assessment of the likelihood of occurrence
and the magnitude of patential impact,
1ogethar with the effectiveness of our

risk mitigation controls.

The Dirgctors confirm that they have
undertaken o robust assessment of

the principal and emerging risks and
uncertainties facing the Group. More
information on our risk management
framework can be found in the Corporate
Governance Stotement on page 56,

Read more on p.16 ~ p17

Delivening a differentiated
proprietary genetic offering

Focusing on large and progressive
protein producers globally

Sharing In the value delivered

Considered for Viability Assessment

Risk 1item focused on sustainability



Risk Risk description

Strategic Risks

DEVELOPING * Development programmes
PRODUCTS WITH fail to produce best genetics
COMPETITIVE for customers.

ADVANTAGE » Increased competition

STRATEGIC LINK

CONTINUING TO >
SUCCESSFULLY
DEVELOP

INTELLIGEN
TECHNOLOGY

STRATEGIC LINK

to secure elite genetics.

Failure to manage the
technical, production and
financial risks associated
with the rapid development
of the IntelliGen business.

DEVELOFPING AND 4
COMMERCIALISING
GENE EDITING

AND OTHER NEW
TECHNOLOGIES

STRATEGIC LINK

Failure to develop
successfully and
commerciolise gene-
editing technologies due
to technical, intellectual
property ('IP’), market,
regulatory or financial
barriers,

Competitors secure ‘game-
changing’ new technology.

CAPTURING >
VALUE THROUGH
ACQUISITIONS

STRATEGIC LINK >

GROWING >
IN EMERGING
MARKETS

STRATEGIC LINK

SUSTAINABILITY >

STRATEGIC LINK

Failure te identify
appropriate investment
opportunities or to perform
sound due diligence.
Failure to successfully
integrate an acquired
business.

Failure to appropriately
develop our business in
China and other emerging
markets.

Failure to lead the market in
sustainable animal protein
production and help our
custemers to meet the
challenge of preducing
meet and milk efficiently
and sustainably.

Failure to fulfil our
commitment to reduce the
environmental impact of
our own operations and
implement our Climate
Change Policy.
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How we manage risk Risk change in 2021

Dedicated teams align our product No change.
development to customer requirements.

We use large-scale data and advanced

genomic analysis to ensure we meet our

breeding goals. We frequently measure

aur performance against competitors in

customars’ systems, to ensura the value

added by our genetics remains competitive.

Our cantinued development of the No change. We continue to
technology and its deployment to new improve our technology and
markets is supported by dedicated internal to innevate, enhancing fertility
resources and agreements with suppliers. outcemes and processing

Further patent iInfringement proceedings efficiency, with the next

initiated by ST in the US are being vigorously generation of IntelliGen, Gen?
defanded. recently launched. We also

continue to increase IntelliGen's
global deployment, securing
new third-party customaers.

We stay aware of new technology Na change. Key initiotives

opportunities through a wide network of continue to progress through
academic and industry contacts. Qur Genus the R&D lfecycle, and we
Portfolio Steerning Committee oversees our maintain the high level of
research, ensures we correctly prioritise investment needed to bring
our R&D investments and assesses the the end products to market

adequacy of resources and the relevant IP
landscapes. We have formal collaboration
agreements with key partners, 1o ensure
responsible exploration and development
of technologies and the protection of [P
The Board is updated regularly on key
development projects.

We have a rigorous acquisition analysis No change. We continue to work
and due diligence process, with the Boord diligently to identify areas of
reviewing and signing off all material opportunity consistent with our
projects. We also have a structured strategic plans and our cim to
post-acquisition integration planning accelerate growth and create
and execution process. varlue for our shareholders.

Our expenences with post-
acquisition integration provide
a platform for integrating newly
acquired businesses.

Our organisation blends local and expatriate Increased.

executives, supported by the global species This is due to market price
teams, to allow us to grow our businass in key volatility and uncertainty
markets, while managing risks and ensuring affecting production and

wa comply with our global standards. We profitability in the China pork
also establish local partnerstups where market.

appropriate, to increase market access.

We have a global sustainability strategy and New principal risk.

clirmate change policy that are approved, There has been a substantial
and regularly reviewed, at Board level norease In censumer and
Cur sustamabllity Committee oversees the rvestor focus on climate
imptementation of the strategy and the change during the yeor.

annual objective setting process as well as
monitors progress using key performance
indicators The Board is updated regularly
on the progress of the key initictives and
our progress against the annual targets.
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PRINCIPAL RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES CONTINUED

Rigk Risk description
Operational Risks
PROTECTING IP > Failure to protect our

IP could mean Genus-
developed genetic material,
methods, systems and
technology become freely
available to third parties.

STRATEGIC LINK

Loss of key livestock,

ENSURING >

BIQSECURITY AND owing to disease outbreak.
CONTINUITY OF » Loss of ability to move
SUPPLY animals or semen freely

(including across borders)
due to disease outbreak,
environmental incident or
international trade sanctions
and disputes.

> Lower demand for our
products, due to industry=-
wide disease outbreaks.

STRATEGIC LINK

> Failure to attract, recruit,

HIRING AND
RETAINING develop and retain the
TALENTED PEQPLE global talent needed to

deliver our growth plans

STRATEGIC LINK and R&D programmes.

Financial Risks

MANAGING » Fluctuations in agricultural
AGRICULTURAL markets affect customer
MARKET AND profitability and therefore
COMMODITY demand for our products

and services.
Ingrease in our operating
costs due to commodity
pricing velatility.

> The COVID-19 outbreak
inereased volatility and
introduced significant new
financial and operational
pressure across agricultural
markets.

PRICES VOLATILITY

STRATEGIC LINK

How we manage risk

We have a global, cross-functional process
to identify and protect our IR Our customer
contracts and our selection of mulupliers and
joint venture partners include appropriate
measures 1o protect our IP. We maintain

IP appropriate landscape watches and
wheare necessary conduct robust ‘freedom
to operate’ searches, to identify third-party
nghts to technolegy.

We have stringent biosecunty standards,

with independent reviews throughout the
yedar to ensure compliance. We investigate
piosecurity mcidents, to ensure learning
across the organisation. We regularly review
the geographical diversity of our production
facilities, to avoid over-reliance on single
sites.

We have a robust talent and succession
planning process, including annual
assessments of our global talent pocl and
active leadership development programmes.
The Group's reward and remuneration
policies are reviewed regularly, to ensure
their competitivenass. We work closaly with
several specialist recruitment agencies, to
dentify candidates with the skills we need.

We continucusly monitor markets and seek to
balance our costs ond resoyrces IN response
to market demand, We actively monitor and
update our hedging strategy to manage

our exposure. Qur porcine royalty model

and extensive use of third-party multiphers
mitigates the impact of cycheal pnce and/or
cost changes in pig production.

Risk change in 2021

No change.

Increcised. This is due 10 the
continued global supply

chain chalienges imposed by
the COVID-19 cutbreak, the
continued spread of ASF, as
well as the rising geopolitical
tension. Our geographically
diverse production facilities and
the expert knowledge of our
supply chain and commercial
teams allowed for a swift and
comprehensive response to
these challenges, which helped
to reduce their impact.

No chonge. We hove been
largely successful in recrurting
and retaining the appropriate
skills at all levels, to meet our
business growth plans.

Increased.

This is due to increased feed
npUt costs as a result of higher
groin prices, triggered by
weather patterns and

strong demand.

in addition, the China pork
market continued to deal with
the challenges of ASF, price
decline and higher input costs.



*GOING CONCERN AND VIABILITY STATEMENT

In assessing the appropriateness of

adopting the going concern basis of

preparing the financial statements as well

as in assessing viability, the Board have

taken into account:

> Genus's Strategic Plan which forms
part of management’s best estimate of
the future performance and position of
the Graup;

> Genus's risks and uncertainties
including uncertainty arising from
COVID-1? and its impact on our
peowle, oun Luslurmers and our eritical
business processes. Having now been
through over a year of dealing with
the risks and impacts of COVID-19, we
believe that our mitigating controls
have been largely successful and
based on experience we do not expect
new COVID-12 impacts that could not
be largely mitigated. We therefore
expect that the Group will remain
resilient to the challenges of COVID-19;

> Genus's results at 30 June 2021
whereby the Group recorded adjusted
profit before tax growth of 29% in
actual currency;

> (Genus's strong cash position at
30 June 2021 with free cash flow of
£37.5m (2020: £35.2m) and net debt
of £105.6m (2020: £102.6m} and had
substantial headroom of £130m (2020:
£125.4m) under the Group's credit
focilities of £240m,

> Genus's credit focility agreement which
consists of a £150m mult-currency
RCF, @ USD125m RCF and ¢ USD20m
and guarantee facility. The term of
the facility was for three years, 1o
August '23, with an option to extend
the maturity date before the first and
second anniversaries of the signing
date for a further year. In July ‘21, we
reguested the first one year extension
option and this was approved by all
lenders in August '21. The facility also
includes an uncommittad £100m
accordion option which can be
requested on a maximum of three
occasions over the lifetime of the
facility to fund the Group's business
development plans; and

> The potential use of mitigating actions
including reduction in dividends and
postponing certain capital spend
and investments.

As part of the Directors' consideration
of the appropriateness of adopting the
going concern basis in preparing the
financicl statemeants, as well as their
assessment of the Group's viability, the

Board considered a number of key factors,

including cur business model see page

10}, and our strategic framework (see

page 16}, In addition, all principal risks

identified by the Group were considered

in o downside scenario within the viability

assessment with specific focus paid

to those that could reasonably have

a material impact within our cutlook

penod, ncluding:

> Growing in emerging markets, which
we have modelled through reductions
to short-term growth expectations,
particularly in Ching;

> Developing products with competitive
advantage, modelled through
reducticns to short-term growth
expectations as a result of failing
to produce best genetics for our
customers or to secure elite genetics;

> Managing agricultural market
and commodity prices volatility,
maodelled through reductions In price
expectations, particularly in Ching; and

> Ensuring biosecurity or continuity of
supply, which is modelled through one-
off impacts of disease outbreaks or
border closures.

We have considered the position If
each of the identified principal risks
materialised individually and where
multiple risks accur in paraliel.

In addition, we have overlaid this
downside scenario net of mitigating
actions, with reverse stress tests on both
our headroom and banking covenants to
ansure the range above and beyond the
downside scenario is fully assessed.

Based on this assessment our headroom
under these sensitivities and reverse stress
tests, including our mitigating actions,
remain adeguate.
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In their assessment of the Group's viagility,
the Directors have determined that
three-year time horizon, to June 2024,

is an appropriate period to adopt. This
was based on the Group's visibility of

its prociuct development pipeline, for
example, as a result of the genetic lag of
approximately three years between the
porcine nucleus herds and customers’
production systems and the pipeline of
young bulls. The Board also considered
the nature of the principad risks affecting
Genus, including the agricultural markets
in which It operates,

Based on this assessment, the Directors
have a reasonable expectation that

the Group has adequate resources to
continue its operational existence for the
foreseeable future and for a period of

at least 12 months from the date of this
report. Accordingly, the Directors continue
to adopt and consider appropriate the
going concern basis in preparnng the
Annual Report.

Also, based on this assessment, the
Directors hove a reasonable expectotion
that the Group will be able to continue in
operation and meet its liakilities as they
fall due over the period to June 2024,

There are no indications from this
assessment that change this expectation
when looking beyond June 2024 at the
Group's longer-term prospects.

The Strategic Report was approved by
the Board of Directors on 8 September
2021 and signed on its behalf by:

Stephen Wilson
Chief Executive
8 September 2021

Alison Henriksen
Chief Financial Officer
8 September 2021
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CHAIRMAN'S LETTER

PROVIDING

During my first
year at Genus,
| have seen
first hand that
we have an

effective Board.

IAIN FERGUSON

LEADERSHIP AND OVERSIGHT

Strong corporate governance
is the foundation for every
successful business. A robust
governance framework,
combined with clear
authorities and processes,
allows the Board to set

the executive team free to
manage the business. At
the same time, appropriate
feedback loops enable

the Board 1o oversee and
support the implementation
of strategy.

During miy first year at Genus, | have

seen first hand that we have an effective
Board, including strong Committee

chairs and o group of Non-Executives
with a wide range of ne¢essary skilis and
experiences. The Board is ably supported
by our Company Secretarial team,
including clear meeting agendas that
highlight the relevant stakeholder interests
against each item we need 1o consider.

The Executive Directors were both
appointed to their roles in the previous
financial yeaor. Stephen Wilson is providing
the forward -thinking leadership that a
business such as Genus needs. | want

10 note here how well Alison Henriksen
nas settled in to Genus. She is bringing
her own approdach to reporting and the
operation of the finance function, ensuring
we achieve the planned benefits from cur
investment in GenusOne, developing o
new target operating model for finance
and helping to ensure we ieverage the
benefits of our scaie, for example by
creating a single procurement function.
This wark will ensure we take a consistent
approach around the world, while
improving our efficiency and simplifying
the integration of any future acquisitiong
we might make.



The Board's capabilities were reflected
in the performance evaluation during
the year, which showed that the
Board's strengths remain consistent
with prior years, and identified

areas for further development.

The ongoing pandemic has required

the Board, and many of our colleagues
across the Group, o work remotely during
the year. | am pleased to say that the
Group's robust controls, coupled with
prior investments In technology such as
Microsoft Teams, has meant this has not
compromised our governance structures.

Looking forward, the Board is cognisant
of the current geopclitical challenges
and the need to maintain appropriate
governance structures in markets where
the Group has sizeable and growing
businesses. This will remain an area of
focus for the Board in the coming years.

lain Ferguson CBE
Non-Executive Chairman
8 September 2021

STATEMENT OF COMPLIANCE WITH THE
2018 CORPORATE GOVERNANCE CODE
During the year ended 30 June 2021
Genus pic applied all the principles of
the Code and has complied with all

the provisions except for Provision 38.
Provision 38 provides that Executive
Director pension contribution rates should
be in line with those available for the
wider workforce. Qur Remuneration Policy,
which was approved by shareholders on
14 November 2019, states that pension
contribution rates for Executive Directors
appointed after that date will be in

line with rates available to the wider
workforce. The pension contribution

rate for Stephen Wilson was reduced

at that time from 15% of base salary 1o
10% of base salary and will be discussed
with shareholders as part of our next
Remuneraticon Policy that will be tabled
to shareholders at the Annual General
Meeting in 2022
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KEY GOVERNANCE
ACTIVITIES

The Board's key
governance activities
during the year have
included:

BOARD EVALUATION

The Board undertook its annual
performance evaluation, reviewed
progress against prior year objectives
and identified pricrities for FY22

Read more on p.60 — p.41

UPDATING THE BOARD'S SKILLS
MATRIX

The Board reviewed its skills matrix
and identified its strengths and areas
for improvement to consider through
develocpment and recruitment

Read more on p.b&4

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR
RECRUITMENT

Professor Jason Chin joined the Board
in April 2021 following the retirement of
Professor lan Charles

Read more on p.é2 — p.b63
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LEADERSHIP

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

AND COMPANY SECRETARY

COMMITTEE MEMBERSHIP

BOARD APPOINTMENT
SKILLS AND EXPERIENCE

CURRENT APPéINT_MENTS

PAST APPOINTMENTS-

KEY TO COMMITTEES
Member of the
Nomingtion Committee
Member of the
Remuneragtion Committes
Member of the

Audit & Risk Committee
Cormmittee Chair

1AIN FERGUSON CBE
Non-Executive Chairman

July 2020

Extensive Board, governance
and leadership expernence
Strong commercial, science
and agribusiness expertise
across a range of industries,
with o porticular focus on
consumer goods ond food
Deep appreciation of
capital markets and investor
sentiment

v

v

v

Chairman of CFeENEcho!son
Holdings plc; Charrman of
Persanal Assets Trust plc.

Non-Executive Director of
Sygen Internaticnal pic;
Charrman of Berendsen plg;
Charrman of Stobart Group
Ltd: Senior Independent
Director of Balfour Beatty ple,
Non-Executive Director of
Greggs plc; Lead Independent
Director at the Department for
Ervironment, Food and Rural
Affairs: Chief Executive of Tote
& Lyle pic: General Manager
of Unilever AgriBusiness; Chair,
Unilever Plantations and Plart
Sciences Group: and Senior
Vice Prasident, Corporate
Development at Unilever.

STEPHEN WILSON
Chief Executive

January 2013

> Six years as Group Finance
Director at Genus with
wide-ranging operational,
strategic and business
development responsibilines
Extensive experience over
30 years in technology

v

businesses, including finance,

mergers and acguisitions, IT
transformation and investor
relations

International experience
iving and working in Europe
and the US

Fellow of the Chartered
Institute of Monagement
Accountants

v

v

None

Group Finance Director of
Genus ple; Executive Vice
Prasidert and Chief Financial
Officer of Misys plc; finance and
businass development roles

at IBM; and Non-Executive
Director and Audit Committee
Chair of Xchanging oic.

ALISON HENRIKSEN
Chief Financial Officer

January 2020
> Over 25 years of international
experience in finance,
mergers and acguisitions,
business transformation and
investor relations operating
across Europe, Australia, Asig,
the US and South Africa
Proven track record of driving
performance in public and
privately held organisations,
both business to business
and business to consumer
» Qualified as Chartered
Accountant with Ernst &
Young

v

None

Chief Financial Officer of
V.Group, a global leader in ship
rmanagernent; Finance Director,
UK & Ireland and Finance
Director, Australio, at Compass
Group pic; and Chief Financial
Officer of Specialty Fashion
Group Ltd, a former ASX listed
company.



LYSANNE GRAY
Non-Executive Director

April 2016

> Significant
expanence of risk
managemeant, cudit,
business operations,
acquisitions
and disposals,
and corporate
governance, gamed
within the food sector

> Chartered accourtant

Executive Vice President
Sustainable Business
Performance and
Reporting at Unilever

plc.

Financial Controller

at Unilever plc and
Unilever NV; Chief
Auditor of Unilever;
Chief Financial Officer
of Unilever's global
food service busingss;
and a number of other
senior operational and
financial pesitions within
Unilever.

LYKELE VAN DER
BROEK
Non-Executive
Director; Workforce
Engagement Director

July 2014

> Vast experience of
growing comganies
ond working
in agricultural
businesses throughout
the world, iIncluging in
emerging markets

Chéir of Eden Research
ple.

Member of the Board

of Management of
Bayer CropScience, a
division of Bayer AG:
senior international roles
including the Head of
Bayer CropScience's
BioScience division: and
Prasident of the Bayer
HealthCare Animal
Health division.

LESLEY KNOX
Senior Independeant
Director, Workforce
Engagement Director

June 2018

> Broad international,
strategic and financial
services experience,
both through
axecutive and non-
executive roles

> Has advised
nUMerous
companies Including
manufacturers
and distributors
of food products,
encompassing poultry
and poultry breeding
companies

Non Executive

Director, Voice of the
Employee Director

cndd Remuneration
Committee Chair of
Legal & General ple
and Chairman of Legal
& General Investment
Management Holdings.

Founder Director of
British Linen Acvisars;
Governor of British Linen
Bank Group; seniar roles
as Dresdner Kleinwort
Benson; solicitor at
Slaughter & May; and
nUME&raus non-exacutive
roles, including Centrico,
SAB Miller, Allance Trust,
Hays, Scottish Provident,
Bank of Scotland,
Grosvenor Group and
Thomas Cook,
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PROFESSOR
JASON CHIN
Non-Executive Director

April 2021
> Extensive experience
in academic and
commercial research
institutions, giving
him deep scientific
expertise
Working to develop
and apply methods
far reprogramming
the genetic cocde of
living crganisms, with
research spanning
chemistry, chemical
biology and synthetic
biology
Holds Associate
Faculty status at the
Wellcome Sanger
Institute, where he
researches synthetic
genomics
> Fellow of the
Academy of Medical
Sciences and Trinity
College, Cambridge

Head of the Centre for
Chemical and Synthetic
Biology, at the Medical
Research Council
Laboratory for Molecular
Biology.

v

v

Positions on the scientific
advisory boards of a
number of companies,
Including Synaffix BY
and Crbit Discovery
Limted, where he retains
an advisory role.

DAN HARTLEY

Group General
Counsel and Company
Secretary

June 20112

~ Significant expenence
in muiti-jurisdictional
patent litigation,
mergers and
acquisitions, patent
and technology
licensing and
managing product
life cycles

> Degrees In science
and law

None

Senior Vice President
and International
Counsel of Shire ple; and
senior and global roles
in private practice, in the
UK and the US.
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LEADERSHIP CONTINUED

GENUS EXECUTIVE
LEADERSHIP TEAM (‘GELT’)

STEPHEN WILSON ~ ALISON HENRIKSEN DAN HARTLEY a
Chief Executive Chief Financial Officer Group General Counsel
and Company Secretary

SKILLS AND EXPERIENCE ’ See poges 52 Kcmd Sifor
Stephen's, Alson's and Dan's
biocgraphies.

CAREER



ANGELLE ROSATA
Group HR Director

> Deep and broad
expertise spanning
resourcing, talent
management,
SUCCESSION
planning, leadership
cevelopment and
health and safety

> Extensive HR strategic
planning skills and
commercial aocumen

> Masters in
Human Resource
Development from
Vanderbilt University

> Joined Genus in
September 2013,
following more
than 20 yearsin the
healthcare sector

> Developed and
delivered PIC's people
strategy, before
becoming HR Director
for ABS and then
Group HR Director on
1 July 2017

DR BILL
CHRISTIANSON
Chief Operating

> Deep understanding
of agriculture and
bictechnology,
with broad industry
knowledge and
extensive commetcial
and global
experience

> DVM and PhD in
Veterinary Medicine
from the University of
Minnescta

Joined Genus in 1993
and subseguently
waorked in operational

A4

roles spanning turope,

South America

and the US, before
becoming General
Manager of PIC North
Armerica in 2007

Led the combined
ABS and PIC business
across the Americas
from 2010, before
becoming COO of
Genus PIC in 2012

v

JERRY THOMPSON

Chief Operating
Officer, Genus ABS
Beef

> A naturgi entrepreneur

with desp industry
knowledge,
commercial skills
and international
expericnce

> Has helped Genus
establish and
grow businesses in
countries as diverse
as the UK, Russia,
Indic and China

> Holds a degree in
Agriculture from the
University of Plymouth
and is a graduate
of Harvard Business
School's Advanced
Management
Program

Joined PIC in 1992,
waorking initially in the
UK and then Siberia
and Romania, before
leading PIC in Central
and Eastern Eurcpe
and then Europe as a
whole

Led PIC and ABS

in Russia and Asia
Pacific, before
becoming COO for
Genus Asia in 2012
and then COO for
Genus ABS Beefin
July 2016

v

v
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DR NATE ZWALD
Chief Operating
Officer, Genus ABS
Dairy

> Deep expertise and
experience of dairy
genetics, strong
commercial focus and
passien for people
developrment

> Board member of
the Council on Dairy
Cattle Breeding and
Vice President of the
Nationait Association
of Animal Breeders

> Degree in Dairy
Science, MBA and
PhD in Dary Cattle
Genetics from the

University of Wisconsin

v
_
o
3.
@
a
G
©
2
C
wr
=

January 2017 ofter 15

years at Alta Genetics,

including ten years as
General Manager of
its US business and
more than two years
as Global Marketing
Diractor

Remains involved

in his family's
commercial dairy
operction, Bomaz
farm in the US, which
has produced high-
ranking industry and
ABS sires

3%

DR ELENA RICE
Chief Scientific Officer
and Head of R&D

>

v

v

W

Deep expertise

in running R&D
prograrmmes,
regulatory science
and portfolio
management

who has led the
development and
introduction of new
genetic Improvement
technologes and
nurtured a portfolio of
gene editing projects
BSc and MSc in
Biclogy from Moscow
State University,

and PhD in Plant
Physiology and
Biochemistry from the
Timiryazev Institute

of Plant Physiology in
Moscow

Joined Genus as Chief
Scientific Officer and
appointed to GELT on
15 July 2019

Spent 18 years
increasingly senior
roles within Bayer,
leading teams using
pioneernng science
and cutting-edge
technology to help
farmers grow food
more sustainably
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE STATEMENT

THE BOARD *

THE BOARD'S ROLE

The Board 15 responsible for ensuring our long-term success.
It approves cur strategy and corporate goals and monitors
our performance against them; determines that we have the
NECessary resourcas, systems and controls to achiave our
objectives, and sets the culture and standards of benaviour
we want to see throughout Genus.

The Baard is also responsible for other critical decisians. Thesa
include approving the corpeorate budget, stress-testing our
scenario planning to ensuring we have the right funding,
approving material contracts, acquisitions, licences and
investments; and reporting to shareholders,

THE BOARD'S COMPOSITION

At the year end, the Baard comprised the Non-Executive
Chairman, four independent Nan-Executive Directors 'NEDS')
and two Executive Directors - the Chief Executive ond the Chief
Financial Officer. This gives a majority of NEDs on the Board.

There were o number of changes to the Board’s composition
dunng the year. More information can be found in the Charman's
Letter on page 50.

The Board comprises both well-established and newer NEDs, as
we have broadenegd the Boord's skills and expenence through
Non-Exacutive appointments over recent yaars. As g result, the
Board has an appropriate blend of different areas of expertise,
long-standing knowledge of the Group and its markets, and

Title Insiividual Responsibilities

fresher perspectives. This helps to ensure the Board provides
even-handed aversight, works in a constructive and focused
mannar and has the capabilities to manage the challenges
of a complex and evolving globa! business environment,

Almost all of our Directors have held leadership positions in
international companies, with several having run busingsses
overseas. Several of our Directors, Including the Chair of the
Audit & Risk Committee, have significant financial experience,
while others have strong backgrounds in scientific research
or in leading science-based businesses,

The Board believes that all of the NEDs are independent in
character and judgement, and that there are no relationships or
circumstances that are likely to affect {or could appear ta affect)
their judgement. Foliowing the performance evaiuation described
on page 40, the Board also confirms that all the Directors
continue to be effective in their roles

As required by the Code, all the Directors will offer themselvas
for elecuon at the next AGM. Details can be found in the Notice
of AGM.

BOARD RCLES AND RESPONSIBILITIES

To ensure we have clear responsibilitias at the top of the
Company, the Boord has set out well-definéd roles for

the Chairman and Chief Executive. These, along with the
responsibiities of our other Directors, are surmnmarised in the
able below.

CHAIRMAN IAIN FERGUSON
STEPHEN WILSON

CHIEF EXECUTIVE

CHIEF FlNANCiAL ALISON HENRIKSEN

OFFICER
SENIOR LESLEY KNOX'
INDEPENDENT
NED
NEDs LYSANNE GRAY?,
LYKELE VAN DER BROEK',
JASON CHIN

1 Aisc aWoskforce Frgagement [ recior
2 Asore Board's Susto nab, ty Socosor

loin's primary responsipility is to lead the Board and ensure it operates effectively.

He achieves this in part through promoung an open culture, which allows people to
challenge the status quo, and halding meetings with the NEDs without the Executives
present. iain alse communicates directly with shareholders.

Stephen is responsible for devising and implementing our strategy and for managing our
day-to-day operations. He is accountabie to the Board for the Group's development, in
line with its strategy, taking inte account the risks, objectives ond policies set out by the
Board and its Comrmittees.

Alison is respeonsible for helping the Chief Executive to devise and ymplement the
strategy, and for managing the Group's financial and operational performance.

Lesley provides g sounding board for the Chair and 15 an alternative line of
communication between the Chair and other Directors. She leads meetings of the
NEDs, without the Chair present, to apprdise the Chair's performance, and consults with
sharehoiders in the absence of the Char and Chief Executive.

The NEDs constructively challenge, oversee and help te progress the execution of our
strategy, the management of the Graup and the management of our governance
structures, within the risk and control framewark set by the Boord. '



BOARD AND COMMITTEE STRUCTURE

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE S7

The diagram below shows the Board and the Committees that report to it:

AUDIT & RISK COMMITTEE
Ensures the integrity of our
financial reporting, evaluates
our risk management and
internal control system, and
oversees the internal and
external auditors.

SUSTAINABILITY COMMITTEE
Provides direction and
oversight for continuous
improvement in our
environmental sustainability,
health and safety, animal
well-being and community
engagement.

GELT

COMMITTEE REPORTING TO
THE AUDIT & RISK COMMITTEE'

BOARD COMMITTEES
The table below shows Board Committee membaership at the
year end:

__ _ _ _ FComrutiee
Director Audit & Risk  Mominoton  Rerunerction
lain Ferguson - C -
Stephen Wilson - M- I
N\'soaneinr&sieni - - o -
Lysanne Gray C- M - ™M
lykelevanderBrosk M M Mo
Lesley Kneox M MV - C
Jioégnicﬁ(n M M _M_

The Committee Chairs oversee and lead the Committees’
activities, within their terms of reference, and are responsible for
their effective operation. More information about the roles and
work of the Board Committees can be found in their statements
on pages 62 to 93, and in ther terms of reference on cur website
at www.genusplc.com.

ATTENDANCE AT BOARD AND COMMITTEE MEETINGS
The table opposite shows how many Board and Committee
meetings each Director attended during the year.

INFORMATION FLOW TO THE BOARD
The diagram below sets out our process for 1
providing information to the Directors, ahead
of scheduled Board meetings. This ensuras our
Board is well informed and the Directors can
contribute effectively to discussions.,

To assist the D rectors wit~ disc~arging their duties unoer §172
ot the Companies Act, gach iter 'ncluged n the Board paocrs
Indicates the relevant $172 considerat ons More nforrat on
can be found in the 5172 Statement ar page 44

The Charman

for the meeting,
with input f-om
the Chief
Executve a~d

Secrelary

Leads our strategic delivery and ensures
arganisational alignment, engagement and
efficient execution.

BOARD COMMITTEES

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE
Determines remuneration for
our Executive Directors and
senior management, 1o
support our growth strategy
and deliver value
for stakeholders.

GENUS PLC BOARD

NOMINATION COMMITTEE
Reviews the Board's structure,
size and composition and
proposes candidates for
appointment 1o the Board.

GENUS PORTFOLIQ STEERING COMMITTEE

Gives us a comprehensive view of our R&D
programme and involves our business units in

prioritising our R&D initiatives.

OTHER TEAMS REPORTING TO THE BOARD

Director Board Nom-~ation Audt & Risk  Remuneraton
Non-Executive

Chairman

Bob Lawson (retired 444 1/1 3/ 3/3
25 November 2020)

lgin Ferguson® 8/8 4/4 5/52 5/5
Executive Directors

Stephen Wilson 8/8 &/4 5/5° 5/52
Alison Henriksen 8/8 L/47 5/5° 5/5°
Non-Executive

Directors

Lysanne Gray 8/8 L 5/5 5/5
Lykele van der Braek /8 LA 5/5 5/5
Lesley Knox 8/8 4/ 5/5 5/5
lan Charles 8/8 4/t 5/5 5/5
(stepped down

31 May 2021)

Jason Chin 2/2 n/a 1/1 1/1
[appointed

1 April 2021

sets the agenda

Group Company

Nate The max rum number of meetings that Directors could have attended
aunng the yecr Board 8, Nomi~at o1 Committee 4, Audit & Risc Committee 5 a~d

Rerureration Committee §

1 Position correct at 30 June 2021 Tre Beara has acorovea cronges tc the
gover~ange structure of the Sustairaoilty Committee when will come nto
effect in F¥22 These are discussed m mora detal on page 38

2 By inviation

3 laim Ferguson jained the Board en 1 July 2020 ana pecamre Crarman on Bob

Lawsen's et rement

2 3

Aweek before
tre meetng,

t~e agenda and
RBoora copers
arg sent 1o e
Diraclorsus ng a
secure eectronc
syster

Boord meet ngs
take place at
least exght tirmes
per year

4 5

The updated

list of actions
becomes part of
the agerda for

Decis ons a~d
acticrs agreed
at the meet.ng
are montored

oy the Group the next Board
Companry meeling,
Secretary
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THE BOARD'S YEAR IN REVIEW

The Board held eight scheduled meetings

during the year. At each scheduled

meeting, the Boord receives updates on:

> busingss performance, business
development, talent development and
competitive landscape daveloprments
fram the Chief Executive;

> financial performance of the business
and faracasts from the Chief Financial
Officer; and

> corporate governance and legal issues
fram the Group General Counsel and
Company Secretary, and external
advisers.

Topic and link
to our strategy

LEADERSHIP AND
EFFECTIVENESS
LINK TO OUR STRATEGY

Activity

Monitor Board
effectiveness

Maonitor pipeling of
senior talent

Stakehclders £,
8172 corsidergtions. a, b

BUSINESS

DEVELOPMENT our strategic objectives
& STRATEGY e -
LINK To ouR sTRATEGY  HEVIEW ONd approve

business activities

Stakeho'ders 5, C, SC
5172 considerot ors a

Monitor strategic
developments

RESEARCH & Monitor R&ED progress
DEVELOPMENT

LINK TQ OUR STRATEGY

Stoeerooes 50
5172 consderatiors o ¢

Monitor progress against
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One Board meeting eoch yeor is usually
held outside the UK. However, due to the
COVID-19 pondemic, this could not take
place during the year In addition to the
Board meetings, the Board also holds an
annual strategy session, focusing on the

The table below provides more detail

of the Board's discussions and activities,
and the outcomes from them. It also

sets out how each topic supports the
delivery of our strotegy ond the fulflment
of the Directars' duties under s172 of the

strategic direction and goals of the Group
and 11s business units. This took place in
January 2021,

Actions arising

Comparies Act

Progress

Internal evaluauon undertaken during the year.

Updated on talent ininotives ond management outcomes
including the appointment of key management positions.

Held strategy session with GELT and other business
leaders.

Approved:

> Expansion of production capacity and signing of a
new iease at a PIC elite nucleus farmin China.

> Construction of a third new InteliGen production
facility and additional bull housing at the ABS Leeds
axpansion.

> Construction of additional bull housing at ABS Dekorra.

> Acgusition of Xelect Limited, an aqua genetics
business

> Acguisibon of the customer base of Sergal Gestid.
Ramaderag, 5.1, a Spanish boar stud cperator.

> Thelease and construction of o new PIC elite nucleus
farmin China.

Received updates on

> Litigation relating to IntelliGer techinclogy.

> Continued progress with the PRRSv
development programme.

> Competitor activities.

> Material business development opportunities,
including summaries of due diligence.

> Sustainability strategy and progress against
the Company's Climate Change Pelicy targets

> GenusOng enterprise management system.

> Integration of COVID-1? business adjustments
and the impact on employeas and customers.

Received updates on:

> R&D programmes and material investments.

> The R&D stage gate review process for research
programmes.

> The progress of the PRRSv development programme
and InteliGen improvements.

> New initatives in the areas of reproductive technclogies
and sciennfic data.

> lon Charles and Joson Chin's attendance at GPSC
meeatings.

Focus areas identified
(see page 60}

See above

See pages 26 10 29

The Board approved the
establishiment of an
independent Scientific
Advisory Commitiee
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Topic and hnk
to our strategy Activity Actions arising Progress
EMPLOYEES Review recruitment Received updates on: See pages 34 to 37

LINK TO QUR STRATEGY

Stokeholders E
§172 corsiderations a, o

SHAREHOLDERS
LINK TO OUR STRATEGY

Stakeholders: §
s172 considerations: ¢, f

pipeline

Update oh employee
feadback

Manitor investor attitudes

towards Genus

COMPANY
PERFORMANCE
AND FINANCE

LINK TO OUR STRATEGY

Stakeholders: S
$172 considerations
o, f

UPDATES
LINK TO OUR STRATEGY

Stakeholders. E, 5, C, 5C
5172 corsideratons o

HEALTH & SAFETY
LINK TO OUR STRATEGY

Stakeholders, E
5172 comsiderat.ons b

RISK
MANAGEMENT

LINK TO OUR STRATEGY

Staceholders §
£172 coms derations Q, ©

Monitor performance
aqainst plan

Review past and
projected financial
performance

Monitor key financial
issues

Monitor business unit
performance and plans

Ensure strong culture of
health and safety

Menitor risk management

and control

>

>

>

Key vacancies and hires, including the Head of
Reproductive Biology, Global Procurement Directar

and Head of Internal Audlit.

Talent development in leadership below GELT level.
Your Voice employes engagement survey.

Held town hall meetings with employees and the Chief
Executive, and received updates on virtual meetings
between employees and the Workforce Engagement
Directorns.

>

Vo

A4

v

v

v

W

VovoW

v

v

Vo v v v

v

=

vV

Updated on meetings with shareholders, potentia!

investors and analysts.

Held Capttal Markets Day in June.
Continued engagement with investors on Genus's

sustainability strategy.

Received updates on movements in the Company's

share register.

the business and market conditions for each division.
Received updates on business units’ performance

against strategy

Monitored the Group's performance against its
strategy, budget and goals.

Approved the annual and interim results and dividends.
Approved the FY21 budget.

Received tax and treasury updates.
Received pension updates.

Received updates on renewal of the Group's external

borrowing facilities.

Reviewed going concern and viabllity, and reviewed

Received financial and operational performance

updates.

Received regular presentations from each business unit.
Conducted strategy session comparing performance
of each business unit against previously presented

strategic goals.

Received regular updates from the business on COVID-

related matters.

Received an update from AWAKE.

Received updates on the Employee Well-being Week
and ongoing employee COVID-related updates.
Reviewed FY21 targets for health and safety, and
reviewed progress throughout the year.
Received updates from the Head of Health & Safety,
including progress against relevant KPIs.

Received regular updates on CCVID-19 implications

and risk management.

Monitored the Group's risk register.

Received updatas on the whistleblowing hotline
reports and investigations.

Key to stakeholders: £ = Erployees. S = Srarerolders, C = Customers, SC = Supply Chain

Key to 5172 consiaerations

{o) Corseauence of decisions n the long tarm
(o) Interests of the Company's emoloyeas,

et Needtofoster tne Compary's busimess «eat onships with supphes, if}

<ustomess a~d others

Chief Executive held virtugl

breakfast meetings

Waokluice Engagement
Directors held virtual
meetings with PIC

employees over breakfast
based at several locations

in Europe and the US

See pages 12t0 13

See poges 3810 41

Received updates on the operational performance of See pages 18 to 29

See pages 30 to 33

See pages 34 to 37
See pages 38 to 41

See pages 46 10 48

al Impact of the Company's operations or the community and environment
lel DResrabiity of the Company maintaining a resutatien for nigh standards of
bus:ress conauct,

Need to act fa fly between membe-s of the Company
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ASSESSING THE BOARD'S EFFECTIVENESS

To ensure the Board provides
effective leadership to the
Group, we have a three-year
evaluation cycle, using o
mixture of internal and
external evaluations.

This was the third year of the current
three-year cycle. inlast year's Annual
Report, we noted the possibllity of starting
o rew three-year cycle in FY27, following
the appointment of a new Chairman.
However, to allow tain Ferguson a
sufhciant settling in pericd as Chairman,
the Board decided to perform an internal
review of the type described in year three
of the cycle, with a view to congucting an
external evaluation in FY22.

YEAR1
An external Board effectiveness review
produces an action plan for the creas
of focus identified by the review.

YEAR 3
An internal review
using questionnoires
and interviews with
the Chair of the
Board.

YEAR 2
A follow-up
questionnaire by
the same external
consultant enables
us to manitor our

progress with
the focus areas.

THE EVALUATION'S CONCLUSIONS

The review showed that the Board is The evaluation also identified the
effective in most areas, is well led, and foliowing priorities for the Board in FYZ21;
that the Directors challenge constructively > retaining o strong focus on outward-
and effectively, The review highlighted the facing awarenass;

following key strengths: > supporting managemsnt as it

> adiverse, inclusive and respectful navigates the post-COVID world:

culture; > ongoing Board succession;

= high-calibre individuals, with a diverse > bolstering expenence in key
range of experience; gecgraphies; and

> @ high level of trust and confidence in > focusing on ESG and sustainaoility.
each other;

> g culture that encourades constructive
debate, whist remaining collegiate;
and

> genuire Interest in and possion for the
business and its success,
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Last year's evaluation identified four priorities for FY21. These priorities and the Board's
progress with addiessing them are set out below:

Pricrity

Prograss

Successful transition to the new Chairman and ongoing
Beard succession

Obtain greater insight into local and regional operating
environments and markets, as a result of COVID-19

Retain the focus on leveraging value from R&D

Ensure sufficient time is avallable to consider short- and long-
term strategic topics and 'out of the box' thinking

WORKFORCE ENGAGEMENT
Lykele van der Broek and Lesley Knox are the designated
Waorkforce Engagement Directors.

They continued to engage with ermployees this year, holding
virtual meetings with PIC staff In the UK, Ireland, Russia, Scuth
Africa and Raly. The key points employees raised at town hall
meetings are set out in the stakeholder engagement section on
pages 12 to 13 of the Strategic Report. The Board will continue to
monitar progress made against these points.

Looking forward, the intention remains for the Workforce
Engagement Directors to work arcund the Group's different
sites, to collect feedback and specifically to hold face-to-face
meetings with employees as part of the Board's programme of
annual visits, While the ability to meet face-to-face will depend
on the state of the COVID-19 pandemic at the time, virtual
meetings have continued to prove effective if site visits have not
been possible.

PURPQSE, CULTURE AND VALUES

Genus has long been a purpose-driven business, as reflected
in our vision of pioneering animal genetic improvement to help
nourish the wortd. This purpose provides the bedrock for our
strategy, with its ngorous focus on improving genetics for the
benefit of progressive livestock farmers, and helping them to
maximise their performance on their farms.

To effectively deliver our strategy, and therefore to ultimately
cchigve our purpose, it is essential that we have the right culture,
underpinned by a set of values that exemplify the business we
want to be, These values — being customer centrig, results driven,
picneering, people-focused and responsible - are completely
aligned to both our purpose and our strategy. More information
on aur vaiues can be found on page 9.

The new Chairman has successfully transitiocned into the role
and his induction process continues. The appoirtment of NED
Jason Chin in April 2021 reflects the focus on Board succession
and his induction process is also ongeoing. The Board continues
te focus on Board succession planning more generatly. Refer
to the Nomination Committee Report on pages 62 to 64 for
mare information.

Following the succassful rolout of Genus One across North
America, a more detailed and transparent view of each country
is being provided to the Board.

The Board has focused on GenZ of our IntelliGen technolagy.
Jason Chin has attended the GSPC since his appointment.

Given the impact of COVID-19 and the need to deal with
the short-term consequences, this remains c focus area
for the Board.

Genus aims to maintain a positive, inclusive and cooperative
culture, with & glotal eutlook and a focus on excellent customer
service. The Board has a number of ways of understanding

and monitoring the culture around the business. In particular,
these include the results of the Group's Your Voice employee
survey and the Workforce Engagement Directors’ interactions
with employees during the year, as described above. The

Board believes that health and safety performance is ancther
important indicator of culture and the Directors monitor
performance on o regular basis,

During & typical year, the Directors also mest numerous people
from around the Group, including members of management
who present at Board meetings and through site visits, giving
thern further insight into the culture across the Group. Due to the
COVID-19 related travel restrictions in FY21, the Board has used
technelogy 1o hear voices from around the business. This has
ncluded customer presentations from Genus PIC and virtual site
visits with the PIC leadership team, BQP and Hermitage, as well
as customer presentations from Genus ABS and virtual site visits
with the ABS leadership team and Arla. The Chief Executive and
Workforce Engagement Directors also held employee breakfasts
and town halls across the business {see page 59).

More broadly, the Group's performance process has a strong
facus on behaviours that are aligned to our values, while
succession planning at both Board level and below ensures
that talent pipelines are diverse. The Board aiso ensures its own
culture is aligned to the culture across the Group through the
annual evaluations of the Board and its Committees.

The Board is therefore satisfied that the Group's culture is aligred
with its purpose, values and strategy and that our workplace
policies and practices are consistent with therm.
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NOMINATION COMMITTEE REPORT

Dear Sharehalider

This continued to be a busy year for

the Committee, as we focused on my
successful transition as Chairman, the
recruitment of a new NED, Jason Chin,
and our ongoing induction process
through a pandemic and related
restrictions. The Committee also
continued its broader work oh succession
planrning, diversity and the mix of skills
and experience on the Board.

lain Ferguson CBE
Chair of the Nomination Committeg
8 September 2021

THE COMMITTEE'S ROLE AND

RESPONSIBILITIES

The Committee is responsible for:

> making recommendations 1o the Boara
on the structure, size ond composition
of the Board and its Committees;

> evaluating the balance of skills,
experence, independence, knowledge
and diversity on the Board;

> succession planning for the Non-
Executive and Executive Directors and
other senior executives; and

> identifying and recommending suitatle
condidotes to become Directors,
based on merit.

The Committee has written terms of
reference, which set out the authonty
delegated to it by the Board. These
are avoilable from our website:
www.genusplc.com.

FOCUS AREAS FOR FY21

In last year's report, we identified two key

focus areqs for the Committeg in FY21

These wearg:

> toensure a successful induction for lain
Ferguson; and

> 10 continue progactive sUCccession
planning for key executive roles.

Given the travel restrictions impaosed due
1o COVID-19, the Chairman's induction
CONtINUEs,

THE COMMITTEE'S MAIN ACTIVITIES
DURING THE YEAR

Appointment of Professor Jason Chin
We appointed Odgers Bernstson as the
executive recruitment firm 1o conduct the
search for a new NED. Odgers Bernstson
has no other conpections with the Group
or with individual Directors.

In conducting the search, we looked to

identify a candidote with:

= first-class academic credentials in life
sclences;

> a strong commercial edge, ideaily at
an organisation with significont RED
invastment:

> anactive netwark in the international
life sciences industry;

> the ability 10 explain complex scientific
concepts in lay terms;

> the credibility to support and
chailenge the Chief Scientific Officer
across technical topics; and

> the nght personality and fit,

Experience in emerging markets was also
seen as benehcial.

From a longiist of candidates, we
produced a shortlist for intarview, with the
rgsult that we identified Jason Chin as the
outstanding candidate.

A summary of Jason's work, roles and
scientific credentials can be found in his
biography on page 53



INDUCTION AND TRAINING

A good induction i1s a key part of
ensuring new Board members can fully
contribute, so we get the most benefit
from thelir experience. During the year,
the pandemic prevented travel and we
therefore supplemented the induction
programme with virtual meetings.

Qur induction programme has three main

elements:

> helping our Board members to conduct
themselves effectively, through o
governance course in London;

> ensuring our Directors understand the
legal and regulatory aspects of being
a Board member; and

> anintroduction to our business, through
meetings with cur management teams
and, when COVID-1% allows, sites visits.

SUCCESSION PLANNING
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Induction for lain Ferguson

iain joined the Board on 1 July 2020. The

initial phase of his induction included:

> introductory video calls with GELT
members, ottending a GELT meeting
in person and in-person meetings with
the Chief Executive, Chief Financial
Officer and Group General Counsel
and Company Secretary;

> introductory video calls with Boord
members and attending the July
2020 and May 2021 Board meetings in
person;

> virtual meetings with senior
management across the businesses;

> business presentations from Genus PIC;

> business presentations from Genus
ABS;

> business presentations from Genus
RED;

> virtual calls with material investors; and

> calls with corporate advisers;

Induction for Jason Chin

Jason jeined the Board on 1 April 2021,

The initial phase of his induction Included:

> introductory video calls with Board and
GELT members and the Strategy and
Business Development Director;

> attending the May 2021 Board meeting
in person; and

> virtugl attendance at GPSC meetings.

The Committee has a formal three-phase succession planning process:

Assassmant

Approach

Ongoing induction activities

lzin and Jason travelled to our Stapeley
and Ruthin sites at the end of July 2021,
alang with the rest of the Board. This
included a tour of the barns and IntelliGen
laboratory, a customer site visit and ABS
business presentations.

COVID-19 permitting, lain and Jason

are also scheduled to travel to the US

in October 2021, to visit Pepsi Way, the
Reproductive Biology Laboeratory, the
Genomics Laboratory, Dekorra and the
nucleus herd, followed by visiting PIC's site
at Hendersonville,

Both lain and Jason are due to attend

a governance course held by the
Company's advisers.

Execution

The Committee reviews the Board's
current skills and experiences across @
range of relevant areas.

This results in a skills matrix (see page
64), which identifies the skills coverage
across all Board members.

Potential skills gaps are identified, so
they can be incorporated into future
succession planning at Board and
Executive level.

Areas for angoing Board upskilling are
identified and discussed.

The Committee applies engagement

rules for succession planning,

including:

> ensuring successicn planning is in
ine with the Cormmittee’s terms of
reference;

> considering the need to reploce
the skills of any departing NED; and

> filling any missing skills required for
the Company's strategic direction,

Job specifications for the Non-
Executives and Executives are kept up
te date.

The Committee identifies the desired
skills for any new NED, for use in filing
any future vacancies on the Board.

Potential internal candidates for
promotion te Executive Director are
identified.
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Board skills matrix

The table below shows the key experience and skills the
Committee has identified as desirable and indicates thewr depth
on the Genus Board.

Corrpetence Low.med.um Good/mg~
Board and corporate governance - 100%
St(ojtégy ) - - - ) . 106%
Fi\r\cnceT bonk;ng Qnd_copitcl_morketg \ 43% 7 757% .
-Risk, é;lture;hongt;ond cr%nge - i ﬁ i
managemeant - 100%
Politics and public affairs ' B 7%
étoke’%o\derand cuisitomer B a i i ) )
communications 14% 86%
SLstair;;lbitity?mplerr;énfatio?\ and h ) -
communications 57% 43%
Hunj\gn re;ourcers; - B ) - 10(.:)%
ﬁ' syst;ms, tr;nsforn-;c;ﬂon ur:d dath ) - i
cyber security 57% 43%
Sc}ence Emd biz;technology ) ) _ 43% 57%
F_ood s;-ctor - B . 7 7 - 100%
Revie_w, |dl.-l;1Ch un;murkeang of f;la 7 . 7
regulated products 86% 14%
lr-w"t-erna.tTonol b-;siness“ B ) B 14% 786%
us m(_jrket N N ) 7 28;6 - 72“/;
EMEA market ) | 7%
ASTOI’\ rn(;rket a o - - - 45% é?%
LATAM market o7 8%

Succession planning for key executive roles

The Committee has identified the need to focus an succession
planning for key executive roles, and will make this a priority

in Y22,

DIVERSITY

Genus shares the aspirations of the Hampton-Alexander and
Parker Reviews to promote greater representation of women and
pecple from a minonty ethnic background on company boards
At the year end, three of the seven Directors were fernale [43%),
ahead of the 33% target set by the Hampton-Aiexandar Review.
The Board will endeavour to retoin the 33% target 0s 0 minimum
There were also three femnale members of GELT, cemprising 38%
of the total. The direct reports 10 GELT, excluding support staff,
were 23% female and 77% maie.

Our Board diversity policy aims to ensure that we consider

diversity in its broadest sense. A diverse Board has members

with diffarent skills, backgrounds, regional and industry

experiences, races, genders and other qualities. The different ,
viewpoints reprasented on a diverse Board can helb Genus to

maintain its competitive advantage. The Board is committed to !
building recruitment and leadership development programmes

that capture inclusivity In our succession planning and talent

development, including a focus on appropriate representation

from fernale and minority ethnic candidates. The Group has

an employee-led forum called AWAKE [Advancing Wornen's

aAdvocacy, Knowledge and Empowerment), which brings togetner

ferncle leaders and o cross-section of other women to develop

ideas for increasing diversity and improving working proctices.

Diversity also inks to our values, by being people-focused and
responsible, and to our strategy by encouraging new ideas which
deliver far aur custamers and ultimately drive our resuits.

The Board, with the support of the Nomination Committee:

> considers candidates against objective criteric and with
regard to the benehts of Board diversity;

> encourages the development of high-calibre employees, to
create a pipeline of potential Exacutive Directors;

> considers a wide pocl of candidates for appointment as NEDs,
including those with Iittle company board experience;

= ansures g significant portion of the longlist for NED
positions are women and candidates from a minanity ethnic
background; and

> only engoges executive search firms which hove signed up to
the voluntary Code of Conduct on gender and ethnic diversity
and best practice.

The Board compiied with the policy thraughout the periad. A copy
of the policy can be found on our website: www.genusple.com,
The Committee reviewed the policy during the year and
concluded that it remained appropnate.

More information about diversity ocross Genus can be found in
the Strategic Report on pages 34 1o 37,

SERVICE CONTRACTS AND LETTERS OF APPOINTMENT

Copies of service contracts and letters of appointment batweaean
the Directors and the Company will be available for inspection
ot the Company's registered office during normal business hours
until the conclusion of the AGM on 24 Novernber 2021, and at

the AGM from at least 15 minutes prior to the meeting until

its canclusion.

COMMITTEE EFFECTIVENESS AND FOCUS AREAS FOR FY22

As part of the Board evaluation process described on page &0,
the Committee's performance was reviewead, This identified areas
of focus for the coming year, including talent development and
Exacutive Director succession planning.



LYSANNE GRAY
CHAIR OF THE AUDIT
& RISK COMMITTEE

Maotings
Lysanne Gray (Chair)
!-cm Charles ) _5-}5-
Lysanne Gray 75/75 7
Bob Lawson o 3/3
Lykele vdn der Broek 5-/5_
Stephenwison 5/5
Jason Chin 1/_1 i

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE 65

AUDIT & RISK COMMITTEE REPORT

Dear Shareholder

The Audit & Risk Committee acts on
behalf of the Board and shareholders,

to ensure the integrity of the Group's
financial reporting, evaluate its system
of risk management and internal control,
and oversee the performance of the
internal and external gquditors. We have
an annual work programme that is
designed to deliver these commitments,
which we followed during the year.

On 1 May 2021, lan Charles resigned,
and Jason Chin was appointed. [ was
pleasad to welcome Jason to the
Committee and | would like to thank
lan for his significant contributicon to the
work of the Committee. The Committee's
mermbership continues to comply with
the UK Corporate Governance Code
and related guidence. Allmembers are
independent NEDs, who bring a sound
range of financiai, commercial and
scientific expartise to the Committee.

All members received regular updates
from the external auditor, to ensure they
continue to have current knowledge

of the accounting and financial
reporting standards relevant to the
Group and the regulatory changes
and revisions to auditing standards
relevant to the provision of external
audit services. We also kept up to date
with developments in relation to the
corporate governance requirements.

Our focus on risk management continued
throughout the year, with regular reviews
and assessment of the Group's existing
and emerging risks. During the year we
received and discussed detailed input
from management on key risks and
mitigation plans. In particular, we focused
on the risks associated with the COVID-19
panderic and its impact economies

and communities around the globe.

We reviewed management's assessmeant
of the COVID-1? impact on internal
financial controls and were satished
these controts continued to operate

as desighed, We also continued to
receive frequent updates on the
ongoing implementation of a Group-
wide enterprise system and monitor the
development of its rollout. The system will
further strengthen the control envircnment
and support control standardisation
across the Group.

We have carefuily considered the critical
accounting policies and judgements
and assessed tha quality of disclosures
and compliance with financial reporting
standards, and reviewed the half-year
and Annual Report, together with the
related management and external
audit reports. We also supported

the Board in reviewing the going
concern and viability statements and
supporting analysis and disclosure.

We have assessed the effectiveness of
internal and external gudit, and their

use of technology and automated tools
to perform audit work whilst observing
the COVID-1? travel and office working
restrictions. The Committee was satisfied
with the performance of both the internat
and external auditors. Our assessment
identified cpportunities to further
enhance the audit services provided by
sustaining the capabilities and efficiencies
developed during the year.

Lysanne Gray
Chair of the Audit & Risk Committee
8 September 2021
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COMMITTEE COMPOSITION

The Committee members’ biographies,
along with information on Genus's other
Board members, can be found on
poges 52 1o 53,

The Board has confirmed that itis
satisfred that Committee memibers
possess an appropriate leve) of
independence and relevant inancial and
comMmercial experience across varnous
incustries relevant to the Campany.

The Committee has formal terms of
reference, approved by the Board,

that comply with the UK Cormpaorate
Governance Code. Thase are available
from our website: www.genusplc.com.
The Cornmittee’s annual review of these
terms took place dunng the year.

COMMITTEE ROLE AND RESPONSIBILITIES

The Committee's role and responsibilities

include reviewing ond monitonng:

> the financial reporting process and
any significant financial reporting
judgements;

> theintegrity of the Group's financial
statements and any formel
announcements relating to financial
performance;

> the Annual Report, to ensure it is far,
balanced and understandable;

> the Company's reporting o
shareholders,

> the effectiveness of the Group's
accounting and financial reporting
systems;

> the effectiveness of the Group's system
of risk management and nternal
controls;

> the effectiveness of the internal qudit
function and

> the effectiveness, independence and
objectivity of the Group's external
cuditor, including any non-audit
services it proviges to the Group.

The Committee also:

= ensures that the Group maintains
sutoble confidential orrangements
for employees 1o raise concerns, and

> reviews the Group's systems and
controls for preventing bricery.

The Committee reports its findings to
the Board, identifying any matters that
regquire action or improvemant, and
moking recommendations about the
steps 1o be taken.

COMMITTEE EFFECTIVENESS

Every three years the Board appoints

an external consultant to independently
evaluate its performance, and that of

its Committees. The last review was
performed in 2019 and concluded that the
Committee was effective in meeting its
objectives. The next external evaluation
will be in 2022.

In 2021, the Committee assessed s

own effectivaness, through a structured
guestionnaire, and concluded that it

was effective. The Committee agreed

to continue to enhance its effectiveness
by further understanaing and reviewing
the adeguacy of the Company's systems
for identifying and managing risk and
assessing wheather the Company hos
approprigte business continuity plans and
whether the plans have been tested and
maintaining an up-to-date understanding
about the way our business is developing
in Geopolitically challenged countries.

Franco -eportng aren

INTANGIBLE ASSETS

THE COMMITTEE'S MAIN ACTIVITIES
DURING THE YEAR

During the year, the Commitiges

held five meetings and invited the
Company's Chairman, Chief Executive,
the Chief Financial Officer, the Group
Financial Controller, the Head of Risk
Management and Internal Audit, and
senior representatives of the external
auditor 1o attend these meetings. The
Committee also held separate private
sessions during the year with the Head
of Risk Management and Internal Audit
and the external audit lead partner.
Arits meetings, the Committee focused
on the following topics:

Financial reporting

The main areas of focus and matters
where the Committee specificolly
considered management’s judgements
are set out below:

Judgements und assumrpt 0y cons dened

As s sat out in Note Z Basis of Preparation the Company has

changed its occounting policy reloted to the copitalisation
of certain software assets; this change follows the IFRIC
Interpretation Committee's guidance publicised in May 2021
and relates to the capitalisation of costs of configuring or
customising opplication software under 'Software as a

Service' 'Saas] armangements. The Committee reviewed the
nature of the costs proposed to be recognised in the Ingome

Statement and is satisfied with the proposed accounting
treatment, and adjustments made to restate the FY19
and FY20 financial statements, in line with the new

accounting poticy

This change in accounting policy led to adjustments
amounting to an £8.1m and £13.3m reduction in the
Intangible Assets recognised in the FYT9 and FY20 Boicnce
Sheets respectively and to g £59m ond £5.2m increase in
Opergting Expenses in those respective years
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Judgemeants and assumpt ons cons deed

BIOLOGICAL ASSETS
VALUATION

GOING CONCERN AND
VIABILITY STATEMENT

PRESENTATION AND
DISCLOSURE OF
EXCEPTIONAEL AND
ADJUSTING ITEMS

in compliance with |AS 41, Genus records its biclogical assets
at fair value in the Group Balance Sheet (E337.3m), with the
net valuation movement shown in the tncome Statement.

The Committee has reviewed the methodology, which

has remained unchanged, and outcomes of the biological
assets valuation. The Cammittee debated and considered
management's assumptions and estimates, through the
current period, and discussed and reviewed the external
auditor's repert on this areq, before concurring with
management’s proposals. The Committee also received
updates on management’s streamlining and qutomation of
the models which will be used for the valuation process. The
Committee was satisfied with management’s accounting
treatment, including the Income Statement increase of
£48.4m in the value of porcine biclogical assets and the
decrease of £17.2m in the value of bovine biclogical assets.

The Committee has reviewed the Group's assessment of
going concern over a period of 12 months and viability over
a period of three years.

In gssessing viability, the Committee has considered the
Group's budget and strategic plon, its credit facility
agreement, its principal risks and uncertainties including
uncertainty arising from COVID-19, as detailed on pages 46
to 48, and the liquidity and capital projections over the
perod and is satished that this is appropriate in supporting
the Group as a Going Concern.

The Committee has concluded that the assumptions

are appropriate and that the viability statement could be
provided, and advised the Board that three years was o
suitable period of review. The Committee was also satisfied
with the disclosures in relation to the approprateness of the
assessment period selected, the assumptions made ond
how the underlying analysis was performead. The going
concern and viability statement is disclosed on page 49

of the report.

Genus had £292m of adjusting items, including £3.3m of
exceptional items In the Group Income Statement. The
Committee considered the presentation of these items in
the financial statements, due to the nature of these items
and the guidelines on the use of alternative performance
measures, issued by the European Securities and Markets
Authority. The Committee received detailed reports from
management outlining the judgements applied in relaticn
to the disclosure of adjusting items, which include net IAS 41
valuation movement on biological assets, amortisation of
acqguired intangible assets, share-based payment expense
and exceptional items. For adjusting items, the Committee
took into consideration the improvemerits made conceming
APM disclosures, their volatility and lack of correlation to
the underlying proegress and perfarmance of the business.
Specifically, for exceptional items, the Committes took into
consideration the materiality, frequency and nature of the
items. Following this detailed review and active discussicn
with management, the Committee has concluded that the
presentation of the financial statements is appropriate.

67

Monitoring business risks

The Committee discussed the principal

risks identified with management and

the external and internal auditers, along

with management’s plans 1o mitigate

them, and received regular detailed

updates from the risk cwners and their

direct reports. In addition to reviewing the

principal risks, the Committee received

detailed updates on the following:

> COVID-19: the risks associated with the
COVID-19 pandemic and the efficiency
of the mitigating controls implemented
last year to support business
operations and financial reporting
process.

> Climate change: the related current
and emerging risks and the roadmap
of actions identified in support of the
climate change action plan.

> Biosecurity and continuity of supply:
the risk of losing key livestock or losing
our ability to move animals and/or
semen freely lincluding across borders),
due to disease outbreak.

> Enterprise system: the Committee
received regular updates on the
project to implement a new Group-
wide business system.

> Cybert security: the cyber security
risk faced by the Group and the
actions being taken to strengthen
infrastructure and systems security.

Internal control system

Qur risk management process and
system of internal control are described in
detail on pages 68 to 69 The Committee
reviewed the appreach to standardising
financial reporting controls as part of
the new system implementation and the
results of the key financial controls self-
assessment process, which is performed
every six moenths, The Committee also
received an update on the impact of the
COVID-19 pandemic, and the related
remote working and travel restrictions,
on the operation of internal controls and
was satisfied with how technology was
being used to support remote working.
The Committee further reviewed internal
audit's indings ot each scheduled
meeting and received updates on

the implementation of management’s
remedial actions.

The Committes further reviewed the
Group's Whistleblowing Policy and bribery
prevention procedures.
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The Committee conducted its annual
review of the effectiveness of the Group's
internal controls and disclosures. The
review did not identify any significant
control fatlings, However, Genus routinaly
identifies and implements control
Improvement opporiunities and the
Committee discussed with management
various opportunities to further strengthen
the Group's system of internal control,

Oversight of internal audit and

external audit

Internal audit

The Committee reviewed and cpproved
the internal audit function’s scope, terms
of reference, resources and activities.
The Committee reviewed the changes
made to how internal audit gctivities were
delivered, as result of travel restrictions
and remaote working requirements.

The Committee was satisfied that the
coverage and quality of internal audit
process remained appropriate. The
Head of Risk Management and Internal
Audit provided regular reports to the
Committee on the work undertaken and
management's responses 10 proposals
made in the interna! audit reports issued
during the year, The Committee continued
1o meet the Head of Risk Management
and Internal Audit without management
being present. The Committee reviewed
and was satisfied with the internal audit
function's performance.

External oudit

Delcitte LLP was first appointed as the
Company's external auditor for the period
ended 30 June 2004, Following a formal
tender process, Delartte was reappointed
for the audit of the financial year ended
30 June 206,

in accordance with our current audit
partner rotation hmeling, the Cormmittee
expects 1o conduct an external audit
tender for our FY25 qudit. The Company
has complied with the Statutory Audit
Services Grder for the financial year
under revigw.

The Committee reviewed and agreed the
external auditor's scope of work and fees,
held detaled discussions of the results

of its audit and continued to meet the
external cuditor without management
being present The Committee reviewad
the external auditor's objectivity and
independence and the Group's policy on
engaging the external auditor 1 supply
non-audit services, The Committee

obtained confirmation that the Revised
Ethical Standard nas been complied
with and received the details of the
external guditor's non-audit services
ta the Group, reviewed the nature

and monetary levels of these services,
which stood at 2% of audit fees, and
reviewed cormpliance with the Group's
Non-Audit Services by Auditer Policy
[see note B to the finoncial statements
for further detailsl, The Commitiee wos
satisfied that using Deloitte for such
services did not impair its independeance
as the Group's external auditor.

The Committee assessed the external
auditor's performance in conducting the
qudit for the June 2020 year end, based
on giscussions with key inance stoff ond
Committee members. The questionnairses
covered the external auditor's fulfilment
of the audit plan, the auditor’s robustness
and perceptiveness in its handling of key
oecounting and audit judgements, the
content of tha external auditor's reports,
and cost effectiveness. The Committee
also considered the results of regulatory
reviaws performed on the externa)
auditor. While noting some opportunities
for further improvement, the Committee
conciuded that the external auditor

was effective and was satisfed with the
plan put forward by the external auditor
1o respond 1o the opportunities for
improvement identified.

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL
CONTROLS

Risk management

The Board 15 responsible for our risk
management system, which is designed
10 1dantify, evaluate and pricritise the risks
and uncertainties we face. The Board sets
our rsk appetite, monitors the Group's

risk exposure for our principal nsks and
SnSUres appropnate execuhve ownership
for all risks. This ongoing nsk management
process for the Group's significant risks
was In place for the year under rewiew and
up to the date of approval of the Annual
Report and Accounts, Our principal

rsks and how we mitigate them are
summarised on pages 46 10 48,

To further assist its understonding of
risk, the Board continued 1ts programme
of visits to our locat aperations, prior

to beaing Interrupted by the COVID-19
travel restrictions. The Board received
regular political, economic and indusiry
nsk updates from the relévont Business
groups The Boord performed its annual

risk review in May 2027, This involved

a fresh review of the types and levels

of risk facing Genus as it executes its

strategy and was designed to identify

and evaluate any new or emerging

risks and ascertain whether the risk

register covered all relevant risks, I

internal controf

The key elements of our internal control
system are set out below. An internal
control system cannct completely
eliminate the nsks we face or ensure we do
not have a materal misstatement or loss.

MANAGEMENT STRUCTURE

The Board sets formal authorisation

levels and other controls that altow it to

delegote authority 1o run our businesses '
to the Chief Executive, GELT and their
management teams. Qur management
supplements these controis by setting the
operating standards that each subsidiary
needs for its business and location.

GELT regularly reviews our perfermance
against strategy, budget and a defined
set of cperationol key performaonce
indicators. The Chief Executive, Group
Finance Director, Group General Counsel
and Company Secretary, and Group
Financial Controler @lso hold monthly
reviews with each busingss unit.

QUALITY AND INTEGRITY OF QUR PECFPLE
We strive to operate with high integrity in
everything we do. Our contro! environment
depends on high-quality pecple who
mairmtain our ethical standards. We ensure
our people’s ability and integrity through
Gur recruitrent standards, training and
consistent performance management.
The Board s informed of appomtments 1o
our most senicr management positions

INFORMATION AND FINANCIAL
REPORTING SYSTEMS

We create detailed operational budgets
for the year ahead, along with five-year
strategic plans, which the Board reviews
ond approvas. We then monitor our
performance throughout the year, so we
can address any issues. The information
we consider includes our monthily financial
results, key performance indicators and
varionces, updated full-year forecasts
and key business rsks.

The main interncl control and risk
manogement processes relating to our
preparation of consohidated accounts
are our Group-wide accounting policies



and procedures, segregation of duties,
systerm uceess controts, a robust
consolidation and reporting system,
various levels of monagement review
and centrally defined process controt
paints and reconciliation processes.

INVESTMENT APPRAISAL

We control cur capital expenditure
through cur budget process and by
having clear authorisation levels, above
which our businesses must submit
detailed written proposals to the

Board for approval.

We carry out due difigence for business
acqguisitions and material licences, and
conduct post-completion reviews of mgjor
projects, to ensure we identify areas for
improvernent and correct any areas of
underperformance or overspend.

INTERNAL AUDIT

Cur internal audit activities are provided
by in-house and external resources,
under the leadership of our Head of Risk
Management and internal audit. During
the year, Internal Audit completed a risk-
based cudit pregramme agreed by the
Audit & Risk Committee. The Committee
reviews the results of these audits and the
subsequent actions we take, which we
also communicate to the external auditor,

All business units complete risk and control
self-assessments twice a year. Internal
audit, as part of its work programme,
performs independent reviews of these
assessments to identify any deficiencies

in our controls and how we should address
them. The external auditor also provides
observations on the control environment
as part of its audit work. The results are
communicated to senior managemeant
and the Audit & Risk Committee,

The Board, with the help of the Audit

& Risk Committee, reviewed the
effectiveness of our internal control
systern, as well as our financial,
operational and compliance controfs
and our risk management. The review
considered our internal control self-
assessment process, which s designed
to assess compliance with our minimum
control standards, the independent
internal audit programme, and the
reports management prepared when
the Board approved the interim and
final results and financial statements.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

It also assessed:

> whether we had identified, evalucted,
managed and controlled significant
risks; and whether any significant
weaknesses had arisen, and

> if so, whether we had addressed them.

The assessment also took into account
any risk or control issues we identified
through our divisional business reviews,
Board and GELT meetings, and
insurers’ reviews,

We have an internal control continuous
improvement work programme and
routinely identify opportunities to
strengthen our control environment

and improve our risk management
capabilities. However, the Board has not
identified or been told of any significant
failings in our internal contrals,
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LESLEY KNOX

SENIOR INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE
DIRECTCR AND CHAIR OF THE
REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

KEY HIGHLIGHTS

> Adjusted profit before tax +29%

> Adjusted earnings per
share +31%

> Strong progress against
strategic targets

This Remuneration Report has been
prepared so 1t complies with the
provisions of the Large and Medium-
szed Companies and Groups
(Accounts & Repaorts) (Amendment}
Regulations 2013, which set out the
disclosures required for Directors’
remunaration as at the reporting date.,
The Report is 0lso in occordance
with the requirements of the Firarcial
Conduct Authority's Listing Rules.

The Independent Auditor's Report states
whether, in the cuditor’'s opinion, the
parts of the Report that are subject

to qudit have been properly prepared

in accordance with the legislation,

We have highlighted the parts of this
Report which have been audited.

Section A — Annugl stotement

AIMS OF OUR REMUNERATION POLICY

> Toreflect the continued transfarmation
into a global agricultural bictechnology
pianeer.

> Pursuit of leading-edge technology
and focus on long-term innovation and
environmental sustainability to enable
future value creotion for shareholders,

> Sustainable robust short-term delivery
of financial performance as wea invest
in the future.

> Ability to recognise innovation and
progress, which are crucial to securing
long-terrn bottom-line performance.

> Ability to attract and motivate a high-
quality legdership team and drive
focus ond behaviours on long-term
achievement in a global market
for talent.

> Racognise expectations of
sharenholders on reward and
governance.

Dear Shareholder

On behalf of the Board, | am pleased
to present the Directors’ Remuneration
Report for 2021,

This has been a challenging year for
the global economy as companies
have looked to maintain business
continuity in the face of a global
pandemic. | am pleased to report that
Genus has delivered a very strong

set of results against this backdrop,
which is described extensively withuin
the Annuci Report. This Remuneration
Report covers the activity of the
Cormnmittee during the year, including
the determination of reward outcomes
for executives against the targets set.

WIDER EMPLOYEE ENGAGEMENT AND
REWARD OVERSIGHT

As o Committee, we have continued

10 focus on wider oversight of reward
practices across the business, as

well os monitoring levels of employee
engagement. Due to COVID-19, Lykele
van der Broek and myself held online
sessions with several teams as it was
not possible for face-to-face meetings
to take place. We discussed business
progress, employee sausfaction and

a particular focus on getting feedback
on the business response to the impact
of COVID-1% Additionally, the business
carried out aninterim pulse survey
covering around 800 employees,
designed to understand how pecple
viewed the business response to
COVID-19 across different countries and
roles within Genus, the findings of which
weare discussed by the Board. While

the pandemic has clearly had differing
impacts gcross the countries where our
employaes are based, people were highly
positive about the business response
1o the pandemic, and the way that
adjustments had been made 1o ways
of working and the embracing of new
technology and communication channels
to maintain momentum of business
actvity and a sense of belonging.



The fact that this level of business
performance has been uchieved reflects
the leadership displayed throughout the
organisation and the focus, contribution,
and resilience of all Genus employees.
ljoin with the Board in thanking all cur
people for the part they have played in
delivering this performance.

Genus is an essential part of the

food chain and business activity has
been successfully maintained over
the year. The business has not used
any optional government schemes
{such as furlough in the UK) or created
changes to employee compensation
as o result of the pandemic.

We have considered the potential impact
of COVID-1? on the future application

of cur Policy. Qur conclusion was that

the Policy remains appropriate for the
business and underlying strategy at this
time, and we will look to operate the Policy
on the same basis for the year ahgad,

As described in more detail within the
repert we have been able 1o set forward-
looking targets (both Anancial and
non-financial) which reflect the markets

in which we cperate against which
performance will be assessed.

CASCADE OF REWARD PRINCIPLES
THROUGH THE BUSINESS

We discussed the way that reward
principles apply throughout the business,
and how approaches in place for

senior leaders cascade through the
organisation. In particular, we focused
on the combination of individual and
business targets in determining variable
reward outcomes ot afl levels, and the
way that targets used for GELT members
{incluging the Executive Directors)

are applied through the business.

We considered gender pay within

Genus Breeding Limited, our largest UK
subsidiary, and noted the way that the
gender balance is continuing to change
with a far higher proportion of female
joiners, and the overcll increase in gender
diversity across the business.
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We also discussed the CEO pay ratio,

tull details of which can be found within
this report, including companson with
prior years. The overall CEQ ratio has
increased year on year, reflective of the
high levels of business performance and
the significant grewth in the share price
since PSP awards were made in October
2018. We hawve provided more insight and
a granular breakdown of this change to
demonstrate the aclignment between pay
and performance.

The CEO highlighted his appreciation

of ail that employees have contributed
to the business over the past year, and
we were supporttive of the decision to
award a special one-off inancial award
to all eligikble employees globally, which
comprised around 3 200 people.

Additionally, we were updated on the
wider governance framework for reward
within the business, including the steps
beaing taken to ensurg ling managers are
engaged In making appropnate reward
decisions for their team members, and
that these align with the overarching
pay for performance philosophy in place
across the business.

BUSINESS PERFORMANCE

A focus on strategic progress ensures
that we are well placed to enable
future growth. Key highlights during
2021 include developmeant of new
strategic partnerships within our PIC
business, the next stage of progress

of our PRRSv programme, insight as to
how we position sustainability at our
core of how we operate as a business
and actions we are taking 1o reduce our
cperational greenhouse gas footprint,
and the progress we are making m
superior genetics in beef. Internally we
have also seen the continued rollout of
our GenusOne enterprise system across
North America as part of the Global
implementation.

Coupled with this strategic progress has
pbeen the delivery of some very strong
financial performance. Adjusted proft
before tax lexcluding gene editing) grew
by 28% 1in constant currency. We have
also achieved strong cash generation,
exceeding budgets set by £8Im.
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Section A — Annual statement

REWARD OUTCOMES FOR 2021

As highlighted elsewhere in the report,
the Group has changed its accounting
policy relating to the capitalisation of
certain software assets following the
guidance published in April 2021, We have
considered the way we reflect this within
our reward outcomes. Targets for the 2018
PSP were set efore the policy change
and we have calculated the PSP vesting
and Annual Bonus outcomes excluding
the impact of this change. including the
change would have created identical
autcomes under the Annual Bonus and
slightly higher vesting levels under the
PSP Future vesting of PSP awards {and
targets for the 2022 Annual Borus) will be
determined including the impact of this
accounting policy change in both the
bose yeor and Anal yeor of the respactive
performance period.

Against this performance backdrop we
determined outcomes under the Annual
Bonus plan and the level of vesting of
share awards made under our PSP to GELT
members in October 2018. Full details of
targets and the gssociated performance
against them are disclosed within the
report, with outcomes summarised below.

Annual Bonus

The total oppertunity for each
Executive Director far the year

was 175% of salary, and the overall
formulaic cutcome generated an
award level of 94 8% of maximum faor
Stephen and 26.5% of maximum for
Aliscn, This was o reflection of very
strong financial performance against
stretehing financial targets set, coupled
with demonstrable delivery against
strategic goals for each indivicual.

We were very comfortable that the
formulaic cutcome under the Annual
Bonws was on accurate reflection of
the performance achieved during the
year and demaonstroted full olignment
with the shareholder experience. In
line with our Annual Bonus structure,
one-third of the award will be
delivered in Genus shares under the
Deferred Share Bonus Plan (CSBPY)
that are released after three vears.

The finoncial achisvement delivers
maximum awards under the financial
metrics of the Annual Bonus for each
Executive, and the same will be true
for many employees across Genus
who are assessed against the same
Genus Group performance metrics
and targets when ther own variatle
remuneration is calculated.

Performance Share Plan

Awards made in October 2018 were linked
to EPS performance over the three-year
period ending 30 June 2021. Average
annual EPS growth was 12.6% against a
performance range of 5% {which would
deliver 20% of the award) through to

full vesting at 15% or above. These are
calculated on an actual currency basis.
Given the robust noture of business
performance over the three-year period,
the level of vesting lot o strong Jevel but
below full vesting) is indicative of the
currency headwinds that the business
has foced over this tme The value of the
PSP within the single igure table is heavily
linked to the robust share price growth
over the period - from a share price ot
award of £23.17 to a share price for the
last quarter of the inancial year of £50.62,
an increcse of 118.5%, These shares are
subject to a holding period of a further
twa years post-vesting, after allowing for
a number of shares to be sold to cover the
associated tax liability.

LOOKING FORWARD TO 2022

We will operate the same core structure of
Annuci Bonus and PSP for the coming year
with no changes in overall opportunity
levels for Executives.

The Annual Banus will continue to be
assessed through key financial metrics
{adiusted profit before tax and gengration
of free cash flow), clongside o number

of identifed strateqic measures thar
have been set for each Executive,
including targets speofically linked to
environmental, socicl and governance
[ESC'I metrics. Just under one-thirg of
the strategic element will be assessea
aganst environmental and sustainability
targets for the business, recognising the
importance of this topic for wider society,
but particularly acknowledging the role
that our sector con play in this area. We
remain committed to comprehensive
disclosure of targets within future
remuneration disclosures with use of
externally reported or audited metrics
where possible.

We have set profit targets for the year
(disclesed later in the repart) that require
continued growth in profit (measured in
constant currency} before any award is
paid under the metnc. In determining the
growth targets we considered multiple
factors, including the budget set for
coming year, the exceptionally strong
performance achieved in 2021, and the
markeat headwinds expected across
certain of our key markets {in particular
China). Therefore, while we have set
targets that continue to require agbsolute
levels of profit growth year on year, these
are lower in percentage terms from those
operated in 2021, with target awards
requiring 5% growih and stretch levels
set ot 10% growth or above. Any bonus
payable under this metric would remain
consistent with delivery of performance
chead of our stated medium-term
growth objective when viewed over g
mult-year period. These targets are
cascoded throughout the business and
apply 10 all employees whaose Annual
Bonus is linked to Group performance.
We continue to focus on ensuring that
targets reward growth of the business,
and that the target leve! of performance
required represents strong perfarmance
for the business with exceptional levels
of performance needed to generate full
awards under the metric, and ensuring
that targets are aligned to budgets and
motivational for participants.

The PSP award will continue to be
assessed against EFS performance over
the three-year period (2022 to 2025}

with the associated performance range
{of annual growth in EPS of 5% to 15%)
consistent with the operation of awards
i recant years and in line with our stated
meadium term growth objectives.

Salary levels have been increased for
the CEQ and CFO effective 1 Septernber
2021in line with budgeted increases

for employees of Genus ple within

the UK. Both Executives receive o

cash supplement in leu of pension
contributions. The CFO joined the business
in January 2020, and this was set at 6%
of salary, in hine with the average across
the wider UK workfarce and will remain
at this level. In recognition of investor
expectations in this areq, the current
supplement paid to the CEQ {of 10% of
satary) will reduce to the 6% lavel at the
end of December 2022,



POLICY RENEWAL

2021 was the second vear of the current
Rermuneration Policy that was agreed

by shareholders in 2019, We continue

to believe that the core of our Policy is
appropriate and drives alignment between
business performarnce and reward
outcomes. It is important that we ensure
that the Policy remaing apprepriate for the
strategy of the business, the cortinued
growth of the organisation and the

global envirenment that Genus oparates
within. We are dlso aware of the evolving
expectations of shareholders and proxy
agencies an revard.

The Committee has started to discuss

aredas where we expect to focus in

considering a naw Policy that we will

present for approvai next year. Particular

dreds that we expect to include within

consuftation with shareholders include:

> adesire to review the performance
metrics within the PSP Plan and
the way we could include specific
measurels) linked to our environmental
performance and sustaimability
progress,

> the way we ook to set annual targets
for our Annual Bonus plan in future,
recognising the potential for some
variability in year-on-year growth while
in pursuit of our medium-term stated
growth aspirations; and

> overall competitiveness of reward
against the changing scale and
complexity of Genus as a global
biotechnology organisation.

We plan to consult with key shareholders
in the first quarter of calendar year

2022 on our thinking and ook forward

to gaining their perspectives ahead of
tabling @ revised Remuneration Policy at
the AGM next year.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

SUMMARY

I hope this introduction and
cccompanying disclosures give you
an insight into the cperation of the
Committee, the increasing breadth of

focus of the nature of our conversations,

ond the way we have sought alignment
between business performance and
reward outcomaes. | look forward ta your
support at our farthcoming AGM. If yvou
have any feedback, | can be contacted
at rermuneraticnchairagenusplc.com.

Lesley Knox

Senior Independent Non-Executive
Director and Chair of the Remuneration
Committee
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REMUNERATION COMMITTEE REPORT CONTINUED
Section B - At a Glance 2021 (year ending 30 June 2021)

{For more detail please see pages 74 to 93}

WHAT EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS WERE PAID [N 2021:

> Benefits include acar
allowance for each
Executive Director

> Pension gllowance for
Stephen Wilson was
reduced to 10% of salary
on appointment to CEC.
The allowance payable for
Alison Henriksen is 6% of
salary

’l BASE SALARY AND BENEFITS

> Metrics used and weighting:
Adjusted profit before tax
{50%), Cash generation
(15%}, Strategic measures
{35%)

> Overall oward 94.8% of
maximum for Stephen
Wilson and 96.5% of
maximum for Alison
Henrksen

> One-third of the total
award under this element
made in shares defarred for
three years

PSP
3 > Awards gramted in
September 2018 vested ot
81.2% of maximum based on
average annual adjusted

earnings per share growth
achieved of 12.6%

f REMUNERATION BREAKDOWN

2 ANNUAL BONUS - CORE BONUS

CHIEF EXECUTIVE: CHIEF FINANCIAL GFFICER:
STEPHEN WILSON ALISON HENRIKSEN
INDICATIVE YALJE! N-&

1 Calcu atec bosed on the average share prce for
the fing: Guarter of t~e year enced 30 June 2021

(5.062p)
CHIEF EXECUTIVE: CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER:
STEPHEN WILSON ALISON HENRIKSEN



WHAT EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS CAN EARN IN 2022 AND HOW:

> Includes salary increase of
2.5% effective September
2021

> No change to benefit
provision for 2022

‘I BASE SALARY AND BENEFITS

ANNUAL BONUS

>  Annual bonus opportunity
of 1775% of salary spiit
between profit, cash and
strategic meatrics as shown

> 0% of the 35%
{approximately cne-
third) linked to strategic
measures focused on
environmental metrics
linked to our Delta-C plan

awards depends on the
adjusted earnings per
share lexcluding gene
editing costs) achieved in
the three financial years
ending 30 June 2022

PSP (SEPTEMBER 2021 AWARDS)

> The vesting of these
awards will be subject to
an adjusted earnings per
share growth, with the 2024
adjusted earnings per share
being compared to the 2021
adjusted earnings per share
{excluding gene editing
costs)

> 5% annual growth threshold
- 20% vesting

> 15% annual growth — 100%
vesting

> Vesting levels will be
calculated based on g
straight-line basis between
the above values

PSP SEPTEMBER FROM 2019
> The vesting of these
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CHIEF EXECUTIVE:
STEPHEN WILSON

STEPHEN WILSQN: MAXIMUM QF 175% OF SALARY,
TARGET AWARD CF 87.5% OF SALARY

Awards over 41,666 Genus shares

AWARD TO STEPHEN WILSON OF 200% OF SALARY

Salary changes are effective from September, aligned to the wider workforce:

CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER:
ALISON HENRIKSEN

ALISON HENRIKSEN: MAXIMUM OF 175% OF SAL ARY,
TARGET AWARD OF 87 5% OF SALARY

Awards over 22,435 Genus shares

AWARD TO ALISON HENRIKSEN OF 175% OF SALARY

Arnua Salay  Annual Solay

to1Sep frorr 1 Sep Change

202 2021 %

Stephen Wilson £601,800 £6146500 25%
Alison Henriksen F408000  £418,200 25%
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REMUNERATION COMMITTEE REPORT CONTINUED
Section B — Wider Workforce Remuneration

The Committee developed the Remuneration Policy agreed by shareholders in 2019 having reviewead the wider framework for reward
across the organisation and the way that this drives alignment of individuals towards organisational goals. It receives updates

annuglly on any material changes to wider waorkforce arrangements and additionally considers employee feedback on reward matters.

This 1s from Group-wide machanisms {such as our Your Voice survey} but additionally from direct interaction between designated Non-

Executive Directors and employees.

Cur reward principles apply to all employees within the business and are designed to ensure we can attract, motivate ond retain
people fundamental to achieving our vision, and be part of ¢ global organisation. We want people within the business engaged and
delivering because they are excited by our vision, the part they can play in this, and the difference they can make.

These principles are applied as consistently as we can, such that reward is standardised wherever possible, and delivered inline with
our values. While the quantum may vary between roles, the principle of aligning reward outcomes with performance is fundamental to

the way we operate,

Reward element O approach

BASE SALARY

Pay rates are determined with reference to the skill set and experience of the individual. Maost pay rates are

reviewed annually across the Group, with adjustments with reference to individual parformance levels, market

BENEFITS

pay competitiveness and overall business offordability.

The countries we operate in display different practices in terms of benefit provision. Typical benefits include

access to life insurance, pension of retirement provision and may include medical caver. Our approach 1s driven
by local market factors iwhich may include legislative requirements) rather than @ single common benefit

offaring globally
VARIABLE PAY

arrangements. These include:

Annual Bonus

We operate a range of annual variable reward schemes and most of cur employees participate in one of these

> Based on a combination of financial perfermance and non-financial metrics assessed through our
performance management processes (which all employees participate in).

> Financial metrics based arcund profitakility and cash performance.

> Where metrics are consistent with those used for Executive Directors or GELT members, then the same
target/performance scale is used for everyone to drive alignment.

Production facilities - KPI plans
> Linked to the balanced scorecard of local KPIs for facility, covenng metrics such as production output levels
and health and safety

Commissions

> Derived from individuat sates performance of the individuat.

In addition, we make discretionary awards of shares across the business annually, reflecting the contribution of

the individual and to drive future alignment with cur performance.

Alignment of our Remuneration Policy to the Provisions of the 2018 Code {Section 40)

Clarity

implementation of the strategy is
monitored through KPls including those
used within the Annual Bonus and PSP
This ensures atignment between strategy
execution and reward cutcomes.

Predictability

Examples of the range of cutcomes
under the Policy are shown

within the scenaro graphs.

This demcnstrates the way that
aifferent performance levels change
reward outcomes for indiviguals and
the associated impact of changes
In the company share price,

Simplicity

We look to describe the structure of
reward clearly to both participants and
shareholders through effective disclosures,
so alf stakeholders are clear on the
underlying reward principles and the

way reward outcomes are determined.

Proportionality

A significant proportion of the total
reward cpportunity is performance
driven, with clear linkage between
businass metrics and reward outcomes
through clear targets and use of KPIs.

Shares form the majority of vanable
reward and Executives are required
to develop and maintain a material
shareholding in the business to fully
align to the sharehclder experience.

Alignment to culture

The Policy aligns to our business

model and focus on the experience

of customers and employees. Metrics
linked to culture are used within variable
plans, alongside delivery of long-

term sustainable performance.

Risk

The Committee retain ultimate discretion
to vary outcomes from formuiaic results
if they do not judge this to accurately
reflect underlying business performance.

Malus and clawback provisions apply
to all owards and we operate post-
cessation shareholding requirements
to further align Executives to long-
term business performance.
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Section B — CEO Pay Ratio

OUR CEO PAY RATIO FOR 2021

Cur CEOQ pay ratio is shown below.
Median ratio

CEC single vs CEO target
ﬁgura _£k ) 25th percentile Median B B _75!!3 parcentite remunaration
Year Ended FTE reward Ratio FTE reward Ratie FTE reward Ratio
30 June 2021 2,888 £27374 1051 £32.454 521 FL3796 4461 541

No elements of pay have been omitted from the calculation and pay quartiles determined as at 30 June 2021 and values are
calculated based on those employed at this date. Where required, actual levels of remuneration were adjusted to create full-time
equivalent values by considering both the employees full-time equivaient hours and where applicable} the proportion of the year that
the individual was employed. The quartile values, split between salary and benefits are as follows:

25th 75th

porcent e Mecian percentle

Salary (FTE) £23.854 £27300 £36,102
Total pay and benefits £27374 £32,464 £43796

The median ratio I1s consistent with pay and reward policies in operation within the business. Salaries are set with reference to market
levels of pay, with progression linked to experience and performance in role. The structure of reward in operation means that
greater propertion of pay is linked to variable pay in more senior roles and will therefore fluctucte linked to business and individual
performance outcomes against targets set, and to changes in the Genus share price.

OUR CEQ PAY RATIO HISTORY

To provide additional context we haove also shown the ratio for the previous three years. For ilfustration we have also shown the
ratios against the target level of reward we disclosed within our Remuneration Policies os agreed by sharehoiders and provided
commentary below.

Reward structure — That the overall CEO package is more highly geared towards
variable pay than most other employees within the UK business.

Business performance — As outlined elsewhere within this drsclosure, 2021 was o
rebust year for the business with strong profit growth. This has resulted in high levels
of award against stretching targets set for the Annual Bonus, and in vasting levels of
over 81.2% from PSP awards made in 2018 which were linked to EPS performance over
the three-year period.

Change of CEO - The CEQ 'single figure’ for year ending 2019 was lower than the prior
year. This reflected the decision of our previcus CEQ 1o resign from the business and
forfeit any awards under our Annual Bonus or long-term incentive, alibeit he was still
employed by Genus at the end of the financial year.

Share price growth = We have seen significant growth in the share price with the
average share price for the last three months of 2021 of 5,062p which was an increase
of 50% on the same period the year before.

Median ratic

CEO single vs target CEQ

fguja - ‘iSthipor;ontlle . Mgdia_n o 15tl_1_per_con!_|‘lo o si_nglo figure

TOTAL PAY AND BENEFITS

Year anded CEQ FTE reward Ratio FTE reward Ratlo FTE reward Ratio Ratio
30 June 20 £2257¢ £25230 89:1 E31,748 711 EL2 424 531 561
30 June 19 £815k £24,638 351 £31.867 261 E41792 20:1 571
30 June 18 £2,54% £24,204 1051 £30,759 831 F40203 631 591

1 Thisvalue reflects the change r CEO dunng the year and incl.des salary and benefits for Kanm Bitar througr to his resignot.on ana all applcanle reward elements for
Stephen W.lsan frar tre date of ~1s appo ntrent as CEC 13 Sectemper 2019) to 30 June 2020

METHOD OF CALCULATION AND RATIONALE

We have elected to use calculation Method A as outlined within the legislation. We have done this to get as accurate a picture os
possible for the reward of all cur UK employees compared to the CEO. This contrasts with our disclosure on gender pay which focuses
on our largest UK subsidiary (Genus Breeding Limited! rather than alf employees in the UK as required by the respective legislation. 1t
ansuras that the caleulation is done on a full-time eguivalent basis in comparing employee reward to the CEQ position.



78 GENUS PLC / ANNUAL REPORT 2021

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE REPORT CONTINUED
Section C - Remuneration and Performance Statement

GENUS’S STRATEGY AND ITS LINK TO PERFORMANCE-RELATED PAY
Cur strategy and the way this 15 linked to varigbie reward is shown below

INCREASE GENETIC SUCCESS
CONTROL AND MEASURED
PRODUCT BY
DIFFERENTIATION

TARGETING KEY
MARKETS AND
SEGMENTS

SHARING IN
THE VALUE
DELIVERED

R&D AND BUSINESS LINK TO
INNOVATION REMUNERATION
POLICY

PROPRIETARY GENETIC
IMPROVEMENT AND
DISSEMINATION
POSITIONS

VOLUME GROWTH

QPERATING PRGFIT

CASH CONVERSION

PERFORMANCE COMPONENTS AND THEIR IMPACT ON REMUNERATION

2020

restated
Adjusted results

Reven.ue £551.4m
Adjusted pro;lt before tax h £658m
Generation of free cash flow EBSQm
Adjusted earnings per shorer 7713173
D{\;’ideéid per éhore ‘ 221p
Share price at yéor end 773,532;37

2071 Movement % Imoact or remunerat on

4960p

Strategic measures within the Annual
Bonus focus on key activities in pursurt
of our defined longer-term strategy

Stratedic objectives recognise wider
pragress than financial medsures
alone

Meaosured through the profit element
of the Annual Bonus

Over the longer term will flow into EPS,
used to determine vesting under the
PSP

Measured through the cash element
of the Annual Bonus

§574.3m - 4% J;put to Annuol Ronus profit and eo-rangs per share in PSP
£84.8m 29% Annua! Bonus measure 7 7
£37.5m 7% Annual Bonus measure
100.9p 7 31% PSP perfarmance condition
32.0p 7 lb% E;cecutfu;es rewordéd via dividends on Vshcrres held post vésting

40% Detarmines the value of deferred bonuses and PSP awards

Values in the table are in actual currency as shown in the Annual Report. A number of adjustments are made to these for the purposes
of calculating awards under our incentive plans as described in this repert and in ling with our Remuneration Policy, 2020 numbers have
been restated in ling with the change in our accounting policy retaining 10 the capitalisation of certain software assets as disclosed in
note 2 Basis of Preparation within the Annual Report. The change in accounting policy led to an increase in operating expense of £2.7m

In the current year and £5.2m in 2020.

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS' ALIGNMENT TO SHARE PRICE
The table below shows the value of shares currently held by tha Executive Directors and those awarded under the Deferred Share
Bonus Plan ('DSBP'). but not yvet released (on a post-tax basis). It does not include those awards under the PSP which are scheduled to
vestin the future subject to Company earnings per share performance, which have the potential to significantly increase the alignment
of the Executives, subject to the resulting level of vesting.

Carelusion

S-ores Consetuence
awarded Ind catve cfa - E2
unce- the valle o srare o ce

Shores CSep Totor srore 20 Jume 2020 chonge
gwned Ipost-tox) eXpoLL’e ey [t
Stephen Wilson 65,342 12,201 77543  3525,206 155085
Alison Henriksen Nil 1344 1344 68037 2,688

CEO 1s aiigned to share price movernent through

ordinary shareholding

CFOwaos appointed into role in January 2020 and has yet

to see awards vest that wera made under the PSP Plan

1 vo've oo cu Sled LS ~g TRe overdge $hOe OF Ce for the fing guorter of tne irare o1 yewr e oed 30 June 302115 05200
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Section D — Annual Report on Remuneration

INTRODUCTION

This section of the Directors’ Remuneration Report is subject to an advisory vote at the 2021 AGM. Remuneration in respact of 2021
Is determined by cur Remuneration Policy agreed by 93.4% of shareholders at the 2019 AGM. The detailed Policy, approved by
shareholders at the 2019 AGM on 14 November 2019, can be found in cur 2019 Annual Report which ts available from our website at
www.genusplc.com.

We have split this section into the following chapters 1o balance our formal disclosure obligations with our desire to have o clear and
understandable report:

What the Executive Directors Were Poid in 2027,

What the Executive Directors Can Earn in 2022,

. The Process the Committee Followed to Arrive at These Decisions.

How the Chief Executive’s Pay Compares to Sharcholder Returns Cver Lhe Past Ten Years and to tmployees’ Pay.
The Chairman and Non-Executive Directors’ Fees.

Details of the Directors’ Shareholdings and Rights to Shares.

Details of the Executive Directors’ Contracts and Non-Executive Directors' Letters of Appointment.

SRR

1. WHAT THE EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS WERE PAID IN 2021

Executive Directors' single total remuneration figure (audited)

The following table shows a single total figure of remuneration for the 2021 financial year for each of the Executive Directors and
compares this figure 1o the prior year.

Subtotal

Subtotal for

Salary for fixed Annual variable
and feas Benefits' Pension? pay bonus® psp pay Total
Year £000Cs £00G0s £000s £000s £0C0s £000s E£000s £000s
Stephen Wilson 2021 400 13 &0 673 908 12174 2,215 2,888

{ceased to be Group Finance Director and

appointed CEO from 13 September 2019) 2020 550 13 5@ 622 Q45 594° 1,539 2,161
Alison Henirtksen 20021 407 12 24 443 689 - 689 1,132
{oppointed 13 January 2020} 2020 190 o) 12 208 297 - 297 505

1 Beneftsincluaea an annuai car a'lowance of £12,000 for Steprean Wilsor and Alison Hewrnksen respactvely Insured oenefits ‘nclude Iife assurance, privote medicol inswanice
and o medical screen

2 Executive Drectors recerve o cash alowe~ce in leu of pens on, whchis shown in the Pension calumn The oercentage cortnbution payable to Stephen Wilson was ‘educaa

on oppontment te CEO ifrorn Group Finance Director) from 15% of salory to 10% of solary Allson Henrksen receives a pension contriout.o~ of 6% of salory

Bonus earnea includes the part of tne award wnich s deferred into Comoany shares

4 The vaue of tne PSP s dete'mined oy t~e numiber of owards vestrg -~ relation to perforrance 'n the perod ended 30 June 2021 b dend equ valents are ~ot added
to awards made under the PSP The value shown for 2021 s based on the everage s~are pnee for tne final three montns of tre 2021 financial year {which wos 5,0828). Ths
compares to the share pr ce af grant of 2,317 (+118 5%) Of the value shown for the CEQ, E660< 15 attriputable to share pr ce appreciotior between award and vestng

S The 2020 values s~own as estimated n the previous Annuol Report have been restated to reflect the actual value at point of vesti~g The shore prce wos 3956p on
14 Sectemoper 2020 woen awards vestea for Stephen Wison

o

How the bonuses for 2021 were calculated

Annuc) Bonus

The 2021 bonuses for Executive Directors were calculated by reference to performance against a challenging sliding scale of

profit, cash flow and strategic measures. Targets were set by the Cormmittes to exclude the costs of gene editing in line with our
Remuneration Policy. This was a decision by the Committee (as was the case in pricr years) to ensure that management's reward was
not unfairly affected by decisicns to make the right long-term investment decisions on tehalf of the business.

The following results were achieved for each element of the annual bonus incentive.

Extert to wnich

Actual 2021 “hreshaold Target Stretch  targets were met

Banus target' Strategc apjective We'ghtrg performance 0% owardl  150% award) Ifull award} 1%)

Adjusted profit before 1ax Year-on-year profit growth 50% £972m? £76.2m £83.8m £876m 100%

Generation of free cash flow Generate cash for 15% £291m?® £18m £21m F24m 100%
reinvestment and dividends

Strategic measures To bulld the foundation for 35% Seetable Chief Executive 85%

future growth Chief Financial Officer 0%

1 Trefinancial elements of the bonus are payable on a st-aight-lire basis between eac t~res-old, target ond stretch level

2 Numbers srown exc’ude the impact of the charge of tre occounting Poley inked to fre capitalisation of certain softwore assets. Tre Committee mode the cecis on to
caleLlate awards in this way lalbeit the outcome would have peen the same If tnese costs had been reflectad n 2020 and 2021 performarce).

3 Trisnumber excludes £8 4m of IFRS 16 1 ease adjustments included n our reported free cash flow nuTber on page 78
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1. WHAT THE EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS WERE PAID IN 2021 CONTINUED

Strategic measures

The Committee reviewed and discussed achievement against targets set for strategic measures for each Executive Director in
determining overall award levels. Performance against these targets is disclosed retrospectively, as follows:

Pay-out
aga st
Theme Qopect ve Key achieyements in yea® TCH% (LM
Stephen Wilson  Strategy Development  Expand the Company's > Five new key accounts in PIC China 85%
and Executicn position as the leader in > Growth of ABS volumes by 15%, with gssociated
animal genetics growth in profit margin
> Investment in Xelect 1o support our
understanding of the agua genetics market
Leadership and Culture Fostering ¢ positive and > Developed and implemented new leadership
inclusive culture and curriculum, courses and Learning Managernent
incregsing employee platform
engagement at all levels > Maintained high net promoter score
> Positive responses from employees to way Genus
managed employees through pandemic
Innovation Continue strengthening > PRRS programme on schedule Phase 1FDA
R&D technology capabilities submissions complete
and commercial relevance > Digital ransformation across ABS
and implement new 1T > Creation of new team focused on Reoroductive
technclogies to support Biclogy
Company performance > Estabiished scientific computing strategy
Sustainability Make Genus an industry > High focus on communication of sustainability
leader in sustainability strategy with investors and through Capital
Markets event
> Delta C programme launched internally with
net zero energy use at Dekorra site and pilot of
electric vehiclas in LIK
> Implemented changes across R&D to drive
sustainability with remaovat of plastic and
elimination of over 50 tonnes of general waste
Pay aut
against
Thame Dbectve Key ach evemsnts » year maximum
Alison Henriksen Strotegy Development  Expand the Company’s > Enhancements to strategy process, including Q0%
and Executian position as the leader in linkages ta KPls
animal genetics > Enhanced reporting and facus on profitability
measures

> Relationship development with US investors

Legdership and Culture Fostering a positive and > Execution of inance strategy encompassing
inclusive culture ond finance operating model design, strengthering
increasing employae of core processes, collective team development
engagernent at all levels across Global finance and driving of digitisation

acrass function

> implementation of People Magnet strategy:
promotion of key individuals into new roles, focus
on gocountabilities

> Focus on procurament with implementation of
Group function and achievement of targeted

SaVINGS
Innovation Continue strengthening > Led optimisation of GenusOne and
R&D technology capabilities organisationat aignment to spensor and
angd commercial relevance irmplement gictally
and implement new T
technologies to support
Coempany performance
Sustainability Make Genus an industry > Development and presentation of sustainability

leader in sustamabiity within Genus to Investor base




CORPORATE GOVERNANCE 81

1. WHAT THE EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS WERE PAID IN 2021 CONTINUED
As a result of this performance, the total Annual Bonus awarded to the Executive Directors was:

Annual Bonus

Arnuol Bonus

Extent to which Annual Bonus - deferred

targets were met - ¢ash sharas'

Stephen Wilson Q4.8% £665,240 £332,620
Alison Henriksen 96.5% FLERTALD £2224670

1 Trenumber of shares awarded wil be calculated in Septemiber 2021 wnen borwses are poa One-third of bonus payab'e s deferred inte Gerus shares for three years

How the PSP figure was caiculated in the single total remuneration table
Stephen Wilson's PSP award granted on @ October 2018 was subject to a performance condition, based on the growth in adjusted earnings
per share from 2018 to 2021 The range of targets applicable to the award, which had a value of 175% of salary at grant was as follows:

% of award
Average annual growth in adusted earnings per srare vasting
Less than 5% per annum Nl
é%_pe_r o-rmum S 20%
15% per annum R 100%

1 Suaght-lime vestirg between the points n the above table

The Committee set targets to calculate the long-term award after excluding gene editing costs incurred during the performance period,
to avoid an unintended impact on the Executives’ remunerction whilst making long-term decisions in support of value creation. This is
consistent with the approach previously communicated to shareholders within our Policy and as taken in each of tha ast three years.

The adjusted 2021 earmings per share after the cost of share-based payments and adjusting for costs relating to gene editing was
104p. This represents an average annual growth in adjusted earnings per share of 12.6% compared to the comparable 2018 adjusted
eamings per share figure lafter the cost of share-based payments). The resulting level of vesting is 81.2% of rnaximum’. Stephen Wilson's
award was over a maximum of 29,613 shares, so the actual level of vesting is 24,046 shares and these will vest on @ October 2021,

The Committee made the decision to calculate vesting excluding the impact of the accounting change linked to capitalisation of costs
of certain software assets. This was done on the basis of driving consistency between the base year and final cutcome, and recognise
the timing of the actual change in the accounting policy. We additionally noted that had this impact been included then the resulting
vesting level would have been slightly higher.

The Company's average share price for the period from 1 Apnl 2021 to 30 June 2021 was 5,0462p, meaning that the value shown for these
awards within the single figure table is £1,217196 for Stephen Wilson,

CEO reward alignment to share price performance
Share price on award = £23.17

Share price (three months ending 30 June 2021) = £50.62

Share price growth over period = 118.5%

1 The gverage an~uo carn.ngs per share growth nciud.ng gene edit ng costs after share-bosed payments waos 12 6% and the associatec vest ng leve wou d have beer 80.8%
of maximLm

Joining award
There were no joining awards made to Directors in the year ending 30 June 2021,

Material contracts
There were no other contracts or arrangemeants during the financial year in which a Director of the Company was materially interested
and/or which were significant in relation to the Group's business.

Paymaents for loss of office and payments to former Directors (audited)
There were no payments for loss of office in the year or to any former Directors of the business.

Discretion

No discretion was applied by the Committee to outcomes under the variable plans and awards were determined against targets
set by the Committee. The Committee was fully satisfied that the cutcomes delivered were cansistent with the strong business
performance delivered.
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2. WHAT THE EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS CAN EARN IN 2022
A summary of this chapter is given on page 75.

Base salary
In line with other UK employees, the date of salary review is 1 September 2021
wider workforce,

Any change is considered against changes made to the

Annual Annuct
salary to salary from Crange
15ep 2021 15ep 2021 %
Stephean Wilson £5601,800 £616,900 2.5%
Alison Henriksen £408,000 £418,200 2.5%

Benefits
The Executive Directors receive benefits including a car allowance, life assurance, an annual medical screen and private medical
Insurance.

Pension

On appointment to the CEC role in September 2019, the pension allowance payable to Stephen Witson reduced te 10% of salary (from 15%).
Alison Herriksen receives a pension alliowance of 6% of salary, consistent with our stated Policy to align rates for new hires to the wider
workforee. In line with investor expectations, the allowance paid to the CEQ will reduce to 6% of salary from the end of December 2022,

Performance-related Annual Bonus
The structure for variable remuneration for Executive Directors for 2022 will be as follows:

Annual Bonus

Value of Bonus

Performance
measures

Calibration of
profit target

Calbration of cosh
generation target

Calibration of
strategic measures

Bonus deferral

Malus and
clawback

A maximum of 175% of salary for the Chief Executive and Chief Financial Officer based on profit, cash genaratian
and strc:tegm measures.

Assessed across the fo\lowmg memca
Adjusted Profit Before Tax — 50% of cpportunity
Cash Generation — 15% of opportunity
Stroteg\c measures - 35% of opportumty

The targets for the comlng year are outlined beWow and have contmued 1o be di sclosed on a prospective bosws
expressed in terms of growth. The targets have been set having considered the budgets in place for the year and
represent stretching business performance. The Committee considered budgets, analyst expectations and the
market conditions in our key countries in determining the ronge and is comfortable that the ronge set is stretching,
and fully aligned tc our stated medium-tarm growth objective.

No bonus is payabile in respect of profit unless the pror year's result is exceeded. Thereafter, the bonus award is
determined on the following basis:

Pay-out {profit

Growth on ongr yea- adjustea pefore tax element;
0% growth or below il oward
% growth - N B - B . 50% Gward
WO%Erowth gr obove_ B B B ) N a 100% oword

Straight-line payout between performance points.

1 In cor*stc'\t curre"ry ord exc.uding gﬂﬂe eqt ﬂg Costs

The cosh target 15 the budgeted figure, with o specwﬁc range of £3m beWow the target and £3m obove

Specific numbers were set {rather than o percentage rangel 1o ensure Executives are focused on actuai cash
generotlon The target set cmd resurtmg performomce och\eved w.(r be d\sciosed inthe Annuo R’eport mext year.

Specific meosurobie targets have been set against this categaory frnked ta our strategic priorities rdentrﬁed by the
Board for the year ahead. Approximately one-third 10% out of the 35%) will be linked to specific targets linked to
environmental measures

It would be commercially sensitive to disclose these targets in advance and we will retrospectively disclose the
targets and assoc;oted performoﬂf‘e agomst them n ‘me subsequent Annuol Report

One-third of any borus award will be deferred by way of shares for three years and will vest subject 10 contlnued
employmem other thann certain tecwer circumstances

The Committee can apply malus to deferred bonusas and ﬂlowbock any e&emer\t of powd bonuses that shou\d
not have been owarded or paid, in the event of 0 matenol missiatement of the Group's onnuo! results or other
substantive reason.
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2. WHAT THE EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS CAN EARN IN 2022 CONTINUED

Long-term incentives

Awards to be granted in September 2021 will be granted under the 2019 PSP Plan cpproved by shareholders on 14 November 2019,
Stephen Wilson will be granted an award over shares worth 200% of salary and Alison Henriksen an award over shares worth 175%
of salary. Grants will be determined in line with the Plan Rules, using annual salary as at the point of grant to determine awards.
Awards granted will continue to require the Executive to retain the after-tax number of shares vesting in Septembyer 2024 for two
years. Enhanced clawback and malus provisions will apply to these awards as outlined within our Remuneration Policy, including for
reputational damage and corporate failure.

The performance targets for the awards to be granted in September 2021 will relate to average annual growth in adjusted earnings per
share, measured over three years and excluding gene editing costs. The range of targets for the 2022 awards (scheduled to be made
in September 2021} is unchanged from that awarded in recent years and is as follows and is o5 follows:

vestrg
Average arnuat growtnon adusted ecrnings per share! % awardh
Less than 5% per annum 0%
5% per annum o ) 20%
15% per annum S ) . 100%

Straight-line vesting between performance points shown above.

1 Growthin odjusted earnings per share cver the tnree year oerfarmance penod wil be calcu ated on a simple avarage arnua growthrate after tne cost of share - pased
payments and excluaing gene edting costs

The Committee continues to believe that using adjusted earmings per share is an appropriate measure of long-term performance of
the businass, demaonstrates alignment to our stated medium-term growth aspirctions, and this is consistent with awards gronted over
the past few years, The Committee believes the above performance range is appropriately challenging, incentivises Executives 1o
deliver the Company's growth strategy and 1s therefore aligned with shareholders' interests.

The Committee retains the discration to be able to scale back vesting based on earnings per share performance if it does not consider
the vesting result to be consistent with the progress achieved acgainst the Company’s strategy during the performance pericd. This is
considered appropriate to broaden the Executive team’s focus beyend financial performance.

3. THE PROCESS THE COMMITTEE FOLLOWED TO ARRIVE AT THESE DECISIONS

The Committee comphes with the UK Corporate Governance Code. It makes recommendations to the Board, within agreed terms
of reference, on remuneration for the Executive Directors and other members of GELT. The Committee’s full terms of reference are
available on the Company's website at www.genusplc.com.

During 2021, the Committee comprisad:

Altendarce
Director Indepencent  at meetings
Leslay Knox {Chair) Yeos 5/5
Lykele van der Broek - S o Yes 5
LyscmrweGrc;y 77777 - o - C Yes 5/5
lonChades ' o - Yes  5/5
'(;in Fergusonﬂ S S o ;’e; - 5/5
BobLawson® - S Yes 33
JosonChint ) [ Yes 22

1 Retred from the Comoany on 31 May 2021
2 Retired s Crarman on 25 November 2020
3 Jared the Company on 1 Apnl 2021

None of the Committee members has any persenal inancial interest (other than as shareholders), conflicts of interests arising from
cross—directorships or day-to-day involvement in running the business. The Chief Executive and the Chief Financial Officer attend
meaetings ot the Committee's invitation but are not present when their awn remuneration is being discussed. The Committee is
supported by the Group HR Director, Group Reward Director, Finonce and Company Secretariat functions.

During the year, the Committee continued to use PricewaterhouseCoopers ((PwC’} for advice it considers is of volue, objective and
independent. PwC's fees were F4SK for its remuneration advice to the Committee. PwC were appointed by the Committee following
o competitive tender process and their performance and independence as advisers Is regularly reviewed. PwC s a membper of the
Remunerction Consultants Group and complies with its Code of Conduct. Separate teams within PwC provide unrelated advisory
service to the Group, including taxation, internaticnal assignments and actuarial advice to the Group.
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3. THE PROCESS THE COMMITTEE FOLLOWED TO ARRIVE AT THESE DECISIONS CONTINUED
During the year to 30 June 2021, the Committee met five times and considered the following matters:

July 2020 September 2020 November 2020 May 2021

> Payreview for GELT mempers. > Determination of Annuat > Discussion of sharehotder > Strategic objectives for 2022.
> Strateqic targets for 2021 Bonus awards in respect of votng on annual > Incentive design across

> Review draft Directors' 2020. remunearation. business.

Remuneration Hgport. > Testing of the performance > Raview of remuneration > Overview of wider reward
conditions and approval of reporting and AGM season practice across the FTSE 250,
the vesting levels of long- insight.
term share incertive awards > Wider workforce
granted in 2017, rewdrd review and gay

> Approval of long-term share benchmarking
incentive gwards under the
Company’s PSP and the Aprif 2021
associoted performance > Updote on COVID-19
targets. and associoted reward

> Review of shareholdings considerations.
by Executive Diectors and > Discussion of gender pay
GELT. findings within Genus

> Approval of PSP for senior Breading Limited and wider
leadership and review of reward approach in Genus.
share dilution. > Discussion of ESG and

> Approval of the Directors linkage to reward.

Remuneration Report.

How shareholders' views are taken into account
We consulted with shareholders ahead of proposing our existing Remuneration Policy to shareholders at our 2019 AGM which received
high levals of shareholder support. The results of the most recent votes were as follows:

vote o~ Directors’ Remuneration Vote o- Directers” Rermuneratan
Reog't 202D£GM md\isoryJ thcy ?O\iAGM {bmgng)

Tota nurber % of Total numper % of

of votes votes cast of viotes voles cost

For 46,099609 978 42801233 934

Against 1026035 2.2 3046755 64

Total number of shares In respect of which votes were validly made 47125644 100 45847988 100
Votes withheld 136,310 11770

How emplayees' pay is taken irto gecaunt
While the Company does not consult employees on matters of Directors' remuneration, the Commitiee does take account of the policy
for employees across the workforce when determining the Remuneration Palicy for Directors.

The Group Reward Director facilitates this process, presenting ta the Commttee reward structures and approach across the
organisation Including the way reward levels are set with refergnce to internal and external factors and how performance meatrics
align with these used for GELT members (including Executive Directors). The process also includes sharing feedback received through
staff engagement surveys that incliude guestions on pay, as well as consulting employees informatly on their views of the current
overall Remuneration Policy. Additionally, discussions on reward hove formed part of dialogue between the nominated Non-Executive
Directors and employees as part of wider engagement activity as outlined elsewhere in the Annual Report. This forms part of the
feedback provided to the Committee and 15 used to assess the Remuneration Policy's ongoing effectiveness and any changes thot
should be made.

When setting the Executive Directors’ base salaries, the Committee compares the salary increases proposed for each Executive
Director with those proposed for employees in therr geographical location, as well as considernng the typical increase proposed across
our UK business and the wider Group.
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4. HOW THE CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S PAY COMPARES TO SHAREHOLDER RETURNS OVER THE PAST TEN YEARS AND TO EMPLOYEES' PAY
Total shareholder return

The following graph shows the Company's performance measured by total sharehoider return {TSR'), compared with the TSR
performance of the FTSE 250 Index. The FTSE 250 Index was selected as it represents a broad eguity market of which the Company
IS a member.

Ten years of total shareholder return
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0
Jupe 11 June 12 June 13 June 14 June 15 June1s June 17 June 18 Jure 19 June 20 Jure 21
— — Genus —  FTSE 250

As required under the reporting regulations, the table below shows the 'single figure’ pay for the Chief Executive over the same period,
to allow comparisen betwaen variability in reward and the shareholder experience over the same period.

Yeor ended 30 June 2021

Richard

Wood - © KammBier Stepnen Wison

2012 2m2 2013 2014 2015 2014 2017 208 2019 202C 2020 201

Total remuneration (£000s)  £231  £1776  £868  £877 £1622 £1704 £2856 £2549 £815  £183 £2161 £2,888
Annual bonus (% of mex) 88%  77% 3% 32%  99%  78%  S59%:  &4%  NIE NI 91%  95%
Total PSP vesting (% of max) - - - S 2e% 3% 9% 56% NIC N 449%  81.2%

1 Incluged payment for lass of aneual bonus [£163.000! ana t~e value of restnctad stocx {E755 000 granted to corpensate h'm for loss of value forfeit on oining Genus
2 Includes the award under the Company Miestane elemeart of the annua Bo~us unae- the previous Remurerotion Poicy

3 Noowards were payable fol ow'~g the aecision of Kar m tores:gn from tre business

4 Vestieg was nil as Kar m's employmant cessation date was before sc~edu ed vesting of PSP awards

Director remuneration compared to Genus employees

Change in remuneraticn received

The table below shows the percentage change in the annual remuneration of Directors from 2019 onwards. Alse provided for
comparison is a UK comparator number for each respective time period which considers all employees of Genus plc on 30 June 2021
(excluding Directors) and calculating on an FTE basis changes in salary, benefits and bonus compared to the previous year.

Salary‘fees % change; Benefits % changel Bonus (% chonge)

2020t0 2021 2019 to 2020 2020t 2021 2012102020 2020t0 2021 2019 to 2020

Stephen Wilsor' 9 41 4] 0 ] 158
;\ison Henriksen? - 2 -n}o _______ 0 o _n_/o_ - 7 o n/a
lain Ferguson n/a n/o n/a n/a na  nio
Lykele van der Broek ” - 6_ S O - _(6b)-- o _25 - I:I/t_:l n/c
LyscnneGro.y__-__“_ P 76 0 7777077 0 n/a n/a
Lesley Knox o (5) 15 o o n/ar o 7n7/c:7
Jason Chin - - na n/ror o n/a 7 7n/c o 7nfur o Vﬁfc
UK comparators ’ 2.6 23 0 0 % 1

1 Stepren was appointed nto the CEQ role on 13 Septeroer 2019, Tre 2020 year (July 2019 to Jure 2020) nc udes part year of salory as CFO throughk to 13 Seotember 2019 and
oart year as CEO Salary mcrease recewved r September 2020 wos 2%,

2 Amounts ave been annual sed for 2020 for Alison to reflect her joining date of 13 Jonuary 202G

I Includes back paymerts for membersh p of respective Committees not received during 2019
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REMUNERATION COMMITTEE REPORY CONTINUED
Section B — Annual Report on Remuneration

4. HOW THE CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S PAY COMPARES TO SHAREHOLDER RETURNS OVER THE PAST TEN YEARS AND TO EMPLOYEES' PAY

CONTINUED
Distribution statement

2020 2021 % cnange
Employee costs (Em) £179m £194m 8%
Distributions to shareholders' E183m £19.5m 7%
1 Ing'udes dividends and shore buy -pocks
5. THE CHAIRMAN AND NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS' FEES
Fees payable to the Non-Executive Directors per annum are as follows:

2009 2020 2021
Poston fees feas {ees
Chairman £140000 £140000 £230,000°
Audit & Risk Committee/Remuneration Committee Chairs £60000 £60.000 £60,000
Scientific Adviser to R&D Global Portfolio Steering Committee (GPSC') £65,000 £65000  E65,000
Base Non-Executive Director fee £55,000 £55000  E55,000

1 Tne Charmean fee was igviewed pr or to the appontrment of la'n Ferguson and was determined following a review of rorket data, as asciosed n the 2020 A~nual Report

This fee leve' was oppled fo'owing appointment to lain Fergusen as Cha rman effective 25 Novemoer 2020

The responsibilities of chairing the Audit & Risk and Remuneration Committees result in an additional fee of £5,000, giving the Chairs of

these Commitiees a totafl fee of £60,000. Fees will continue at this level for the coming vear.

Total single figure of remuneration {audited) for 2020 and 2021 are as follows:

Fees

Nen-Execunve Directors £CO0s
iain Ferguson’ 2021 157
2020 -

Bob Lawson? 2021 67
2020 160

Lykele van der Brogk 2021 S5
2020 55

Lysanne Gray 2021 &0
2020 60

lan Charles?® 2021 60
2020 720

Lasley Knox 2021 &0
2020 63°

Jason Chin® 2021 16
2020 -

Total 2021 475
2020 410

Taxape
expensas
FOOOs

30

Benefits
EOCDs

AN =1

Tota
EGO0s

157

&7
191

59
66

60
60

&0
72

60
63

16
&7%
452

Jored the Corpery an 1 uy 2020 ard gecame Charmgn o~ 25 Novemoer 2070

Retred as Charrean an 25 Novemoe: 2020

Res gned from tne Coroany on 31 May 2021

Jored the Cormpony or 1 Agr 1 2021

Ircludes bock poyments for mempersn o of "espect ve Corm Ttees nol iacaedt Guing 2019

- RN

The Non-Executive Directors’ taxable expenses are travel expenses related to their role and have been grossed up for 1ax where

applicable, inline with HMRC rules,



6. DETAILS OF THE DIRECTORS' SHAREHOLDINGS AND RIGHTS TO SHARES

Directors’ shareholdings (audited)

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE 87

At the year-end, the Directors had the following interests in the Company's shares:

Unvested Unvested PSP

DSBP  awards held
At awards at at At
30 June 2021 % of Shareholding 30 June 2021 30 June 2021 30 June 2020
Numbar salary held' guidalinet® Number Number Number
lain Ferguson 4,000 n/a n/a n/a n/a -
Stephen Wilson 65,342 652% 200% 23,020 102,156 73330
Alison Henriksen - 17% 200% 2,536 40,752 -
lan Charles - n/a n/q n/a n/a -
Lykele van der Broek 3,750 n/a n/a n/a n/a 3750
Lysanne Gray - n/q n/q n/a n/a -
Lesley Knox 2,000 n/a n/a n/a n/a 2000
Jason Chin - n/a n/a n/a n/a -
Total 75,092 25,556 142,908 72080

1 Based or the combined mumber of beneficially held shares and the net of tox DSBP awards held and tre average closing share price over the three mantns to 30 June 2021

of 5,062p

?  Executve Drectors are expactea to wark towards ach.eve o shareheldng of 200% of salay as set out in tne Remunerat.on Policy agreed by sharero'ders in 2015,

There were no changes in the Directors’ interests between 30 June 2021 and the date of this report.

Company share price

The market price of the Company's shares on 30 June 2021 was 4.9460p and the lowest and highest share prices during the financial

year were 3,344p and 5,435p respectively.

Performance share awards granted in 2021 (audited)
The awards grented under the 2019 PSP wetre as follows:

Foce/maxirum value of

MNumper of shaes

awacrds at grans dare

% of oward vesung

Frecutive comorising Qwrd (% saary)' at threshold Perforrance cer od
Stephen Witson 30877 £1.203,600 (200%) 20 010720-3006.23
Alison Henriksen 18,317 £714,000 (175%) 20 010720-3006.23

1 The clesing cverage shere price ovar tha tree days pror o the awa-d being granted has beer Lsed to determine tre moximum face vo'ue of tne owards which was 3,8980

{award granted on 14 September 2020}

The awards were granted as nil-cost share options and vesting will be sukject to achieving a challenging sliding scale of adjusted
carnings per share growth target and a strategic underpin, consistent with cur Remuneration Poticy. The adjusted earnings per share

growth performance target for the above awards is;

Vestng

Average an~ua growth v adjustea earmings per sharg! % owod}
Less than 5% per annum 0%
S%Vp;aric}ur;urm 777777777777777777777777 o 20%
o S - 100%

15% per annum

Straight-line vesting between performance points

1 Growth nacusted eanings cer share over the three year performuance perod w ll be ca'culated on a simole averoge arnua growth rate after the cost of share-based

payrents and adjusted for ge~e edit ng costs In ine with previous awa-as

Deferred bonus awards granted in 2021 {audited)

The following DSBP awards were granted in relation to the 2020 annual benus:

Numoer of

shares  Face volue of

COMEIsIng awards at

Execut ve award grant date
Stephen Wilson 8,079

Alison Henriksen

£314919
2536 £98,865

These awards are not subject to any further performance conditions and will normally vest in full on 14 September 2023 subject to

continued service.

1 The closing ave-age share prce over the three oays oror to tre award weing granted has beer used to aeterm re the moxmum face va.ue of the awards. Ths was 3 8980

loword gra~ted o~ 14 Sectember 20201
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REMUNERATION COMMITTEE REPORT CONTINUED
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6, DETAILS OF THE DIRECTORS’ SHAREHOLDINGS AND RIGHTS TO SHARES CONTINUED
Summary of scheme interests {qudited)
As at 30 June 2021, the Executive Directors had the following beneficial interests in share awards and share options:

Stephen Wilson

At At
30 Jure Granted Loosed in Exercised 30 June
Share pree 2020 In year year In year 2021
Grant aate Award Vesting penoa ar grart Numper Nurroer Number Numper Number
13 September 2017 PSP 13 September 2017 to 1973p 33443 - (18,427) {15016} -
13 September 2020
13 September 2017 DsSBP 13 Septemicer 2017 to 1973p 10,213 - - (10213) -
13 September 2020
¢ October 2018 PSP @ October 2018 to 2317p 29613 - - - 29,613
@ October 2021
@ Octaber 2018 DsspP P October 2018 ta 2317p 7559 - - - 7,359
9 QOctober 2021
11 September 2019 PSP 11 September 2019 to 2.832p 41,666 - - - 41,666
11 September 2022 )
N September 2019 DSBP 11 Septermber 2019 to 2832p 7,382 - - - 7,382
11 September 2022
14 Septemiser 2020 Psp 14 September 2020 to 3,898p - 30877 - - 30,877
14 September 2023
14 September 2020 DSBP 14 September 2020 1o 3.898p - 8079 - - 8,079
14 September 2023
Total 129,876 38,956 (18,427} (25,229) 125176
Alison Henriksen
Ar At
Share 30 June Granted Lapssa Exercised 30 June
pnce 2020 In year nyear nysar 201
Grant date Awecird Yestng erod ar grant Number Nurrber Numper Mumber Numbar
7 April 2020 psp 7 Apn 2019 to 3120p 224835 - - - 22,435
11 September 2022
14 Septembear 2020 P3P 14 Septamber 2020 to 38B98p - 18,317 - - 18,317
14 September 2023
14 September 2020 DSBR 14 Septermnber 2020 10 1898p - 2,536 - - 2,536
14 September 2023
Total 22,435 20,853 - - 43,288

For the share awards 10 Stephen Wilson and Alison Hennksen granted on 14 September 2020, the closing average share price over
the three days prior to 14 September 2020 (the grant date for the PSP owards) of 3,898p was used to determine the number of shares
compnsing individual awards.

The performance targets applying to the PSP awards made during the year are as described above. An earnings per share range also
applied to owards mode in 2019 ond 2018 to Stephen Wilson, No further performance conditions apply to DSBP awards other than
continued employment with the businass

Dilution
The aggregate dilution of alf refevant share incentives is 3.57% as at 30 June 2021, which is less than the permissible 10% in ten years
Sution .
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7. DETAILS OF THE EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS" CONTRACTS AND NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS' LETTERS OF APPOINTMENT

Cirecto- Appointment aate Current contract dale Exprry date MNatice peried [maenths)
Executives

Stéphen Wilson ) 12 December 2012 13 S-epie_m"b-er- 20.’1‘5; 7 ;1)0 7 7172 [f;orr{ Coﬁp%}ﬁy}, 6 {from Exeéu-t\'\:fe) -
Alison H(—;-n_ril;s;eﬁ o 13; jorﬁuoir;: éO2O 14 November 2019 nfa 12 {from Comparny), & (frdm Exécutive)
Non-Executives - S

Lykele van der Brogk 1 .Jiur\y72Oi 4 Septemiber 2020 - l July 2023 7 1
Lysanne Grd)l' " 1 April 20146 lArerVZO:I.i‘Qi 7 1 April 2022 1
Lesley Knox -1 J-u-me- 2018 1 June 2021 1 June 2024 1
IOiraneré_;uson 1 July 2020 7 1 July 2020 1 July_2023 o 7 767
Joson Chin ) - _1 A-pr-i\ -2C-)2-1 1 April 20217 7 1 April 2024 1

SECTION E - SUMMARY OF DIRECTORS' REMUNERATION POLICY

KEY DESIGN/PHILOSOPHY OF OUR REMUNERATION POLICY APPROVED BY SHAREHOLDERS AT THE 2019 AGM

Wrat we are try ng to achieve

How we are looking to achieve it

> Continued transformation into a global agricultural
bictechnology picneer

> Pursuit of leading-edge technology and focus on long term
innovation and opportunity to enable future value creation
for sharehaolders

> Sustainable robust short-term delivery of financial
performance as we invest in the future

> Ability to recognise innovation and progress, which are crucial
to securing long-term bottom-line perfoermance

> Ability to attract and motivate a high-quality leadership team
ond drive focus ond behaviours on long term achievement in
a global market for talent

> Recognise expectations of shareholders on reward and
governance

> Draw upon the aspects of our current policy that are already
working

> Include strategic medasures within annugl bonus assessment
whilst increasing the focus on financial metrics

> Reduction to pension contribution levels permitted within the
policy

> Introduction of a post-cessation shareholding requirement and
enhanced malus and clawback provisions
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Section £ - Summary of Directors' Remuneration Policy

BELOW 1S A SUMMARY OF THE REMUNERATION POLICY APPROVED BY SHAREHOLDERS AT THE 2019 AGM

Executive Directors’ policy table

Bose salary

Benefits

PURPOSE
To provide competitive fixed remuneraticn
that will attract and retain employees with
ihe experience necessary to develop and
exacute our strategy.

OPERATION
Payable in cash.

Reviewed annually by the Committee with
arny change effective from 1 September.

Factors considered when reviewing

salary include:

> Salary increases awarded to other
employees in the country wheare the
individua! is based.

= Comparable salaries when
benchmarked against relevant market
comparatoers {both in the UK and
internationally).

> The experience of the individual and
the nature of the contribution they are
rmaking and their responsibitities.

> Qverall Group performance and wider
econamic conditions.

MAXIMUM
There is no set maximum, but changes are
typically inling with the wider warkforce,

Individual changes may be made ot

the discretion of the Committee outside

of these levels by exception. This could

include the following situations:

> Significant change in responsioility.

> Change in the Group's s1z& and
complexity.

> To enable salary progression for newly
apponted Directors as they develop
in rale.

To provide o competitive range of benefits
to drive engagement and commitment to
Genus

Benefits generally include @ car allowance
and insured benefits le.g. Iife assurance
and private medical insurance).

Where additional benefits are offered ina
particular location {or across the Group!
Exacutive Directors are typically eligible
to receive those benefits on simitar terms,
These could include access 1@ empioyee
discounts or satary sacrifice benefits.

Directors may participate in a Share
Incentive Plan ['SIPY) or any other all-
employee share scheme on the same
tarms as other employees.

Where Executive Directors ore recruted
from overseas or required to relocate
fincluding on an international ossignment),
benefits such os travel and relecation
costs and tox equalisotion arrangements
may be provided,

The car allowance 1§ capped under the
Policy at £20,000 per annum.

The value of insured benefits will vary sach
year, based on the cost of the premiums
paid, and will be reflectad within the
respective single figure table for the year.

Pens on

To provide a competitive Company
contribution that enables effective
retirement planning.

Directors may participate in the Company
Pension Plan {o defined contribution
arrangement) or an allernative pension
saving vehicle that the Company may
provide.

Alternatively, the Company may provide
a cash suppfement in lieu of pension
contributions into a scheme.

Only base salary is pensionable.

A allowance will be made avaikable n
line with the rate available to the wider
waorkfarce.

Maximum permitted under the Policy will be
10% of salary.



An~ual Bonus
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Perfarmance Share Pion

91

Shareholding

To motivate and incentivise delivery of
annual performance targets covering
a combination of financial and

strategic measures.

One-third of the Annual Bonus is deferred
into Company shares for a pericd of three
yeurs, subject to continued service, The
remaining award is payable in cash.

Malus and clawback provisions exist for
awcrds made under the Annual Bonus.

A dividend equivalent provision enables
dividends to be paid {in cash or shares)
on deferred shares that vest.

See explanatory notes for further details on
the operation including leaver provisions.

Maximum opportunity of 200%.

To incentivise Executives to achieve
superior returns to shareholders over o
three-year period, to retain key individuals
and align with sharehclder interests.

Awards scheduled to vest three years from
grant, suhject to continucd employmenl
and satisfaction of challenging three -year
performarice targets.

Following vesting the post-tax number of
vested shares must be held for at leasta
further two-year period.

A dividend equivalent provision enables
dividends to be paid (in cash or shares) on
shares that vest.

Malus and clawback provisions may apply
for o period of three years.

See explanatory notes for further details on
the operation including leaver provisions.

Maximurn annucl award of 200% of
salary (300% of salary in exceptional
circumstances, such as recruitment).

To align Executives and shareholders.

Executives are required to achieve a
sharenolding of 200% of salary. It is
expected that this is achieved within

five years of appointment, and that this
shareholding is generated through retention
of ot least half of the shares that vest under
the DSBP and PSPs.

Once met, Individuals are expected to
maintain at least this level of shareholding
and it will be reviewed by the Committee
annucily.

A post-cessation shareholding policy will
apply for Executive Directors that requires
100% of shareholding for 24 months
following cessation {or actual applicable
shareholding in place at point of leaving
if lower)

This will apply considering shares awarded
in respect of 2020 and beyond {including
to any new appoeintments), and we will

not amend existing conditions for current
owards. Malus and clawback provisions
exist beyond cessation of employment, and
in certain leaver situations the expected
share treatment would continue to drive
ongeoing alignment between the individual
and share price performance.

n/a
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Base Salary Benefits Pensio~

PERFORMANCE CONDITIONS
n/a n/o n/a




Annual Bonus
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Bonus awards are subject to achievement
against a sliding scale of challenging
financial and strategic objectives, which
the Committee sets each year to reflect
priorities for the year ahead.

The specific performance measures
are reviewed every year to ensure they
continue 1o support the Company's
strategy.

Financial measures govern the majority of
the bonus and are typically linked to key
performance indicators le.g. proht and
cash generation}.

Strategic measures reflect key areas of
impoertance identified by the Committee
n advance.

For inancial performance targets

are based on o graduated scale. The
level of payment at threshold is set
annually but will not exceed 25% of
maximum. Full awards are for substantial
outperformance against targets set.

The Committee has discration to adjust
the bonus outcome in ight of overall
underlying performance. Any adjustment
will be disclosed within the following
Annual Report on Remuneration.

Once set, performance measures and
targets cre expected to remain unaltered.
The exception would be If events were

1o occur which, in the opimion of the
Committee, made it appropriate to make
adjustments to ensure that the scheme
operates as originally intended.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
Performance Share P an Shareholding
Awards vest based on three-year n/a

performance against a challenging range
of targets, aligned with the delivery of the
Company's long-term strategy.

Financial targets {including adjusted
earnings per share growth) will determine
the vesting of a majority of awards granted
in any year.

The threshold level of vesting 1 20% of

the maximum. For performance between
threshold and maximum, awards vest on g
straight-line basis.

The Committee has discretion to scale
back {but not scale up) vesting, if the
Group's performance over the pericd 1s not
considered to reflect the progress made
against strategic business targets.

The Committee will review performance
conditions annually, specifically the range of
earnings per share targets and the metrics
and weightings applied to each element

of the PSP, Any revisions to the metrics
and/or weightings will only take place if it

is necessary because of developments in
the Company’s strategy and, where these
are material, following diclogue with the
Company's major shareholders,

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS' REMUNERATION POLICY

To provide compensation that attracts high-calibre individuals and reflects their experience and knowledge.

The Committee determings the Chairman’s fee.

The Board periodically reviews Non-Executive Directors’ fees,

Additional fees are paid to Non-Executive Directors who Chair a Board Committee and to the Senior Independent

No Directors take part in meetings where their own remuneration is discussed.

Fees are based on the time commitments involved in each role and set with reference to the fees paid In other similarly

Fees
PURPOSE
OPERATION Payable in cash.

Director ('SID).

sized UK listed companies.
MAXIMUM

reviewed periodically and may need to reflect any changes to time comrmitments or responsibilities,

The periodic review may result in an increase beyond the fees currantly payable.

Non-Executive Directors also receive reimbursement of regsonable expenses incurred in connection with Company
business and the Company may settle any tax incurred in relation to these. The fees payable for 2021 are statad on

page 86.

Any increase in Non-Executive Director fees may be above the level awarded to employees, given that they are only

Approved by the Board and signed on its behalf by:

Lesley Knox
Chair of the Remuneration Committee
8 September 2021
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DAN HARTLEY
GROUP GENERAL COUNSEL
AND COMPANY SECRETARY

DIRECTORS' REPORT

INFORMATION INCORPORATED

BY REFERENCE

The following information required
to be included in a Directors’ Report
1s provided elsewhere in the Annual
Report and is incorporated into the
Directors' Report by cross reference.

Content Location
Directors Pages
52 to 53
Dividends Page 33
Financial results Pages
30to 33

Greenhouse gas emissions  Page 43
and energy consumption

Research and development  Pages

activities 2610 2%
Finoncial risk management  Pages
3010 33
Future developments in Pages
the business 14t 29
Directors’ interests Page 87
Engagement with Pages
employees, customers, 12to 13

supphers and cthers

Post Balance Sheet events  Note 4l

EQUAL OPPORTUNITIES/EMPLOYEES
WITH DISABILITIES

Genus values diversity and aims to
make best use of everycne’s skills and
abilities. We are therefore committed
0 equal opportunities at every

stage of our employees’ careers. Our
policy on ermployees with disabilities
15 to fully and fairly consider people
with disabilities for all vacancies,

We interview and recruit people with
disgbilities and endeavour to retain
employees if they become disabled while
they work for us. Where possiole, we will
retrain employees who become disabled
and adjust their working environment,

50 they can moximise ther potential.

POLITICAL CONTRIBUTIONS
The Group does not make politcal
contributions.

SHARE CAPITAL

Note 31 gives details of the Company's
Issued shore caopital and any movements
in the 1ssued share capital dunng the year.

The Directors may only issue shares

to the extent cuthorised by the
shareholders in general meeting. The
current power to ailot shares was granted
by shareholder resolution at the 2020
AGM and a new authority is being

sought at the 2021 AGM within the limits
set out in the notice of meeting, that is
up to a nominal value of £4,384,398.40
{representing two-thirds of the Company's
current issued share capitall.

The Company has one class of ordinary
share, with the rights set out in the Articles
of Association. All issued shares are fully
paid and each share has the right to one
vote at the Company’s general meetings.
There are no specific restrnctions either
on the size of ¢ holding or on the transfer
of shares, which are both governed by
our Articles of Association and prevailing
legistation. No person has any spagcial
rights of control over the Company's
share capital.

Details of the Company’s employeae
share schemes are set out in note 30,
In connection with these schames,
the Genus plc Employee Benefit Trust
holds shares in the Company from
time to time and abstains from voting
in respect of any such shares.

For additional information on capital
risk management including financial
instruments, see note 26.

AUTHORITY TO ACQUIRE THE COMPANY'S
OWN SHARES

The Directors may only buy back

shares to the extent authorised by the
shareholders in general meeting. The
current power to buy bock shares was
granted by shareholder resclution at
the 2020 AGM and @ new authority s
being sought at the 2021 AGM within

the limits set out in the notice of
meeting, that is up to a nominal value
of £657,659.70 (representing 10% of the
Company's current issued share capital).

The Company did not buy back any
shares under the authority granted at
the 2020 AGM, from the date of that
AGM up to the date of this report.
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDINGS DIRECTORS' INDEMNITIES

Ag at 1 September 2021, we were aware I he Company has made gualifying third-

of the following material interests in the party indemnity provisions for the benefit

Company's ordinary shares: of its Directors which were made during
the year and remain in force ot the date

FLnd Manager Shareraldng % of this report.

Ballle Gifford & Co - 5416054 B28%  »oNE1ICTS OF INTEREST

Aberdeen Standard 4543075 6591% The Company has procedures for

Investments managing conflicts of interest. If a Director
oo becomes aware that they or any of their

ElGCkROCk, . 3{£‘Q3'525, _ 5’18"3 connected parties have an interest in

Vanguard Gfbup 2971698 452% an existing or proposed transaction with
- Genus, they should notify the Chairman

Capital Group 2436847 371% and the Company Secretary in writing or
Columbia 2289265 348% at the next Board meeting. Contrels are
Threadneedle ' in place to ensure that any related-party
Investments transactions involving Directors, or their

- N connected parties, are conducted on
Wellington 2163433 329% an arm’s length basis. Directors have an
Management ongoing duty to update the Board on
Devon Equity 2039151 2.10% any changes to these conflicts.
Management

REQUIREMENTS OF THE LISTING RULES
Details of the Company's long-term
incentive schemes can be found in the
Directors’ Rermnuneration Report on pages
70 10 93.

There have been no material changes
in shareholding since 30 June 2021. No
other person has notified an interest in
the Company's ordinary shares, which

i ired to be disclosed t . .
15 TeAUIred T BE CISCIOSEA 1o Us Approved by the Board and signed on its

PROVISION OF INFORMATION TO THE behalf by:

COMPANY'S AUDITOR

Each of the Directors ot the date

of approval of this Annual Report

confirms that:

> 5o for as the Director is aware, there is
no relevant audit information of which
the Company's quditor is unaware; and

> the Director has taken all the steps
that he or she ought to have taken
as g Director in order to make himself
or herself aware of any relevant audit
information and 1o establish that the
Company's auditor is aware of that
information.

Dan Hartley

Group General Counsel
and Company Secretary
8 September 2021

This confirmation is given and should
be interpreted in accordance with the
provisions of section 418 Companies
Act 2006

APPOINTMENT OF AUDITOR

Delortte LLP has expressed its willingness
to continue in office as auditor and @
resclution to reappoint it will be proposed
at the farthcoming AGM.
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DIRECTORS' RESPONSIBILITIES

The Directors are responsible for preparing the Annud! Report
and the Financial Statements in accordance with applicable law
and regulations.

Company law requires the directors to prepare financicl
statements for each financial year, Under that law the directars
are required to prepare the group financial statemeants in
accardance with international accounting standards In
caonformity with the requirements of the Companies Act 2004 and
International Financial Reporting Standards adopted pursuant to
Regulation (EC) No 1606/2002 as it applies in the European Union.
The Directors have chosen 1o prepare the Parent Company
Financial Statements in accordance with Financial Reporting
Standard 101 'Reduced Disclosure Frameawork”. Under comparny
law, the Directors must not approve the financial statements
unless they are satisfied that they give a true and fair view of the
state of affairs of the Company and of the profit orloss of the
Company for that period.

In preparing the Parent Company Financial Statements, the

Directors are required to:

> select suitable accounting policies and then apply them
consistently;

> make judgements and accounting estimates that are
reasonable and prudent;

> state whether Financial Reporting Standard 101’ Reduced
Disclosure Framework’ nas been followed, sulbject to any
moteric! deportures disclosed and explaned in the Finoncial
Statements; and

> prepare the Financial Statements on the goiNg concern basis,
unless it is inappropriate 1o presume that the Company will
continue in business.

In preparing the Group Financial Statements, International

Accounting Standard 1 requires that Directars:

> properly select and apply accounting policies;

> present nformation, including accounting policies, in a
manner that providas relevart, reliable, comparable and
understandable infarmation;

> provide additional disclosures when compliance with the
specific requirements in IFRSs are insufficient to enable users
to understand the impact of particular transactions, other
events and conditions on the entity’s inancial position and
finoncial performance: and

> make an assessment of the Company's ability to continue as
a going concern,

The Directors are responsible for keeping adeguate accounting
records that are sufficient to show and explain the Company’s
transoctions and disclose with reasonable accuracy at any time
the financial position of the Company and enable them to ensure
that the Financial Statements comply with the Companies Act
2006, They are also responsible for safeguarding the assets of
the Company and hence for toking reasonable steps for the
prevention and detection of fraud and other iregularities.

The Directors are responsible for the maintenance and

integrity of the corporote and financial iInformation included

on the Company's website. Legislation in the UK governing the
preparation and disseémination of Financial Statements may differ
from legisiation in other jurisdictions.

DIRECTORS' RESPONSIBILTY STATEMENT

We confirm thot 1o the best of our knowledge:

> the Financial Statements, prepared in accordance with the
relevant financial reporting framework, give a true and fair
view of the assets, lioblities, inoncial position ond proht or
loss of the Company and the undertakings included in the
consalidaton taken as a whole;

> the Strategic Report inciudes ¢ fair review of the development
and performance of the business and the position of the
Company and the undertakings included in the consolidation
taken as a whole, together with a descrption of the principal
nsks ond uncertainties that they face; and

> the Annual Report and Financial Statements, taken as a
whale, are fair, balanced and understandable, ang provide
the information necessary for shareholders 1o assess the
Company’s position, performance, business model
and strategy.

Approved by the Board and signed on its behalf by:

Stephen Wilson
Chiet Executive
8 Septamber 7027

Alison Henriksen
Chief Financial Officer
g September 2021
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.INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT
Te the Members of Genus plc

REPORT ON THE AUDIT OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

1. Opinion

In cur opinion:

> the financial statements of Genus plc {the ‘Parent Company’] and its subsidiaries {the “Group’) give a true and fair view of the state
of the Group's and of the Parent Company's offairs as at 30 June 2021 and of the Group's profit for the year then ended;

> the Group financial statements have been properly prepared in accordance with international accounting standards in conformity
with the requirements of the Companies Act 2006 and International Financial Reporting Standards {'IFRSs’} as adopted by the
European Union and IFRSs as issued by the International Accounting Standards Board ['IASB');

> the Parent Company financial statements have been properly prepared in accordance with United Kingdom Generally Accepted
Accounting Practice, including Financial Reporting Standard 101 ‘Reduced Disclosure Framework’; and

> the financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Companies Act 2006.

We hove audited the financial staternents which cormprise:

> the Group Income Statement;

> the Group Staterment of Comprehensive Income;

> the Group and Parent Company Statements of Changes in Equity;
> the Group and Parent Company Balance Sheets;
> the Group Staterment of Cash Flows; and
> the related notes 110 42 and Clto C20.

The finoncial reporting framework that has been applied in the preparation of the Group financial statements is applicable law and
international accounting standards in conformity with the requirements of the Companies Act 2006 and IFRSs as adopted by the
European Union and IFRSs as issued by the IASB. The financial reporting framework that has been applhed in the preparation of the
Parent Company financial statements is opplicable law and United Kingdom Accounting Standards, including FRS 101 ‘Reduced
Disclosure Framework' (United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Proctice).

2. Basis for opinien

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (UK) (ISAs (UK] and applicable law. Our responsibilities
under those standards are further described in the auditor's responsibilities for the audit of the finencial stotements section of our
report.

We are independent of the Group and the Parent Company In accordance with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit
of the financial statements in the UK, including the Financial Reporting Council's {the 'FRC's') Ethicat Standard as applied to listed
public interest entities, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements. The non-audit
services provided to the Group and Parent Company for the year are disclosed in note 8 to the financial statements. We confirm that
the nen-audit services prohibited by the FRC's Ethical Standard were not provided to the Group or the Parent Company.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for cur opinion.

3. Summary of our audit approach

Key audit matters The key audit matter that we identified in the current year was:
> Vaoluation of Biological Assets under |AS 41 'Agriculture”.

Within this repart, key audit matters are identified as follows:

Newly identified
Increased level of risk
Similar level of risk

Decreased level of risk

Materiality The materiality that we used for the Group financial statements was £3.3m which was determined on
the basis of Profit before Tax ['PBT'), excluding the impact of exceptional items and the nat |AS 41
valuation movernent on biological assets.

QOur audit scope covered 13 compoenants. Of these, eight were subject to a full scope audit, and five
were subject to specified procedures. Our testing achieved coverage of 79% of Revenue, 83% of Net
Assets and 88% of PBT, excluding the impact of exceptional items and the net 1AS 41 valuation

rmovement on biclogical assets.

Scoping

Significant changes inour  In the current year we assessed the valuation of goodwill attributed to the ABS cash-generating unit
approach {'aBS CGU to no longer be a key audit matter, reflecting the continued improvement in the ABS CGU's
financial performance.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT CONTINUED
To the Members of Genus pic

4, Conciusions relating to going concern
In quditing the financial statements, we hove concluded that the Directors’ use of the going concern basis of dccounting in the
preparation of the inanciol statements is appropriate.

Qur evaluation of the Directors’ assessment of the Group's and Parent Company's ability to continue to adopt the going concern basis
of accounting included:
> understanding the Group's process for assessing the going concarn assumption including identification and testing of the design
and implementation of relevant management review Contrals underpinning this assessment;
> understanding the relevant assumptions used in the going concearn models, including the Strategic Plan, and challenging
them by comparison to our understanding of the business, external information and evidence gathered from other audit
procedures, including:
- reading analyst reports, industry cata and other external information inspecting them for correborative and contradictory
evidence in relation to management’s assumptions;
- challenging forecasted profit by cormparison to recent histonical finanaal information; and
- challanging the key underlying data used in forecast scenarios by asgessing it for cansistency with our understanding
of the business;
> raviewing the tarms of the Group's existing Ainancing grrangements consisting of  £150m multi-currency RCE, o US$125m RCF and a
US320m ond and guarantee facility, evaluating the associated disclosure provided by management, and reperforming the debt
covenant computations over the going concerm assessment period; and
> evaluating the Group's disclosures on going concern against the requirements of IAS 1,

Based on the work we have performed, we have not identified any material uncertainties relating to events or conditions that,
individually or collectively, may cast significont doubt on the Group's ond Parent Company's ability to continue as o going concern for
a period of at least 12 months from when the financial statements are authorised for issue.

In relation to the reporting on how the Group has applied the UK Corporate Governance Code, we have nothing matenal to add ar
draw attention o in relation 1o the Directors’ statement in the financial statements about whether the Directors considered it
appropriate to adopt the going concern basis of accounting.

Our responsibilities and the responsibilities of the Directors with respect to going concem are described in the relevant sections of
this report.

5. Key audit matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgement, were of most significance in our audit of the financial
statements of the current period and include the most significant assessed nsks of matenal misstatement (whether or not due te froud)
that we identified. These matters included those which had the greatest effect on: the overall audit strategy, the allocation of
resources in the audit; and directing the efforts of the engagement team.

These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the financial statements as o whole, and in forming our opinion thereon,
and we do not provide o separate opinion on these matters.

Valuation of Biological Assets under IAS 41 ‘Agriculture’

Key audit matter The Group carries biological assets at fair value in ine with the requirements of IAS 41 Agriculture’. Discounted
description cash flow analyses are performed in determining the valuation. As at 30 June 2027, the Group held total
biological assets (excluding those recognised in inventory) of 319.5m (2020: £3499m).

Certain of the assumptions included within management’s vaiuation models are subject to estumation
uncertainty, and accordingly, require the exercise of a significant degree of judgement. In planning our audrt,
we identified the following management assumptions ds being the most significant in the determination of
the valuation of each species:

Bovine: the future growth rates of proven and genomic semen sales; the Biological Asset Value discount
foctor; and the discount rate applied.

Porcine: the percentage of pureline offspring retained, sold or slaughtered and the discount rates applied to
the forecast cash flows.

Details of the kay source of estimation uncertainty identified, the Group’s accounting policy, and the
biological assats held are disclosed in nates 4 and 16 to the financial statements. The Audit & Risk Committee
has included their agssessment of this key audit matter on page &7
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How the scope of our In responding to the identified key audit matter, we completed the following audit procedures:
audit responded to the > obtained an understanding of controfs relevant to the review and approval of the valuation of
key audit matter biclogical assets;
> assessed the appropriateness of the logic and mechanical aecuracy of the vatuation models prepared
and the methodology applied by management far compliance with the requirements of 1AS 41 ‘Agriculture’;
> made enquiries of management to understand the rationale applied In the determination of key
assumptions and ony changes year on year;
> challenged the appropriateneass of key assumptions applied within the underlying forecasts prepared by
management, with consideration given to historical forecasting accuracy, availability of third-party
benchmarking data (where appropriate);
> subsiantively tested the underlying transactional data underpinning third-party semen sales and
incpected the related contracts (Bovine);
> substantively tested the reasonableness of manogement's forecasts with regard to the percentages of
offspring to be retained, sold or slaughtered with reference 1o historic transaction data, and further,
considered the appropriateness of the forward-looking assumption applied (Porcine);
> invoived our nternal valuation specialists in our consideration as to the appropriateness of the discount
rate applied by management in determining the fair value of biclogical assets; and
> assessed the completeness and accuracy of disclosures made within the financial statements in
accordance with 1AS 41 'Agriculture’, and IAS 1 'Presentation of Financial Statements’.

Key observations We are satisfied that the valuation of biclegical assets and the related disclosures are appropriote.
6. Our application of materiality

6.1, Materiality

We define materiality as the magnitude of misstatement in the financial statements that makes it probable that the economic
decisions of a reasonably knowledgeable person would be changed or influenced. We use materiality both in planning the scope of
our audit work and in evalugting the results of our work.

Based on our professionat judgement, we determined materiality for the financicl statements as a whole as follows:

Group financial statements Parent Company financial statements
Materiality £3.3m (2020; E3.0m) £2.6m (2020: £2.5m}
Basis for determining materiality 5% {2020: 5%) of Profit before Tax excluding 1% (2020 1%) of net assets.

the impact of exceptional items {os

defined In note 7 and in the Group Income  The increase in materiality is in Ine with the
Statement} and the net IAS 41 valuation increase in Parent Company's net assets.
movement on biological assets.

The increase in matenality reflects the
improved trading performance of the

Group.

Rationale for the benchmark applied We have selected this adjusted Profit Net assets were selected as an appropriate
before Tax measure to determine benchmark for determining materiality, as
matenality so as to avoid distortion that the Parent Company acts primarily gs a

could otherwise arise from non-recurring holding company.
iterns, highly volatile items or 1AS 41 fair
value movements,
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4.2. Performance materiality
We set performance materiality at a level lower than materiality to reduce the probability that, in aggregate, uncorrected and
undetected misstatements exceead the materiality for the financial statements as a whole.

Group financiol statements Parent Company financial statements

Performance materiality 70% {2020: 70%) of Group materiality 70% (2020: 70%} of Parent Company
materiality

Basis and rationale for determining In determining performance materiality, we considered the following factors:

performance materiality > our cumulative knowledge of the Group and its internal controf environment;

> the low turnover In key management personnel;

> the high degree of centralisation in the Group's financial reporting controls and
processes; and

»  the low number of cormected and uncorrected misstatements identified in prior penods.

6.3. Error reporting threshold

We agreed with the Audit & Risk Committee that we would report to the Committee all audit differences in excess of £165k {2020
£150k), as well gs differences below that thrashold that, in our view, warranted reporting on qualitative grounds. We also report to the
Audit & Risk Committee on disclosure matters that we identified when assessing the overall presentation of the inancial statements.

7. An overview of the scope of our audit

7. Identification and scoping of components

Our audit was scoped by obtaining an understanding of the Group and its environment, including Group-wide controls, and assessing
the risks of material misstatement at the Group level

Components were selectad 1o provide an appropriate basis for undertaking audit work t© address the risks of material misstatement
identified Based on that assessment, we identified 13 components of interest for the purposes of the Group audit {2020: 12). Of these
components, aight were designated as subject to full scope audit procedures (2020: ning), with the remaining five subject to specified
procedures (2020 three). Excluding the Parent Company, cur component audits were performed using materiality between £11m and
£1.4m [2020: F1.0m and £1.4m). These components represent the principal business units ang account for 79% of the Group's Revenue
{2020: 76%), 83% of the Group's Net Assets (2020 81%) and 88% of the Group's PET, excluding the impact of exceptional items and the
net 1AS 41 vaiuation movement on biotogical assets (2020: 83%).

In the current year we performed specified procedures audit in respect of PIC Russia (2020: out of scope), reflecting its growing
contribution ta the Group. PIC Chile was reduced from a full scope audit to specified procedures, reflecting an overall decline in the
caomponent’s Contribution to the Group.

At the Group level, we also tested the consolidation process and carried out analytical procedures to confirm our conclusion that there
were no significant risks of matenal misstatement within the aggregated financial information of the remaining components not subject
to full scope audit or specified procedures.

1 Excoorgibe mpact of skcestora teTsara tre net 1AS 41 vaLgt gn moveTe~ 07 000G 66 Gssets

7.2. Working with other auditors

The Group audit team engaged component audit teams to perform the audit procedures as set out in section 7.1. The Group cudit
team held regular communication with the component auditors in slanning for, and throughout, the year-end audit process. Oversight
of the component auditors Included attending internal planning and status meetings, attending close meetings held with local
management, and reviewing relevant qudit documentation,

inlight of the travel restrictions and widespread lockdowns resulting from the COVID-19 pandemic we wera not anle to complete our
normal programme of planned visits. In response to these restrictions we enhanced our remote oversight through a number of measures,
05 appropriate to each companent, including more frequent dialogue and use of videe conferencing and screen-sharing facilities,
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8. Other information

The other information comprises the information included in the Annual Report other than the financial statements and our auditor's
report thereon namely the Strategic Report, Corporate Governance Sections and the Additional Information sections. The Diractors
are responsiole for the other information contained within the Annual Report.

Qur opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and, except to the extent otherwise explicitly stated in
our report, we do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

Qur responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with
the financiat staterments or our knowledge obtained in the course of the qudit, or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

If we identify such material Inconsistencies or apparent material misstatements, we are required to determine whether this givas rise 10
a material misstatarment in the fnunciul staetements themselves, If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that thereis a
matarial misstatemeant of this other information, we are required te report that fact.

We have nothing to report in this regard.

9. Responsibilities of Directors

As explained more fully in the Directors’ responsioilities statement, the Directors are responsible for the preparation of the financial
staternents and for being satisfied that they give a true and fair view, and for such internal control as the Directors determine is
necessary to enable the preparation of financicl statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the inancial statements, the Directors are responsible for assessing the Group's and the Parent Company's ability

to continue as a going concern, disclosing os applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern bosis of
accounting unless the Directars either intend to liquidate the Group or the Parent Company or to cease operations, or have no realistic
alternative but to do so.

10. Auditor's responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements

Qur ohjectives are to obtain reasonable cssurance about whether the financicl statements as a whole are free from matertal
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’'s report that includes cur oginion. Reasonable assurance is

@ high lavel of assurance but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with 1SAs (UK) will always detect a material
misstatement when it exists. Misstaternents can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate,
they could reasanably be expected 1o influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

A further description of our responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements is located on the FRC's website at:
www. frc org.uk/auditorsresponsibilities. This description forms part of our auditor's report.

11. Extent to which the gudit was considered capable of detecting irregularities, including fraud

Irregularities, including fraud, arg instances of non-compliance with laws and regulations. We design procedures in line with our
responsibilities, cutlined above, to detect material misstatements in respect of iregularities, including fraud. The extent to which
our procedures are capakle of detecting irregularities, including fraud is detailed below.

1.1, identifying and dassessing potential risks related to irregularities

In identifying and assessing risks of material misstatement in respect of irregularities, including fraud and non-compitance with faws

and regulations, we considered the following:

> the nature of the industry and sector, control environment and business performance including the design of the Group's
remuneration policies, key drivers for Directors’ remuneration, bonus levels and performance targets;

> results of our enquines of management, internal audit, and the Audit & Risk Committee about their own identification and
assessment of the risks of irregularities;

> any matters we identified having obtained and reviewed the Group's documentation of their policies and procedures relating tor
- identifying, evaluating and complying with laws and regulations and whether they were aware of any instances of

non-compliance;

- detecting and responding to the risks of fraud and whether they have knowledge of any actual, suspected or alleged fraud,
- the internal controls established to mitigate risks of fraud or non-compliance with laws and regulations;

> the matters discussed among the cudit engagement team including significant component audit teams and involving relevant
internal specialists, including tax, valuations, pensions, and |T specialists regarding how and where fraud might occur in the financial
statements and any potential indicators of fraud.

As a result of these procedures, we considered the opportunities and incentives that may exist within the organisation for fraud. In
common with all audits under ISAs [UK), we are required to perform specific procedures to respond to the risk of mancgement override.

We also obtoined an understanding of the legal and regulatory framewaorks that the Group operates in, focusing on provisions of those
laws and regulations that had a direct effect on the determination of material amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. The
key laws and regulations we considered in this context included the UK Companies Act, Listing Rules, pensions legislation, and global
tax legislation.

in addition, we considered provisions of other laws and regulations that do not have a direct effect on the financial statements but
compliance with which may be fundamentat to the Group's ability 1o operate or to avoid a material penalty, These included the
Group's compliance with health and safety regulations and environmental regutations,
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11.2. Audit response to risks identified
As a result of performing the above, we did not identify any key audit matters related to the potential risk of froud or non-compliance
with laws and regulations.

Our praocedures to respond to risks identified included the following:

> reviewing the financial statement disclosures and testing to supporting documentation to assess compliance with provisions of
relevant laws and regulctions described as having a direct effect on the financial staterments;

> enquiring of management, the Audit & Risk Committee, and in-house and extemal legal counsel concerming actual and potential
litigation and claims;

» performing analytica! procedures to identify any unusual or unexpected relationships that may indicate nsks of material
misstatement dus to fraud;

> reading minutes of meetings of those charged with governance, and reviewing internal audit reports; and

> in addressing the risk of fraud through management override of controls, our procedures included:

- testing the appropriateness of journal entries and other adjustments which display potential fraudulent risk factors; in performing
this work, we specifically applied a broader range of nisk factors to manual adjustments to revenue in order to INcrease the
number of selected transactions from revenue;

- assessing whether the judgements made in making accounting estimates are indicative of a potential bias including, i
particular, judgements over forecasting, pensions, revenue recognition, uncertain tax positions and discount rates applied by the
business; and

- evaluating the business rationale of any significant transactions that are unusual or ocutside the normal course of business.

We also communicated retevant identified laws and regulations ond potential froud risks to oll engogement team members including
internal specialists and significant component audit teams and remained alert to any indications of fraud or non-compliance with laws
and regulations thraughout the audit.

REPORT ON OTHER LEGAL AND REGULATORY REQUIREMENTS

12. Opinions on other matters prescribed by the Companies Act 2006

In our opinion the part of the Directors’ Remuneration Report to be audited has been properly prepared in accordance with the
Companies Act 2006,

In our opinion, based on the work undertaken in the caurse of the audit:

> the information given in the Strategic Report and the Directors’ Report for the financial year for which the financiat statements are
prepared is consistent with the financial statements; and

> the Strategic Report and the Directors’ Report have been prepared in accordance with applicable legal requirements.

In the light of the knowledge and understanding of the Group and the Parent Company and their environment obtained in the course
of the audit, we have not identified any material misstatements in the Strategic Report or the Directors’ Report.

13. Corporate Governance Statement

The Listing Rules require us 1o review the Directors’ staternent in relation to going concern, longar-term viability and that part of the
Corporate Governance Statement relating to the Group's compliance with the provisions of the UK Corporate Governance Code
specified for our review.

Based on the work undertaken as part of our audit, we have concluded that each of the following elements of the Corporate

Governance Statement is materially consistent with the financial statements and our knowledge obtained during the qudit:

> the Directors’ statement with regards to the appropriateness of adopting the going concern basis of accounting and any matenal
uncertainties dentified set out on page 49;

> the Directors’ explanation as 1o its assessment of the Group's prospects, the period this assessment covers and why the period is
approprigte set out on page 49:

> the Directors' statement on fair, balanced and understandable set out on poge 96

> the Board's confirmation that it ras carried out o robust assessment of the emerging and principal risks set cut on pages 4410 48;
the section of the Annual Report that describes the review of effectiveness of risk management and internal control systems set out
on pages 67 to 68; and

> the section describing the work of the Audit & Risk Committes set out on page 65 10 9.
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14. Matters on which we are required to report by exception

14.1. Adequacy of explanations received and accounting records

Under the Companies Act 2006 we are required to report to you if, in our opinicn:

> we have not received all the information and explanations we require for our audit; or

> gdeguate accounting records have not been kept by the Parent Company, or returns odequate for our audit have not been
received from branches not visited by us; or

> the Parent Company financial statements are not in agreement with the accounting records and returns.

We have nothing to report in respect of these matters.

14.2. Directors’ remuneration

Under the Companies Act 2006 we are also required to report if in our opinion certain disclosures of Directors’ remuneration have
not beer made or the part of the Lirectors’ Remuneration Report to be auditad is not in agreement with the accounting records
and returns.

We have nothing to report in respect of these matters.

15, Other matters which we are required to address

151, Auditor tenure

Following the recommendation of the Audit & Risk Committes, we were appointed by the Board of Directors on 8 June 2006 to
audit the financial statements for the year ending 30 June 2006 and subsequent financial periods. The period of total uninterrupted
engagement including previous renewals and reappointments of the firm 1s 16 years, covering the years ended 30 June 2006 to

30 June 2021.

15.2. Consistency of the audit report with the additional report to the Audit & Risk Committee
Cur qudit opinion is consistent with the additional report to the Audit & Risk Committee we are required to provide in accordance with
ISAs (UK].

16. Use of our repert

This report is made solely to the Company’s members, as g body, in accordance with Chapter 3 of Part 16 of the Companies Act 2006.
Qur audit work has been undertaken so that we might state to the Company's members those matters we are reguired to state to
them in an auditor's report and for no cther purpose. To the fullest extent permitted by law, we do not accept or assume responsibility
to anyone other than the Company and the Company’'s members as a body, for our audit work, for this report, or for the opinions we
have formed.

Mark Tolley FCA (Senior statutory auditor)
For and on behalf of Deloitte LLP
Statutory Auditor

Reading, United Kingdom

8 September 2021
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GROUP INCOME STATEMENT
For the year ended 30 June 2021

lrestated!
2021 2620
Note £m £m
REVENUE 56 574.3 5514
Adjusted operating profit 5 769 601
Adjusting items:
— Net IAS 4] voluotion movement on biclogicol ossets 16 (10.8) 158
- Amortisation of ccquired intangble assets 15 (7.4) (8.5)
- Share-based payment expense 30 {7.7) 58
(25.9 15
- Exceptional items: 7
- Litigation (2.5) (16.4)
- Acquisition and integration (0.3} 21
- Persion related {2.3) -~
- Other 1.8 7
Total exceptional items (3.3) (152
Total adjusting items 29.2) (177)
OPERATING PROFIT g 47.7 424
Share of post-tax profit of jont ventures and associates retained 18 131 8%
Finance costs 10 (5.4} (53
Finance income 10 0.4 0.3
PROFIT BEFORE TAX 55.8 463
Taxation 12 2.0 {106}
PROFIT FOR THE YEAR 4L6.8 357
ATTRIBUTABLE TO:
Owners of the Company 47.3 353
Non-controlling interest [0.5) 04
46.8 357
EARNINGS PER SHARE
Basic earmings per shore 12 72.6p S54.4p
Diluted earnings per share 12 T20p 540p
[restatac)
2021 2020
£m £m
Alternative Performance Measures
Adjusted operating profit 769 40.1
Adjusted operating proit attributable to non-controling interest {fo.1} {06}
Pre-tax share of profits from joint ventures and associates excluding net IAS 41 valugtion movement 130 113
Gene editing costs 7.8 52
Adjusted operating profit including joint ventures and associates, excluding gene editing costs 974 760
Gene editing costs (7.6 8.2
Adjusted operating profit including joint ventures and associotes 89.8 708
Net finance costs 10 (s.0) (50)
Adjusted profit before tax 84.8 658
Adjusted earnings per share
Basic adjusted earnings per share 12 1009p 7iin
Diluted adjusted earnings per share 12 100.1p 7670

Adjusted results are the Alternative Performance Measures APMs) used by the Board to menitor underlying performance at a Group
and operating segment level, which are appled consistently threughout. These APMs should be considered in addition to statutory
measures, and Not as o substitute far or as superior to them. For more information on APMs, see APM Glossary.

1 Seercre 2fgraeta s of tre of ar senca restatement
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GROUP STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
For the year ended 30 June 2021
restated)’ (restoted)
2021 2021 2020 2020
Note £m £m £m Erm
PROFIT FOR THE YEAR 46.8 357
{tems that may be reclassified subsequently to profit or loss
Fareign exchange translation differences {65.2) (4.9)
Fair value movement on net investment hedges 26 0.4 (C.1)
Fair value movement on cash flow hedges 26 02 [0.4)
Tax relating to components of sther comprehensive expense 11 76 (1.4
(37.0) (.8}
Items that may not be reclassified subsequently to profit or loss
Actuarial gain/{loss} on retirement benefit obligations 29 223 (16.6)
Movement on pension asset recognition restriction 29 {0.1) 104
{Recognitionl/release of additional pensian liabil ity 29 (199 47
Gain on equity Instrurnents measured at fair value 67 -
Tax relating to compoenents of other comprehensive income/(expense) 11 (2.0) 08
70 07
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE EXPENSE FOR THE YEAR (30.0 {(75)
TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME FOR THE YEAR 16.8 282
ATTRIBUTABLE TO:
Owners of the Company 171 27%
Non-controlling interest ©.3) 03
168 282

1 See ~ote 2 for detaills of the pror pernod restatement
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GROUP STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
For the year ended 30 June 2021

Culled
up Share Trans- HNon-
share premium Own lation Hedging Retained controlling Total
capital  account shares  reserve reserve  earnings Total interest equity
Note £m Em £m £m £m £m Em £m £m
BALANCE AT 30 JUNE 201% {as previously reported) 65 1790 01) 358 02 2670 4884 (13) 4871
Prior period restatement 2 - - - - - 8.1} 8.1} - 8.1
BALANCE AT 30 JUNE 2019 (restated) 65 1790 ©1) 358 02 2589 4803 {1.3) 4790
Foreign exchange translation differences, net - - - (6.4) - - (6.4 01) (©.5)
of tax
Fair value movement on net investment hedges, - - - 01 - - a1 - cl
net of tax
Fair value movemeant on cash flow hedges, net - - - - (04} - {0.4) - [0.4)
of tax
Actuarial gain on retirement benefit cbligations, - - - - - {14 (104 - (104
net of tax
Movement on pension asset recognition restriction, - - - - - 468 6.8 - 48
net of tax
Release of additional pension lickility, net of tax - - - - - 29 29 - 29
Cther comprehensive (expense)/income for the year - - - .3 [04) (07) (7.4) 0.1 {75)
Profit for the year - - - - - 353 353 04 357
Total comprehensive (expense)/income for the year - - - 6.3 0D4) 344 279 03 282
Recognition of share-based payments, net of tax - - - - - 55 55 - 55
Dividends 13 - - - - - {183 (183} - (183
Issue of ordinary shares - 01 - - - - 01 - ol
BALANCE AT 30 JUNE 2020 (restated) 65 1791 on 295 {02y 2807 4955 {10} 4945
Foreign exchange translation differences, net of - - - {377 - - {37.7) 0.2 (375
tax
Fair value movement on net investment hedges, - - - 03 - - 0.3 - 03
net of tax
Far value movernent on cash flow hedges, net - - - Q.2 - 0.2 - 0.2
of tax
Gain on equity instruments measured at fair vatue, - - - - - 5.0 50 - 5.0
net of tax
Actuarial gains on retirement benefit obligations, - - - - - 198 198 - 198
net of tax
Movement on perision asset recagnition restriction, - - - - - (0.1} {0.1) - (0.1}
net of tax
Recognition of additional pension liability, net - - - - - (17.7) (177) - 177
of tax
Other comprehensive lexpense)/income for the year - - - {374) 0.2 70 (30.2) 0.2 {300}
Profit/{loss} for the year - - - - - 473 473 (0.5) 4568
Total comprehensive (expense)/income for the year - - - {374} 0.2 54.3 17.1 (0.3) 168
Recogniticn of share-based payments, net of tax - - - - - L9 49 - 49
Dividends 13 - - - - - (1950 (195 - {195)
Adjustment arising from change in non-contralling - - - - - - - (02) (0.2)
interest and written put option
Issue of ordinary shares 01 - - - - - 0.1 - 0.1
BALANCE AT 30 JUNE 2021 686 1791 0.1) 79) - 3204 4981 {1.5) 496.6
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*‘GROUP BALANCE SHEET
As at 30 June 2021
{frestated) frestated)’
2021 2020 2019
Note £m £m Em
ASSETS
Goodwill 14 101.5 1056 1063
Other intangible assets 15 56.3 629 720
Biological assets 16 2799 3101 2871
Property, plant and equipment 17 123.0 117¢ 860
Imterests in joint ventures and associates 18 34.1 227 236
Other investments 19 14.7 &7 74
Derivative inancial assets 26 - - 04
Other receivables 21 18 18 -
Deferred tax assets 11 8.0 37 35
TOTAL NON-CURRENT ASSETS 6193 4316 5863
Inventories 20 370 374 360
Biclogical assets 16 396 28 401
Trade and cther receivables 21 1062 1008 P80
Cash and cash eguivalents 22 46.0 41.3 30.5
Income tax receivaile 2.4 31 33
Derivative financiai assets 26 0.1 12 11
Asset held for sale 0.2 Q2 Q2
TOTAL CURRENT ASSETS 2317 2238 2092
TOTAL ASSETS 851.0 855.4 7955
LIABILITIES
Trade and other payables 23 (110.3) (@5.0) 877
Interest-bearing loans and borrowings 27 {139) (@2) 21}
Provisions 25 (1.3) (4.0) (3.1
Deferred consideration 38 (1.4) {75 2.0
Obligations under leases 28 {2.0) (10.0) (2.2}
Tax liabilities {6.4) (40} “.1)
Derivative financial liablilities 26 - 05} {1LO)
TOTAL CURRENT LIABILITIES (142.5) {1302} {104.2)
Trade and other payables 23 (1.4) (3.3} -
Interest-bearing loans and borrowings 27 (109.4) {1036} (1019
Retirement benefit obligations 29 (11.1) (181} {24.2)
Provisions 25 (11.1) (118} 57
Deferred consideration 33 (0.5) (1.2} (4.2
Deferred tax liabilities i1 (53.0) {65.5} {66.7)
Derivative financial iabilities 28 (6.1) &1 {(57)
Obligations under leases 28 (19.3) {211} (39
TOTAL NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES {211.9) (230.7) (212.3)
TOTAL LIABILITIES {354.4) (3609} (3165)
NET ASSETS 496.6 4945 4790
EQUITY
Called up share capital 31 6.6 65 45
Share premium account 179.1 17e1 1790
Own shares 31 {0.1) on 0.1
Translation reserve 31 {7.9) 295 358
Hedging reserve 31 - 0.2) 0.2
Retained earmings 320.4 2807 2589
EQUITY ATTRIBUTABLE TO OWNERS OF THE COMPANY 498.1 4955 4803
Non-controlling interest 39 3.6 [} 4.2
Put option over non-controlling interest 39 (5.1) (5.6 (5.5)
TOTAL NON-CONTROLLING INTEREST (1.5) (1.0} (1.3
TOTAL EQUITY 4966 4945 4750

1 See rote 2 for getadls of the prior penaod restatement.
The Financial Stotements were approved and autharised for issue by the Board of Directors on 8 September 2021

Signed on behalf of the Board of Directors

Stephen Wilson Alison Henriksen
Chief Executive Chief Financial Gfficer
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GROUP STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
For the year ended 30 June 2021

NET CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

CASH FLOWS FRCOM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Dividends received from joint ventures and associates
Joint venture and associate loan (payment)/repayment
Uisposal of joint venturs

Acquisition of joint venture and associate

Acguisition of trade and assets

Acguisition of Investments

Payment of deferred consideration

Purchase of property, plant and equipment

Purchase of intangible assets

Proceeads from sale of property, plant and equipmeant
NET CASH GUTFLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Drawdown of barrowings

Repayment of borrowings

Payment of lease liobilities

Equity dividends paid

Dividend to non-contralling interast

Debt issue costs

Issue of ordinary shares

NET CASH OUTELOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
NET INCREASE IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

Cash and cash equivalents at start of the year
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents
Effect of exchange rate fluctuations on cash and cosh equivalents

TOTAL CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT 30 JUNE

Note

32

18
18

18
42

a8

2021
£€m

675

4.1
{0.4)
(2.4}
6.9
{0.9)
6.7)

(28.7}
5.1
0.3

T wen

{restateat

2020
£m

50.1

25
12
38

2.2)

(17
(24.6)

51

11

(250)

800
(73.8)
(11.1}
(183

0.1

(232}
120

305

120
(1.2

413

T 3eencte 2 for detars of tne gror penod restotemrent
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» NOTES TO THE GROUP FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the year ended 30 June 2021

1. REPORTING ENTITY

Genus plc (the ‘Company'} is a public company imited by shares and incorperated in England, United Kingdom under the Companies
Act 2006. Its company number is 02972325 and its registered office is Matrix House, Basing View, Basingstoke, Hampshire RG21 402, The
Group Financial Statements for the year ended 30 June 2021 comprise the Company and its subsidiaries {together referred to as the
'Group’). We have used the equity method to account for the Group's interests in joint ventures and associates. Cur business model on
pages 10 to 11 explains the Group's eperations and principal activities.

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION

We have prepared the Group Financial Stotements in accardance with international accounting standards in conformity with the
reguirements of the Companias Act 2006 and International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs’) adopted pursuant ta Regulation
{EC) No 1606/2002 as it applies in the European Union. The Group Financial Statements have also been prepared in accordance with
IFRSs as issued by the |ASB,

Unless otherwise stated, we have consistently applied the significant accounting policies set out below to all penods presented in
these Group Financial Statements,

The going concern statement has been included in the Strategic Report on page 49 and forms part of these statements.

Functional and presentational currency
We present the Group Financial Statements in Sterling, which is the Company's functional and presentational currency. All financiai
information presented in Sterling has been rounded to the nearest £0.1m.

Use of estimates

Preparing Ainancial statements reguires management to make judgements, estimates and assumptions that affect our application of
accounting policies and our reported assets, liabilities, income and expenses. Our actual results may differ from these estimates. We
review our estimates and underlying assumptions on an ongoing basis, and recognise revisions to accounting estimates in the perod in
which we revise the estimate and in any future periods affected.

Note & provides information about significant areas of estimation uncertainty and the cntical judgements we made in applying
accounting policies that have the most effect on the amounts recognised in the Financicl Statements.

Alternative Performance Measures ('APMs’)
In reporting financial information, the Group presents APMs, which are not defined or specified under the requirements of IFRS and
which are not considarad to bhe a substitute for, or superior to, IFRS measures.

The Group believes that these APMs provide stakeholders with additional helpful information on the performance of the business. The
APMs are consistent with how we plan our business performance and report on it in our internal management reporting to the Board
and GELT. Some of these measures are alse used for the purpose of setting remuneration targets.

For a full list of all APMs please see the Alternative Performance Measures section of the Annual Report on pages 180 o 187.

Change in accounting policy — Software as a service (‘Soa$’) arrangements

The Company has changed its accounting policy related to the capitalisation of certain software costs; this change follows the IFRIC
Interpretation Committae’'s agenda decision published in April 2021 and relates to the capitalisation of costs of configuring or
customising application software under ‘Software as a Service’ ['SaaS') arrangements.

The Group's accounting policy has historically been to capitalise costs directly attributable to the configuration and customisation of
Saa$ arrangements as intangible assets in the Balance Sheet, irespective of whether the services were performed by the Saa$S
supplier or third party. Following the adoption of the above IFRIC agenda guidance, current SaeS arrangements were identified and
assessed to determine If the Group has control of the software. For those arrangements where we do not have control of the
developed software, to the extent that the services were performed by third parties, the Group derecognised the intangible asset
previously capitalised. Amounts paid to the supplier in advance of the commencaement of the service period, including for configuration
or customisation, are treated as @ prepayment,

This change in accounting policy led to adjustments amounting to a £13.3m and £8.1m reducticn in the intangible assets recognised in
the 30 June 2020 and 30 June 2079 Balance Sheets respectively, and to a £5.2m and E59m increase in operating expenses within
administrative expenses, in those respective years.

Accordingly, the prior period Balance Sheets at 30 June 2020 and 30 June 2019 have been restated in accordance with [AS 8, and, in
accordance with 1AS 1{revised}, a Balance Sheet at 30 June 2019 is also presented, together with related notes. The tables on the
following page show the impact of the change in accounting policy on previously reparted financial results.
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NOTES TO THE GROUP FINANCIAL STATEMENTS CONTINUED

For the year ended 30 June 2021

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION CONTINUED
Impact on the Group Balance Sheet

[As prev ously
reported) Imeoact of restated)
2020 restaterent 2020
£m Em £
Intangible assets 76.2 [13.3) 629
Qther net assets/lhabilities) 4316 - 4316
Net assets 5078 {133 4045
Retained earnings 2940 {133} 2807
Other equity balances 2138 - 2138
Net equity 5078 (13.3) 4945

In segment assets and non-current assets (excluding deferred taxation and financial instruments}, the central asset value within the UK
is reduced by £13.3m. Additions to central non-current assets reduced by £5.7m and the central amartisation charge reduced by £0.5m

Impact on Group’s Income Statement and Statement of Comprehensive Income

{As praviously

reported} IMmpact of frestated]

2020 restaterent 2620

£m ET £m

Adjusted segment operating profit 809 - 809

Central {154 (5.2} (20.8)

Adjusted operating profit 4653 {5.2) &0.1

Operaoting profit 476 (52) 424

Profit before tax 515 (5.2} 463

Profit for the year 409 (5.2) 357

Attributable to awners of the Company 405 5.2) 353

Non-controlling interest 0.4 - 04

Total comprehensive income for the year 334 (5.2) 282
impact on basic and diluted earnings per share and adjusted earnings per share

{As previously

reporred} Impact of frestated)

2020 restatement 2020

Peoce Pence Pence

Basic EPS 624 8.0 544

Diluted EPS 519 7} 540

Basic adjusted EPS 854 B.1) 773

Diluted adjusted EPS 847 80 787

Impact on statutory tax rate and effective tax rate on adjusted profit
(As prev ously

repaortad! Impact of [restated)

200 restatement 7020

£m Erm £

Profit before tax excluding share of income tax of equity accounted investées 538 {52 486

Total income tax expense (129 - {129

Profit after tax 409 (5.2 57

Statutary tax rate (%) 240 24 2656

Adjusted profit before tax 710 (5.2 858

Adjusted tax charge (154} - {155}

Adusted preht after tax 554 (5.2} 50.2

Efective tax rote on adjusted profit (%) 220 L7 237
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2. BASIS OF PREPARATION CONTINUED

Impact on Group's Statement of Cash Flows
{As previcus'y

reported; Irpact of Irestareal

2020 restatement 2020

£r £m £m

Net cash from operating activities 658 (5.7) 601
Net cash outflow from investing activities (30.7) 57 (250)
Net cash outflow frem financing activities (231 - (23.1)
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents 120 - 120

No impact on the overall increase in cash and cash equivalent for the year.

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES APPLIED IN THE CURRENT REPORTING PERIOD THAT RELATE TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AS A WHOLE

This section sets out our significant accounting policies that relate to the Financial Statements os a whole. Where an accounting policy
is generally applicable to a specific note to the Financial Statements, the policy has been described in that note. We have also
detailed below the new accounting pronouncements that we will adopt in future years and our current view of the iImpact they will
have on our financial reporting.

Accounting convention

We prepare the Group Financiaf Statements under the historical cost convention, except for our biclogical assets, share-based
payment expense, pension liabilities and derivative financial instruments. In accordance with IFRS, we measure biological assets at fair
value less point-of-sale costs, which represent distribution costs and selling expenses, and share-based payment expense, pension
liabilities, and certain financial instruments at fair value.

Basis of consolidation

Subsidiaries are entities the Group controls. We have control of an entity when we are exposed, or have the rights, to variable returns
from the entity and have the ability to affect the returns through power over the entity. In assessing control, we take into account
potential voting fights that we can currently exercise or convert. We fully consolidate the results of subsidiaries we acquire from the
daote that control transfers to the Group. We cease consolidating the results of subsidiaries that we cease to control from the date that
control passes.

In preparing the Group Financial Statements, we eliminate intra-Group balances and any unrealised income and expenses arnsing
from intra-Group transactions. Unrealised gains arising from transactions with eguity occounted investees are eliminated aggainst
the investment, to the extent of our interest in the investes. We eliminate unrealised losses in the same way as unreclised gains, but
only to the extent that there is ne evidence of impairment.

Foreign currencies

We record foreign currency transactions in the relevant Groug entity’s functional currency, at the exchange rate on the transaction date.
At each balance sheet date, we retransiate monetary assets and liakilities denominated in foreign currencies at the exchange rate on
the balance sheet date. We recognise the foreign exchange differences arising on retransiation in the Group Income Staterment.

When non-monetary assets and liabilities are measured at historical cost in a foreign currency, we transicte them at the exchange rate
at the transaction date. When non-monetary assets and liabilities are stated at fair valug in a fareign currency, we translate them at
the prevailing exchange rate on the date we determined the fair value. We recognise the foreign exchange differences arising on
retranslation in the Group Statement of Comprehensive tncome.

The assets and liabilities of foreign operations, including goodwill arising on consclidation, are translated into Sterling at the prevailing
exchange rates at the balance sheet date. The resulting exchange differences are booked into foreign currency translation reserves
and reported in the Group Statement of Comprehensive income. We translate these operations’ revenues and expeanses using an
average rate for the period.

When exchange differences arise from the fair value movement of reloted effective hedges, we take them to the foreign currency
translation reserve. When we dispose of a foreign operation, we release these differences to the Incorme Statement. Exchange
movements on inter-Company loans considered to be parmanent equity are recognised in the Group Statement of Comprehensive
Income, together with any related taxation.

The principal exchange rates were as follows:

Average Closing
2021 2020 2019 2021 2020 2019
Us Dollar/E 1.36 126 129 1.38 124 127
Euro/E 1.13 114 113 1.17 110 112
Brazilion Real/E 733 574 499 6.87 &77 489
Mexican Peso/f 28.15 2608 2504 27.57 28.52 24.40
Chinese Yuan/E 8.94 882 883 893 875 872

Russian Rouble/f 102.04 8517 8493 101.10 8819 8030
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NOTES TO THE GROUP FINANCIAL STATEMENTS CONTINUED
For the year ended 30 June 2027

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES APPLIED IN THE CURRENT REPORTING PERIOD THAT RELATE TC THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AS A WHOLE CONTINUED

Research and development

We undertake research with the aim of gaining new scientiic or technical knowledge, and recognise this expenditure in the Income
Statement as it is incurred.

The Group constantly monitors its research activities. When research projects achiave techmical feasihility and are commercially viable,
our policy is to capitalise further develpprment costs within intangible assets, in accordance with 1AS 38.

Cur development activities include developing and maintaining our porcing genetic nucleus herd and our bovine pre-stud herds, We
do not capitalise development expenditure separately for these herds, as therr far value is included in the fair value of the Group's
kLiclogical assets, in accordance with 1AS 41

We disciose the costs of research and development activities, as required by 1AS 38 (see note 8).

Qther income and deferred income

During the yeor ended 30 June 2019, the Compony entered into o strotegic colloboration with Beljing Capital Agnbusiness {BCA under
which BCA will establish and fund a collaboration specific entity { BCA Future Bio-Tech'} which will use Genus's intellectual property and
know-how to pursue the PRRSv resistance regulatory and development work in China. Genus will receive consideration after meeting
certain milestones in the development programime,

Each milestone is considered to be either a separate perfermance obligation, or a set of groups of separate performance cbligations,
under this agreement and are unbundled in the contractual arrangement as if they are distinct from one another.

We assess each separate performance obligation relating to the milestone payments, and upon compietion of those performance
obligations recognise the fair value of ameounts earned in other income. Some performance obhgations, such as the transfer of
krnow-how, are recognised at a point in time whereas others, such as the provision of technical services, are recognised over tme. We
recognise any received but unearmed consideration as deferred income

We will apply the same accounting policy to any other comparable agreements.

Reversals of impairment
We reverse an impairment loss in respect of assets other than goodwill when the impairment loss may no longer exist and we have
changed the estimates we used to determine the recoverable amount.

We only reverse an impairment loss to the extent that the asset's carrying amount dees not exceed the carrying amount it wauld have
had, net of depreciation or amortisation, if we had not recognised the impairment loss.

New standards aond interpretations

In the current period, the Group has applied a number of amendments 1o IFRS issued by the nternational Accounting Standards Board
that are mandatorily effective for an accounting period that begins after 1 January 2020 and have been implemented with effect from
T July 2020. Thesa are:

> Amendments to References to the Conceptugl Framework in IFRS:

> Amendments to 1AS Tand IAS 8 - 'Definition of Material”

> Amendments 10 IFRS @, |AS 39 and IFRS 7 - 'Interest Rate Benchmark Reformy';

= Amendments 1o IFRS 3 - 'Definition of a Business’ and

> Amendment to IFRS 16 ~ 'COVID-19-Reloted Rent Concessions’

Their addition has not had any matarial (mpact on the disclosures, or amaunts repartad in the Group Financial Statements,

In Apnl 2021, the IFRIC Interpretation Committee published guidance in relation to the capitalisation of costs of configuring or
customising application software under 'Software as a Service' 'Saa%’) arrangemaeants. See note 2 for the full impact of the new
Interpretation,

New standards and interpretations not yet adopted

At the dote of the Annual Report, the following standards and interpretations which have not been applied in the report were in issue
but not yet effective (and in some cases had not yet been adopted by the UK). The Group will continue to assess the impact of these
amendments prior 1o their adoption These are:

Arnendments 1o IFRS @, 1AS 39 IFRS 7, IFRS 4 and IFRS ¥ - 'Interest Rote Benchmark Reforrm — Phase 27

Amendrnent to IFRS 16 — 'COVID-19-Related Rent Concessions beyond 30 June 2021

Amendments to 1AS 1~ 'Classification of Liabilities as Current or Non-Current’;

Amendments to 1AS 16 —- ‘Property, Plant and Equipment — Proceeds before Intended Use”,

Annual improvements 2018-2020 Cycle;

Amendments to IAS 37 - 'Onerous Contracts — Cost of Fulfilling o Controct’,

Amendments to 1AS 1 and IFRS Practice Statement 2 - 'Disclosure of Accounting Policies”

Amendments to 1AS 12 — 'Deferred Tox related to Assets gnd Liabiities arising from g Single Transaction’; and

Amendrments ta 1AS 8 - 'Definition of Accounting Estimates’.

V VYV Vv VY Yy
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4, CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY
The preparation of Consclidated Financial Statements requires the Group to make estimates and judgements that affect the
application of policies and reported amounts.

N3

Critical judgements represent key decisions made by management in the application of the Group's accounting policies, where a
significant risk of materially different cutcomeas exists due to management assumptions or sources of estimation uncertainty. Estimates
and judgements are continually evaluated and are based on historcal experience and other foctors, including expectations of future
events that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances. Actual results may differ from these estimates.

The estimates which have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amount of agsets and liabilities within the
next 12 months are discussed below.

Critical accounting judgement<

Adjusting items

The Directers believe that the adjusted profit and earnings per share measures provide additionalinformation to shareholders on
the performance of the business. These measures are consistent with how business performance is measured internally by the Board

and GELT.

The profit before tax and adjusting items measures are not recognised profit measures under IFRS and may not be directly comparable
with adjusted profit measures used by other companies. The classification of adjusting items requires significant judgement, after
considering the nature and intentions of ¢ transaction. The Group's definitions of adjusting iterns are outlined within the Group
accounting policies and have been applied consistently year-on-year.

Key sources of estimation uncertainty
Determination of the fair value of biclogical assets (note 16}
Determining the fair values of our bovine and porcine biological assets requires the application of o number of estimates

and assumptions.

Below 1s a list of these estimates and assumptions, showing whether we consider them to be observable or unobservable inputs to the
fair value determination. In addition, we identify those inputs that are Teadily obtainable’ transactional data or ‘'open market prices’.
Sensitivities of the estimates and assumptions given below are disclosed in note 16

Estimates and assumptisns Observable/Unobservoble Source
Bovine Long-term dairy volume growth rate Unocbservable n/a
Short-term dairy volume growth rate Unobservable n/a
Value at point of productiont Unobservable n/a
Unit prices Chbservable Readily obtainable
Animals’ usefut lifespan Chservable Readily obtainable
Percentage of new dairy bulls to be produced internally ecch year Unobservable n/a
Age profile of bullg’ Unobservable n/a
Risk-adjusted discount rate’ Unobservable n/a
Porcine

{non pure line herds)

Porcine
{pure line herds)

Animals' useful lifespan

The proportion of animals that go to sicughter
The mix of boars and gilts

Risk-adjusted discount rate

Number of future generations attributable to the current herds
Fair value prices achieved on sales

Animals’ expected useful lifespan and productivity

The propertion of animals that go to breeding sales!
Risk-adjusted discount rate'

Chbservable
Chservable
Chservable
Unobservable

Chservable
Chservable
Chservable
Observable
Unobservable

Recdily obtainable
Recdily obtainable
Readly obtainable
n/a

Readily obtainable
Cpen market prices
Readily chtainable
Reodily obtainable
n/a

1 Key sources of estimatior uncerta rty
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NOTES TO THE GROUP FINANCIAL STATEMENTS CONTINUED
For the year ended 30 June 2021

5. SEGMENTAL INFORMATION

IFRS 8 'Operatng Segments’ requires operating segments ta be identified on the basis of intarnal reports about compoenents of the
Group that are regularly reviewed by the Chief Executive and the Board, to allocate resources 1o the segments and 1o assess their
performance. The Group's operating and reporting structuré compnses three operating segments: Genus PIC. Genus ABS and Genus
Research and Development. These segmeants ara the basis on which the Group reports its segmental information. The principal

activities of each segment are as follows:

> Genus PIC - our globa! parcine sales business;

> Genus ABS - aur global bovine sales business; and

> (Genus Research and Development — our gichal spend on research and developrment.

A segmental analysis of revenue, operating profit, depreciation, amortisation, non-current asset additions, segment assets and

liabilities and geographical information is provided below, We do not include our adjusting items in the segments, as we believe these
do not reflect the underlying parformance of the segments. The accounting policies of the reportable segments are the same as the

Group's accounting policies, as described in the Finagncicl Statements

2021

2020

Revenue Em Em
Genus PIC 315.6 2988
Genus ABS 250.1 2376
Genus Research and Developrnant
Porcine product development 13 117
Bovine product development 1.3 33
Gene editing - -
Other research and development - -
8.6 150
574.3 8514
Adjusted operating profit by segment is set out below and reconciled 1o the Group's adjusted operating profit. A reconciliation of
adjusted operating profit to profit far the year is shown on the face of the Group Income Statemant.
frastated)
2021 2020
Adjusted operdating profit Em cm
Genus PIC 1229 1133
Genus ABS 364 325
Genus Research and Development
Porcine product development (219) (285)
Bovine proguct development {19.4) [206)
Gene editing {7.8) (5.2}
Cther research and development (13.3) {10.2)
(62.4) {649)
Adjusted segment operating profit 96.9 8509
Central (20.0) {208)
Adjusted operating profit 769 601

1 Seenote Zfo getals of the pnor per od restatemeant

Qur business is nat ighly seasonal and our customer base is diversified, with no individual customer generating more than 2%

of revenue.

Exceptional items of £3.3m expense (2020: £19.2m expensel relate to Genus ABS (£2.5m expensel, Genus PIC (£0.3m expense) and our

central segment (£0.5m expensel. Note 7 provides details of these exceptional itemns.

We consider share-based payment expenses on a Group-wide basis and do not allocate them to reportatle segments,
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5. SEGMENTAL INFORMATION CONTINUED
Other segment information
Additions te nan-currant
assets (excluding deferred
taxatien and financial

o Dgpiecjatlon i Amortisation instruments)_

Irestated)' [restated]'

2021 2020 202 2020 2021 2020

£m £m £m £m £m Em

Genus PIC 30 4.5 6.5 76 100 27

Genus ABS 13.3 114 2.8 32 26.8 247
Genus Research and Development

Research Q.7 05 - 0Q 1.7 15

Porcine product development 19 24 - - 71 14

Bovine product development 18 15 0.2 02 2.7 4.2

4.4 4.4 0.2 11 115 71

Segment total 207 203 2.5 119 48.3 345

Central 33 37 L6 10 39 4.3

Total 240 240 111 129 52.2 388

- Segm_ent_us_sois . Sagmen_i_: linbﬂiti_as_ o
trestated) {restated!

2021 2620 2019 201 2020 2019

£m Em £m Em Em £m

Genus PIC 261.5 2474 262.1 {(57.4) (72.6) (516}

Genus ABS 2031 2013 1571 (56.0) (525} (419
Genus Research and Develcpment

Research 17.8 72 74 (6.1) {35 {06)

Parcine product development 213.5 2263 1800 {55.0} (56.3 {50.8)

Bovine product development 125.0 1465 1615 (25.5) (33.8) (328

356.4 800 3489 (856.8) (93.4) {84.2)

Segment total 8210 8282 768.1 {200.0) (2189) (1777

Central 30.0 265 274 (154.4) (142.0) {1388)

Total 851.0 8554 7955 (354.4) {(3609) {316.5)

1 See note 2 for details of tre prior perod restatemeant

Geographical information
The Group's revenue by geographical segment 1s analysed below. This analysis is stated on the basis of where the customer is located.

Revenue
2021 2020
£m Em
North America 214.7 2264
Latin America 838 818
UK 92.2 QLb
Rest of Europe, Middle East, Russia and Africa 821 780
Asiq 101.5 708
5743 5514

Non-current assets {excluding deferred taxation and financial instruments)
The Group's non-current assets by geographical segment are analysed below and are stated on the baosis of where the assets are
located.

{restatea)’ (rostated)’

20 2020 ploj

£m Em £m

North America 419.5 4544 4002
Latin America 46.1 373 457
UK 73.3 655 625
Rest of Europe, Middle East, Russia and Africa &4.6 415 593
Asia 278 292 147
611.3 627% 5824

1 Sea rotae 2 for detadls of t~e pr or pead restatement
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6. REVENUE

Accounting policy

The Group recognisés revenue from the following sources:
> sale of bovine and porcine semen, porcing breeding animals, embryos and ancillary products;
royaltias;

consulting;

technical services and advice revenues;

installation and maintenance of IntelliGan technology;
licensing of InteliGen technology;

slaughter animai sales; and

bovine partnership contracts.

VM ¥ VY WV YY

Revenue is meosured based on the consideration the Group expects to be entitled to under o controct with o customer ond
excludes amounts coliected on behalf of third parties. The Group recognises revenua when it transfers control of & product or service
10 a customer.

The sdle of bovine and porcine semen, porcine breeding animals, embryos and ancillary preducts

Revenue from the sale of bovine and porcine semen, porcine kreeding animats, embryos and ancillary products is recognised when the
control of the goods has transferred o the customer or distributor, This is either when we ship to customers or on delivery, depending
on the terms of sale. Payment of the transaction price is due immediately, or within @ short period of time, fram the point the customer
or distributor controls the goods.

Royalties

Royolties are recognised when the performance obligation is met. We receive royolty poyments from certain porcine customers based
on kay performance variables, such as the number of pigs born per litter, the number of litters born per sow and the average slaughter
weight of the animals born, This amount is confirmed directly to Genus by the customer, Payment of the transaction price is due
immediatety from the customer, or within a short period of time, once the performance obligation is satisfied.

Consulting

Revenue from consulting represents the amounts we charged for services we provided during the year, including recoverable expeanses.
We recognise consulting services provided but not yet billed as revenue, based on o farr value assessment of the work we have
delivered and our contractual right to receive payment. Where untilled revenue is contingent on a future event, we do not recognise
any revenue until the event occurs.

Technical services and cdvice revenues

Revenue from technical services and advice revenues represents the amounts we charged for services we provided during the year,
including recoverable expenses. We recognise technical services and advice ravenues provided but not yet billed as revenue, based
on a fair value assessment of the work we have delivered and our contractuat right 1o receive payment. Where unoilled revenue is
contingent on a future event, we do not recognise any revenue until the event occurs. Technicat services and advice revenues are
prasented in ancillary services in the following table

Installotion ond maintenance of IntelliGen technology

Revenue from the installation of IntelhGen technology is recognised by reference 1o the stage of completion of the installation and is
based on milestones being met. Maintenance is provided as ¢ distinct service to customers and is recognised over the period of the
service agreemeant. These revenues are presanted in ancilary services in the following table.

Licansing of IntelliGen technology

Revenue from tha licensing of IntelliGen technology s recognised at o point in timea when the licence is granted. In determining the
transaction price, any minimumn royalties due under the contracts are ncluded in the value apportionad 1o the grant of the licence,
excluding any royalties that arise on units produced In excess of the guarantead minimums. These additonal royalties have been
determined to be a usage-based royalty and are recognised as revenue at the point in time that the units are produced. These
revenues are presented in anciliary services in the following table

Slaughter of animals

Ravenue from the slaughter of animals is recognised when control of the goods has transferred to the slaughterhouse, which is
generally on the delwery of animals to the slaughterhause. Poyment of the transaction price is due immediately, or within a short
period of time, from the point the sioughterhouse controls the goods.
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6. REVENUE CONTINUED

Bovine partrership contracts

Partnership contracts include the provision of multiple bovine products and services for a single price. The controct price is allocated
to the individual performance obligotions based on their standalene selling prices. The expected revenue is recognised for the
products and services once the individual performance obligation has been satisfied. Revenues from partnership contracts are
presented in sale of amimals, semen, embryos and ancillary products and services.

2021 2020
Em £m
Genus PIC 172.6 1626
Genus ABS 242.2 2305
Genus Research and Development 8.6 150
Sale of animals, semen, embryos and ancillary products and services 4234 4081
Genus PIC 143.0 1360
Genus ABS 0.6 02
Genus Research and Development - -
Royalties 143.6 136.2
Genus PIC - _
Genus ABS 73 71
Genus Research and Development - -
Consulting services 7.3 71
Total revenue 5743 5514
Revenue from contracts with customers
The Group's revenue is analysed below by the timing at which it is recognised.
2021 2020
£m £m
Genus PIC 3128 2955
Genus ABS 229.1 2177
Genus Research and Development 8.6 149
Recognised at a point in time 550.5 5281
Genus PIC 2.8 33
Genus ABS 210 199
Genus Research and Development - 0l
Recognised over time 238 233
Total revenue 5743 5514

An analysis of contract assets and contract liakilities is provided in note 24.

7. EXCEPTIONAL ITEMS
Accounting policy
We present exceptional items separately, as we believe it helps to improve the understanding of the Group’s underlying performance.

In determining whether an item should be presented as exceptional, we consider items which are material either becouse of therr size
or their nature, and those which are non-recurring. For an item to be considered as exceptional, it must initially meet at least one of the
following criteria:

> 1t1s a ong-off material item;

it has been directly incurred as the result of either an acguisition, integration or ather major restructuring programme;

1t has been previously classified as an exceptional item, and as such consistent accounting treatment 1s being applied; or

it1s unusual in nature, e.g. outside the normal course of business.

LA

If an iterm meets at laast one of the critena, we then exercise judgement as to whether the item should be classified as exceptional.

For the tax and cash impact of exceptional items see notes 11and 32, respectively.

2021 2020
Operating (expense)/credit £m em
Litigation and damages (2.5) (16.4)
Acquisition and integration {0.3) (2.2}
Pensicn related (2.3 -
Other 1.8 07}

(3.3) {192
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7. EXCEPTIONAL ITEMS CONTINUED

Litigation and damages

Litigation includes legal fees of £2.5m (2020: £5.6m) related to the actions between ABS Global, Inc. and certain affiliates (ABS')
ond lnguron, LLC and certain affliotes {aka Sexing Technologies ['STH and £nil (2020: £10.8m) for darmoges and costs related to
patent infringement.

Marterial litigation activities during the year ended 30 June 2021

In July 2014, ABS launched alegal action ggainst ST in the US District Court for the Western District of Wisconsin and initioted onti-trust
proceedings which ultimately enabled the launch of ABS's IntelliGen sexing technoiogy in the US market {ABS I} In June 2017, ST filed
preceedings against ABS in the same District Court, where ST alleged that ABS infringed seven patents and asserted trade secret and
breach of contract claims (‘ABS II'). The ABS | and ABS |l proceedings in the penods befare the year ended 30 Juneg 2021 are more fully
described in the Notes to the Financial Statements in previous Annual Reports,

On 29 January 2020, ST filed a hew US complaint against ABS ['ABS 11, ABS has prepared and filed a response to the ABS Il complaint,
including @ motion to dismiss, on the basis that cll these issues were fully resclved in either the ABS | or ABS Il litigotions. The parties
awdit the court’s decision,

On 10 March 2020, the USPTO issued patent 10,583,439 [the "439 patent’), and subsequently $T asked the court for permission to

file a supplemental complaint in ABS Il asserting infringement of the '43% patent. ABS believes that ST's claim for infringement falls
short and has filed an cpposition to 5T's requéest. On 15 April 2020, ST filed a new complaint 'ABS Iv'), asserting the same claim of
infringement of the ‘439 patent alleged in its supplemental complaint and then moved to cansolidate the ABS [V and ABS I litigation,
ABS has oppoesed this action and has filed a motion for summary dismissal. On 23 June 2020, the USPTO issued patent 10,489,210 (tha
"0 patent’), and on 6 July 2020, ST sought a second supplement of ABS 1l by adding a claim of 210 patent infringement. ABS has
opposad this action. The parties await the court’s decision.

Gn 26 October 2020 and 10 Decernber 2020, ABS filed Inter Partes Reviews ('IPR’) against the 439 and *210 patents with the USPTO

On 4 May 2021, the Patent Trial and Appeaal Board [PTAB') instituted the 439 patent IPR, inding a likelihood of success on all challenged

claims. A hearing and decision in the 439 patent IPR will be completed in the next 12 months. On 7 June 2021, PTAB declined to institute

the 210 patent IPR without examining the merits of the case. PTAR's decision was based on its exercise of its discretion, concluding that !
the prior art referenced in the IPR was cited during the initial exarmination, therefore ABS could not demonstrate the exarminer made o

matenal error, notwithstanding that the relevant prior art was not addressed by the examiner. ABS has filed a rehearing cpplication. !

ABS figs also sought judgments as a matter of law {JMOL] in relation to the invalidity of all three of the patents considered in ABS I,
JMOLs inrelation to the non-infringement of two of those patents, and a reduction in damages awarded by the jury. The parties await
the court's decision

indian Litigation: In September 2019, 5T also filed paratiel patent infringerment proceedings against ABS in Indlia, alleging infringement of
the Indian patent 240790 {"790 patent’). The '790 patent is the equivalent of the US patent 7,311,476 asserted in ABS W, ABS had already
sought the revocation of the 790 patent in April 2317 before the indian Patent Office and has now consoiidated the revocation petition as
a counterclaim in the Indian court proceedings. Progress of these proceedings has been delayed due to the impact of the pandemic.

Acquisitions and integration
During the year, £0.3m [2020: £21m) of expenses were incurred in relation to acquisitions completed during the year.

Pension related

On 20 November 2020, the High Court ruled that individual transfer payments made since 17 May 1990 would need to be equalised
for the effects of Guaranteed Minimum Pension 'GMP'). This judgment followed on from the previous judgment on 26 October 2018,
wheare the High Court ruled that schemes had a lega! obligation to pay benefits allowing for GMP equalisation, resulting in an
additional liability being recognised. The previous judgment had not considered historic transfer values. Genus's pension schemes
are also affected by this ruling, resulting in an aggregate past service charge of £2.3m in the peried, being £09m for the Dalgety
Pension Fung {DPF'} and £1.4m for the Milk Pension Fung 'MPF),

Other

Included within Other 15 a £2.0m credit resulting from @ share forfeiture exercise, in occordance with the Articles of Asseciation. As @
three-yecar lickulity pericd ended during the year, the related prowvision was no longer needed and was therefore released. Included in
the prior year was £0.8m of expenses which relate to the costs of entering inta our strategic porcine collaboration in Ching,
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8. OPERATING PROFIT
Qoperating costs comprise:

{restated)
2021 2020
£m £m
Cost of sales excluding net |A5 4] valuation movement on biclogical assets and amortisation of multipher {237.0) (2363
contract intangible assets
Net IAS 41 valuation movermnenit on biclogical assets (10.8} 158
Amortisation of multiclier contract intangitle assets 0.2} 03
Cost of goods sold (248.0} (z20.8)
Cost of safes lexciuding amortisation of acquired intangibles) {105.1) {103.5)
Amartisation of customer relationship intangible assets (4.4} (5.3
Cost of sales {109.5) (108.8)
Research and Development expenditure {62.9) {65.3)
Amortisation and impairment of technology, software and licences and patents {5.2} 6.1}
Research and Development costs {68.1) (71.4)
Administrative expenses (excluding exceptional items) {88.7) 818
Share-based payment expense (7.7 (5.8
Amortisation of software, licences and patents 1.3 (1.2}
Exceptional items within administrative expenses (3.3) {192}
Total administrative expenses {101.0) {1080}
Total operating costs (526.6) (5020)
Profit for the year is stated after charging/lcrediting):
{restated)
2071 2070
Em £m
Net foreign exchange losses 0.5 09
Deprecigtion of cwned fixed assets 13.0 131
Depreciation of right-of-use gssets 11.0 109
Loss on disposal of fixed cssets and right-of-use assets 0.4 37
Loss on disposal of intangible fixed assets 0.5 1.2
Rental expense for short-term leases 0.1 12
Employee costs (see note 9 - restated’ 193.3 1784
Impairment of inventory 13 12
Cost of inventeries recognised as an expense 98.7 873
1 See note 2 for details of the prior panca restatement
Auditor’s remuneration is as follows:
2021 2026
£m £m
Fees payable to the Company's quditer and its associates for the audit of the Company’s Annual Report and 0.4 G4
Financial Statements
Fees payable to the Compaony's quditor and its associates for the cudit of the Company's subsidiaries 0.6 a5
Total audit fees 1.0 0%
Tax cormnpliance services - 01
Transaction support services - 02
Total non-audit fees - 0.3
Total fees to the Group's auditor 1.0 12

Fees payable to other auditors of Group companies - -

Non-audit tax services principally comprise tax compliance support services and transaction suppert. These services fail within the
non-gudit services policy approved by the Company’s Audit & Risk Committee at the time of engagement.
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9. EMPLOYEE COSTS
This note shows the total employment costs and the average number of people employed by segment during the year.

Employee costs, including Directors’ remuneration, amounted to:

2021 2020

£m £m

Wages and salaries lincluding bonuses and sales commission) 14663 1543
Social security costs 16.0 151
Contricutions to defined contribution pension plans 4.9 [
Share-based payment expense {excluding National Insurance) -3 48
193.7 1788

The employee costs above inciude £0.4m {2020: E0.4m) which has been capitalised into intangible assets as part of the development
of GenusOne (see note 15).

The average monthly number of employees and full-time equivaient employees, including Directors, was as follows:

!lpmbor of erv[pluyoos Full-time qu_ivulont

lrestated! {-estatea)
2021 2020 2021 2028
Numbaer NuTIDE Number Nurrber
Genus PIC 590 549 567 530
Genus ABS 2,210 213 2,102 2,053
Research and Development 401 355 370 334
Central b4 60 57 52
3,265 3,103 3,096 2969

Included in the totals above:
UK 863 843 776 759

The Directors’ Remuneration Report séts out details of the Directors' remunearation, pensions and share options.

1 In the pror yeor, cetan T amployees wee prav.ously cllocoted 1o certro | bLt Nove now Hee™ al ocoted 1o the ousimess un ts 0 ing with ther relarec casts, te conform w th
the current yeo' presentatio= There 15 o change to the cvergll emcloyee numbe-s reparted

10. NET FINANCE COSTS
Net finance costs mainly arise from interest due on bank loans, pension scheme liabilities, amortisation of debt issue costs, unwinding
of discount on put options and the results of hedging transactions used to manage foreign exchange and interest rate movements.

Accounting policy
We recognise interest income and interest expense in the Income Statement, as they accrue, based on the effective interest rate method.

Interest income includes income on cash and cash equivalents and income on cther financial assets. Finance costs include interest
costs inrelation to financial liabilities. This includes interest on lease liabilities, which represants the unwinding of the discount rate
applied to lease liabilities.

2021 2020

£m Emr

Interest payable on bank loans and overdrafis {2.8) (29}
Amortisation of debt issue costs (09 (04
Other interest payable - (0.1}
Unwinding of discount put options (0.6} {05}
Net interest cost in respect of pension scheme liabilites (0.3) f0.4)
Interest on legse liabilities {0.8) {10}
Total interest expense (5.4) (5.3
Interast income on bank deposits 0.4 03
Total interest income 1K Qa3

Net finance costs (5.0 50)
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11. TAXATION AND DEFERRED TAXATION

This note explaing how our Group tax charge arises. The deferred tax section of the note alse provides information on our expected
future tax charges and sets out the tax assets and liabilities held across the Group, together with our view on whether or not we expect
to be abie to make use of them in the future.

Accounting policies

Tax on the profit or loss for the year comprises current and deferred tax. We recognise tax in the Income Statement, unless:
> it relates to items we have recognised directly in equity, in which case we recognise it in equity; or

> it arises as < fair value adjustmeant in a business combination.

We provide for current tax, Including UK corperation tax and foreign tax, at the amounts we expect to pay {or recover), using the tax
rates and the laws enacted or substantively enacted at the balance sheet date, together with any adjustrnents to tax pavable in
respect of provious years,

Deferred tax is tax we expect to pay or recover due o differences between the carrying amounts of cur assets and liabilities in our
Financial Statements and the corresponding tax bases used in calculating our taxable profit. We account for deferred tax using the
balance sheet liability method.

We generaily recognise deferred tax liabilities for all taxable temporary differences, and deferred tax assets to the extent that we will

probably have taxable profits 1o utilise deductible temparary differences against. We do not recognise these assets and liabilities if the

temporary difference arises from:

> our initial recognition of goodwill; or

> our initial recognition of cther assets and liabilities in a transaction {other than a business combination) that affects neither cur
taxable profit nor our accounting profit.

We recognise deferred tax liabilities for taxable temporary differences arising on our investments in subsidiaries, and interests in joint
ventures and associates, except where we can control the reversal of the temporary difference and it is probabile that it will not reverse
inthe foreseeable future.

We calculate deferred tax at the tox rates we expect to apply in the period when we settle the liability or realise the asset. We charge or
credit deferred tax in the Income Statement, except when it relates to items we have charged or credited directly to equity, in which case
the deferred tax is also dealt with in equity.

Income tax expense

202 2020
Em Em
Current tax expense
Current period 18.3 138
Adjustment for prior periods 13 (1.1}
Total current tc:x expense in the Group Income Statement 19.6 127
Deferred tdx expense
Crigination and reversal of temporary differences (10.3) (26
Adjustment for pricr pericds (0.3) 05
Totdl deferred tax credlt in the Group Income Stutement {10.6) 2.1
Total income tax expense excludmg share of income tax of equlty accounted investees 2.0 106
Shcre ofi income tax of equny occounted investees (see note 18) 3.0 23
Total income tax expense in the Group Income Statement 12.0 129
Reconciliation of effective tax rate
[restated!! irestated)
207 2021 2020 2020
% £m % £m
Profit before tax 55.8 463
Add back share of income tax of equlty occounted mvestees 3.0 2 3
Proﬁt before tax excluding share of income tax of equity uccounted investees 58.8 AB é
Income tax at UK corporation tax of 19.0% (2020: 19.0%) 19.0 11.2 170 G2
Effect of tax rates in foreign jurisdictions 10.5 6.2 68 33
Non-deductible expenses 2.0 1.2 35 17
Tax exempt income and incentives 8.7 (5.2) {50) {(2.4)
Change in tax rote (4.4 (2.6) (3.1 {15}
Mavements in recognition of tax losses {1.2) 0.7 31 15
Change in unrecognised temporary differences 22 13 {oYA] (0.2}
Tox over provided in priar periods 0.5 03 {oFo)] 03
Change in provisions 1.2 0.7 16 08
Tax on undistributed reserves {0 7) (0. t.) 16 08
Totul income tax expense in the Group Income Statement 20.4 12.0 265 129

1  See note 2 for details of the priar penoa restatement
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11. TAXATION AND DEFERRED TAXATION CONTINUED
The tax rate for the year depends on cur mix of profits by country and our ability to recognise deferred tax assets inrespect of losses in
sorme of our smalier territories. Tax is calculated using prevailing tax legisiation, reliefs and existing interpretdations dand practice.

The Group's future tax charge and effective tax rate could be affected by factors such as countries reforming their tax legislation to
implement the OECD's BEPS recommendations and by European Commission intiatives including state aid investigations.

In Cctober 2017, the European Commission anncunced that it would be conducting a state aid investigation into the Group Financing
Partial Exemption (‘Finco exemption’) contained within the UK's controlled foreign company (CFC) legisiation. Genus, in common with
many other UK companies, has taken advantage of this inancing structure to support intra-Group lending to the Group's subsidiaries
in the US. The Commuission concluded in Aprii 2019 that the exemption contravened EU law and constituted partial state aid, to the
extent that the specific people functions {'SPFs') mast relevant to managing the financing activiies were based in the UK. The UK
Government, as well as a number of affected UK taxpayers including Genus, have appealed the EU Commission's conclusions and
court hearings for these appeais/annulment reguests are currently pending, with a decision expected in the summer of 2022,

Under the EU Commission ruling, the UK Government is reguired to identify any previous beneficiaries of the CFC Finco reliefs, quantify
the associated state aid and recover any identified amounts from UK taxpayers. In March 2021, HMRC issued Genus with a charging
notice far £1.2m in respect of its assessment of the amount of unlawfut state aid due to be recovered. Ganus has paid the assessed
amount but hos lodged an appeal against this assessment with HMRC, on the basis that the amount charged is not state aid (ie. the
original EU Commission decision is unsound in lawl and also on the basis that HMRC's actual assessment is erronecusly based on the
view that there are no non-UK SPFs in relation to the relevant CFC structure.

Genus has provided £0.4m (2020: £1.0m) in respect of its exposure to the reclaim of previously enjoyed tax benefits under this state aid
challenge but will continue to pursue the various avenues of appeal open to it cgainst both the original EU Commission's decision and
against HMRC's interpretation of that decision, s calculated in the charging notice received.

The tax credit attributable to exceptional iters is a credit of £11m (2020 credit of £45m).

Income tax recognised directly in the Statement of Comprehensive Income and Statement of Changes in Equity

2021 2070
£m Em
Financial instruments - o1
Foreign exchange differences on long-~term intra-Group currency loans and balances (0.1) -
Gain on equity instruments measured ot fair value 17 -
Actuarial movernent on retirement benefit abligations (0.3) 08
Foreign exchange differences on translation of biclogical assets, intangicle assets and leases 7.7 (L5}
5.6 (oFs)
Income tax recegnised directly to the Statement of Changes in Equity
Share-based payment expanse 1.5 11
1.5 11

Unrecognised deferred tax assets and liabilities

At the balance sheet date, the Group had unused tax losses which were avaiiable for offset against future profits, with a potential tax
benefit of £15.2m (2020: £13.6m). We have recognised a deferred tax asset in respect of £7.3m (2020 £3.9m] of these benefits, as we
expect these losses 1o be offset against future profits of the relevant jurisdictions in the near term. We have not recognised a deferred
tax asset In respect of the remaining £7.9m (2020: £97m), due to uncertainty about the ovailability of future taxable profits in the
relevant jurisdictions.

At 30 June 2021, the expiry dates of deferred tax assets in respect of losses available for the carry forward were as follows:

Expiring within

1-10 yaars 1-20 yaars Unlimited Total

£m £ £m Em

Losses for which o deferred tax asset 1s recognised 0.2 0.1 70 73
Losses for which no deferred tax asset 15 recogrised 0.2 - 17 79
0.4 0.1 147 15.2

In addition, at the balance sheet date, the Group had an unrecognised deferred tax asset in respect of fixed asset tming differences
of £3.4m (2020 restated: £2.6m). This unrecognised fixed asset position has ansen as a result of tha change in cccounting policy for
‘Software as a Service' I'SaaS’) arrangements as detailed in note 2. These unrecognised fixed asset timing differences have an
unlimited expiry date.
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11. TAXATION AND DEFERRED TAXATION CONTINUED
At 30 June 2020, the expiry dates of deferred tax gssets in respect of losses available for the carry forward were as follows:

Exoinmg within

123

1-1C years 1-20 yaars unlmitec Total

£m £m Em Em

Losses for which a deferred tax asset is recognised 02 01 36 39
Losses for which no deferred tax asset is recognised 02 - Q5 7
04 01 131 1356

The gross value of losses for which deferred tax assets are recognised s £27.4m (2020: £179m). The gruss value of losses for which

deferred tax assets are not recognised is £25.6m (2020; £33.3m).

We have not recagnised deferred tax hgbilities tatalling £2.9m (12020 £2.1m) for the withholding tax and other taxes that would be
payable on the unremitted earnings of certain overseas subsidiaries, This is because we can control the timing and reversal of these

differences and it is probable that the differences will not reverse in the foreseeable future,

Recognised deferred tax assets and liabilities
Wa have offset deferred tax assets and licbilities, to the extent that they arise in the same tax jurisdiction.

The anclysis of deferred tax balances is set out below:

2021 2020

Em £m

Deferred tax assets {8.0) 37
Deferred tax liabilities 53.0 655
45.0 61.8

The Finance Bill 2021, which was substantively enacted on 24 May 2021, introduced o new rate of UK corporation tax of 25% for large
companies, with effect from 1 April 2023. UK deferred tox assets of £1.6m relating to short-term timing differences and pension liabiiities
that are expected to unwind in the perod to 31 March 2023 have continued to be recognised at 19% and the remaining UK deferred tox
assets of £119m relating to fixed assets, share-based payments and losses forward that will likely unwind post 31 March 2023 have been

recognised at the new forward tox rate of 25%.

Movement in net deferred tax liabilities during the year

Changesin Prior year
toxrate adjustments
Asat Recognised recognisedin recognisedin Foreign Asat
1 July inIncome Income Incoms Recognised exchange 30 June
2020 Statement Statement Statement in equity Transfers difference 2021
£m £m £m £m Em £m £m £m
Property, plant and equipment 5.2 (1.0} 0.3 01 0.1 - (0.5} 3.6
intangible assets 8.8 (0.9} 11 0.2 {0.3) (0.4) (0.3} 8.2
Biclogical assets T4.4 (3.5} 08 - (7.9} - (0.1} 63.7
Retirerment benefit obligations (3.5) 1.0 (0.1) - 03 - 0.2 (2.1)
Share-based payment expense (3.7) Q.4 (0.9) - {0.5} - - (4.7)
Short-term timing differences {15.5) {2.3} {1.6) 0.2) 2.1 - 1.1 (16.4)
Tax loss carry-forwords (3.9 (1.4} (1.6) (0.4) - - - (7.3)
618 77 (2.6) (0.3} (6.2) 0.2) 0.4 45.0
Changes n Pricr yeaar
tox rale  adjustrrenrts
As at Recogrised recognised in recognisea n Foreigr As ot
1July n Incore Incomea Income  Recognised exchange 30 Jure
2019 Staternent Statement Statement ‘nequity Transfers difference 202¢
£m £m £m Em £m Em £mr Em
Property, plant and equipment 45 {05) {08) 19 - - 01 5.2
Intangible assets 107 (1.6} (01) (0.2) oL - 0.1 88
Biclogical assets 6656 4.2 0.3 26 13 - - FLb
Retirerment benefit obligations (LL) 14 0.2 - 0.7 - - (35
Share-based payment expense 27 0.2 (0.4) on 7 - - 3.7
Short-term timing differences 87} (5.1} 02 (2.4) - 06 0.1) {15.5)
Tax loss carry-forwards (2.8 03 (0.3 {1.3) - 02 - (39}
632 (1.1 (1.5) 05 - 08 01 618
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12. EARNINGS PER SHARE
Basic earnings per share is the profit generated for the inancial year attributable to equity shareholders, divided by the weighted
average number of shares in issue during the year.

Basic earnings per share from continuing operations

lrestated)’
2021 2020
(pence) (pe~cet
Basic earnings per share 72,6 54.4
The calculation of basic eamings per share from continuing operatians is based on the net profit attributable to owners of the
Company from continuing operations of £47 3m (2020 restated: £35.3m) and a weaighted average number of ordinary shares
outstanding of 65,108,000 (2020 64,908,00G}, which is calculated as follows:
Weighted average number of ordinary shares {basic)
2021 2020
090s o80s
Issued ordinary shares at the start of the year 65,092 65,055
Effect of own shares held (1803 {148}
Shares issued on exercise of stock options 14 21

Shares 1ssued in relation to Employee Benefit Trust 187 -
65,108 44,908

Weighted average number of ordinary shares in year

Diluted earnings per share from continuing operations

lrestated)
2021 2020
[pence) [pence)
Diluted earnings per share 720 540
The calculation of diluted earnings per share from continuing operations is based on the net profit attributable to ownars of
the Company from continuing operations of £47.3m (2020 restated: £35.3m} and a weighted average number of ordinary shares
outstanding, after adjusting for the effects of all potential dilutive ordinary shares, of 65,662 000 (2020: 65,427.000), which is
calculated as follows:
Weighted average number of ordinary shares (diluted)
2021 2020
000s CQ0s
Weighted average number of ordinary shares (basic 65,108 64908
Dilutive effect of share awards and options 554 51@
Weighted average number of ordinary shares for the purposes of diluted earnings per share 65,662 65,427
frestaredy
2021 2020
Adjusted earnings per share from continuing operdations (pence) pencel
Adjusted earnings per share 100.9 773
Diluted odjusted earnings per share 100.1 767

Adjusted earnings per share 1s calculated on profit befare the net 143 41 valuation movement on biological assets, amartisation of
acquired intangible assets, share-based poyment expense and exceptional iterns, after charging taxation associated with those
profits, of £65.7m (2020 restated: £50.2m), which is calculated as follows:

restatec!
2071 2C20
£t £
Profit before tax from continuing operations 55.8 463
Add/(deduct):
Net JAS 41 valuation movement on biologicel ossets 0.8 (158}
Amortisation of acguired intangible assets 7.4 85
Share-based payment expense 77 58
Exceptional items [see note 7) 33 192
Net 1AS 41 valuation mavement on biological assets in jeint ventures (3.1) 01
Tax on joint ventures and associates 3.0 23
Atributable to non-centrolling interest {0.1) {Q.6)
Adjusted profit before tax 84.8 658
Adjusted tax charge {19.1) {156)
Adjusted profit after tax 65.7 502
Effective tax rate on adjusted profit 22.5% 237%

1 S3senote 7 far deta. s on Daor oerod “estaterent
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12. EARNINGS PER SHARE CONTINUED
Reconciliation of effective tax rate

2021 2021
Profit Tax 2001
Em £m %
Profit before tax excluding share of income tax of equity accounted investees 588 12.0 20.4
Net I1AS 41 valuation movement on biological assets 10.8 29 269
Amortisation of acquired intangible assets 1.4 15 203
Share-based payment expense 7.7 16 208
Exceptional items [see note 7) 3.3 11 33.3
Net |AS 41 vatuation movement on biclogical assets in joint ventures (3.1) - -
Attributable to non-controlling interest (0.1) - -
Adjusted profit before tax 84.8 19.1 225

(restated)

2020 202¢ lrestated)
Profit Tax 2020
£rm £rr %
Profit before tax excluding share of income tax of equity accounted investees 484 129 26.6
Net |AS 41 valuation movement on biclogical assets {15.8) 4.7} 297
Amortisation of acquired intangible assets 85 18 212
Share-izased poyment expense 58 11 120
Exceptional items (see note 7} 192 45 234
Net IAS 41 valuation movement on biclogical assets in joint ventures 01 - -
Attributable to nen-contrelling interest [0.6) - -
Adjusted profit before tax 658 1546 237

1 Seencte 2 for oetails on or 07 perod restatement.

13. DIVIDENDS
Dividends are one type of sharehelder return, histerically paid 1o our shareholders in late November/early December and late March.

Amounts recognised as distributions to equity holders in the year

2021 2026
£m £ir
Final dividend
Final dividend for the year ended 30 June 2020 of 197 pence per share 12.8 -
Final dividend for the year ended 30 June 2019 of 18.8 pence per share - 122
Interim dividend
Interim dividend for the year ended 30 June 2021 of 10.3 pence per share &7 -
Interim dividend for the yaar ended 30 June 2020 of .4 pence per share - &1
19.5 183

The Directors have proposed a final dividend of 21.7 pence per share for 2021, This is subject to shareholders’ approval ot the AGM and
we have therefore not included it as o liability in these Financial Statements. The total proposed and paid dividend for year ended
30 June 202115 32.0 pence per share (2020: 291 pence per share).

14. GOODWILL

Accounting policies

When we acquire a subsidiary, associate or joint venture, the goodwill arising 1s the excess of the acguisition cost, excluding
transaction costs, over our interest 1In the net fair value of the acquiree’s identifiable assets, liabilities and centingent liabilities.
Identifiakle assets include intangible assets which could be sold separately, or which arise from legal rights, regardless of whether
those rights are separable.

We state goodwill at cost less any accumulated impairmeant losses. We allocate goodwill to cash-generating units ({CGUs'), which are
the smallest identifiable group of assets that generate cash inflows that are largely iIndependent of the cash inflows from other assets
or groups of assets. We dn not amortise goodwill but we do test it annually for impairment.

IAS 21 'The Effects of Changes in Fareign Exchange Rates' requires us 1o treat the following as assets and lighilities of the acquired
entity, rather than of the acquiring entity:

> goodwill arising on acquisition of a foreign operation; and

> any far value adjustments we make on acquisition to the carrying amounts of the acguiree’s assets and liabilities.

We therefore express them in the foreign operation’s functional currency and retranslate them at the balance sheet date.
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¥%. GOODWILL CONTINUED

Impairment

We review the carrying amounts of our tangible and intangible assets at each balance sheet date, to aeterming whether there 1s any
indication of impairment. If any indication exists, we estimate the asset's recoverable amount.

For goodwill, and tangible and intangible assets that are not yet available for use, we estimate the recoverable amount at each
balance sheet date. Tha recoverahle amount is the greater of their net selling price and value inuse. In assessing value in use, we
discount the estimated future cash flows to their present value, using a pre-tax disceunt rate, which is derived from the Group's
weighted average cost of capital ['WACC'). For some countries we add a premium to this rate, to reflect the nisk attributable to that
country. If the asset does not generate largely independent cash inflows, we determine the recoveraole amount for the CGU that the
asset belongs to.

We recognise an impairment loss in the Incame Statement whenaver the carrying amount of an asset or its CGU exceeds its
recoverable amount.

When we recognise on impairment loss in respect of o CGU, we first allocote it to reduce the carrying amount of any goodwll
allocated to the CGU, and then apply any remaining loss to reduce the carrying amount of the unit's other assets on a pro rata basis.

The aggregate carrying amounts of goadwill allocated to each cperating segment are as follows:

Genus PIC Genus ABS Total
Em £m Em

Cost
Balance at 1 July 2019 730 333 106.3
Effect of movements in exchange rates 11 (18) 07
Balance at 30 June 2020 741 315 10546
Business combination {see note 42) 15 - 35
Effect of movements in exchange rates (5.1) {2.5) (7.6)
Balance at 30 June 2021 725 290 1015
Amortisation and impairment losses
Balance at 1 July 2019, 30 June 2020 and 30 June 2021 - - -
Carrying amounts
At 30 June 2021 72.5 290 101.5
At 30 June 2020 76,1 315 1056

To test impairment, we agliocate geodwill to our CGUs, which are in ling with our operating segments. These are the lowest level within
the Group at which we monitor gocdwill for internal management purposes.

We test goodwill annually for impairment, or more frequently if there are indications that goadwill might be impaired. We determineg the
recoverable amount of our CGUs by using value in use calculations. The key cssumptions for these calculations relate to discount rates,
growth rates, expected changes to selling prices, cost savings derived from the IntelliGen technologies, and changes in product mix.

We have estimated the pre-tax discount rate using the Group's WACC, We risk-adjusted the discount rate for risks specific to each
market, adding between nil and 29% (2020: nil and 24%) to the WACC as appropriate. The pre-tax discount rate of 11% (2020: 11%) we
applied to our cash flow projections eguates to a post-tax rate of §.6% (2020: 9.3%). Cur estimates of changes in selling prices and
direct costs are based on past expenence and our expectations of future changes in the market.

The annual impairment test is parfermed on 31 March (2020: 31 May). There have been no additional indicators of impairment identified
after this date that would require the impairment test 1o be reperformed. It is based on cash flows derived from our most recent
financial and strategic plans opproved by monogement, over the next five years. A growth rate of 2.5% {2020: 2.5%) has been used to
extrapolate cash flows beyond this period. Short-term profitability ang growth rates are based on past experience, current trading
conditions and our expectations of future changes in the market.
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14, GOOCDWILL CONTINUED
The Genus PIC and Genus ABS CGls are deemed to be significant. The individual country assumptions used to determine value inuse
for these CGUs are:

Risk premium used to adjust Short-term growth rates

discount rate i CaGR) _Leng-term growth rates
2021 2020 201 2020 2021 2020
Genus PIC nil-11% nil-24% nil-43% nil=47% 2.5% 25%
Genus ABS nil-29% nil-24%  3%-48% (7%)-44% 2.5% 2.5%

Woeighted averaga risk Weighted average short-term

adjusted discount rate growth rates [CAGR)
2021 2020 2021 7020
Genus PIC 10% ?% 13% 13%
Genus ABS 10% % 24% 23%

The rates towards the higher end of the range above represent those which are applied to our smaller entities and those in emerging
markets and hence appear high relative to others.

Sensitivity to changes in assumptions

Management has performed the following sensitivity analysis:

> changing the key assumptions, with other variables held constant;

> simultaneously changing the key assumptions; and

> incorporating the potential impact of the principal risks and uncertainties cutlined on pages 46 1o 48, in particular the impacts of
biosacurity, market downturns, continuity of supply, increased competition and the impact of the global COVID-1? pandemic, taking
into account the likely degree of available mitigating actions.

Managerment has concluded that there are no reasonably possible changes in any one of the key assumpticns that would cause the
carrying amounts of goodwill to exceed the value in use of PIC and ABS.

15. INTANGIBLE ASSETS
Our Group Balance Sheet contains significant intangible assets, including acquired technology, customer refationships, software and
our IntelliGen development project.

Accounting policies
Identiiable intangible assets are recegnised when the Group controls the asset, it is probable that future economic benefits attributed
to the asset will flow to the Group and the cost of the asset can be reliakly measured.

For 'Software as a Service' {'Saas") arrangements, we capitalise costs only relating to the configuration and customisation of Saas
arrangements as intangible assets where controf of the software exists,

Intangible assets that we have acquired in a business combination since 1April 2005 are identified and recognised separately from
goodwill, where they meet the definition of an intangible asset and we can reliably measure their foir values. Their cost is ther fair value

at the acguisition date.

After their initicl recognition, we report these intangible assets at cost less accumulated amertisation and accumulated impairment
losses. This s the same basis a3 for intangible assets acquired separately.

The estimaoted usefu! lives for intangible assets are as follows:

> Porcine and bovine genetics technology 20 years

> Multiplier contracts 15 years

> Brands 10 to 15 years

> Customer relationships 10 to 17 years

> IntelliGen 10 years

> Patents and licences term of agreement (4 years)
> Software 210 10 years
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15, INTANGIBLE ASSETS CONTINUED
Intangible assets acquired separately

We carry intangible assets acguired other than through a business combination at cost less accumulated amortisation and any

impairment loss. We charge amertisotion on a straight-line basis over their estimated useful lives and review the useful life and

amortisation method ¢t the end of each inancicl year, accounting for the effect of any changes in estimate on a prospective basis,

Brands,
multiplier Separately
Porcing contracts identified
and bovine and acquired {restatad)’ Pataents,
genetics t int, it (r dl’ Assets under ficences and {restated]’
technology relationships assets Software  construction IntelliGan othet Total
£m £m £m £m Em £m £m £m
Cost
Balance at 1 July 2019 (restated) 530 851 1381 148 28 240 4k 1841
Additions - - - 01 32 18 - 51
Disposals - - - 0.6 - (1a) - {164}
Transfers - - - 40 (Ne) - - -
Effect of movements in (10 08 ©2 01 - (813 - 05
exchange rates
Balance at 30 June 2020 (restated) 520 859 1379 184 20 254 L4 1881
Additions - - - 0.4 3.8 09 - 5.1
Acguisition [note 42) - 3.7 3.7 - - - - 3.7
Disposals - - - {1.1) - - - (1.1}
Transfers - - - 31 (3.1) - - -
Effect of movements in 0.3) (8.0 (8.3) (0.8) - (2.7) (0.1) {119
exchange rates
Balance at 30 June 2021 517 81.6 133.3 200 27 23.6 4.3 1839
Amortisation and impairment losses
Balance at 1 July 2019 restated) 308 618 P26 116 - 50 29 1121
Impairment - - - 0.2 - - - 02
Disposals - - - - - 0.4) - 10.4)
Amortsation for the year 29 56 85 11 - 2.3 10 129
Effect of movernents in {Q5) o8 03 0l ~ - - 04
exchange rates
Balance at 30 June 2020 {restated) 332 68.2 1014 130 ~ 59 39 12582
Disposols - - - 0.6) - - - {0.6)
Amortisation for the year 28 4.6 74 1.4 - 2.2 0.1 11.1
Effect of movements in - (6.6} 6.6 i0.8) ~ 0.7} - 8.1}
exchange rates
Balance at 30 June 2021 36.0 66.2 102.2 13.0 -~ 8.4 40 1276
Carrying amounts
At 30 June 2021 15.7 15.4 311 70 27 15.2 0.3 56.3
At 30 June 2020 (restated) 188 177 365 54 20 185 05 629
At 30 June 201% {restated) 222 233 455 32 28 190 15 720

included within brands, multiplier contracts and customer relationships are carrying amaounts for brands of £0.7m {2020: £0.8rm),
muitiplier contracts of £0.3m (202C: £0.5m} and customer relationships of EW.4am (20201 £16.4ml.

Included within the software class of assets is £5.4m {2020 restated” £29m) and included in assets in the course of construction 1s £11m
(2020 restoted’ F1.6m) that relate to the ongong development costs of GenusOne, cur single global enterpnse system.

1 Seerote 2 for oetans of tre or o7 per od “gsteteTent
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16. BIOLOGICAL ASSETS

The Group applies quantitative genetics and bictechnology to animal breeding. We use these techniques to identify and select
animals with the genes respansible for superior milk and meat, high health and performance traits, We sell breeding animals, semen
and embryos to customers, who use them to produce offspring which yield greater production efficiency and milk and meat quality,
for the giobal dairy and meat supply chain. We recognise that accounting for biological assets is an area which includes key sources
of estimation uncertainty. These are outlined in note 4 and sensitivities are provided below.

Accounting policies

Biological assets and inventories

In bovine, we use research and development to identify genetically supetior bulls in o number of breeds, prnmarily the Holstein dairy
breed. Each selected bull has its performance measured agoinst its peers, by using genomic evaluations and progeny testing of its
daughters’ performance. We collect and freeze semen from the best bulls, to satisfy cur customers’ demand. Farmers use semen from
dairy breeds to breed replacement milking stock. They use the semen we sell from beef breeds in either specialist beef breeding herds,
for multiplying breeding bulls for use In natural service, or on dairy cows to produce animals to be reared for meat.

Our research and development also enables us 1o produce and select our own genetically superior females, from which we will breed
future bulls.

We hold cur bovine biological assets for long-term internat use and classify them as non-current assets. We transfer bull semen to
inventory at its fair value at the point of harvest, which becomaes its deemed cost under 1AS 2. We state our inventories at the lower
of this deemed cost and net realisable value.

Sorting semen is o production process rather than a bioiogical process. As a result, we transfer semen inventory into sexed semen
production at its fair value at the point of harvast, less the cost to sell, and it becomes a component of the production process.
We carry sexed semen in finished goods ot production cost.

in porcine, we maintain and develop a central breeding stock (the nucleus herd'), to provide genetically superior animals. These
genetics help make farmers and food processars more profitable, by increasing therr output of consistently high-guality products,
which vyield higher value. So we can capitalise on our intellectual property, we outsource the vast majority of our pig preduction to
our global multiplier netwerk. We also sell the offspring or semen we obtain from animals in the nucleus herd to customers, for use
in commercial farming.

Pig sales generally occur in one of two ways: 'upfront’ and royalty’. Under upfront sales, we receive the full fair value of the animal at
the point we transfer it to the customer. Under royalty sales, the pig is regarded as comprising two separately identifiable components:
its carcass and its genetic potential. We receve the initial consideration, which is approximately the animal's carcass value, at the
point we transfer the pig to the customer. We retain our interest In the pig's genetic potential and receive royalties for the customer's
use of this genetic potential.

The breeding animal biclogical assets we own, and our retained interast in the biclogical assets we have sold under royalty contracts,
are recognised and measured at fair value at each balance sheet date. We recognise changes in fair value in the Income Statement,
within operating profit for the perod.

We classify the porcine biological assets we are using as breeding animals as non-current assets and carry them at fair value. The
porcine biclogical assets we are holding for resale, which are the offspring of the breeding herd, are carried at fair value and classified
as current assets.

Determination of fair values - biclogical assets

IAS 41 ‘Agriculture’ requires us 1o show the carrying value of biological assets in the Group Balance Sheet. We determine this carrying
value according to 1AS 41's provisions and show the net valuation movement in the Income Statement. There are important differences
in how we value our bovine and porcine assets, as explained below.

Bovine — we base the fair value of all bulls on the net cash flows we expect to receive from selling their semen, discounted at o current
risk-adjusted market-determined rate. The significant assumptions determining the fair values are the expected future demand for
semen, the estimated biclogical value and the marketable fife of bulls. The biclogical value is the estimated value at the point of
production. We adijust the fair value of the bovine herd and semen inventory where a third party eams a royalty from semen sales
frem a particular bull. Females are valued by reference to market prices and published independent genetic evaluations. The net
cash flows include any expected impact of the COVID-12 pandemic.

Porcine - the fair value of porcine biclogical assets includes the animals we own entirely and our retained interest in the genetics

of animals we have scld under royalty arrangements. The fair value of animals we own 1s calculated using the animals” average live
weaights, plus a premium where we bellave that their genetics make them saleable. We base the live weight value and the genetic
premium on recent transaction prices we have achieved. The significant assumptions in determining fair values are the breeding
animals’ expected life, the percentage of production animals that are saleable as breading animals and the expected sales prices.
For our retained interest in the genetics of animals sold under royalty contracts, we base the inftial fair value on the fair values we
achieved in recent direct sales of similar animais, less the amount we received upfront for the carcass element. We then remeasure
the fair value of cur retained interest at each reporting date. The significant assumption in determining the fair value of the retained
interest is the animals’ expected life. The assumptions used include any expeacted impact of the COVID-19 pandemic.

We value the pigs in our pure line herds, which are the repository of our proprietary genetics, as a single unit of account. We do this
using a discounted cash flow model, applied to the herds’ future outputs at current prices, The significant assumiptions we make are
the number of future generations attributable to the current herds, the fair value prices we achieve on sales, the animals' expected
useful lifespan and productivity, and the risk-adjusted discount rata.
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16. BIOLOGICAL ASSETS CONTINUED

Non-recognition of porcine multiplier contracts where the Group does net retoin o controctual interest

To manage commercial risk, a very large part of our porcine business model involves seling pigs to farmers 'multipliers’) who produce
piglets on farms we neither manage nor control. We have the option, but not the obligation, to buy the offspring at slaughter market
value plus a premium. Because the offspring have superior genetics, we can then sell them to other farmers at a premium.

We do not recognise the right ta purchase affspring on the Group Balance Sheet, as we enter into the contracts and continua to hold
them for the purpose of receving non-financial iterns (the offspring), in accordance with our expected purchase reguirements. This
means the option is outside the scope of IFRS 9. We do not recognise the offspring as biolagical ossets under 1AS 41, as we do not own
or control them,

Bovine Porcine Total
Fair value of biolegical assets £€m £m £m
Non-current biofogical assets 8.7 1884 2871
Current biological assets - 401 401
Balance at 30 June 2019 P87 2285 3272
Increases due to purchases 175 1187 1362
Decreases attributable to sales - (2173 (2173)
Decrease due to harvest {(24.5) (227 {472}
Changes in fair value less estimated sale costs 135 1306 1441
Effect of movements in exchange rates 20 4% 58
Balance at 30 June 2020 1072 2427 3499
Nen-current blological assets 1072 2029 3101
Current biological assets - 398 398
Balance at 30 June 2020 1072 2427 J4P9
increases due 1o purchases 15.2 134.8 150.0
Decrecses attnbutable to sales - (223.0} {223.0}
Decrease due to harvest N (24.4) (21.4) (45.8)
Business combination {sea note 42} - o3 Q3
Changes in fair value less estimated sale costs 39 118.4 122.3
Effect of movements in exchange rates (99} (24.3) {34.2)
Balance at 30 June 2021 92.0 2275 3195
Non-current biclogical assets 920 1879 2799
Current biclogical assets - 39.6 396
Balance at 30 June 2021 920 2275 3195

Bovine biological assets include £7.4m (2020; £5.5m] representing the fair value of bulls owned by third parties but managed by the
Group, net of expected future payments to such third parties, which are therefore treated as assets held under finance ledses.

There were no movements In the carrying value of the bovine biclogical assets in respect of sales or other changes during the year.
A risk-odjusted rate of 8.8% (2020: 8.8%) has been used to discount future net cash flows from the sale of bull semen.

Decreases due to harvest represent the semen extracted from the biological assets. inventories of such semen are shown as biological
asset harvest in note 20.

In porcine, included in increases due to purchases is the aggregate increase arising during the year on initial recognition of biclogical
assets in respect of multinlier purchases, other than parent gilts, of £47.5em (2020: £46 3m}.

Decreases attributable to sales during the year of £223.0rm {2020 £217.3m} include £67.4m (2020: £681m) in respect of the reduction in
fair value of the retained interast in the genetics of animals, ather than parent gilts, transferred under royaity contracts.

Alsoincluded is F97.9m (2020 £1016m) relotng to the fair value of the retained interest in the genetics in respect of arimals, other than
parent gilts, sold to custormers under royalty contracts in the year,

Total revenue in the year, including parent gilts, Includes £2069m (2020: £205 8ml in respect of these contracts, comprising £63.9m
{2020: £49.8m) an initial transfer of animals and semen to customers and £143.0m (2020: £136.0m} in respect of royalties received.

Arisk-adjusted rate of 2.3% (2020 9.3%) has been used to discount future net cash flows from the expected output of the pure ine
porcine herds, The number of future generations which have been taker into account is seven 2020 seven) and their estimated useful
Ifespan s 1.4 years {2020: 1.4 years).
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Year ended 30 June 2021
Bovine Parcing Tatal
Em £m £m
Net |AS 41 valuation movement on bisiogical assets!
Changes in fair value of biological assets 39 118.4 122.3
Inventary transferred to cost of sales at fair value (21.1) (21.4} {42.5)
Biological assets transferred to cast of sales at fair value - (0.0} {90.0)
17.2) 7.0 (10.2)
Fair value movement in related financial derivative - (0.6) 0.4)
(17.2) 6.4 {(10.8)
Year ended 30 June 2020
Bov ne Porzine Total
£m £rm Erm
Net IAS 41 valuation movement on biclogical assets'
Changes in fair value of biological assets 135 13046 1441
Inventory transferred to cost of sales at fair vaiue (109} (227} {33.6)
Biclogical assets transferred to cast of sales at fair value - {$5.1} (©5.1)
26 128 154
Fair value movement in related financial derivative - 04 04
26 132 158

1 Thisreprasents tre aiffererce betwoan operating profit epaied under 1AS 41 and aperating profit prepared under histancal cost account ng, whice forms part of the

reconcilation to adjusted operating profir (see APMS)

Fair value measurement

All of the biclogical assets inputs fall under Level 3 of the hierarchy defined in IFRS 13. Significant increases/(decreases) in any of these

inputs in isolation would result in @ significantly lower or higher fair value measurement.
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14, BIGLOGICAL ASSETS CONTINUED
Unobservable inputs and key sources of estimation uncertainty

Bovine
Risk-adjusted discount
rate’

Value ot point of
production’
Percentage of new
dairy bulls to be
produced internally in
future years'

Age profile of Holstein
bulls generating future
sales!

Age profile of US
beef-on-dairy bulls
generating

future sales’

Long-term dairy
volume growth rate

Short-term dairy
volume growth rate

Porcine
Risk-adjusted discount
rate — upfront prices

Risk-adjusted discount
rate — pure line herd!

Proportion of animals
that go to breeding
sales’

2021 2020 Sensitivity
8.8% 88% 1 percentage pont incredse in the discount rate would
result in apgroximately a £2.7m (2020: £3.2m) reduction
In value.
32.7% 36.2% ) percentage point decrease in the rate would result in
approximately a £4.6m (2020: E4 8m) reduction in value.
FY22 67% FY21 8% If percentage remained ot FY2] level of 66% (2020: 36%)
FY23 78% FY22 78% there would be a decrease in value of approximately
FY24 BD% FY2381% E£2.2m (2020 £12.4m).
FY25 and thereafter 82% Y24 and thereafter 83%

FY22 ~avgage 3.9 yrs
FY23 - avg age 3.9 yrs
FY24 - avg age 3.9 yrs

FY25 and thereafter — avg

age 3.8 yrs

FY22 - avg age 4.9 yrs
FY23 -~ avg age 4.8 yrs
FY24 ~ avg age 4.8 yrs
FY25 and thereafter —
avg age 4.8 yrs

1.2%

3.2%

7.5%

3%

Gilts - 7.6%
Boars - 8.5%

FY21 - avg age 39 yis
FY22 - avg age 39 yrs
FY23 - avg age 39 yrs
FY24 and thereafter —
avg age 38 yrs

FY21 —avg age 50 yrs
FY22 - avg age 48 yrs
FY23 - avg age 48 yrs
FY24 and thereafter —
avg age 4.8 yrs

20%

Gilts - 6.8%
Boars — 0%

If age profile remains at FY21 average age of 4 1years
{2020: 4.0 years), there would be an increase in valug of
approximately £2.1m (2020: £2.4m).

if age profile remains ot FY21 average age of 5.4 years
(2020: 5.2 years), there would be g decrease in value of
approximately £2.9m [(2020: £1.4m).

| percantage point decrease in the growth rate would
result in approximately a £0.2m (2020: £0.2m) reduction
in vatue.

1 percentage point decrease in the growth rate weuld
result In approximatety @ £1.3m (202G £1.7m] reduction
invalue.

1 percentage point increase in the discount rate would
result in approximately a £0.3m (2020: £0.3m| reduction
invalue.

1 percentage point increase in the discount rate would
result in approximately a £2.6rm (2020 £31m) reduction
in value. Any additional increase in the percentage
would lead 1o a linear impact.

1 percentage point increase 1n the go to breeding sales
would result in approximately £8.4m (2020 £8.8m)
increase in value.

1 Keysources of estimaton uncertainty

Additional informatian

o 2020

Bovine

Guantities at period end

Number of bulls 1n production

Number of bulls under development lincluding calves)

Total numiber of bulls

Number of doses of sermen valued in inventary

Amounts during the year

Fair value of agricultural produce - semen harvested during the period

Porcine

Quantities at period end

Number of pigs (own farms}

Number of pigs, excluding parent gilts, despatched on a royalty basis and valued at fair value
Amounts during the year

Fair value of agricultural produce - semen harvested during the period

©21 808
775 652
1,696 1460
15.1m 12.4m
E24.4m £24.5m
98,677 93,314
84,386 89337
£21.4m £227m
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We make significant investments in our property, plant and equipment. All assets are depreciated over their useful economic lives.

Accounting policies

We state property, plant and eguipment at cost, together with any directly attributable acguisition expenses, or at their latest
valuation, less depreciation and any impairment losses. Where parts of an item of property, plant and equipment have different useful

lives, we account for them separately.

We charge depreciation to the Income Statement on a straight-line basis, over the estimated useful lives of each part of an asset.

The estimated useful lives are as follows:
> Frechold buildings

> Leasehold buildings
> Plant and equipment
>

Motor vehicles 2to 5 years

10 to 40 years
over the term of the lease
Sto 20 years

We do not depreciate land or assets under construction.

Right-of-use cssets

Right-of-use assets are measured initially at cost, based on the value of the associated lease liability, adjusted for any payments
made before inception, initial direct costs and an estimate of the dismantling, removal and restoration costs required in the terms of
the lease. Subsequent to inftial recognition, we record an interest charge in respect of the lease liability. The related right-of-use asset
is deprecialed over the term of the lease or, If shorter, the useful economic life of the leased asset. The lease term shall include the
period of an extension option where It is reasonably certam that the option will be exercised. Where the lease contains o purchase
option, the asset I1s written off over the useful life of the asset when 1t is reascnably certain that the purchase option will be exercised.

Plant, metor Total Plant, motor Total
Landond vehiclesand  Assets under owned Landand vehlclesand  right-ef-use
buildings aquipment  construction assets buildings equipment assets Total
£m £m £m £m £€m £m £m £m

Cost or deemed cost
Balance at 1 July 2019 621 @13 47 158.1 - - - 1581
Recognised on the adoption of IFRS 16 - - - - 197 69 266 266
Transfers on adoption of IFRS 14 - (12.2} - {12.2) - 122 122 -
Additions 04 L 148 244 19 72 Q1 337
Transfers 6.6 4.7 (113} - - - - -
Disposals (16 {(5.4) - (70) - (27 27 7
Effect of movements in exchange rates 0L - - 04 03 04 07 11
Balance at 30 June 2020 479 878 82 1639 219 260 459 2098
Additions 11 89 22.3 29.3 23 81 10.4 39.7
Business combination {see note 42) - 0.2 - 0.2 - - - 0.2
Transfers 4.3 3.5 (7.8) - - - - -
Disposals 0.3 {2.1) - {2.4) (19 {.7) 6.8 (9.0
Fffect of movemeants in exchange rates (8.4) {7.3) (0.6) (14.3) {1.4) (1.4) (3.0) {17.3)
Balance at 30 June 2021 86.6 88.0 221 176.7 20.7 26.0 46.7 2234
Depreciation and impairment losses
Balance at 1 July 2019 208 513 - 721 - - - 721
Transfers on the adoption of IFRS 16 - £.8) - {48) - 48 48 -
Depreciation for the year 38 Q3 - 131 4.4 65 109 240
Disposals {07 (27) - {34) - {1.5) (L5) =)
Effect of movements in exchange rates 04 - - 04 - 03 03 07
Balance at 30 June 2020 243 531 - T4 L4 101 5 219
Depreciation for the year 3.2 9.8 - 13.0 37 73 11.0 240
Dispasals 0.3) (1.5} - (1.8) 1.3) (4.2) (5.5) (7.3}
Effect of movements in exchange rates 27 {s.5) - (7.2) {0.3) 7 (1.0) (8.2)
Balance at 30 June 2021 24.5 569 - 8l.4 65 125 19.0 100.4
Carrying amounts
At 30 June 2021 421 311 22.1 ?5.3 14.2 13.5 277 123.0
At 30 June 2020 436 347 82 865 175 139 314 1179
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18. EQUITY ACCOUNTED INVESTEES
We hold interests in several joint vertures and associatas where we have significant influence.

Accounting policies
Joint ventures are entities over whose activities we have [oint control, under a contractual agreement. The Group Financial Statements
include the Group's share of profit or loss arising from joint ventures.

Assaciates are entities in which the Group has significant influence, but not control, over the financial and eperating pelicies. The Group
Financial Statements include the Group's share of the total recognised income and expense of associates on an equity accounted
basis, from the date that significant influence commences untl the date it ceases. When our share of losses exceeds our interestin an
associote, we reduce the camying amount to nil and stop recognising further losses, axcept 10 the extent thot the Group has incurred
lega! or constructive obligations or made payments on an associate's behalf.

Under the equity method, investments in joint ventures or associates are nitiglly recognised in the Group Balance Sheet at cost and
adjusted thereafter to recognise the Group's share of the profit or foss and other comprehensive income of the joint ventures and
associates. Related-party transactions with the Group's joint ventures and associates primarily comprise the sale of products and
services. As each arrangement is a separate legal entity and contral rights are substantially equal with the other parties, no significant
judgements are required.

The Group's share of profit after tax in its equity accounted investees for the year was £131m (2020: £85m).

The carrying value of the investments is reconciled os follows:

2021 2020

Em £m
Balance at 1 July 227 236
Share of post-tax retained prafits of joint ventures and associates 131 89
Additions 2.4 22
Disposal proceads - (38)
Dividends receved from Agroceres - PIC Genética de Suinos Ltda (Brazil) (2.5] (2.2}
Dividends received from HY-CO Hybridschweine -Cooperations GmbH {Germany) - (03
Dividends received from Inner Mongolia Haoxiang Pig Breeding Co. Ltd. (China) (1.8) -
Loon investment/(repoyment) 0.4 {1.2)
Effect of other movements including exchange rates (0.4) [4.5)
Balance at 30 June 34.1 227

During the year we purchased a 39% shareholding for E2.4m in Xelect Limited, an aquacuiture genetic services company, and retain
a call aption to purchase the remaining shares in Xelect Limited it 2023, We also made an investment of £0.4m in Socletd Agricola
GENEETIC S, primarily through o shareholder's loan.

During the priot year, we invested £2.2m in a new associate, Inner Mongolia Haoxiang Pig Breeding Co. Ltd,, and disposed of its entire
halding of Xianyang Yongxiang Agriculture Technology Co. Ltd,, receiving a return of loan capital and equity totalling £5.0m.

There are no significant restrictions on the ability of the joint ventures and associates to transfer funds to the parent, other than those
imposed by the Companies Act 2006 or equivalent government rules within the joint venture's jurisdiction.

Related-party transactions with joint ventures and associates

Transaction value Balance outstanding

2021 2620 2021 020

£m £ £m £m

Sale of goods and services to jaint ventures and associates (1.8 {12 0.4 -
Purchase of goods and services from joint ventures and assaciates 50 31 (0.4) {1.6)

All outstanding baiances with joint ventures and associates are priced on an arm's length basis and are to be settled in cash within six
maonths of the reporting date. None of the balances are secured

Summary financial information for equity accounted nvestees, adjusted for the Group's percentage ownership, 1s shown on the
following page.
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18. EQUITY ACCOUNTED INVESTEES CONTINUED
Joint ventures and associates — year ended 30 June 2021

Cash and Othar
cash curréent  Non-current Biclogical Total Current Total Net
squivalent agsats assets assets assats liabilities liabilities assets
Net assets Ownership Em £m Em Em Em Em £m £m
Agroceres — PIC Genética 49% 4.8 9.3 10.6 69 31.6 {5.1) (5.1) 26.5
de Suinos Lida {Brazil)
HY-CO Hybridschweine- 50% - 0.1 - - 01 - - 01
Cooperations GmibH
{Cormany)
Inner Mongolia Haoxiang 49% 3.0 0.9 0.8 (09 3.8 (0.4) {0.4) 3.4
Pig Breeding Co. Ltd.
(China)!
Chitale Genus ABS {India) 50% - 0.3 1.4 - 17 0.1) {0.5) 1.2
Private Limited {Indiq)
Avlscenter Mallevang A/S' 49% - - - - - - - -
Xelect Limited (United 39% 0.1 0.1 2.4 - 2.6 {0.2) (0.2) 24
Kingdom}'
Societt Agricola GENEETIC 33% - 0.2 0.4 - 0.6 (0.1) (0.1) 0.5
Sl ltaly)
Saciety Agricola GENEETIC 33% - - - - - - - -
Service Srl {Italy)
79 109 15.6 6.0 40.4 (59) 6.3 34.1

1 Classifiec as ar associote All other mvestments a-e classified s joint ventures

Net IAS 41
valuation
movement on
biolegical Operating Profit
Revenue assets Expensas profit Taxation after tax
Income Statement Ownership £m Em £m £m £m Em
Agroceres - PIC Genética de Suings Lida (Brazil) £49% 315 39 {21.2) 14.2 (3.0} 11.2
HY-CO Hybridschweine-Cooperations GmbH 50% - - - - - -
{Germany)
Inrer Mongoelia Haoxiang Pig Breeding Co. Ltd. 49% 6.0 (0.8) (3.3) 19 - 19
{China)!
Chitale Genus ABS (India) Private Limited (India) 50% 0.4 - 0.3) 0.1 - 01
Avlscenter Mallevang A/S! 49% - - (0.2) {0.2) - {0.2)
Xelect Limited {United Kingdom)' 39% 0.2 - 0.2 - - -
Societd Agricola GENEETIC S.rl. (Italy) 33% 0.8 - 0.7) 0.1 - 0.1
Societd Agricola GENEETIC Service S.rl. (Italy)' 33% - - - - - -
389 3.1 {25.9) 16.1 {3.0} 131

1  Classified as an assoc ate Al other investments are ¢rassified as [0t vertures

Joint ventures and associates have o December year end, except Chitale Genus ABS (India) Private Limited, which has a March
year end, and Xelect Limited, which has o June year end. Where the year end differs from the year of the Group this is due to local
regulatory requirements.
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18. EQUITY ACCOUNTED INVESTEES CONTINUED
Joint ventures and associates ~ year ended 30 June 2020

Ces~ang Gther
cash currert  Non-current Biologcal Totai Current Tatan Net
equivalent assets assafts assets assets liaoiht es lakbmtigs assets
Net assets Owrarship £ Em Emr Em £m Zmr Em Em
Agroceres — PIC Genética 49% 29 &1 81 35 2046 (24} (2.4} 182
de Suinos Ltda (Brazil)
HY-CO Hybridschweine- 50% - 02 - - 02 0.1 1) 01
Cooperatians GmbH
{Germany)
Inner Mongolia Haoxiang 49% 20 12 03 {0.1) 34 03 @3) 31
Pig Breeding Co. Ltd.
{Ching)!
Chitale Genuys ABS (india) 50% - 0.4 11 - 15 - {0.4) 11
Private Limitad {Indial
Avlscenter Malievang A/S! 49% - 02 - - 02 - - 02
49 81 25 34 259 (28) (3.2) 227
Net 1a8 41
yauatcn
Tovemea~t on
bralog cal Operating Frofit
Reverusn assely Fxoenses profit Taxat or after tox
Income Statement Ownershin £m £ Em £ £ £m
Agroceres - PIC Genética de Suines Ltda (Brazil) 4% 281 - {189 Q2 (2.3) 69
HY-CO Hybridschweine-Cooperations GmbH 50% 09 - ©7 02 - 02
(Germany)
Xianyang Yongxiang Agriculture Technology Co., 49% 14 - {07) 07 - Q7
Ltd. {Chinah
Inner Mongolia Haoxiang Pig Breeding Co, Ltd. 49% 26 0.1} 16l 0% - 09
{Chinal!
Chitale Genus ABS {India) Private Limited {India} 50% 03 - 03) - - -
Avlscenter Mgllevang A/S' 49% 02 - - 02 - 02
335 0.1) (222 112 (2.3) 8%

1 Class fied as ar assoc ate. All atner ~vestments are classifiee as o rt vertures

Joint ventures and associates have o December year end, except Chitale Genus ABS (India) Private Limited, which has o March year
end.

19. OTHER INVESTMENTS
We hold a number of unlisted and Iisted investments, mainly comprising our strategic invastment in Caribou Biosciences, Inc. [Caribou’}
and shares in listed entity National Milk Records plc 'NMR').

Accounting policies

Financial assets at fair vatue through other comprehensive income (FYOC!) comprise equity securities which are not held for trading,
and which the Group has irrevocably elected at initial recognition 1o recognise as FYOCI The Group considers this classification
relevant as these are strategic investments.

Financial assets at FVOCI are adjustad to the fair value of the asset at the balance sheet date, with any gain or loss being recognised
in other comprehensive income and held as part of other reserves. On disposal any gain or loss is recognised in other comprehensive
income and the cumulative gains or losses are transferred from other reserves to retained earnings.

At initicl recognition, the Group measures a financial asset atits fair velue plus, in the case of a financict asset not at fair value through
income statement, transaction costs that are directly attributable 1o the acquisition of the financiol asset. Tronsocton costs of
financial assets carried at fair value through income statement are expensed N the Income Statement.

Other investments may include equity nvestments (where the Group does not have contral, joint control or significant influgnce in the
investeel, short-term deposits with banks and other investments with anginal maturities of more than three months, Any dividends
received are recognised in the Income Statament.

2021 2030
Investmants carriad ot fair value Em Gl
Uniisted equity shares - Caribou Biosciences, Inc. 10.4 37
Unlisted equity shares - Other 2.3 1.4
Listed equity shares - NMR 2.0 18

147 637
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19. OTHER INVESTMENTS CONTINUED

We hold a strategic non-controlling interest in Caribou, which is measured at fair value using the valuation basis of a Level 2
classification. In July 2021, Caribou shares started publicly trading on NASDAQ. Given the proximity of the transaction to the balance
sheet date, our holding has been valued ot the average price expected 1o be achieved on listing.

NMR ordinary shares were acquired as part of the NMR pension agreement, and are measured at far value. The valuction basis is
Level 1 classification, where fair value techniques are guoted unadjusted) prices in active markets for identical assets and labilities.

Cther unlisted eqguity investments primarily consist of strategic non-controliing interests in bovine technology companias, which are
measurad at fair value and the valuation basis is Level 3 classification, where fair value technigues use inputs which have a significant
effect on the recorded farr value and are not based on observable market data.

20. INVENTORIES
Curinventory primarily consists of bovine semen, raw matenals and anciliary products.

Accounting policies

Inventory {excluding biological assets’ harvest) s stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Cost is determined on the basis
of weighted average costs and comprises direct materials and, where apgropriate, direct labour costs and those overheads that have
been incurred in bringing the inventories 1o their present location and condition.

For our biclogical assets cccounting policies, see note 14.

2021 2020

£Em £m

Biological assets' harvest classed as inventories 178 203
Raw materials and consumables 29 07
Goods held for resale 163 164
37.0 Ky2

21. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES
Qur trade and other receivables mainly consist of amounts owed to us by customers and emounts we pay to our suppliers In advance.

Accounting policies
We state trade and other receivables at their amortised cost less any impairment losses,

202 2020

Em £m

Trade receivables 87.2 837
Less expected credit loss cllowance (5.0) (3.4}
Trade receivables net of impairment 82.2 803
Other debtors 6.4 6.3
Brepayments 6.6 &6
Contract assets (note 24) 7.7 51
Other taxes and social security 33 25
Current trade and other receivables 106.2 1008
Non-current other receivables 18 18

1080 1026
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21. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES CONTINUED
Trade receivables

The average credit period our customers take on the sales of goods is 53 days (2020: 53 days). We do not charge interest on

receivables for the first 30 days from the date of the Invoice.

The Group clways measures the loss allowance for trade receivables at an amount equal to lifetime expected credit losses 'ECLs'). The
ECLs on trade receivables are estimated using a provision matrx by reference to past default experience of the debtor and an analysis
of the debtor’s current financial position, adjusted for factors that are specific to the general economic conditions of the industry and
country in which the debtor operates and an assessment of both the current and the forecast direction of conditions at the reporting
date The Group wiites off 0 trade receivable when there is information indicating that the deltor is in severe financial difficulty and
there is no realistic prospect of recovery, such as when the debtor has been placed under liguidation or has entered into bankruptey

proceedings.

The Group recognises ECLs with reference to the following matnx, in accordance with the simplified approach permitted in IFRS 9.
There has been no change in the estimation techniques during the current reporting penod. A componeant of the calculation is the risk
premium of the countries in which our customers operate. The risk premiums are updated on each reporting date, to reflect changes

in the global ecanomy.

Narth Lotin

America Armaerica EMEA Asia
2021 1.6% 6.6% 3.1% 129%
2020 16% 6.3% 2.6% 12.2%

The following table shows the movement in lifetime ECLs that has been recegnised for trade receivables, in accordance with the

simplified approach set out in IFRS 9.
2021 2020
£m £m
Balance at the start of the year 3.4 26
Change in loss allowance due to new trade and other receivables originated net of those derecognised 3.4 25
due to settlement

Amounts written off a3 uncollectable 0.3} 0.3}
Impairment losses reversed (1.4) (1.3
Effect of movements in exchange rates (0.1) 0.1
Balance at the end of the year 5.0 34

The aging of trade receivables is presented below:

Trade receivables

Trade receivables
net of impairment

2021 2020 2021 2020

Days past due £m £ £m £m
Not yet due &7.8 654 653 629
0-30 doys 96 87 X 83
31-90 days 65 5% 5.1 55
21180 days 1.8 15 1.7 i5
Over 180 days 15 22 10 21
B2.2 837 82.2 BO3

No customer represents mora than 5% of the total balance of trade recevables (2020: no more than 5%).

The Directors consider that the carrying amourt of trade and other receivables approximates their fair value.

Receivables denominated in currencies other than Sterling comprise £35.7m denomnated in US Dollars (2020: £34.7m),
£71.8m dencminatad in Furas (2020: £13.2m} and £378m denominated in other currencies (2020: £32.1m}.
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22. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
We hold cash and bank depaosits which have a matunty of three months or less, to enable us to meet our short-term liquidity
reguirements.

Accounting policies
Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash balances. Bank overdrafts that are repayable on demand form an integral part of our cash
management and are included in interest-bearing loans and borrowings less than one year.

201 2020
£m Em
Cash at bank and in hand 460 413

The canying aimount of these assets appreximates 1o ther rair value.

The credit gquality of cash and cosh equivalents can be assessed by reference to external credit ratings of the counterparty where the
account or deposit is placed.

2021 2020

Counterparties with external cradit ratings £m £m
Ato AA- 34.2 310
BBB- to BEBB 6.4 51
B- to BB+ 5.0 5.2
CCCto CCC- 0.4 -
46.0 413

23. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES
Our trade and other payables mainly consist of amounts we owe to our suppliers that have been invoiced or are accrued. They also
include taxes and social security amounts due in relation to cur role as an employer.

Accounting policies
Trade payables are not interest bearing and are stated at their nominal value.

200 2020

£m £m
Trade payables 237 185
Other payables 7.6 49
Accrued expenses 60.2 572
Contract liabilities (note 24) 106 8.2
Other taxes and social security 8.2 6.2
Current trade and other payables 110.3 250
Contract liabilities (note 24) 1.4 33
Non-current trade and other payables 1.4 33

The average credit period taken for trade purchases is 27 days (2020: 21 days).

Payables denominated in currencles other than Sterling comprise £43.8m denominated in US Dollars (2020: £32.1mi, £10.5m denominated
in Euros (2020: £111m) and £32.6m denominated in other currencies (2020 £27.6m).

The carrying values of these liabilities are a reasonable approximation of their fair values.

24. CONTRACT BALANCES

Accounting policy

A contract asset is recognised when the Group's right to consideration is conditional on something other than the passage of time,
for example the completion of future performance obligations under the terms of the contract with the customer. In some Instances,
the Group receives payments from customers based on a billing schedule, as established in the contract, which may not match with
the pattern of performance under the contract.

Where payment is received ahead of performance a contract liability will be created, and where performance obligations are satisfed
ahead of killing, then a contract asset will be recognised.

2021 2020

£m Im

Contract assets (note 21) 7.7 51
Current contract liabilities (10.6) {8.2)
Non-current contract liabilities (1.4) (3.3

Contract liabllities (note 23) (12.09 {115)
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24, CONTRACT BALANCES CONTINUED

Contract Contract

assats liobilitles

£m £m

Balance at 1 July 2019 29 69
Increases as a result of performance in advance of billing 273 -
Transfers to receivables during the year {25.1) -
Increases as g result of billing ahead of performance - {82.0)
Decreases as a result of revenue recognised in the year - 771
Effect of movernents in exchange ratas - 03
Balance at 3G June 2020 51 (115
Increases as a result of performance in advance of bifling 35.8 -
Transfers to receivables during the year (32.7) -
Increases as a result of billing chead of perfermance - {109.3)
Decreases as a result of revenue recognised in tha year - 108.1
Effect of movements in exchange rates (0.5) 0.7
Balance at 30 June 2021 77 {12.0)

In same cases, the Group receives payments from customers based on ¢ billing schedule, as established in our contracts. The contract
assets relate to revenue recognised for performance in advance of scheduled billing and have increased as the Group has provided
more services ahead of the agreed payment schedules for certain contracts. The contract liability relates to payments received in
advance of performance under contract and varies based on performance under these contracts.

The transaction price allocated to partially unsatisfied performance obligations at 30 June 20211s £3.6m (2020: £6.8m). It is expected
that the Greup will recognise this revenue over the next four years.

25. PROVISIONS
A provision is a liability recorded in the Group Balance Sheet, where there s uncertainty over the timing or amaount that will be paid,
and 15 therefore estimated. The main provisions we hold relate to litigation damages, legal provisions, custormer clarms and share forfeiture.

Accounting policies

We recognise a provision in the Balance Sheet when an event results in the Group having a current legal or constructive obligation,
and it 1s probable that we will have to settle the obligation through an outflow of economic benefits. If the effect is material, we
discount provisions 1o their present value.

Contingent

ST deferred Share Other
litigation  consideration forfaiture provisions Total
£m £m Em £m Em
Balance at 1 July 2019 - 45 20 23 88
Additioncl provision 1N the year 10.2 - 03 25 130
Utilisation of provision - - - (1.6) (1.6)
Releasea of provision - - - 0.2} 0.2
Reclassified to deferred consideration’ - {4.5) - - (6.5}
Effect of movement in exchange rates 03 - - - 03
Balance at 30 June 2020 105 - 23 30 158
Additional provision in the year 0.2 - - 2.7 29
Utihsation of provision 0.2) - - (2.3} (2.5}
Release of provision - - {2.0) (0.4) (2.4)
Effect of movement in exchange rates (1.1} - - 0.3) (1.4}
Balance at 30 June 2021 .4 - 0.3 27 12.4

1 Cortngent deferred consderanon ras oeen ac ass.fiec to ne disc osed wtmin geferres corsdect o, G5 7@ balarces ore "ecordea of fo- value ond not estmatea

2021 2020

£m £rr

Current 1.3 40
Non-current 111 118
12.4 158

ST Itgation refates specifically 1o our itigaton only with Sexing Technologies, as descrbed innote 7.

The share forfeiture provision of £0.3m relates to potential claims that could be made by untraced members over the next two years,
relating to the resale proceeds of shares that were identified during the prnior year as being forfeited

Other provisions mainly relate to legal provisions (excluding ST titigatior) and customers' claims. The timing and cash flows associated
with the majerity of legal cloims are expected to be less than one year. Howeaver, for some legal claims the timing of cash flows may be
long term in nature and are disclosed as such.



FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 141

26. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
This nate details our treasury management and financial risk management objectives and policies, as well as the Group’s exposure
and sensitivity to credit, liquidity, interest and foreign exchange rate risk, and the policies in place to monitor and manage these risks.

Financial risk management objectives

The Group's corporate treasury function provides services to the business, coordinates our access to domestic and internationat
financial markets, and monitors and manages the financial risks relating to the Groug's operations, through internat risk reports that
analyse exposures by degree and magnitude of risks. These risks include market nsk (including currency risk, fair value interest rate risk
and price risk), credit risk, iguidity risk and cash flow interest rate risk.

We seek to minimise the effects of these risks by hedging them using derivative financial instruments. Our use of financial denvatives
is governed by policies approved by the Board of Directors, which provide written principles on foreign exchange nsk, interest rate risk,
credit risk, the use of financial derivatives and non-derivative financial instruments, and the investment of excess liquidity. The Board
of Directors regularly reviews our compliance with policies and exposure limits. The Group does not enter into or trade financial
instruments, including derivative financial instrurnents, for speculative purposes.

Key financial risks and exposures are monitored through a manthly report to the Board of Directors, together with an annual Board
review Of corporate treasury matters.

Financial risk

The principal financial risks our activities expose us to are the risks of changes in foreign currency exchange rates, interest rates and

cammodity prices, We use derivative inancial instruments to manage our exposure to interest rate, foreign currency and commaodity

price risks, including:

> forward foreign exchange contracts, to hedge the exchange rate risk arising on the sale of goods and purchase of supplies In
foreign currencies;

> nterest rate swaps, to mitigate the risk of rising interest rates; and

> forward commodity contracts, to hedge commeoedity price risk.

Accounting policies

Financial instruments

Financiat assets and liabilities in respect of inancial instruments are recegnised on the Group Balance Sheet when the Group becomes
a party to the instrument’s contractual provisions,

Financiat liabilities and equity instruments

Financial iasbilities and equity Instruments issued by the Group are classified according to the substance of the contractual
arrangements entered into and the definitions of a financial licbility and on eguity instrument. An equity instrument s any contract that
provides a residual interest In the Group's assets after deducting all of its llabilities and includes no obligation to deliver cash or cther
financial assets. The accounting policies adopted for specific inancial liakilities and equity instruments are set out below.

Put option arrangements over non-controlling interest
The potential cash payments related to put options issued by the Group over the equity of subsidiary companies are accounted for
as financial liabilities.

The amount that may become payable under the option on exercise is nitially recognised ot present value within financial abilities,
with a corresponding charge directly to equity. The charge to equity is recognised separately as written put options over non-
controlling interest, adjocent to non-controlling interest in the net assets of consolidated subsidiaries.

Such options are subsequently measured at omortised cost, using the effective interest rate method, in order to accrete the liability up
to the amount payable under the option at the date at which it first becomes exercisable. The charge arising is recorded as a
fingncing cost. If the option expires unexercised, the liakility is derecognised, with a corresponding adjustment to eguity.

Derivative financial instruments

Dervatives are recognised initially at fair value at the date a derivative contract 1s entered into and are subsequently remeasured to
their fair value at each reporting date. The resulting gain or loss is recognised in the Income Statement immadiately, unless the
derivative is designated and effective as o hedging instrument, in which event the timing of the recognition in the Income Statement
depends on the nature of the hedge relationship.

A derivative with a positive fair value is recognised as a financial asset whereas o dervative with a negative fair velue is recognised as
a financiat licbility. Derivatives are not offset in the financial statements, unless the Group has both a legally enferceable right and
intention to offset. A derivative s presented as a non-current asset or o non-current liability if the remaining maturity of the instrument
is more than 12 months and it is not due to be realised or settled within 12 months. Other derivatives are presented as current assets or
current llabilities.

The fair value of intarest rate swaps 15 the estimated amount that we would receive or pay to terminate the swap at the alance sheet
date, taking into account current interest rates and the creditworthiness of the swap counterparties.

The fair values of forward exchange contracts and forward commodity contracts are thar quoted market price at the balance sheet
date, which is the present value of the quoted forward price.

Hedging activities
The Group designates certam derivatives as hedging instruments in respect of foreign exchange risk, interest rate risk and commodity
risk in foir value hedges, cash flew hedges, or hedges of net investments in foreign operations.
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26, FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS CONTINUED

At the inception of the hedge relationship, the Group documents the relationship between the hedging instrument and the hedged

itern, clong with its risk management cbjectives and its strategy for undertaking various hedge transactions, Furthermore, ot the

inception of the hedge and on an ongoing basis, the Group documents whether the hedging instrument is effective in offsetting

changes in fair values or cash flows of the hedged item attributable to the hedged risk, which is when the hedging relationship meets

all of the following hedge effectiveness requirements:

> there is an economic relationship between the hedged item and the hedging instrument;

> the effect of credit risk does not dominate the value changes that result from that economic relationship; and

> the hedge ratio of the hedging relationship is the same as that resulting from the quantity of the hedged item that the Group
actually hedges and the gquantity of the hedging instrument that the Group actually uses to hedge that quantity of hedged item.

If a hedging relationship ceases to meet the hedge effectiveness requirement relating to the hedge ratio but the risk management
objective for that designated hedging relationship remains the same, the Group adjusts the hedge ratio of the hedging relationship
li.e. rebalances the hedgel so that it meets the qualifying criteria again,

The Group designates the full change in the fair value of @ forward contract (i.e. including the forward elerments) as the hedging
instrument for all of its hedging relaticnships involving forward contracts.

Tne Group designates only the intrinsic value of option contracts as a hedged item, i.e. excluding the time volue of the option. The
changes in the fair value of the aligned time value of the option are recognised in Other Comprehensive Income and accumulgted in
the cest of hedging reserve. If the hedged item is transaction related, the time value is reclassified to the Income Statemeant when the
hedged item affects the Income Statement. If the hedged item is time-period related, then the amount accumulated in the cost of
hedging reserve is reclassified to the Income Statement on a rational basis, applying straight-line amortisation. Those reclassified
amounts are recognised in the Income Staterment in the same line as the hedged item. If the hedged item 1s g non-financial item, then
the amcunt accumulated in the cost of hedging reserve 1s removed directly from equity and included in the initial carrying amount of
the recognised non-financial item. Furthermore, if the Group expects that some or all of the loss cccumulated in cost of hedging
reserve will not be recovered in the future, that amount is immediately reclassified to the Income Statement.

Cash flow hedges

The effective portion of changes in the fair value of derivatives and other gualifying hedging instruments that are designated ond
qualify as cash flow hedges is recognised in Gther Comprehensive Income and accumulated under the heading of cash flow hedging
reserve, and limited to the cumulctive change in fair value of the hedged item from inception of the hedge. The goin or loss relating to
the ineffective portion is recognised immediately in the Income Statement and is included in the 'other gains and losses' Ine item.

Armounts previously recognised in Other Comprehensive Income and accumulated in equity are reclassified to the Income Statement
in the periods when the hedged item affects the Income Statement, in the same line as the recognised hedged item. However, when
the hedged forecast transaction results in the recognition of a non-financial asset or a non-inancial liability, the gains and losses
previously recognised in other comprehensive income and accumulated in equity are removed from equity and included in the initial
mecsurement of the cost of the non-financial asset or nen-financial liakility. This transfer does not affect Other Comprehensive
Income. Furthermore, if the Group expects that some or all of the loss accumulated in the cash flow hedging reserve will not be
recovered in the future, that amount is immediately reclassified to the Income Statement.

The Group discontinues hedge accourting only when the hedging relationship (or @ part thersof] ceases to meet the qualifying criteria
{after rebalancing, if applicatle). This includes instances when the hedging instrument expires or is sold, terminated or exercised. The
discontinuation is accounted for prospectively. Any gain or loss recognised in Other Comprehensive Income and accumulated in cash
flow hedge reserve at that time remains in equity ond is reclassified 1o the Income Statement when the forecast transaction occurs.
When @ forecast transaction is no longer expected to oceur, the gain orloss accumulated in the cash flow hedge reserve is reclassified
immeadiately to the income Statement,

Under interast rate swap contracts, the Group agrees to exchange the difference between fixed and floating rate interest amounts
colculated on agreed notional principal amounts. Such contracts enable the Group to mitigate the risk of changing interest rates on
the fair value of issued fixed-rate debt held and the cash flow exposures on the issued variable-rate debt held. The fair value of
interest rate swaps at the reporting date is determined by discounting the future cash flows using the yield curves at the reporting
dote and the credit risk inherent in the contract. The average interest rate is based on the outstanding balances at the end of the
financial year.

As the critical terms of the interest rate swap contracts and ther corresponding hedged items are the same, the Group performs

a qualitative ossessment of effectiveness and 15 expected that the vaiue of the interest rate swop contracts and the value of the
coresponding hedged items will systematically change in opposite directions, inresponse to movements in the underlying interest
rates, The main source of hedge ineffectiveness in these hedge relationships is the effect of the counterparty and the Group's own
credit risk on the fair value of the interest rate swap contracts, which is not reflected in the fair value of the hedged item attributable
to the change in interest rates. No other sources of ineffectiveness emerged from these hedging relationships.

Net investment hedges

Hadges of net investrments in foreign operations are accounted for similarly 1o cash flow hedges. Any gain or loss on the foreign
currency forward contracts retating to the effective portion of the hedge 15 recognised in Other Comprehensive Income and
accumulated in the foreign currency translation reserve. The gain or loss relatng to the ineffective portion is recognised immediately
in the Income Statement, and is included in the ‘other gaing and losses’ line item.

Gains and losses on the hedging instrument accumulated in the foreign currency translation reserve are reclassified to the Income
Statement on the disposal or partial disposal of the foreign operation.

We only apply net investrment hedge accounting in the Group Financial Statements.




FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 143

26. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS CONTINUED

Capital risk management

The Group manages its capital to ensure that Group entities can continue as going concerns, while maximising the return to
shareholders by optimising our debt and equity balance. The Group's caprtal structure consists of debt, which includes the borrowings
disclosed in note 27, cash and cash equivalents, and equity attributable to equity holders of the Parent, comprising 1ssued capital,
reserves and retained earnings, as disclosed in note 31

Gearing ratio
The Group keeps its capital structure under review and monitors it monthly to ensure the gearing ratio remains below 60%. The Group
is not subject to externally imposed capital requirements. The gearing ratio at the year end was as follows:

{restated)

200 2020

£m ET

Debt (see note 27} 1516 1439
Cash and cash equivalents {see note 221 (46.0) (41.3)
Net debt (see note 32) 105.6 1026
Equity’ £96.6 4945
Net debt to equity ratio 21% 21%

1 See note 2 for detalls of prior penod restatement
Debt is defined as long and short-term borrowings, including lease obligations as detailed in note 27.
Equity includes all capital and reserves of the Group attributable to equity holders of the Parent.

Categories of financial instruments

We have categorised financial instruments held ot valuation into a three-level fair value hierarchy, based on the priority of the inputs
10 the valuation technique in accordance with IFRS 13. The hierarchy gives the highest prionty to qucted prices in active markets for
identical assets or liabilities (Level 1 and the lowest priority to unobservable inputs (Level 3). If the inputs used to measure fair value fall
within different lavels of the hierarchy, we base the category level on the lowest priority level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement of the instrument in its entirety. We have estimated the fair values of the Group's cutstanding interest rate swaps by
calculating the present value of future cash flows, using appropriate market discount rates, reprasenting Level 2 fair value
measurernents as defined by IFRS 13,

202 Carrying value 2020 Carry ng valus
Lavel 1 Level 2 Level 3 Tatal Level1 Level 2 Level 3 Tota
Em £m £m Em Em £m L £
Financial assets
Other investments 20 10.4 23 14.7 18 - 51 69
Trade receivables and other debtors, - 919 - 919 - 891 - 891
excluding prepayments and accrued
income (see note 21
Cash and cash equivalents - 46.0 - 46.0 - 413 - 413
Derivative instruments in non- - 01 - 0.1 - 12 - 12
designated hedge accounting
relationships
Derivative instruments in designated - - - - - - - -
hedge accounting relationships
20 148.4 2.3 152.7 18 1316 51 1385
Financial liabilities
Trade and other payables, excluding - (102.1} - (102.1) - (92.1) - 2.1}
other toxes and social security (see
note 23}
Loans and overdrafts (see note 27) - (123.3) - (123.3) - {112.8) - (1128}
Leasing obligations {see note 28) - {28.3) - {28.3) - (311} - (31.1)
Derivative instruments in non- - - - - - 0.3 - 03
designcted hedge accounting
relationships
Derivative instruments in designated - - - - - 0.2) - 0.2)
hedge accounting relationships
Put option over nen-controlling interest - 6.1) - (6.1} - {61 - (6.1}
Defeired consideration (see note 38) - {0.4) 1.7 {2.1) - (5.1) (3.6) (87
- {260.2) (17 (2619) - {2477) {36} (251.3)

We hold a strategic non-controlling interest in Caribou Biosciences, Inc {'Carlbou’), presented above within Other Investments (note 19).
In July 2021, Caribou shares started publicly trading on the NASDAQ, and was reclassified from a Level 3instrument to Level 2. There
have been no transfers between levels during the pricr year.
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Foreign cutrency risk management
We undertake transactions denominated in foreign currencies.

The carrying amounts of the Group's foreign currency denominated monetary assets and monetary liabilities at the reporting data
were as follows:

Eiubilities . Assots ;
20 2020 2021 2020
Em £m £m £
US Dollar 67.7 {76.2) 21 12

Euro (12.1) (55) 0.5 -
Chinese Yuan - - - G2

Foreign currency Income Statement sensitivity analysis
The Group is manly exposed to movements in the US Dollar, Euro, Brazilan Real, Mexican Peso, Chinese Yuan and Russian Rouble
exchange rates.

The following table detalls the Group's sensitivity to @ 10% and 20% increcse and decrease in Sterling against these currencies.

10% is the sensitivity rate used when reporting foreign currency risk internally to key management and represents our assessment

of a significant change in foreign exchange rates. The sensitivity analysis includes only cutstanding foreign currency denominated
monetary items and adjusts their translation at the period end for a 10% or 20% change in foreign currency rates. It includes external
loans, as well as loans 1o foreign operations within the Group where the loan 1s denominated in o currency other than the lender or
borrower's currency. A positive number below indicates an increase in profit when Sterling weakens against the relevant currency.

A strengthening of Sterling against the relevant currency would produce an equal but opposite reduction in profit, and the balances
below would be negative,

20% currency movement 10% currency movemant

200 2020 2021 2020

£m Em £m £m

Eurc 2.4 22 1.2 11
Us Dollar 1.2 15 0.6 08
Brazilion Real 28 22 1.4 11
Mexican Peso 28 28 1.4 14
Chinese Yuan 7.0 4.3 35 22
Russian Rouble 1.3 10 0.6 05

Forward foreign exchange contracts
The Group's policy is to enter Into forward foreign exchange contracts, to cover specific foreign currency payments and receipts.
The following table details the forward foreign currency contracts cutstanding as at the year end:

Average exchange rate Contract value Fairvalue

foraign 200 202C 2021 2020
2041 2020 currency £m £r £m Em

Qutstanding contracts
Buy DKK - 8.34 DKK - 43 - 01
Sell CNY 203 895 CNY 20 20 - -
Buy AUD 1.85 183 AUD 1.0 11 - -
Sell BRL - 636 BRL - 01 - -
Sell PHP 67.78 6285 PHP 0.1 - - -
Sell RUB 10195 8697 RUB 01 01 - -
Buy EUR 0.86 078 EUR a8 57 - -
Sell PLN 5.30 4596 PLN 09 08 - -
Buy MXN 28.03 2821 MXN 5.6 0.1 01 ox}
SellUsD 1.40 123 usD 47 20 (0.1} -
Buy EUR/Sell CHF 109 1046 CH= 0.3 0.3 - -
Buy EUR/Sell BRL - 588 BRL - 02 - -
Buy USD.'Seall BRL 5.05 522 BRL 18 33 - 01
Buy USD/Sell CLP 720.03 79813 CLP 0.3 03 - -
Buy USD/Sall CNY 6,43 709 CNY 17 18 - -
Buy PHP/Seli USD 4882 [Ae) PHP 5.0 39 - -
Buy USD/Sell CAD 1.23 136 CAD 2.3 31 - -
Buy USD/Sell MXN - 2274 MXN - 0l - -
Buy USD/Sell EUR 1.19 112 EUR 2.3 03 - -
Buy USD/Sell RUB 72.58 &RF2 RUB 15 0% - -
Buy USD/Sell INR 73.06 7533 INR 28 L0 - -
Buy USD/Sell ZAR 14.41 1725 ZAR 0.2 03 - -
Buy USD/Sell ARS 97.85 - ARS 0.2 - - -
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26. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS CONTINUED

Interest rate risk management

The Group is exposed to interest rate risk, as Group entities borrow funds at both fixed and floating interest rates. We manage this risk
centrally, by maintaining an appropriate mix betwaen fixed and floating rate borrowings, using interest rate swaps. We regularly review
our hedging activities, to align with our interest rate views and defined risk appetite, thereby ensuring we apply optimal hedging
strategies to minimise the adverse impact of fluctuations in interest expense through different interest rate cycles.

The Group's exposures to interest rates on ingncial assets and financial licbilities are detailed in the liquidity risk management section
of this note.

Interest rate sensitivity analysis

We have determined the sensitivity analyses below, based on the Group's exposure to interast rates for both derivatives and
non-derivative instruments, at the balance sheet date. For floating rate liabilities, we prepared the analysis assuming the liability
outstanding at the balance sheet date was outstanding for the whole year. A 1.0 percentage point increase or decrease is used
when reporting interest rate risk internally to key management and is our assassment of a significant change in interest rates.

If interest rates had been 1.0 percentage point highar or lawer and all other variabies were held constant, the Group's profit would have
decreased or increased by £1.2m {2020: decrease/Increase by £Q.7ml. This impact 1s smalker than would otherwise be the case, due to
our fixed-rate hedging.

Interest rate swap contracts

Under interest rate swap contracts, the Group agrees to exchange the difference betweaen fixed and floating rate interest amounts,
calculated on agreed notionat principal omounts. These contracts enable us to mitigate the risk of changing interest rates on the
cash flow exposures on the variable-rate delot we hold. We determineg the farr value of interest rate swaps at the reporting date by
discounting the future cash flows, using the yield curves ot the reporting date and the credit risk inherent in the contract. This farr value
is disclosed on the following page. The average interest rate is based on the outstanding balances at the end of the financial year.

Cash flow hedges
The following table details the notional principal amounts and remaining terms of interest rate swapg contracts outstanding, as at the
reporting date:

Average contract

fixed intarest rate National principal amount __ Fairvalue
2021 2020 20N 2020 2021 2020
Outstanding receive floating pay fixed contracts % % £m Em £m £m
USD interest rate swaps
Less than one year - 1.22 - 363 - -
One to five vears - - - _ - _
- 363 - -
GBP interest rate swaps
One to five years 1.13 161 5.0 250 - 0.2}

The interast rate swaps settle on a quarterly basis, The corresponding floating rate on the interest rate swaps 1$ threg-rmanth LIBOR.
We settle the difference between the fixed and floating interest rate on a net basis.

Interest rate swap contracts that exchange floating-rate interest amounts for fixed-rate interest amounts are designated as cash flow
hedges, to reduce our cash flow exposure resulting from variable interest rates on borrowings. The interest rate swaps and the interest
payments on the loan occur simultaneously and we recognise the amount deferred in equity in the Income Statement, over the period
that the flogting rate interest payments on debt affect the Incame Statement.

Since LIBOR will cease as a reference rate after December 2021, the Group has migrated to similar but more rebust market standard
rates of SONIA as the reference rate for GBP and SOFR as the reference rate for USD. All of the existing interest rate swops expire before
31 December 2021 and as such there 1s no assumed impact from LIBOR reform in assessing whether these swaps continue to meet the
documented hedging criteria.

Commodity hedges
The Group hedges both feed and slaughter exposures using Chicago Mercantile Exchange lean hog, corn and soybean meal
commodity futures contracts.

Average price Notienal principal amount B Fair value

2021 2020 2021 2020 2021 2020
Commodity hedge uss US3 Em Em £m £m
Open commaodity contracts as at June 2021
Lean hog 0.79 058 7.6 4.7 {0.8) 09
Corn 4.78 382 {4.3) 20 1.0 {0.1)
Soybean meal 382 300 (3.5) (2.1} (0.1} -

B (D.i) - (01) 0.1 08
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Net investment hedges

The Group policy is to hedge no more than 70% of its wholly owned subsidianes, The Group has designated EUR 12.5 million of Pig
Improvement Company Esponia, 8.A. ond Bovec S.A. 0s a hedged item using EUR 12.5 milhon of the revolving credit facility as a net
investment hedge.

The table below shows a reconciliation of the gains or loss deferred in equity.

2021 2620

Em Em

Loss at the start of the year (0.5) (©a)
Effective gains/llosses) recognised in equity in period 0.4 0.1)
Balance carried forward in equity as effective losses {0.1) {05)

Credit risk manogement

Credit nsk is the risk that a counterparty will default on its contractual opligations, resulting in financial loss to the Group. We have a
policy of only dealing with creditworthy counterparties. We regularly monitor our exposure and the credit rotings of our counterparties,
and the aggregate value of transactions concluded is spread amongst approved counterparties. Credit exposure on financial
instruments is controlled by counterparty limits that the Board reviews arnd approveas anrually.

Trade receivables consist of a large number of customers, spread across diverse industries and gecgraphical areas. We carry out
ongoing credit evaluation of the financial condition of accounts receivabie.

Liquidity risk management

The Board of Directors has ultimate responsibility for managing liquidity risk. We manage this nisk by maintaining adequate reserves
ond barking facilities, by continucusly monitonng forecast ond actual cash flows, and by matching the maturity profiles of financial
ossets and liabilities.

Liquidity and interest risk tables
For nen-derivative fingncial liakiiities, see notes 27, 28 and 38.

The following table datails the Group’s remaining contractual maturity for its non-derivative financial liabilities, excluding

trade payables and cther creditars which are short term and, as disclosed in note 23, have an average credit period of 27 days
(2020: 21 days). We have drawn up the table based on the undiscounted cash flows of financial labilities, using the earliest date
on which we can be required to pay. The table includes both interest and principal cash flows.

Weightad
average
affactive Less than 3 months—
interest rate 1month 1-3 menths 1year 1-5 years 5+ yoars Total
% £m Em £m £m £m £m
2021
Loans and borrowings 1.13 6.9 0.4 99 1115 ~ 1287
Lease liabilities 281 - 2.4 7.1 213 2.8 3346
Deferred consideration - - 0.1 1.2 0.4 - 17
Varigble interest rate instruments 1.66 69 29 18.2 133.2 2.8 1640
2020
Loans and borrowings 092 8 02 02 1065 - 1167
Lease liabilities 300 - 28 8.4 197 39 348
Deferred consideration - - 4o 292 12 - 87
Variable interest rate instruments 153 @8 74 115 1274 32 1602

The following table details the Group's expectad maturity for other non-derivative financial assets, excluding trade receivables and
other debtors. We have drawn up this table based on the undiscounted contractual maturitiés of the assets, including interest we will
edarn on them, except where we expect the cash flow to occur in a different period.

Weighted
average
effective Less than 3 months—
interest rate Imenth 1-3 months 1ysar 1-5 years 5+ years Total
% £m £m £m £m Em £m
20
Variatle interest rate instruments 1.03 38.2 - 78 - - 46.0
2020
Variable interest rate instruments 1.10 413 - - - - 413

The Group has financing facilities with o total unused amount of £129.3m (2020: £125.4m} at the balance sheet date We expect 1o maet
our other obligations from operating cash flows and the proceeds of maturing financial assets We expect to reduce the debt 1o aguity
ratio, as borrowings decrease through repayment from operating cash flows.
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The following table details the Group's liquidity analysis for its derivative financial instruments. We have drawn up the table based
on the undiscounted net cash outflows on derivative nstruments that settle on a net basis and the undiscounted gross outflows on

derivatives that require gross settlement. When the amount payable or receivable is not fixed, we have determined the amount

disclosed by reference to the projected interest and foreign currency rates, as illustrated by the yield curves at the reporting date.

Less than I months—
1month 1-3 months iyear 1-5years 5+ years Total
£m £m £m £m £m Em
2021
Foreign exchange contracts - - - - - -
Commodity swaps 0.3 {0.1) {0.1) - - 0.1
Interest rate swaps - - - - - -
2020
Foreign exchange contracts 0.2 - - - - 02
Cammodity swaps 03 05 - - - 0.8
Interest rate swaps - 01 01 - - 02

Commodity swaps and interest rate swaps are atways settled on a net basis. Foreign exchange contracts can be settled on a net or
gross basis; the net cash flows prasented in the table above reflect an inflow of £88.4m and outflow of £88.4m {2020: inflow of £70.3m

and outflow of £70.1m).

27. LOANS AND BORROWINGS

The Group's boerrowing for funding and liquidity purposes comes from a range of committed bank facilities.

Interest-bearing loans and borrowings

We initially recognise interest-bedring loans and borrowings at their fair value, less attributakle transaction costs. After this initial
recegnition, we state them at amortised cost and recognise any difference between the cost and redemption value in the Income
Statement over the borrowings’ expected life, on an effective interest rate basis. The carrying vaiues of these ligbilities are a

reasonable approximation of their fair values.

202

2020

Em £m
Non-current liabilities
Unsecured bank loans 109.4 10346
Obligations under leases {see note 28) 193 211
128.7 1247
Current liabilities
Unsecured bank loans and overdrafts 139 92
Obligations under leases (see note 28) 9.0 100
229 192
Total interest-bearing liabilities 151.6 1439
Terms and debt repayment schedule
Terms and conditions of outstanding loans and overdrafts were as follows:
2021 2021 2020
Currergy  Interest rate Erm £m
Revolving credit facility and overdraft GRBP 15% 43.2 284
Revolving credit facility, term loan and overdraft ush 1.5% 597 485
Revolving credit facility and overdraft EUR 1.4% 10.7 68
Obligations under leases usD 28% 28.3 311
Other unsecured bank berrowings Other 0.8% 9.7 89
Tetal interest-bearing liabilities 151.6 1439

The above revolving credit facilitias are unsecured.

shown in note 26.

Information about the Group's exposure to interest rate and foreign currency risks is
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27. LOANS AND BORROWINGS CONTINUED

200 2030

Loans and barrowings lexcluding leases] prise amounts falling due: £m £m
in one year or less or on dermand 147 25
In more than ona year but not more than two years - 1034
In more than two years byt not more than five years 1099 -
124.6 1131

Less: unamortised issue costs (1.3 {03
123.3 112.8

Current liabilities {139 (22}
Non-current liabilities 109.4 1036

At the balance sheet date, the Group's credit facilites comprised a £150m multi-currency revolving credit facility VRCF), o USD125
million RCF and a USD20 million bond and guarantee facility. The original term of the facility is for three years with two years remaining
at the balance sheet date. There is an option to extend the matunty date for a furthar year before the first and second anniversanes
of the signing date. The first extension has been requested 10 24 August 2024 and approved by all participating banks, extending the
credit facility by o further 12 months. The facility also includes an uncommitted £100m accordion option, which can be requested on

a maximum of three occasions over the lifetime of the facility 1o fund the Group’s business development plans.

As part of its interest rate strategy, the Group has entered into interest rate swaps to hedge floating LIBOR rates. As a result, bank loan
and overdrafts include borrowings of £5m fixed at 113%, excluding applicable bank margin.

28. OBLIGATIONS UNDER LEASES
A lease is a commitment to make o payment in the future, primarily in relation to property, plant and machinery and motor vehicies.

Accounting policies
In accordance with IFRS 16, we recognise ds an expensa any payments made in respect of short-term leases (those with a term of less
than 12 months) and leases for low-value items on a straight-line basis over the life of the lease.

For all other leases we recognise a liability at the date at which the leased asset is made available for use, and a corresponding
right-of-use asset is recognised and depreciated over the term of the lease (see note 17).

Lease ligkilities are measured at the present value of the future lease payments, excluding any payments relating to non-lease
components. Future lease payments include fixed payments, in-substance fixed payments, and variable lease payments that are
based on an index or a rate, less any lease incentives receivable. Lease liabilities also take into account amounts payable under
residual value guarantess and payments to exercise options, 10 the extent that it is reasonably certain that such payments will
be made. The payments are discounted at the rate implicit in the lease or, where that cannot be measured, at an incremental
barrowing rate.

We remeasure the lease liability ([and make a corresponding adjustment to the related nght-of-use asset) whenever:

> The lease term has changed or there is @ change in the assessment of the exercise of a purchase option, in which case the lease
liability 1s remeasured by discounting the revised lease payments using a revised discount rate.

> The lease payments change due to changes in anindex or rate or a change in expected payment under a guaranteed residual
value, in which cases the lease liability is remeasured by discounting the revised lease payments using the initial discount rate
{unless the lease payments change is dug to @ change in o floating interest rate, in which case a revised discount rate is used).

> Alease contract 1 modified, and the lease modification is not accounted for as @ separate lease, In which case the lease liability
is remeasured by discounting the revised lease payments using o revised discount rate.

The Group did not make gny such adjustments during the periods presented.

The changes in the lease labilities are as follows:

2021 2020

£m L
Balance at the start of the year 31.1 6.1
Recognised on the adoptian of IFRS 16 - 264
Leases entered into during the year 10.4 21
Leases terminated early (1.0 -
Payments made (12.5) (12.1)
interest 0.8 10
Effect of movements In exchange rates (0.5) 04
Balance at the end of the year 283 311

At 30 June 2021, the Group 13 committed to £0.Im (2020: £0.m) for short-term leéases.
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The maturity of the obligations under leases are as follows

200 2020
Em £m
Fy21 - 100
Fyze 0 78
FY23 68 52
FY24 47 3.2
FY25 2.8 14
FY26 2.0 1.2
FY27 1.3 1.2
FY28 0.8 Q7
After FY28 09 02
28.3 311

Presented Qs:
Current 2.0 100
Non-current 19.3 211
283 311

Lease obligations denominated in currencies other than Sterling comprise £15.9m denominated in US Dollars (2020° £18.0m),
£2.7m denominated in Euros (2020: £3.3m) and £3.0m dencminated in other currencies {2020: £2.4mi.

29. RETIREMENT BENEFIT OBLIGATIONS

The Group cperates o number of defined contribution and defined benefit pension schemes covering many of its employees.

The principal funds are the Milk Pension Fund ('MPF) and the Dalgety Pension Fund {'DPF}in the UK, which are defined benefit schemes.
The assets of these funds are held separately from the Group's assets, are administered by trustees and managed professionally,

Accounting policies

Defined contribution pension schemes

A number of our employees are members of defined contribution pension schemes. We charge contributions to the Income Statement
as they become payable under the scheme rules. We show differences between the contributions payable and the amount we have
paid as either accruals or prepayments in the Balance Sheet. The schernes’ assets are held separately from the Group's assets.

Defined benefit pension schemes

The Group operates defined benefit pension schemes for some of its employees. These schemes are closed to new mambers

and to further accrual. We caleulate cur net obligation separately for each scheme, by estimating the amount of future benefit that
amployees have earned, in return for therr service to date. We discount that benefit to determine its present value and deduct the fair
value of the plan's assets (ot bid price). The liability discount rate we use is the market yield at the balance sheet dote on high-quality
corporate bonds, with terms to matunty approximating our pension liabilities. Quaiified actuanes perform the calculations, using the
projected unit method.

We recognise actuarial gains and losses in equity In the period in which they occur, through the Group Statement of Comprehensive
Income. Actuarial gains and losses include the difference between the expected and actual return on scheme assets ond experience
gains and losses on scheme ligbiiities.

Genus and the other participating employers are jointly and severally liable for the MPF's obligations. We account for our section of the
scheme and our share of any orphan assets and liabilities, and provide for any amounts we believe we will have to pay under our jeint
and several liability. The joint and several liability also means we have a contingent liability for the scheme’s obiigations that we have
not accountad for.

Under the joint and several liability, we initiclly recognise any changes in our share of orphan assets and habilities in the Income
Statement. After this initial recognition, any actuarial gains and losses on the orphan assets and liabilities are recognised directly
in equity through the Group Statement of Changes in Equity, in the penod in which they occur.

During the year, the DPF defined benefit pension scheme purchased annuities in order 1o hedge longevity risk for pensioners within the
scheme. As permitted by IAS 19, the Group has opted to recagnise the difference between the fair value of the plan assets and the cost
of the policy as an actuarial loss in Other Compreheansive Income.

We measure the fair value our gualifying insurance policy assets to be the deemed present value of the related obligation,
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Retirement benefit obligations

The financial positions of the defined benefit schemes, as recorded in accordance with 1AS 19 and IFRIC 14, are aggregated for
disclosure purposes. The liability split by principal scheme is set out below.,

202 2020

£m £m

The Milk Pension Fund — Genus's share 2.2 75
The Dalgety Pension Fundg - -
National Pig Development Pension Fund 0.3 07
Post-retirement healthcare 0.6 04
Other unfunded schemes 8.0 23
Overall net pension liakility 1.1 181

Overall, we expect to pay £4.1m (2021 £8.0m) in contributions 1o defined benefit plans in the 2022 financial year.

The defined benefit plans are administered by trustee boards that are legally separated from the Group. The trustee board of each
pension fund consists of representatives who are employees, former employees or are independent from the Company. The boards of
the pension funds are required by law to act in the best interest of the plan participants and are responsible for setting certain policies,
such as investment and contribution policies, and for the governance of the fund.

The defined benefit pension schemes expose the Group to actuanal rigks such as greater than expected longevity of members, lower
than expected return on nvestments and higher than expected inflation, which may increase the plans’ liabilities or reduce the value of
their assets.

UK pensions are regulated by The Pensions Regulator, a non-departmenta! public body established under the Pensions Act 2004
ond sponscred by the Department for Work aond Pensions, operating within a legal regulatory framework set by the UK Parliament.
The Pensions Regulator has statutory objectives set out in legislation, which include promoting and improving understanding of the
good administration of work-based pensions, protecting member benefits and regulating occupational defined benefit and
contricution schemes. The Pensions Regulator's statutory objectives and regulatory powers are described on its website at
thepensionsregulatorgov.uk.

All defined beneht schemes are registered as an occupational pension plan with HMRC and are subject to UK legisiation and oversight
from The Pensions Regulator. UK legislation requires that pension schemes are funded prudently and valued at lecst every three years.
Separate valuations are required for each scheme. Within 15 months of each valuation date, the plan trustees and the Group must
agree any contributions required to ensure that the plan is fully funded over timeg, on a suitably prudent measure.

Funding plans are individually agreed with the respective trustees for each of the Group's defined benefit pension schemes, taking Into
account local regulatory requirements.

Cn 20 November 2020, the High Court ruled that individual transfer payments made since 17 May 1990 would need to be eguclised
for the effects of GMP. This judgment followed on from the previous judgment on 26 October 2018, where the High Court ruled that
schemes hod o legal obligation to pay benefts allowing for GMP egualisation, resulting in an additionol iobility being recognised
The previous judgment had not considered histeric transfer values. Genus's pension schemes are alsa affected by this ruling, resulting
in on aggregate past service charge of £2.3min the pefiod, being £09m for the DPF and £1.4m for the MPF.

The Milk Pension Fund 'MPF)

The MPF was previously operated by the Milk Marketing Board and was also open to staff working for Milk Margue Ltd (the principal
amployer, now known as Community Foods Group Limitad), National Milk Records plc, First Milk Lid, hauliers associated to First Milk Ltd,
Dairy Farmers of Britain Ltd {which went into recevership in June 2009) and Miik Link Ltd.

We have gccounted for our section of the scheme and our share of any orphan assets and liokilities, which together represent
approximately 86% of the MPF {2020: 86%). Although the MPF 1s managed on a sectionalised basis, it1s ¢ last man standing scheme’,
which means that all participating employers are jointly and severally iable for all of the fund's liabilities. With effect from 30 June 2013,
Genus's remaining active members ceased accruing benefits in the fund and became deferred pensioners.

The most recent actuarial triennial valuation of the MPEF was at 31 March 2018 and was carried aut by qualified actuanes. The valuation
has been agreed by the trustees,

The principal actuarial assumptions adopted in the 2018 valuation were that.

> investment returns on existing assets would exceed fixed-interest gilt yields by 1.6% per annum until 31 March 2030, then by 0.5% per
annum thereofter;

> Consumer Price Index 'CPI price inflation 1s expected to be 0.9% per annum lower than Retail Price Index ('RPY) price inflation; and

> pensions in payment and pansions in deferment would increase in future in line with CPI price inflation, subject to various minimum
and maximum increqses.

At 31 March 2018, the market value of the fund's assets wos E454m. This represented coproximately 95% of the value of the uninsured
liabilities, which were E4BOm at that date.
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The deficit in the fund as a whole, by reference to the 31 March 2018 valuation, was £26m {of which Genus's notional share was £22m).
This shortfall is being addressed by additional contributions from the participating employers. Under the trustee prepared schedule of
contrbutions, Genus is required to make deficit repair contributions of £6.0m per annum commencing 1 Apnl 2018, and rising thereafter
by 3.4% per annum until 30 September 2021, In addition to funding the scheme's operating expenses.

The disclosures required under |AS 19 have been caleulated by an independent actuary, based on accurate calculations carned out as
at 31 March 2018 and updated to 30 June 2021

Genus has assessed its additional pension ligbility under IFRIC 14 by reference to this schedule of contributions, resulting in an amount
of £42.9m (2020:; £22.6m) being recognised in the Group Statement of Comprehensive Income.

Nalgety Pension Fund ('DPF')
The most recent actuarial valuation of the DPF was at 31 March 2018 and was carried out by gualified actuaries.

The principal actuarial assumptions adepted in the 2018 voluation were that:

> investment returns on existing assets would exceed fixed-interest gilt yields by 1.6% per annum until 31 March 2018, then equal the gilt
yield per annum thereafter;

> CPlprice inflation is expected to be 0.7% per annum lower than RPI price inflation; and

> pensions in payment and pensions in deferment would increase in future inline with CPI price inflation, subject to varnious minimum
and maximem increaseas.

The market value of the available assets at 31 March 2018 was £329m. The value of those assets represented approximately 109% of
the value of the uninsured liabilities, which were £30.2m ot 31 March 2018, Under the funding agreement, the Company will not have to
make deficit repair contributions.

The disclosures required under 1AS 19 have been calculated by an independent actuary, based on accurate calculotions corried out as
at 31 March 2018 and updated to 30 June 2021.

As at 30 June 2021 the DPF, which includes a £20.5m separate reserve held against future unknown liabilities materialising, was in an
overall net pension asset position of £8.8m. However, the Company doas not have the unilateral right to this surplus and therefore In
line with IFRIC 14, the recognition of this asset is rastricted.

In August 2019, the trustees purchased an additional bulk buy-in annuity policy with Legal and General in respect of the remaining
deferred and pensioner members, at a cost of £38m. This reflected a £15m premium over an estimated IAS 19 liability of £23m, reducing
the restriction on the recognition of assets.

The primary bulk anauity policy was securad with an insurance company in July 1999, which matched the benefit entitlement of aimost
all of the fund's current and deferred pension liabilities at that time. The value of the peolicy and related liabilities at 30 June 2021 was
£654m (2020 £691m). We do not have any legal rights to any surplus relating to these bulk annuity policies.

National Pig Development Company Pension Fund ('NPD'}

The Group operates o closed defined benefit scheme for a small number of former employees of the National Pig Development
Company Limited. The total market value of scheme assets and liabilities at 30 June 2021, under the provisions of IAS 19, were £6.3m
(2020 £61m) and £6.6m {2020: £6.8m), respectively.

The most recent actuarial triennial valuation of the NPD was at 30 June 2017 and was carmed out by qualified actuaries. The valuation
has been agreed by the trustees.

The principal actuarial assumptions adopted in the 2017 valuation were that:

> investment returns on existing assets would exceed fixed-interest gilt yields by 1.7% per annum;

> CPiprice inflation is expected to be 1.0% per annum lower than RPI price inflation; and

> pensions in payment and pensions in deferment would increase in future in line with CPI price inflation, subject to various minimum
and Maximum iINCreqases.

The market value of the available assets at 30 June 2017 was £5.2m. The value of those assets represented approximately 78% of the
value of the uninsured ligbilities, which were £6.7m at 30 June 2077 Under the trustee prepared schedule of contnibutions, Genus is
required to make deficit repair contributions of £250,000 per annum commencing 1 July 2017,

The disclosures required under 143 19 have been calculated by an independent actuary, based on accurate calculations carried out as
at 30 June 2017 and updated to 30 June 2021

Cther unfunded schemes
When the Group acguired Sygen International ple in 2005, it also acquired three unfunded defined enefit schemes and an unfunded
retirermnent health beneft plan, which it now operates for the benefit of the pravicus Group's senior empioyees and executives.

Unfunded defined benefits schemeas

The scheme liabilities for the three unfunded defined benefit schemes amounted to £6.6m (2020: £8.4m), based on {AS 19's methods
and assumptions. This amaunt is included within pension liabilities in the Group Balance Sheet. It also operates several unfunded
defined benefits which amounted to F1.4m (2020: £0.9m). Interest on pension scheme liabilities amounted to £0.2m (2020: £0.2m). The
disclosures required under 1AS 19 have been calculated by an independent actuary, using the principal assumptions used to calculote
the scheme liabilities as for the defined benefit schemes.
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Post-retirernent healthcare

The scheme liabilities for the unfundad retirement health benefit plan amounted to £0.6m (2020: £0.6m}, based on 145 19's metheds and
assumptions. This amount 15 included within retirement benefit obligations in the Group Balance Sheet. Interest on plan liabilities
amounted to £nil (2020: £nif),

The principal assumptions used to calculate the plan liabilities were that the discount rate would be 190% (2020: 1.65%) and that the
long-term rate of medical expense inflation would be 9% (2020: 6.8%).

Aggregated position of defined benefit schemes

2021 2020

£fm I

Present value of funded obligations includes Genus's B6% shaore of MPF {2020: B&%)) 1,0977 11595
Present value of unfunded cbligations a9 98
Total present value of obligations 1,106.6 11653
Farr value of plan assets lincludes Genus's 86% shore of MPF (2020: 86%)) 1,147.2) (11825
Restricted recognition of asset {DPF) 88 87
Recognition of additional liabrlity {MPF} 429 224
Recognised liability for defined benefit obligotions 111 181

Each of the defined benefit schemes manades risks through a vanety of methods and strategies, including equity protection, 1o limit

the downside risk of falls In equity markets, as well asinflation and interest rate hedging. By funding its defined benefits schemes, the

Group is exposad to the risk that the cost of meeting its obligations is higher than anticipated. This could occur for several reasans, for

example:

> Investrment returns on the schemes’ assets may be lower than anticipated, especially if falls in asset vaiues are not matched by
similar falls in the value of the schemes' liabilities.

> Thelevel of price inflation may be higher than that assumed, resulting In higher payments from the schemes.

> Scherme members may live longer than assumed, for example due to advances in healthcare. Members may also exercise (or not
exercise) options in a way that leads to incredses in the schemes' llabilities, for example through early retirernent or commutation of
pension for cash,

> Legislative changas could alsc lgad to an increase in the schemaes’ liabilities,

Aggregated position of defined benefit schemes
The fair value of the total plan assets at the end of the reporting period for each category is as follows:

Level ) Level 2 level3 202} Level ] Lever 2 Lavel 3 2020

£m £m Em Em Em 2y £m Fm

Equities - 58.5 - 585 - 504 - 506
Diversified growth funds 0.2 98.0 - 98.2 02 @15 - 1.7
Liability driven investments - 1146.8 - 114.8 - 1454 - 1454
Gilts and corporate bonds - i211 - 1211 - 1155 - 1155
Cash 16 4.1 - 5.7 16 T - 20
Property 39 - 344 38.3 33 - 334 365
Direct lending - 3.7 27.4 311 - 28 148 176
Bulk annuity policy - - 6775 6775 - - 7146 7146
Other - - - ~ 12 - - 12
57 402.2 7393 1,147.2 63 4132 7630 1,1825

Note:

Level 1: valued using unadjusted guoted prices in active markets for identical inancial instruments,

Level 2: valued using technigues based on information that car be obtained from aobservable market data.
Level 3 valued using technigues incorporating Information other than clservaole market data.
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Movement in the liability for defined benefit obligations
2021 2020
£m Em
Liability for defined benefit obligations at the start of the year lincluding the bulk annuity pclicy {DPF) 1,169.3 1,1795
Benefits paid by the plans {57.8) (58.1}
Current service costs and interast 18.8 271
Actuarial gains recognised on fund liabilities arising from changes in demographic assumptions 2.7} {23.0}
Actuarial {gainsl/losses recognised on fund liabilities ansing from changes in financial assumptions (22.4) 854
Actuarial gains recognised on fund liabilities arising from experience (other) 09 (415}
Reclassified from accruals 0.7 -
Past service cost 2.3 -
Exchange rate adjustment 0.7} {01}
Liability for defined benefit cbligations at the end of year 1,106.6 1,1693
Movement in plan assets
2021 2020
£m Em
Fair value of plan assets at the start of the year (including the bulk annuity policy (OPFH 1,182.5 12011
Administration expenses (0.4} 0.5)
Reclassified from accruals 03 -
Contributions paid into the plans 74 84
Benefits paid by the plans (s7.8) (58.1)
Interest income an plan assets 189 273
Actuarial {lossesl/gains recognised in equity (3.7 43
Fair value of plan assets at the end of the year 1,147.2 11825
Aggregated position of defined benefit schemes
Summary of movements in Group deficit during the year
2021 2020
£m £m
Deficit in schemes at the start of the year (18.1) (24,2}
Administration expenses (0.4) 0.5)
Exceptional cost of GMP equalisation (2.3) -
Reclassified from accruals (0.4} -
Contributions paid into the plans 74 B4
Net pension inance cost (0.3} 04
Actuarial gains/{losses) recognised during the year 223 (16.6)
Movement in restriction of assets (0.1} 104
{Recognition}/relecse of additional liability (199} 4.7
Exchange rate adjustment 0.7 01
Deficit in schemes at the end of the year (11.1) (18.1)
Amounts recognised in the Group Income Statement
2021 2020
£m £m
Administrative expenses 0.4 05
Interest obligation 18.8 271
Interest income on plan assets (18.9) (273}
Interest on additional ligbility 0.4 0.6
Exceptiona! cost of GMP equalisation 2.3 -
3.0 09




154 GENUS PLC / ANNUAL REPORT 2021

NOTES TO THE GROUP FINANCIAL STATEMENTS CONTINUED i
For the year ended 30 June 2027

29, RETIREMENT BENEFIT OBLIGATIONS CONTINUED
The expense is recognised in the following line items in the Group Income Statement

2021 2020
£m £
Administrative expenses 0.4 Qs
Exceptional cost of GMP equalisotion 2.3 -
Net finance charge 0.3 Q4
3.0 Q9
Actuarial losses/{gains} recognised in the Group Statement of Comprehensive Income
2021 2020
£m £m
Cumulative loss at the start of the year &3.3 419
Actuarial (gains)/losses recognised during the year (22.3) 166
Movement in restriction of assets 0.1 {104)
Recognition/(release) of additional liability 199 (@7
Exchange rate adjustment (ol ] 0.1
Cumulative loss at the end of the year 60.3 633
Actuarial assumptions and sensitivity analysis
Principal actuarial assumptions ([expressed as weighted averages) are:
2021 2020
Discount rata 1.90% 1.65%
Consumer Price Index 2,10% 210%
Retail Price Index 2.85% 280%

The mortality assumptions used are consistent with those recommended by the schemes' actuaries and reflect the latest available
tables, adjusted for the experience of the scheme where appropriate For 2021, the mortality tables used are 97% of the S2NA tables,
with birth year and 2021 CMi projections with o smoothing parameter of Sk = 7.0, subject 1o a long~term rate of improvement of 1.25% for
males and females and 2019 the mortality tables used are 97% of the S2NA tables, with birth year and 2019 CM! projections with a
smoothing parameter of Sk = 7.0, subject to a long-term rate of improvement of 1.25% for males and females,

Aggregated position of defined benefit schemes
The following table shows the assumptions used for all schemes and illustrates the life expectoncy of an averoge member retiring ot
age 65 at the balonce sheet dote and @ member reaching age 65 in 20 years' time,

200 2020
Years Years
Retinng at balance sheet date at age 65 Male 2290 220
Female 24.4 D43
Retiring at age 65 in 20 years' time Male 233 233
Fermale 259 258

Duration of benefit obligations
2021 020
Years Yeaors
Weighted average duration of the defined benefit cbligations 13.8 139
Weighted average duration of the defined benefit obligations, 171 171

axcluding defined benefit cbligations backed by purchased annuities

Sensitivity analysis
Measurement of the Group’s defined benefit obiigation is sensitive to changes in certain key assumptions. The sensitivity analysis below
shows how a reqsonably possible increase or decrease in @ particular assumption would, in isolation, resuit In an increase or decrease
in the present value of the defined benefit obligation as at 30 June 2021 We have included additional sensitivity analysis, which
excludes the value of our defined benefit obligations backed by purchased annuities, as the asset value is the deemed present value
of obligaticns, with no mavement to the overall scheme deficits Given recent market volatility due to the impact of COVID-1%, we
continue to use a sensitivity analysis of 0.5%.

Discount rate Rate of infiatian Life expectancy

Decrease Increase Decrease Increase Decrease Increase

by 0.5% by 0.5% by 0.5% by 0.5% by 1 year by 1year

£€m £m £m £m Em £m

Increase (decraasel In present value of defined abligation 887 (843} BOO} 688 {44 6 4L s
Excluding purchased annuity obligotions 344 1327) 232} 267 (17.3) 173

increase/(decreasel in present vailue of defined obligation

The sensitivity analysis may not be representative of an actual change in the defined benefit obligation, as it is unbikely that changes in
assumptions would occur in isolatron from one another
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The sensitivities assume the funds’ assets remain unchanged. Howeaver, In practice changes in interest rates and inflation will also affect
the value of the funds' assets. The funds' investment strategy is to hold matching assets with values that move in line with the liabilities
of the fund, to protect against changes in interest rates and inflation.

Thig sensitivity analysis has been prepared using the same method adopted when adjusting results of the latest funding valuaton to
the balance sheet date. This 1s the same approach adopted in previous periods.

The history of experience adjustment is as follows:

2021 2020 2019 2018 2017

Em £m Em £m £m

Present value of the defined benefit obligation 1,108.56 11693 1,1/95% 10947 11412
Fair valug of plun assets {1,147.2) {11825} (12011 (1.1293) {L1264)
Restrict recognition of asset and recogmt\on of oddmonol I\ob\hty 51.7 313 458 685 261
Deficit in the plans 111 181 242 339 409
Experience adjustments arising on plan liabilities (%) 2.1 18 48 27 27
Experience adjustments arising on plan assets (%) 2.4 16 25 10 28

30. SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS

We hove a number of share plans used to award shares to Directors and senior managemeant as part of their remuneration. To record
the cost of these, a charge is recognised over the vesting pericd in the Group Income Staterment, based on the fair value of the award
on the date of grant.

Accounting policies

We recognise the falr value of share awords and options granted as an employee expense, with o corresponding increase in equity.
We measure the fair value at the grant date and spread it over the vesting perod of each option. We use a binomial valuation model
to measure the fair value of options and a Black-Scholes valuation model to measure the fair value of share awards. We adjust the
amount we recognise as an expense, to reflect the estimated performance against non-market related conditions and the number of
share awards and options that actually vest at the end of the vesting penod.

The Group recognised a total share-based payment expense of £77m (2020: £5.8m), including National Insurance contributions of
£1.2m (2020: £1.0m).

Share awards

There were 665,522 conditional share awards outstanding at 30 June 2021, These conditional shares were awarded to Executive
Directors and senior mancagemeant under the 2014 Performance Share Plan on 20 November 2014, 14 September 2015, 14 September
2016, 13 September 2017, 9 Cctober 20718, 11 September 2019, 7 April 2020 and 14 September 2020. In accordance with the plan's terms,
participants have received a conditional annual award of shares or nit cost option awards, which will normally vest after three years,
with the proportion of the award vesting depending on growth in the Group's adjusted earnings per share. Further details of the plan's
performance conditions are given in the Directors’ Remuneration Report.

Durmg the year ended 30 June 2021:
185,386 awards were granted on 14 September 2020, with an aggregate fair value of £713%,0C0. The fair value of services received
in return for share awards granted is based on the fair value of share awards granted, measured using o Black-Scholes valuation
model. At the date of grant, the fair value of a share awarded was £38.51, based on an expected dividend yield of C90%.

> 5,219 awards In total were granted on 8 September 2020, 5 October 2020, 12 October 2020, 25 February 2027, 13 April 2021 and
12 April 2021, with an aggregate fair value of £287,000. The fair value of servicas received in return for share awards granted is based
on the fair value of share awards granted, measured using @ Black-Scholes valuation model. At the date of grant, the aggregate
fair value of a share awarded was £446.15, based on an expected dividend yield of 0.76%.

Number of Nurmber of

awards awards

2021 2020

Qutstanding at the start of year 770,690 933772
Exercised during the year (193,601) (203438)
Forfeited during the year {103,172) (210.324)
Granted dur\ng the year 191,605 250,682
Qutstanding at 30 June 665,522 710650
Exercisable at 30 June 108 14,694

Bonus and restricted stock share awards

In addition to the outstanding share awards above, there were 72,464 bonus and restricted stock share awards outstanding at 30 June
2021. The bonus shares were awarded to Executive Directors and senior management as part of the compulsory deferred bonus, and
restricted stock share awards were granted to senior management in connection with recruitment. In accordance with the awards’
terms, participants have received a conditional annual bonus award of shares or nil cost option awards, which will normally vest
between one and three years after award, providing the participant is employed by the Group at that time.

In the year ended 30 June 2021, 22,383 bonus share awards were granted on 14 September 2020, with an aggregate fair value of £862,000.
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Number of Nunoe- of

awards awaras

2021 2020

Cutstanding ot the start of year 84,061 138633
Exercised dunng the year {32,654) (33,269)
Forfeited during the year (1,324)  (42041)
Granted during tha year 22,383 20738
Outstanding at 30 June 72,466 84061

Exercisable at 30 June - _

Share options

On 12 August 2004, the Group established a share option programme that entitles key management and other senior employees to
purchase shares in the Company. Further gronts on similar terms were offered to these employeea groups as set out below. The terms
and conditions of the grants are as set out below. All options are to be settled by physical delivery of shares and meet the criteria for
being treated as aguity settled.

Ermpoyeas enttled Grant date Numoer of nstrur-ents  Vesting condions Opt o= exeicise pace  Cornlraciual dle of opt ons
2004 Company share plan @ Septemiber 2011 3398 Exercisable 97783p 10 vyears
2004 Company share plan 7 Septembyer 2012 15,245 Exercisable 1334008 10 years
2004 Company share plan 26 Septemier 2013 13990 Exercisable 141300p 10 yeors
Total share options 32633

Share options
The number and weighted average exercise prices of share options are as follows:

Woeighted Weighted

average average
axercise Nutber of excrcise Nurrber of
price aptions prce optiong
2021 202 2020 2020
Outstanding at the start of year 1173p &§7131 1137p 120,688
Forfeited during the year 915p 19,489) - -
Share appreciation nghts effected during the year 1,059p {5,134) 1,184p {16,491)
Exercised duning the year 981p {19,875) 1021p (37.068)
Outstanding at 30 June 1,331p 32,433 1173 57131
Exercisable at 30 June 1,331p 32,633 1173p 67131

The options at 30 June 2021 had a weighted average remaining contractual life of 1.4 years (2020: 2.0 years). No share options were
granted during the year (2020: nill. The weighted average share price at the date of exercise dunng the year was E44.73p (2020: £31.34p).

31. CAPITAL AND RESERVES
Called up share capital is the number of shares in issue at their par valug, A number of shares were issued in the year, in relation the
employee share schemes.

Accounting policies
Equity instruments issued by the Group are recorded ot the amounts of the proceeds racelved, net of direct 1ssuance costs.

Own shares

We include the transactions, assets and liabilities of the Group-sponsored Qualifying Employee Share Ownership Trust { QUEST ) in the
Group Financial Statements. In particular, the trust’s purchases of the Company's shares are deducted from shareholders’ funds untit
they vest unconditionally with employees.

Share capital

200 2620 2021 2020
Number NLmoer Em falagd

Issued and fully paid

Ordinary shares of 10 pence 45,761,500 45091625 &.5 4.5

There is no authorised share capital irmit.
Tre holders of ordinary shares are entitled 1o receive dividends, as declared from tme to time.

The movement in share copital for the penod was as foliows:

207 2020 2021 3020

Numbar Numoer Em £

Issued under the Executive Share Option Plan 19,875 37066 - -
Issued to Employee Benefit Trust 650,000 - 01 -

469,875 37066 01 -
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31, CAPITAL AND RESERVES CONTINUED
Shares issued under the Executive Share Option Plan were issued at option prices as follows:

2021 2021 2020 2020

Numbar Price Number Price

Executive Share Option Plan - - 6,097 654.50p
6,599 729.83p @213 72983p

9,032 977.83p 7175 Q7783p

1,738 1334.00p 6209  133400p

2,506 1413.00p 8372 141300p

19,875 737,066

Reserve for own shares

The Company’s shares are held by a QUEST, which is an employee benefit trust established to focilitate the operation of cur long-term
incentive scheme for senicr management. The reserve amount represents the deduction in arriving at shareholders’ funds for the
consideration the trust paid for the Company's shares, which had not vested unconditionally at the balance sheet date. The number
and market value of the ardinary shares held by the Employee Benefit Trust and the QUEST were:

2021 2070 2021 2020

Numbar NLTber £m £m

Shares allocated but not vested 509,269 75,184 25.2 26
Unallocated shares 92,334 Q2,334 4.6 3.3
601,603 167518 298 5¢

The shares have a nominal value of £60,160 (2020: £16,752).

Translation reserve
The translation reserve comprises all foreign currency differences arising from translating the financicl statements of our foreign operations.

The Group uses foreign currency denominated borrowings of £10.7m (2020: £6.8m) as a hedge against the translation exposure

on the Group's net investment in overseas companies. Where the hedge is fully effective at hedging the variability in the net assets

of such companies caused by changes in exchange rates, the changes in value of the borrowings are recognised in the Consolidated
Statement of Comprehensive Income ond accumulated in the hedging and transiation reserves. The ineffective part of any change in
value caused by chonges in exchange rates is recognised in the Consolidated Income Statement.

Hedging reserve
The hedging reserve comprises the effective portion of the cumulative net change in the fair value of cash flow hedging instruments,
net of taxation,

Hedging and translation reserves
Hedging Translation

rasarve raserve

£m £m

Balance at 30 June 2019 02 358
Exchange differences on translation of overseas operations - {4.8)
Gain recognised on net investment hedges - (0.1}
Gain recognised on cash flow hedges — Interest rate swaps (0.4 -
Income tax related to net gains recognised in othar comprehansive income - {1.4)
Balance at 30 June 2020 02 295
Exchange differences on translation of overseas operations - (45.4)
Loss racognised on net investment hedges - Q.4
Loss recognised on cash flow hedges - interest rate swaps 0.2 -
Income tax related to net losses recognised in other comprehensive income - 7.6

Balance at 30 June 2021 - (79)
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32, NOTES TO THE CASH FLOW STATEMENT

lrestated!
2021 2020
£m Em
Profit for the year 446.8 357
Adjustment for;
Net 'AS &1 valuation movement on biological assets 10.8 (158)
Amortisation of acguired intangible assets Th 85
Share-based payment expanse 77 58
Share of profit of joint ventures and associctes (13.1) 89
Finance costs (nat] 50 50
Income tax expense 9.0 106
Exceptional items 33 192
Adjusted operating profit from continuing operations 769 601
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment 24.0 240
Loss on disposal of plant and equipment 0.4 37
Loss on disposal of intangible assets 0.5 12
Amortisation and impairment of intangible gssets 37 bés
Adjusted earnings before interest, tax, depreciation and amortisation 105.5 P36
Cash impact of exceptional iters (3.0) (58}
Other movements in biological assets and harvested produce (12.8) (29)
Decrease in provisions ond release in deferred considerotion {0.4) {2.2)
Additional pension contributions in excess of pension charge (7.0) (75
Other (1.3 (o
Operating cash flows before movement in working capital 810 739
{Increase)/decrease In Inventories (1.3) 0.1
Increase in receivables (11.0) (8.8)
Increase in payables ire 120
Cash generated by operations 86.6 772
Interest receved 0.4 0.3
interest and other finance costs paid (2.8) (34)
Interest on teased assets {c.8) (1.0}
Cash flow from derivative financial instrumeants 0.2 05
Income taxes paid (16.1) {135)
Net cash from operating activities &7.5 601
1 See-~ote 2 for deta s of the pror oercd restaterent
Analysis of net debt
Totat changes In liobilities due to financing activities are as follows:
Other
A1 July Not Foreign non-cash At 30 June
2020 cash flows exchanga movements 00
£m £m Em £m Em
Cash and cash equivalents (see note 22) 4l3 6.6 {1.9) - 46.0
Interest-bearing loans — current (see note 27 (32} (4.4} a.é {0.9) (13.9)
Lease liabilities — current (see note 28) {20.0) 117 0.2 (10.9) (90)
1182 7.3 08 (11.8) 22.9)
Interest-bearing loans - non-current {see note 27) {103.6) (12.7) 69 - {109.4)
Lease liabilities - non-current {see note 28) (211} - 0.3 15 (19.3)
{1247} 127 72 15 {128.7)
Total debt financing (1435} (5.4 8.0 {10.3} {151.6)
Net debt (1026} 1.2 6.1 {10.3) (105.6)

Included within non-cash movements s £2.4m in relgtion to net new leases and £09m in the unwinding of dabt Issue costs.
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33. OPERATING LEASES

Accounting policies

For shart-term leases (those with o term of less than 12 months) and low-value items, we charge the rentals payable to the Income
Statement on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

The Company has elected not to opply IFRS 16 to contracts where the right-of-use asset would be recognised as an intangile asset
fe.g. software licencas).

Total of future minimum lease payments uncler non-cancellable operating leases which expire:

2021 2020

£m £m

In less than one year 0.8 08
Belween one and hve years - 08
In more than five years - -
08 16

34. CAPITAL AND OTHER COMMITMENTS
At 30 June 2021, outstanding contracted capital expenditure amounited 1o £1.2m and related to the purchase of property, plant and
equipment (2020: £13.2m).

35. CONTINGENCIES AND BANK GUARANTEES
Contingent liabilities are potential future cash outflows, where the likelihcod of paymenits is considerad more than remote but is not
considerad probable or cannot be measured reliably. Assessing the amount of liabifities that are not probable is highly judgemental.

The retirement benefit obligations referred to in note 29 include obligations relating to the MPF defined benefit scheme. Genus,
together with other participating employers, is joint and severally liable for the scheme’s obligations. Genus has accounted for its
section and its share of any orphan assets and liakilities, collectively representing approximately 86% (2020: 86%) of the MPF. As a
result of the Joint and several ligbility, Genus has a contingent liability for the scheme's obligations that it has not accounted for.
The total deficit of the MPFE from the maost recent triennial valuation can be found in note 29.

The Group has widespread global operations and is consequently a defendant in many legal, tax and customs proceedings incidental
to those operations. in addition, there are contingent liabilities arising 1n the narmal course of business in respect of indemnities,
warranties and guarantees. These contingent liabilities are not considered to be unusual in the context of the normal operating
activities of the Group. Provisions have been recognised in accordance with the Group accounting policies where required. None

of these claims are expected to result in a matericl gain or loss to the Group.

As described in note 7, the Group is nvolved in ongoing litigation proceedings and investigations with ST that are at various legal
stages. The Group makes a provision for amounts to the extent where an outflow of economic benefit is probabie and can be rehably
estimated. However, there are specific claims identified In the litigation which the Group considers the outcome of the claim is not
probable and will not result in the ocutflow of economic benefit.

The Group's future tax charge and effective tax rate could be affected by factors such as countries reforming their tax legislation
to implemeant the GECD's BEPS recommendations and by European Commission initiatives including state aid investigations.
Further information can be found in note 11.

At 30 June 2021, we had entered inte bank guarantees totalling £191m (2020: £5.9m).

34. DIRECTORS AND KEY MANAGEMENT COMPENSATION

In accordonce with 1AS 24 ‘Related Party Disclosures’, key management personnel are those having authority and responsibility for
planning, directing and coentrolling the activities of the Group, directly or indirectly. Key management personnel comprise the Directors
and the other members of the Executive Management Committee.

2021 2020

£€m Em

Salaries and short-term employee benefits 8.0 72
Post-employment benefits 0.2 03
Share-based payment expense 4.1 20
123 95

Directors
Further details of Directors’ compensation are included in the Directors’ Remuneration Report.

Other transactions with key management personnel
Other than remuneration, there were no transactions with key management personnel.
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37. GROUP ENTITIES

In accordance with section 409 of the Companies Act 2006, a list of subsidiaries and joint ventures and associates as at
30 June 2021is set out below. All subsidiary undertakings are subsidiary undertakings of their immediate parent undertokingls),

unless otherwise indicated.

Nature of business
Bovine

Name ofundertaking

ABS Argentina S.A,

ABS Chile Limitada

ABS Gehetlcs South Afnica (Pty) Prestige Park Block B, Unit No 5B, Postarole Street,

Ltd

ABS Global (Canada) Inc.
ABS Globual, Inc
ABS Italia Srl.

ABS México, $.A. de CV.

ABS Polska Sp. z 0.0,

ABS Progen Ireland Unlimited

Company

Bovec SASU

Chitale Genus ABS Uﬂdl(])
Private Limited

De Nova Genetics tLC

Genus ABS Colombia SAS

Genus australia Pty Ltd

Genus (Beijing] lntemutwonol
Trade Co., L1d.

Genus Breedmg Incha anote
Limited

Genus Breeding Limited
(01192037

‘Genus Ukraing' LLC

lnimex Geneatics Limited

In¥itro Brasl| Mexnco S.A.
de CV

LLC Gerus ABS Rus

Pecpian ABS Imp. e Exp. Ltda,

5t Jacobs Animal Breeding
Corp.

Jitery S.A.

Direct/

indirect

Country of Group

Ragisterad address {nearporation intarest

A. Castellanos 1169, (3080) Esperanza, Sante Fe, Argentina Direct

Argentna

Avenida del Parqgue #4161 office #6071, Huechuraba, Chile Direct
Santiago, Ch«\e

South Afnco Indirect

Durbanville Industrial Park, Durbanville, 7550, South
Africa

1525 Floradale Road Elmira ON NSB 22, Concdc Canada Inchrect
TSZS River Rood, De Forest Wi 53532 Urited States United States Indirect
Via Bastida nr. &, loc. Cavatigezzi, 26020, Cremona, Italy Indirect
Italy

Kansas Mo, 2028, Quintas Campestre, 31214, Mexico Direct
Ch|huchuo Chih,, Mexico

Szoﬁrowc 22A 82-300 Gronowo Garme, Polgmd Poland Indirect
Suite 6, Rineanna House, Shannon Free Zone, Co. Ireland Indirect
Cfore refand

69 Chem\r\ des Molueres 09210 Lenml\,« Frcmce France Indirect
Arnor Neptune, Ofﬁce No.406, off Baner Road, S Indic Indirect
No.4/1/1. Village Baner, Tal. Havel), Pune,

Maharasitra, india

12846 Criole Drive, New Albin 14 52160, Unitad States Unrted States Inclirect
Avenida Carrerg 70, Ne. 105 - 51, Bogota, Colombia Colombia Indirect
15 Scholar drive, Bundoora VIC 3063, Australia Australia Indirect
B1608, Lucky Tower, EastS 3rd Ring Road, Chaoyang China Indirect
District, Beijing, 100027, China

Armar Neptune, Office No.4Q6, off Baner Road, 5. india Indirect
N6/, Village Baner, Tal Hovell, Pune,

Maharashtra, Incia

tMatnx House Basing View, Basingstoke, Hompshlre UK Direct
RG214DZ, United Kingdom

pldl\SﬁO st 1, K\/WV 03164, Ukrcwne Ukraing Indirect
Matrix House, Basing View, Basingstoke, Hampshire, UK Indirect
RG21 LDZ United ngdom

Plozo Comercml Punto Calornnes, Boulevard Mexico Indirect
Independencia #7446, Interior &, CP. 27140, Cidade

Torreon - Es*cxdo Coahulla, Mexico

Zhefeznodorozhﬂoya Streat, Hou:e 51, Lertar Zh, Russia Indrract
Premises 2, 300042, Tula, Russian Federation

Rod BR OS50 Km 196 - 150metros, Zong Rural, Delta, Brazil indirect
MG 38108 000, Brazil

1525 River Fiocvd De Forest W 53532 United States Urited Statas Indirect
Maximo Tajes 7189, Uruguay Uruguay Indirect

Common

% of share

capital/

voting rights

hald by

Group

Share class companies

ARS1 Ordinary 100%

CLPL Comrmon 100%
Stock

ZARJ. Ordmory 100%

CAD1 Ordinary 100%

uspool 100%
Common

€1 Quota 100%

MXN10 Class 1 100%
MXN1O Class 2

PLN1,000 100%
Ordinary

£0.001 100%
Ordinary

€10 Ordinary 100%

INR1OO 50%

Ordinary

No Par Value 51%
LLC Units

COPlOOOO 100%
Ordinary

AUDL.388 100%
Crdinary

No Por Value 200%
Common Stock

INR1 Ordinary 100%

£1 Crainary 100%

No Par Value 100%
Cormmon Stock

£1 Grdinary 100%

MXN1 Crdinary 9%

RuUBL Grdinary 100%

BRL1 Ordinary 100%

No Par Value 100%
Common

No Par value 100%
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37. GROUP ENTITIES CONTINUED
Nature of business
Porcine
% of share
Direct/ capital/voting
indirect rights held by
Country of Group Group
Name of undertaking Registered address incorporation intarest Share class companies
Agroceres PIC Gengtica de Rua 1JN, 0" 1411 Sala 16 - Jardim Novo, Rio Clare/SP Broazil Indirect BRL1 Ordinary LG%!
Suinas Ltda - CEP, 13.502-741, BFGZ\
Agroceres PIC Suinos Ltda Rua 1 JN, n* 1411, Saro 17 - Jardim Novo, Rio Cloro/sp Brazii Indirect BRL1 Orcinary 4%
- CEP 13.502-741, Brazil
Aviscenter Mellevang A/S MoHeve 3, omo Holsted Denmc:rk Drenmark Indirect DKE 1 49%1
Ordmory
GENEETIC Service S.R.L. Vicle EuropO , 32100 Belluno, Ito\y Italy lnd\rect €l Ordinary 33%L
H‘(—CO Hybridschweine- Tege\berg - 21 24576 Bad Bromstedt Germany Germany indwrect No Par Value 50%!
Cooperations GmbH Comman
Inner Mongola Haoxiang Pig  Jintang Village, Jinding Town, Zhldon County, China Indirect  No Par Velue 49%*
Breed\ng Co. Lid Yan An Mummpo\ ty, Shaanxi Provmce China Common
PIC [Shonghm] Agr\cu\ture Room 702-5, No. 719 Shen Gui Road, Min Hang China \nd\rect No Par Volue 100%
Science and Technology District, Shangha, China Comman
Company Limited
PIC Zhangjiagang) Pig Office 1210, Intemat\ondl Finance Tower 20 ngcng Ching Indirgct uspl 100%
Improvement Co., Ltd. Road, Zhangjagang Bonded Zone, Zhangjiagang Ordinary
City, J\Ongsu Provmce China
P\C Anding SpA Avenida del Parque #4761 ofﬁce #6017, Huechuroboj Chile Indirect CLPL 100%
Santiago, Chile Ordinary
PIC Canada Ltd. Borden Ladner Gervais LLP, 1900-520, 3rd Avenue Canada Indirect CADL 100%
SW, Calgary, Albertd T2P OR3, Canada Ordmcry
PIC France SA 69 Chernin des Mo\reres 69210 Lentilly, Fronce France Indirect €17 Ordmcry 100%
PIC Genetics Designated Riverside One, Sir John Rogerson's Quay, Dublin 2 Ireland Indirect €1.27 Ordinary 100%
Activity Company Ireland €127
Redeermable
preference
shares
PIC Genetics LLC 79 Narodnyy Boulevard, 308000, Belgorod, Russic Indirect RUBL Ordmory 100%
Russian Federation
Pig Improvement Company de Wencesloo de la Barguera No.7, Col. Villas del Sur, Mexico Indrect  No Par Value 100%
Mexico, 8. de R.L. de CV. 76040 Queretarn, Queretaro, Mexica Comman
Stock
PIG Improvement Company Jathostralle Ma, D -30163 Honnover GCermany Germany Indirect No Par Value 100%
Deutschland GmbH Common
Stock
Pig Improvement Company C/Pau Vilg, 22 20 puertc b, 08174 Scnt Cugot del Spain lnd\rect €25 Ordinary 100%
Espafa, SA. Valles, Barcelona, Spoln
Pig Improvement Company UK Matnx House, Basing View, Bosmgstoke Hampshire, UK Indirect £0.10 Grdinary 100%
Limited (00716304)2 RG214DZ, United ngdom
PIC Italia S.r.l. Stroda dei Loggi 22, 06135, Ponte Son G\c:»vcmm Italy Indirect £1 Ordinary 85%
Perugia, \toly
PIC Philippinas, Inc Unit 2101/2102 2'Ist Floor JoHlbee Plazo, F Ort\gos Jr Philippines Indirect PHPIOO 100%
Rd., Crtigas Center, Pasig City, 1605, Philippines Crdinary
PIC USA, Inc. 100 BlueGrass Commons Blvd, Suite 2200, United States Indirect usD1 100%
Hendersonville, TN 3?075 United Stotes Crdinary
RenOVAte B\osmences Inc 3500 South Dupont Highway, Dover De\awore 19901, United States Direct USDOO0L 33%:
United States Series Seed
Preferred
Reprodutores PIC, Lda Av. Eng Duarte Pacheo, Amoreiras, Torre 2 — 1494, Portugal Indirect No Par Value 100%
1070-102 Lishoa, Portugat Common
Stock
Socnetc Agmcok) GENEETIC  Via Morche n. 2 -'42122 Regg\on Emilia, ItGIy Italy Incirect €1 Ordmory 33%!

SR.L
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37. GROUP ENTITIES CONTINUED

Nature of business

Porcine % of share
Direct/ capital/vating
Indirect rights held by
Country of Group Group
Namae of undertaking Registered addrass incerporation intarast Share ¢lass companies
Shaonx PIC Pig improvement 12105, 21st floor, Yun tion Bulding, 12 Feng Cheng Ching Indwrect  No Par Value 100%
Co. ltd. Second Street, Xian Economic Development District, Common
X\on City, Shocmxw Prownce Chmc Stock
Yar'an Xinyongxiang Jimtang Vulloge Jianjun Town Zhidan County, ch An China Indirect No Par Vcﬂue 49 %4
Agricuture Technology Municipolity, in Shaanx Province, Ching Common
Co., td. Stock
Nature of business
Other
% of share
Direct/ copital/voting
indirect rights held by
Country of Group Group
Name of undertaking Reglstered address incorporation interast Share class companies
Accounting & Managerial Kansas No. 2028, Quintas Campastre, 31274, Mexico Indirect  MXN1 Class 1 Q6%
Serwces S de R.L de CV Chlhuohuo th Mex ico
ABS \ntemot\omcl Inc. 1525 River Road, De Forest Wi 53532 Umted Stotes United States Indlirect UsSDL 100%
Ordinary
ABS Pecpian Lrda Rod. BRO50 Km 196 + 150metros, Zona Rural, Delta, Brazi! Oirect BRLL Ordinary 100%
MG ~ 38108-000, Brazi
Agence Spillers N.v. Ploce Saint-Lambbert 14,1200 Woluwe-Sant-Lambert, Belgium Indirect  No Par Value 100%
Belgium Common
Stock
Brazihan Holdings Limited Matrix House, Basing View, Basingstoke, Hompshire, UK Indirect E1 Ordinary 100%
(OOAT‘?O&B) RG21 407, Umted ngdom
Brazilion Propemes le\ted Momx House, Basing View, Basingstoke, Hampshlre UK Direct £1 Ordinory 100%
RG21 QDZ Umted ngdom
Busby Participagdes Ltda. Av., Leopoﬂdmo de Oliveirg, 4113 So\g 303, Centro Brazil Incirect  BRL1 Ordinary 100%
CEP 38010 OOO UBERABA MG
Cannavarro Participagbes Av. Leopoldmo de Olwve\ra z.ms Sala 303 Centro Brozil Indirect BRL1 Orainary 100%
Ltda CEP 38070 OOO UBERABA MG
Oalco Exportadaora Ltda, Av Leopoidmo de Olweirg, 4113 - Scio 303 Uber@bo Brazi! tnclract BRL1 Ordinary 100%
Mmgs Germs CEP 38C10- OOO Brazil
Dolgety Pension Trust Limited  Matnx House Bosmg Vuew Bosmgstoke Hampshire, UK Indirect £1 Cidinary 100%
RG214DZ, United Kingdom
Fyfield (SM) Limited (01026475 Matrix House, Basing View, Basingstoke, Hampshire, LK Indiract £1 Ordinary 100%
RG214DZ, United Kingdom
Fyfield Dormant Matrix House, Basing View, Basingstoke, Hampshire, UK Indirect E1 Ordinary 100%
RG21 ADZ Umzed kmgdom
Fyfield Hollond BV. Matrix House Bosmg View, Bosmgstoke Hampshire, Netheronds Indirect NLG100 100%
RGzi ADZ United ngdom Crdinary
Fyfield Ireland Limited One Spencer Dock, Morth Wo\l Ouoy Dubl\n 1, \relond Ireland Indirect €125 A 100%
Ordinary
E£125 B
Ordmcry
Genus Investments Lirnited Matrix House, Basing View, Basingstoke, Hompshire, LK Direct EJ. Ordinary 100%
020285Y7F RG21 402, United Kingdom
Genus Quest Trustees Limited Mmtnx House, BO ing View, Basingstake, Hompshure. UK Direct £1 Grdinary 100%
RGZ‘T éDZ Unitec ngdom
Genus R&D, Inc. Vorporot\or\ Service Compary, 257 uttre Foffs Orive, Urn ad Stotes Indirect J3%001 100%
Wilmington DE 19808, United States Commaon
Genus Trustees Limited Matrx House, Basing View, Basingstoke, Hampshire, UK Direct £1 Crdinary 100%
RG214DZ, United Kingdom
GIL Fingnce S.érl 121 Avenue de la Faencene, L - 1511, Luxembourg Luxembourg Inchract LSD1 100%

Ordinary
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Nature of business
Other
% of share
Direct/ capital/voting
indirect rights held by
Country of Group Group
Nama of undartaking Ragistered address incorporation intarast Share class campanies
PIC {UK] Limited Matrix House, Basing View, Basingstoke, Hampshire, UK Indirect £1 Orcinary 100%
RG21 407, United Kingdom
PIC Do Brasil Empreendimentos Rua 1IN, no. 1411, Sala 13, Jardim Novo, Rio Clare, Braazil Inchrect BRLOO1 100%
e Participagdes Lida. Estado De S&o Paulo, CEP 13.502.741, Brazil Ordinary
PIC Fyfield Limited (DQ019739)  Matrix House, Basing View, Basingstoke, Hampshire, UK Indirect £1 Ordinary 100%
RG21 407, United Kingdom
PIC Servicios Agiopecuarnos,  Wenceslao de la Barquera No.7, Col. Villas del Sur, Mexico Indirect MXMN1,000 100%
SA deCVv 76040 Queretaro, Queretaro, Mexico Ordinary
Pig Improvement Company Matrix House, Basing View, Basingstoke, Hampshire UK Indirect £1 Ordinary 100%
Cverseas Limited (0071630418 RG21 4D2Z, United Kingdom
Pigtales Limited Matrix House, Basing View, Basingstoke, Hampshire, UK Indirect  £1 Crdinary 100%
RG214DZ, United Kingdom
Premium Genetics Unlimited Suite 6, Ringonna House, Shannon Free Zone, Co. Ireland Indirect 0001 100%
Company Clare, Ireland Ordinary
Promar Internationat Limited Matrix House, Basing View, Basingstcke, Hompshire, UK Direct £1 Ordinary 100%
(03004562) RG21 4DZ, United Kingdom
Skogluno Participagdes Ltda.  Av. Leopoldine de Oliveira, 4113, Sala 303, Centig, Brozil Indirect BRLI Ordinary 100%
CEP: 38010-000, UBERABA-MG
Spillers Limited Matrix House, Basing View, Basingstoke, Hompshire, UK, Indirect £0.25 Ordinary 100%
RG21 407, United Kingdom
Spillers Overseas Limited Matrix House, Basing View, Basingstoke, Hampshire, UK indirect £0.25 Ordinary 100%
(00069723} RG2140DZ, United Kingdom
Sygen, Inc. 100 BiueGrass Commons Blvd, Sute 2200, United States Indirect UsDl 100%
Hendersonville, Th 37075 United States Cammon
Sygen International Limited Muatrix House, Basing View, Basingstoke, Hampshire, United Direct E0.10 Ordinary 100%
{03215874)2 RG214D7, United Kingdom Kingdom
Sygen Investimentos Lida Av. Leopoldino de Oliverrg, 4113 — Sala 303, Uberaba, Brazil Indirect BRLOG3 100%
Minas Gerais, CEP 38010-000, Brazil Crdinary
Usicafé SA c/o Cabinet Mayor, avocats, Rue Jean-Gabriel Switzerland Indirect CHF1,.000 100%
Eynard 6, 1205 Genéve Ordinary
Xelect Limited Horizon House, Abbey Walk, St Andrews, Rife, UK Indirect £0.00L 39%:
Scotland, KY16 9LB Qrdinary

1 Associated undertaxc ngs nCiuding ;o nt venture iIntarasts
2 UK sLosinanes woking advantoge of the oudit exemption with n section 4794 of tre Compames Act 2004



164 GENUS PLC / ANNUAL REPCRT 2021

NOTES TO THE GROUP FINANCIAL STATEMENTS CONTINUED
For the year ended 30 June 2021

38. DEFERRED CONSIDERATION

Accounting policies

We recognise deferred consideration on the Balance Sheet when o business combination contains o contractuc! clause that defers

a portion of the purchase price. When the consideration transferred by the Group in a business combination includes a contingent
consideratian arrangement, the contingent consideration is measured at its acguisition date fair value and included as part of the
consideration transferred in a business combination. Changes in fair value of the cantingent consideration that quatify as measurement
penod adjustments are adjusted retrospectively, with corresponding adjustments against goodwill. Measuremnent penod adjustrments are
adjustments that arise from additional information obtained during the ‘measurement period’ twhich cannot exceed one year from the
acquisition date) about facts and circumstances that existed at the acquisiton date.

Subsequent contingent consideration foir value remeasurerments that do not qualify as measurement period adjustments are
recognised in the Income Statement.

Contingent deferred consideration is measured at fair value and the valuation basis is Level 3 classification, where fair value
technigues use Inputs which have a significant effect on the recorded fair value that are not based on chservable market data,

Contingent
deferred Deferred

ation id ion Total

£m Em £m

Balance at 1 July 2019 - 6.2 &2

Reclassified from provisions {see note 25) 45 ~ L5

Poyment of consideration 0.6 1.1) {1.7)

Release of unutilised contingent consideration (04 - {0.4)

Effect of movernent in exchange rates 01 - ol

Balance at 30 June 2020 36 51 87

Business combination (see note 42) 0.8 - 0.8

Payment of consideration {2.00 (4.7 6.7

Refease of unutilised contingent consideration 0.6] - (0.4}

Effect of movement in exchange rates (0.3] - (0.3}

Balance at 30 June 2021 17 0.4 21

Current 1.2 0.4 16

Non-current 0.5 - 0.5

Balance at 30 June 202t 17 0.4 2.1

Current 28 47 75

Non-current o8 04 12

Balance at 30 June 2020 28 51 87
The balance ot 30 June 2021 relates to the following transactions:

Contingent
deferrad Deterred

Fiscclysarof  considerotion  considergtion Total

transaction £m £m £m

De Novo Genetcs LLC 2017 - 0.4 0.4

Hermitage Gengtics DAC 2017 0.4 - 0.4

Dairy LLC (n/a Bovisync) 2019 0.4 - 0.4

Progenex S.L. 2019 0.1 - 0.l

Sergal Gestd Romadera, SL. (see note 42) 2021 0.8 - 0.8

Balance at 30 June 2021 17 04 2.1

Hetmitage Genetics DAC
The contingent deferred cansideration 1s based on faes pad to the seller and the eaming of PIC - Hermitage LP during thea pericd
1 July 2018 and 1 Aprit 2022,

Sergal Gestio Ramadera, S.L.
The contingent deferred consideration is hased on sales to existing customears during the period 28 June 2021 and 28 June 2022.
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2021 2020

£m £m

Non-controlling interest 3.6 4.6
Put option over non-controlling interest at inception (5.1) (5.6)
Tatal non-controlling interest {1.5) (1.0}

Summarised financial information in respect of each of the Group's subsidiaries that has a material non-controlling interest is set out

below before intra-Group eliminations.

De Novo PIC ralia
Genetics LLC S.r.l. 2021
£m £m Em
Revenue 3.4 4.1 7.5
Expenses (£.9) (3.3) (8.2)
Total comprehensive lexpensel/income for the year {1.5) 0.8 0.7
Total comprehensive {expenseal/income attributable to owners of the Company (0.8) 0.6 (0.2)
Tota! comprehensive {expense)/incorne attributable to the non-controlling interest (0.7) 0.2 {0.5)
Biological ¢ssets 158 - 15.8
Current assets 09 1.2 21
Other non-current assets 0.8 18 2.6
Current liahilities (11.5) (1.4} (12.9)
Net assets 6.0 1.6 7.6
Equity attributable to owners of the Company (2.8) (1.4} (4.0)
Non-controlling interest 3.4 0.2 3.6
Dividends of £0.2m were paid to nen-contralling interests (2020: £nil),
Da Novo FIC Italia
Genetics LLC Sl 2020
£m £m £m
Revenue 37 41 78
Expenses (3.1) (3.2) 6.3)
Total comprehensive income for the year 06 09 15
Total comprehensive income attributable to owners of the Company 03 08 11
Total comprehensive income attributable to the non-controliing interest 0.3 01 04
Biological assets 149 - 149
Current assets 13 12 25
Other non-current assets 08 02 17
Current liabilities 88} {048 {@4)
Net assets 82 15 Q7
Equity attributable to owners of the Company (38 {L.3) (5.1}
Non-controlling interest L4 02 46
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NOTES TO THE GROUP FINANCIAL STATEMENTS CONTINUED
For the year ended 30 June 2021

4£0. RELATED-PARTY TRANSACTIONS
Bomaz, Inc. and Begz Dairy, LLC, are well-recognised breeders in the industry, and are related parties to the Group as these entities
are under the contro! of relatives of Nate Zwald, our ABS Dairy CO0O,

We transact with Bomaz, Inc. and Bogz Dairy, LLC as part of our bull product development effort, under a variety of contracts and
agreements. Payments in 2021 amounted to £0.5m {2020: £1.5m). As at 30 June 2021, the balance owing 1o these entities was £nil
(2020: £nil). All amounts were settled in cash.

These related-porty transactions were made on terms equivalent to those that prevail in arm'’s length transactions.

41, POST BALANCE SHEET EVENTS
I August 2021, the first of two availabie extension options far extending our banking facilities was exercised, extending the maturity
dote of our banking facilities to 24 August 2024,

On 22 July 2021, Caribou Biosciences Inc. campleted an initial public offering. As part of this process, our series B preference shares
converted to common shaires at a ratio of 1.818 to 1, resuiting in a shareholding of 963,136 common shares, These shares are histed on
the NASDAQ stock exchonge under the symbol CRBU, and after an initicl period of restriction, considerobly improves the liguidity of
our investment.

42, BUSINESS COMBINATIONS
On 28 June 202), the Group ccquired the trade and assets of Sergal Gestié Ramadero, S.L. ['Sergal), o lecding Sponish boar stud
operator, to integrate our semen supely chain.

The amounts recognised in respact of the identifiable assets and flabilities acquired are as fofiows:

£m
Biological asseats {note 16) 0.3
Intangible assets jdentified - customer relationships (note 15) 37
Property, plant and eguipment {note 17) 0.2
Total identifiable ossets 4.2
Goodwill inote 14) 35
Total consideration 7.7
Satisfied by:

Cuosh 69
Contingent consideration arrangement 0.8
Total consideration 77

The goodwill of £3.5m arising from the acquisition consists of the future synergies and market opportunities expected from combining
the acquired operations with existing Genus operations. None of the goodwillis expected to be deductiple for income 1ox purposes.

The contingent consideration arrangerment reguires certain sales targets to be achieved. The total that Genus could be required to
pay under the contingent consideration agreement will not exceed £0.8m.

Acquisition-related costs of £0.1m were recognised within exceptional costs (see note 7h
Due 1o the proximity of the acquisition to the 30 June 2021, the acquired trade did not contribute any revenue or profit to the

Group's results. Had the transaction occurred on 1July 2020, the contribution to revenue and profit would have been £31m and
£0.3m respectfully.
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PARENT COMPANY BALANCE SHEET

As at 30 June 2021
[restateal! lrestated)’
200 2020 2019
Note £m m Em
Non-current assets
Intangible assets c3 6.5 47 31
Property, piant and equipment C4 11 13 05
Investments in suksidiaries C5 1228 1162 1093
Other investments Cé 20 18 26
Other recevables c7 465.1 - -
Derivative financial asset [@NE) - - Q4
Deferred tax gsset CB 2.1 14 -
199.6 1254 1159
Current assets
Other receivables C7 379.2 L4547 4437
Cash and cash equivaients 1.3 10 20
380.5 4457 L4457
Current liabilities
Current payables ce {222.8) (224.1) (216.7)
Provisions C11 (0.3} (2.0} -
(223.1} (226.1) (2167}
Net current assets 157.4 21946 2290
Total assets less current liabilities 3570 3450 344D
Non-current liabilities
Non-current payables C10 {111.1) {105.8) (102.1)
Provisions Cil 0.1} {0.4) (20
(111.2) (106.2) (104.1)
Net assets 2458 2388 2408
Equity
Called up share capital Clé 6.6 45 65
Share premium account 179.1 1791 17590
Own shares {0.1) 01 1
Retained eamings 60.2 535 55.2
Hedging reserve - 02 02
Total equity 2458 2388 2408

1 See Clfor detals of the pr ot perod restarement
The Company recognised prafit far the year of £19.6m (2020 restated: £11.7m profit).

The Financicl Statements were approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 8 September 2021.
Signed on behalf of the Board of Directors.

Stephen Wilson Alison Henriksen
Chief Executive Chief Financial Officer

Company number: 02972325
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PARENT COMPANY STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

For the year ended 30 June 2021

Share
Callad up premium Own Retalned Hedging Total
share capital acesunt shares earnings reserve equity
Em £m £m £m Em £m
Balance at 1 July 2019 {previously reported) 65 1790 01) 634 02 2490
Prior period restatement - - - (82 - 8.2
Balance at 1 July 2019 [restated) 65 1790 .1 552 Q02 2408
Fair value of movement on cosh flow hedges, net of tox B - - - 4 (0.4)
Actuarial gain on retirement benefits obligations - - - 05 - 05
Movement on pension asset recognition restriction - - - 0.4} - (o7 )]
Other comprehensive income for the year - - - 01 (0.4) {oX}
Total profit for the financial year - - - 117 - 117
Total comprehensive income for the financial year - - - 118 {04 114
Shares issued - 01 - - - 01
Dividends - - - (18.3) - (183}
Share-based payment expense, net of tax - - - 48 - 48
Balance at 30 June 2020 {restated) 65 1791 .1 535 {02 2388
Fair value of movement on cash flow hedges, net of tax - - - - 0.2 0.2
Actuarial gain on retirement benefits obligations - - - 29 - 29
Moverment on pension asset recognition restriction - - - 2.7 - 2.7}
Other comprehensive income for the year - - - 0.2 0.2 0.4
Tatal profit for the financial year - - - 19.46 - 19.6
Total comprehensive income for the financial year - - - 19.8 0.2 200
Shares issued 0.1 - - - - 0.1
Dividends paid - - - (19.5) - {19.5)
Share-based payment expense, net of tax - - - 6.4 - [-X
Balance at 30 June 2021 6.6 1791 (0.1) 60.2 - 245.8

For information on dividends see note 13, cash flow hedges see note 26 and share-based payment expense see note 30.
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NOTES TO THE PARENT COMPANY FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the year ended 30 June 2021

C1. ACCOUNTING INFORMATION AND POLICIES

Basis of preparation

The Parent Company Financial Statements have been prepared in accordance with Financial Reporting Standard 101 ‘Reduced
Disclosure Framework” 'FRS 101] and the Companies Act 2006 (the ‘Act’). FRS 101 sets out a reduced disclosure framework for a
‘qualifying entity’ as defined in the standard, which addrasses the financial reporting requirements and disclosure exemptions in the
individuct financial statements of qualifying entities that atherwise apply the recognition, measurement and disclosure requirements
of the Act and IFRS adopted pursuant to Regulation (EC) Ne 1606/2002, as it applies in the Eurcpean Union. The Group Financial
Statements have also been prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards as issued by the IASE.

The Company Financial Statements have been prepared using the historical cost convention, as maodified by the revaluation of certain
financial assets and financial liabilities and in accordance with the Act. The Financial Statements hove been prepared on @ going
concern basis, as set out in note 2 of the Consolidated Financial Statements of Genus plc. The accounting policies set out below

and stated in the relevant notes have been applied consistently to all periods presented in these Financial Staterments.

The Company has taken advantage of the disclosure exermptions avallable under FRS 101 in relation to share-based payments,
business combinations, inancial instruments, presentation of comparative information in respect of certain assets, presentation

of a cash flow statement, standards issued not yet effective, impairment of assets and related-party transactions. Where required,
equivalent disclosures are given in the Consolidated Financial Statements of Genus plc.

As permitted by section 408 of the Act, the Company has not presented its own Income Statement in this Annual Report.
The functional currency of the Company is Sterling.

Critical accounting judgements and key sources of estimation uncertainty

Preparing company financial statements in conformity with FRS 101 reguires management to make estimates and assumptions

that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities, the disclosure of contingent assets and licbilities at the balance sheet

date and the reported amounts of revenue and expenses during the reporting pertod. Actual results could differ from those estimates.
The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised in the
period in which the estimate is revised, If the revision offects only that period, or in the pericd of the revision and future periods, if the
revision affects both current and future periods.

Management has not identified any critical cccounting jJudgements or key sources of estimation uncertainty.

Significant accounting policies applied in the current reporting period that relate to the Financial Statements as a whole
This section sets cut our significant accounting policies that relate to the Financiat Statements as o whole. Where an accounting policy
is generally applicable to o specific note to the Financial Statements, the palicy has been described in that note.

Other income and deferred income

The Company has entered into a strategic collaboration with Beijing Capital Agribusiness {BCA) under which BCA will establish and
fund a collaboration specific entity {BCA Future Bio-Tech'} which will use Genus's intellectual property and know-how to pursue the
PRRSv resistance reguiatory and development work in China, Genus will receive consideration after meeting certain milestones in the
development programme.,

Each milestone 1s considered to be either a separate performance obligation, or o set of groups of separate performance obligations,
under this agreement and are unbundled in the contractuat arrangement as if they are distinct from one another,

We assess each separate performance obligation relating to the milestone payments, and upon completion of those performance
obligations recognise the fair value of gmounts earned in other income. Some performance obligations, such as the transfer of
know-how, are recognised at a point in time whereas others, such as the provision of technical services, are recognised over time.
We recognise any received but unearned consideration as deferred income.

We will apply the same accounting policy to any other comparable agreements.

Prior pericd restatement

The Company has changed its accounting policy related to the capitahisation of certain software assets. This change folfows the IFRIC
Interpretation Committee's guidance published in April 2021 and relates to the capitalisation of casts of configuning or customising
application software under ‘Software as a Service’ ('Saca8’) arrangements.

The Group's cccounting policy has historically been to capitalise costs related to the configuration and custemisation of Saas
arrangements as intangible assets in the Balance Sheet. Following the adoption of the above IFRIC agenda guidance, current Saas
arrangements, were identified and assessed to determine if the Group has control of the software. For those arrangemeant where
contrel does not exist, the Group derecognised the intangible asset previously capitalised.

This change In accounting policy led to adjustmeants amounting to a reduction of £13.3m and £8.1m in the intangible assets recognised
in the 30 June 2020 and 30 June 2019 Balance Sheets respectively, and to a £5.2m and £59m increase in operating expenses within
administrative expenses, In those respective years. Further detail of the impact of the restatement can be found in note 2 of the Group
Financial Statements.
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NOTES TO THE PARENT COMPANY FINANCIAL STATEMENTS CONTINUED
For the year ended 30 June 2021

C1. ACCOUNTING INFORMATION AND POLICIES CONTINUED

Pensions

A number of our employees are members of defined contribution pension schemes. We charge contributions to profit and loss as they
become payable under the schemes’ rules. We show differences between the contributions payable and the amounts actually paid as
either accruals or prepayments in the Balance Sheet. The schemes’ assats are held separately from those of the Company.

Certain former employeas of the Company are members of one of the Group's defined benefit pension schemes, details of which are
given in note 29 to the Group Financial Statements. The schemes are all multi-employer defined benefit schemes, whose assets and
lIabilities are held independently from the Group but within their sponscred Group company.

Taxation
We provide for current tax, including UK corporation tax and foreign tax, at the amounts we expect to pay or recover, using the tax
rates and the lows enacted or substantively enacted at the balance sheet date.

Foreign currencies

We record transactions in foreign currencies at the rate ruling at the transaction date. We retranslate monetary assets and liabilites
denominated in foreign currencies at the prevailing rate of exchange at the balance sheet date. All differences are taken to the
Income Staterment,

Own shares
The Company has adopted FRS 100, which requires us to recognise the assets and liabilities associated with the Company's investment
inits own shares in the Company's Financial Statements, where there is de facta control of the assets and habilities.

The Company's own shares held by g Qualifying Employee Share Cwnership Trust remain deducted from shareholders' funds until they
vest unconditionaily with employees.

Employee share schemes
The Company's Executive Directors and Chief Operating Officers receive part of their remuneration in the form of share awards,
which vest upon meeting performance criteria over a three-year period.

We measure the cost of these awards by reference to the shares’ fair value at the award datea. At the end of each financial reporting
period, we estimate the extent to which the performance criteria will be met at the end of three years and record an appropricte
charge in the profit and loss account, together with a corresponding credit to profit and loss reserves. Changes in estimates of the
number of shares vesting may result In charges or credits to the profit and loss account in subseguent pariods.

Share-based payments

We have implemented the generally accepted accounting principle for accounting for share-based payments with subsidiary
undertakings under FRS 101, whereby the Company has granted rights to its shares to employees of its subsidiary undertakings under
an equity-settled arrangement, and the subsidiaries have not reimbursed the Cormpany for these rights. Under this arrangement, the
Company treats the share-based paymant recognised in the subsidiary's financial statements as a cost of investment in the subsidiary
and credits equity with an equal amount.

Derivative financial instruments and hedging
Cur activities expose us primdarily to the financial risks of changes in foreign currency exchange rates and interest rates.

We use interest rate swaps to hedge interest rate risk. We also use forward foreign currency contracts, implemented through a
medium-term US Dollar cross-currency borrowing and related interest rate swap, to hedge exposure to translation risk associated with
Us Dollar net assets of subsidiaries. Forward foreign currency contracts do not qualfy for hedge accounting in the Parent Company
Financral Statements, as the hedged item is not in its Balance Sheet.

Cur use of inancial dernvative instruments is governed by the Group's policies, which are approved by the Board of Directors. The nates
1o the Group Financial Statements include information about the Group's inancial risks and their management, and 1ts use of inancial
instruments and their impact on the Group's risk profile, performance and financial condition.

The fair value of the US Doliar and interest rate swaps is the estimated amount that we would receive or pay to terminate the swap at
the balance sheet date, taking into account current interest rates and the creditworthiness of the swap counterparties,

The fair value of forward exchange contracts is their quoted market price ct the balance sheet date, which is the present value of the
qucted forward price.
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C1. ACCOUNTING INFORMATION AND POLICIES CONTINUED

Cash flow hedges

The effective portion of changes in the fair value of derivatives and other qualifying hedaing instrurnents that are designated and
qualify as cash flow hedges is recognised in Other Cornprehensive Income and accumulated under the heading of cash flow hedging
reserve, and limited to the cumulative change in fair value of the hedged item from inception of the hedge. The gain or loss relating to
the ineffective portion is recognised immediately in the Income Statement, and 1s Included in the 'other gains and lesses’ line item.

Amounts previously recognised in Other Comprehensive Income and accumulated in equity are reclassified to the Income Statement
in the periocds when the hedged item affects the Income Statement, in the same ling as the recognised hedged item. However, when
the hedged forecast transaction results in the recognitian of a non-financial asset or o non-financial liability, the gains and losses
previously recognised in Cther Comprehensive Income and accumulated in equity are removed from eguity and included in the initial
measurement of the cost of the non-financial asset or non-financial ligbility. This transfer does not affect Other Comprehensive
Income. Furthermore, if the Company expects that some or all of the loss accumulated in the cash flow hedging reserve will not be
recovered in the future, that amount is immediately reclassified to the Income Statement.

The Company discontinues hedge accounting only when the hedging relationshio {or o part thereof} ceases to meet the qualifying
criteria {after rebalancing, if applicable). This includes instances whan the hedging instrument expires or is sold, terminated or
exercised. The discontinuation 1s accounted for prospectively. Any gain or loss recognised in Other Comprahensive Income and
accumulated in cash flow haedge reserve at that time remains in equity and is reclassified 1o the Income Statement when the forecast
transaction occurs. When a forecast transaction s no longer expected to occur, the gain or loss accumulated in the cash flow hedge
reserve is reclassified immediately to the income Statement.

Under interest rate swap contracts, the Company agrees to exchange the difference between fixed and floating rate interest amaounts
caleulated on agreed notional principatl amounts. Such contracts enable the Company to mitigate the risk of changing interest rates
on the fair value of issued fixed-rate debt held and the cash flow exposures on the issued variable-rate debt held. The fair value of
interest rate swaps at the reporting date is determined by discounting the future cash flows using the yield curves at the reporting
date and the credit risk inherent in the contract. The average interest rate is bosed on the outstanding balances at the end of the
financial year.

As the critical terms of the interest rate swap contracts and their corresponding hedged items are the same, the Company performs

a gqualitative assessment of effectiveness ond it is expected that the value of the interest rate swap contracts and the value of the
corresponding hedged items will systematically change in cpposite directions, in response to maverments in the underlying interest
rates. The main source of hedge ineffectiveness in these hedge relationships i1s the effect of the counterparty and the Company’s own
credit nisk on the fair value of the interest rate swap contracts, which is not reflected in the fair value of the hedged itemn attributable to
the change in interest rates. No other sources of ineffectiveness emearged from these hedging relationships.

C2. EMPLOYEES
Staff costs including Directors’ remuneration during the year amounted tor

2021 2020
£m £
Wages and salaries 77 75
Social security costs 14 11
Pension costs 0.2 0.2
Shaie-based payment expense 28 18
12.1 10.6

The Directors’ Remuneration Report sets out details of the Directors’ remuneration, pensions and share options.

The average monthly number of employees including Directors during the year was as follows:

2021 2020
Number Nu=ber

Administration 40 40
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NOTES TO THE PARENT COMPANY FINANCIAL STATEMENTS CONTINUED
For the year ended 30 June 2021

C3. INTANGIBLE ASSETS

Accounting policies

Patents, licences and software are stated at acquisition cost less accurnulated amortisation. The amortisation period is determinad by
reference to expected useful life, which is reviewed at least annually. Amortisation is charged to the Incomea Statement on a straight-
line basis over the estimated useful life. Changes in the expected useful life or the expected pattern of consumption of future economic
benefits embodied in the asset are accounted for by changing the amortisation period or method, os appropriate, and are treated as
changes in accounting estimates.

See note 15 for useful economic life. We do not amortise assets under construction.

{restated)'
(restoted]’ Patentsand  Assetsunder (restated)’
Software licences canstruction Total
£m £m Em £m

Cost
Balance at 1 July 2012 (restated) 14 37 20 73
Additions - - 27 27
Transfers 30 - (30} -
Balonce at 30 June 2020 and 1 July 2020 (restated! Lé 37 17 100
Additions - - 23 23
Transfers 29 - {2.9) -
Disposals (C.4) - - {0.4)
Balance at 30 June 2021 71 3.7 1.1 119
Amortisation
Balance at 1 July 2019 restated) 13 29 - 42
Amortisation for the year 03 08 - 11
Balance at 30 June 2020 and 1 July 2020 {restated) 14 37 - 53
Amortisation for the year 0.5 - - 0.5
Disposals 0.4) - - {0.4)
Balance at 30 June 202] 17 37 - 5.4
Carrying amounts
At 30 June 201 5.4 - 11 4.5
At 30 June 2020 (as restated) 30 - 17 47
At 30 June 2019 (as restated) 03 08 20 31

1 Seenote Clior detar s of the ger per oc restatemeant
Assets under construction primarily relate to the ongoing deveiopment of GenusCOne, a unified enterprise-wide business system.

C4. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Accounting policies

We state property, plant and equipment at cost, together with any incidental acguisition expenseés, or at their [otest valugtion, less
depreciation and any provision for impairment, We calculate depreciation on @ straight-ne basis, to write the assets down to thair
estimated residual values over their estimated useful lives The rates of annual depreciation on tangible fixed assets are as follows:

> Leasehold improvements period of lease
> Lecsed buildings pericd of lease
> Equipment 3to 10 years

We review the carrying value of fixed assets for impairment, if events or changes in circumstarces indicate that the carrying value may
not be recoverable.
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C4. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT CONTINUED

Right-of-use assets

Right-of-use assets are measured initiclly at cost based on the value of the associated lease liability, odjusted for any payments
made before inception, initial direct costs and an estimate of the dismantling, removal and restoration costs required in the terms of
the lease. Subsequent to initial recognition, we record an interest charge in respect of the lease liability. The related right-of-use asset
is depreciated over the term of the lease or, if shorter, the useful economic life ('UEL) of the leased csset. The lease term shail include
the period of an extension option where it is reasonably certain that the option will be exercised. Where the lease contains o purchase
option, the asset is written-off over the useful life of the asset when it is reasonably certain that the purchase option will be exercised.

Leuseholé Qwned Leased
Improvements Equipment assets buildings Total
£m £m £m £m £

Cost
Balance at 1 July 2020 05 06 11 10 2.1
Additions - 0.1 Q.1 - 01
Disposals - (0.3) (0.3} - {0.3)
Balance at 30 June 2021 Q5 0.4 0.9 1.0 19
Depreciation
Balance at 1 July 2020 0.2 05 07 cl 08
Depreciation for the year 0.1 - 0.1 0.1 0.2
Disposals - 0.2) (0.2) - 0.2)
Balance at 30 June 2021 0.3 0.3 0.6 0.2 0.8
Carrying amounts
At 30 June 2021 0.2 0.1 0.3 08 1.1
At 30 June 2020 0.3 01 04 09 13

C5. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES
Accounting policies
Shares in subsidiary undertakings are stated at cost less any provision for impairment.

The Company assesses investments for impairment whenever events or changes in circumstanceas indicate that the carrying value of
an investment may not be recoverable. If any such indication of impairment exists, then we estimate the recoverable amount. If the
recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit is less than the value of the Investment, it is considered to be impaired and we write
It down 1o its recoverable amount. An impairment |oss is recognised immediately in the profit and loss account.

Shares in
subsidiary
undertakings
£m
Cost
Balance at 1 July 2020 3094
Additions 6.6
Balance at 30 June 2021 316.0
Provision for impairment
Balance at 1 July 2020 1932
Provided during the year -
Balance at 30 June 2021 193.2
Carrying amounts
At 30 June 2021 1228
At 30 June 2020 1162

Additions relate to Increasing our investment in ABS Pecplan Ltda and Genus Investment Limited.

The Company considers the relationship between its market capitalisation and the carrying value of its investments, among other
factors, when reviewing for indicators of impairment. As at 30 June 2021, the net investment in five of the Company’s subsidiary
undertakings exceeded the Company's share of the net assets, Eoch of these subsidiories are denominated in Latin American
currencies, all of which have seen significant weakening against Sterling during the year ended 30 June 2021. For each of these
undertakings, the recoverable value has been estimated using the Board-approved Strotegic Plan. There were no indicators of
impairment for the Company’s cther subsidiary undertakings.

The key assumptions for the value in use calculation are those regarding the discount rate, growth rates and expected
trading performance.
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NOTES TO THE PARENT COMPANY FINANCIAL STATEMENTS CONTINUED
For the year ended 30 June 2021

C5. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES CONTINUED

Management estimates discount rates that reflect current morket assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the
Group. The pre-tax discount rates are derived from the Group's post-tax weighted average cost of capital { WACC'), which has been
calculoted using the capitnl osset pricing model, the inputs of which include o country nsk-free rate, equity nsk premium, Group size
premium and a risk adjustrment {beta). Cash flows beyend the five-year period are extrapolated using a long-term growth rate of 2.5%
(2020: 2.5%)

As a result of this analysis, the Company has not recognised any additonal impairment charge during the yeor.

Principal subsidiary undertakings
The Company's principal subsidiaries and their main activities are given in note 37 to the Group Financial Statements.

C6. OTHER INVESTMENTS
Accounting policies
Listed eqguity investments are stated ot far value.

201 2020
£m £m
Listed investment — NMR 20 18

NMR ordinary shares were acquired os part of the NMR pension ogreement, ond are measured ot falr value, The voluation basis is
Level 1 classification, where fair value techniques are quoted lunadjusted) prices in active markets for identical assets and Liabilities.

C7. OTHER RECEIVABLES
Accounting policies
We state other receivables at their amortised cost less any impairment losses.

202 2020
Note £m £m

Amounts due within cne year
Amounts owed by Group undertakings 374.5 4407
Corporation tax recoverable 0.9 -
Prepayments 1.6 22
Deferred taxation c8 2.1 o75}
Derivative inancial asset C15 0.1 12
379.2 Lit 7

Amounts due after one year

Amounts owed by Group undertakings 65.1 -
45.1 -

At the balance sheet date, the total omounts owed by Group undertakings were £439.6m {2020: £440.7m). The carrying amount of
these assets approximotes their fair value There are iImpaired receivable balances of £n312020: £nil) os the Compony does not expect
any credit losses on amounts owed by Group undertakings, due 1o the centralised management of these balances. Of the amounts
owed by Group undertakings, £32971m (2020: £324 5m) is intérest-bearing and any interest charged is at current market rates.

C8. DEFERRED TAXATION

Accounting policies

We recognise deferred taxation inrespect of all timing differences that have originated but not reversed at the balance sheet date,
where transactions or events that result in an obligation to pay more tax 1n future or a nght 1o pay less tax in future have occurred at
the balance sheet date

We only recodnise deferred taxation assets if we consider it more likely than not that we will have suitabie profits from which we can
deduct the future reversal of the underlying timing differences. Timing differences are differences arising between the Company’s taxable
profits and its results as stated in the Financial Statements, and which are capable of reversing in one or more subseguent periods

We only recognise deferred taxation in respect of the future remittance of retained eamings of overseas subsidiares to the extent that,
at the balance sheet date, dividends have been accrued as recavable.

We measure deferred taxation on a non-discounted basis, at the tax rates we expect to apply in the perods in which we expect the
uming differences to reverse, based on tax rates and laws enacted or substantively enacted at the balance sheet daote.

2021 2020

£m £

Deferred 1ax asset due within one year 21 046
Deferred tax gsset due after more than cne year 2.1 14

42 20
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C8. DEFERRED TAXATION CONTINUED
The movements in deferred taxation are as follows:
2021 2020
Em £m
At the start of the year 2.0 15
Recognised in the Income Statement 21 01
Recognised in equity 0.1 04
At the end of the year 4.2 20
The amounts provided are as follows:
2021 2020
£m Em
Share-based payment expense 18 12
Other timing differences 2.0 o7
Losses 0.4 01
4.2 20

At the balance sheet date, the Company had unused tax losses available for offset against future profits, with a potential tax benefit
of £0.4m (2020: £0.0m). We have recognised a deferred tax asset in respect of this benefit, as we expect these losses to be offset

against future profits of the UK tax group in the near term.

C9. CURRENT PAYABLES
Accounting policies

Trade poyables are not interest bearing ond are stated at their nominal value.

2021 2070
Note £m £m
Bank loans and overdrafts Cl12 13.0 @2
Corporation tax payable - 0.3
Trade payables 1.5 c7
Cther payables 0.1 02
Amounts owed to Group undertakings 204.2 2097
Accruals 38 32
Deferred income 0.1 0.3
Obligations under lecses C13 ol 01
Derivative iinancial liokilities C15 - Q.4
222.8 2241
included within amounts owed to Group undertakings are amounts of £174.6m {2020: £185.8m} which are unsecured, repayable on
demand and any interest charged is ot current market rates.
There are no outstanding contributions due to defined contribution pension schemes for the benefit of the employees (2020: Enil).
C10. NON-CURRENT PAYABLES
2021 2020
Note Em Em
Bank loans and overdrafts C12 109.4 1038
Obligations under leases Cl3 0.6 08
Derivative financial liabilities C15 - 01
Deferred income 1.1 11
111.1 1058
CT1. PROVISIONS
2021 2020
Em £m
Provisions due within one year 0.3 20
Provisions after more than one year 0.1 04
0.4 2.4

The provisions primarily consist of a share forfeiture provision of £0.3m, which relates to potential claims that could be made by
untraced members over the next two years, relating to the resale proceeds of shares that were identified during pricr years as being

forfeited (see note 25).
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C12. LOANS AND BORROWINGS

Accounting policies

We initially state debt at the amount of the net proceeds, after deducting issue costs. The carrying amount is increased by the finance
costin respect of the cccounting period and reduced by payments made in the period.

Wae charge the finance costs of debt to the profit and loss account over the debt term, at ¢ constant rate on the carrying value of the
debt to which thay relate.

2021 2020
Em £m

Loans and borrowings comprise amounts falling due:
Inone year or less or on demand 13.8 25
Inmore than one yecr but not more than two years - 1038
Inmore than two years but not more than five years 1099 -
1237 1133
Less: unamortised issue costs 1.3) (0.3)
122.4 1130
Amounts falling due within one year {13.0) 92)
Amounts falling due after more than one year 109.4 1038

At the balance sheet date, the Company's credit facilities comprnsed o £150m multi-currency revolving credit facility 'RCF'), a USD125
million RCF and a USD20 million bond and guarantee facility. The original term of the facility was for three years, with two years
remaining at the balance sheet date. There is an option to extend the maturity date by a further year before the first and second
anniversaries of the signing date. The first extension has been requested to 24 August 2024 and approved by all participating banks,
increasing the credit facility term by a further 12 months. The facility also includes an uncommitted £100m accordion option, which can
be reguested on a maximum of three occasions over the lifetime of the facility to fund the Group's business development plans.

As part of its interest rate strategy, the Company has entered intc interest rate swaps to hedge floating LIBOR rates. As a result, bank
loan and overdrafts include borrowings of £5m fixed at 1.133%, excluding applicable bank margin.

Terms and debt repayment schedule
The terms and conditions of outstanding loans and overdrafts were as follows:

2021 2020

Curency  Irterest rate £m £m

RCF and overdraft GBP 1.5% 423 287
RCF, term loan and overdraft usb 1.5% 59.7 6846
RCF and overdraft EUR 1.4% 10.7 68
Other unsecured Bank borrowings Other 0.8% 9.7 8%
Total interest-bearing liabilities 122.4 1130

The above RCFs are unsecured.

C13. OBLIGATICNS UNDER LEASES
Alease is a commitment to make a payment in the future, primarily in relation to property, plant and machinery and motar vehicles.

Accounting pelicies
In accordance with IFRS 16, we recognise as an expense any payments made in respect of short-term leases {those with a term of less
than 12 months] and for low-value items on a straight-line basis over the life of the lease.

For all other leases we recognise a liability at the date gt which the leased asset is made available for use, and a correspending
right-of-use asset is recognised and depreciated over the term of the lease (see note C4).

Lease labilities are measured ot the present value of the future lease payments, excluding any poyments relating to non-lease
components, Future lease payments include fixed payments, in-substance fixed payments, and variable lease payments that are
based on an index or a rate, less any lease incentives receivable. Lease liabilities also take into account amounts payable under
residual value guarantees and payments to exercise options, to the extent that it is reasonably certain that such payments will be
made. The payments are discounted at the rate implicit in the lease or, where that cannet be measured, at an incrementai
borrowing rate,

We remeasure the lease liability {and make a corresponding adjustment to the related right-of-use asset) whenever:

> Thelease term has changed or there is a change in the assessment of the exercise of a purchase option, in which case the lease
fiability is remeasured by discounting the revised lease payments using a revised discount rate.

> Thelease payments change due to changes in an index or rate or a change in expected payment under a guaranteed residual
value, in which cases the fease liability is remeasured by discounting the revised lease payments using the intial discount rate
(unless the lease payments change 1s due to a change in @ flocting iImerest rate, in which case @ revised discount rate is used}.

> Alease contract is modified, and the lease modification is not accounted for as a separate lease, in which case the lease liability
is remeasured by discounting the revised lease payments using a revised dIscount rate.

The Company did not make any such adjustments during the periods presented.
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C13. OBLIGATIONS UNDER LEASES CONTINUED
The changes in the lease liabilities are as follows:
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2011 2020

£m Em

Balance at the start of the year 09 -
Recognised on the adoption of [FRS 16 - 10
Payments made 0.1) {01}
Balance at the end of the year 0.8 0%

In accordance with the reduced disclosure exernptions included in FRS 101, a maturity analysis has not been presented. The maturity

analysis of the Group's lcase obligations is included in note 28 to the Group Financial Statements.

C14. OPERATING LEASES
Accounting policies

For short-term leases {those with a term of less than 12 months) and low-value items, we charge the rentals payable to the Income

Statement on ¢ straight-line basis over the lease term.

The Company has elected not to apply IFRS 16 to contracts where the right-of-use asset would be recognised as an intangikle asset

le.g. software licences).

Total of future minimum lease payments under non-cancellable operating leases which expire:

201 2026
Em Erm
In less than one year 0.8 0.8
Between one and five years - 08
In more than five years - -
0.8 16
Operating lease rentals charged in the year:
2021 2020
£m £m
Other 0.8 a7
C15. DERIVATIVES AND OTHER FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
Additional disclosures on financial instrurments can be found in note 26 to the Group Financial Statements.
C14. CAPITAL AND RESERVES
Share capital
2021 2020 2021 2020
Number Numkber £m £m
Issued and fully paid
Ordinary shares of 10 pence 65,761,500 65,091,625 6.6 45
There is no authorised share capital limit.
The holders of ordinary shares are entitled to receive dividends, as declared from time to time.
The movement in share capital for the period was as follows:
2021 2020 2021 2020
Number Numbar Em £m
Issued under the Executive Share Opticn Plan 19,875 37066 - -
Issued to Employee Benefit Trust 650,000 - 0.1 -
669,875 37066 0.1 -
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C16. CAPITAL AND RESERVES CONTINUED
Shares issued under the Executive Share Option Plan were issued at option prices as follows:

200 2020

Number Prica Numiber Price
Executive Share Option Plan - - 6097 654500
6,599  729.83p 9213 72983p
2,032 977.83p 7175 977830
1,738 1334.00p 6,209  133400p
2,506 1413.00p 8372 141300p

19,875 37066

Reserve for own shares

The Company's shares are held by a QUEST, which is an employee benefit trust established to facilitate the operation of our long-term
incentive scheme for senior management. Thea reserve amount represents the deduction in arriving at shareholders’ funds for the
caonsideration the trust paid for the Company's shares, which had not vested unconditionally ot the balance sheet date, The number
and market value of the ordinary shares held by the Employee Benefit Trust and the QUEST were:

2021 2020 202 2020

Number Number £m £m

Shares allocated but not vested 509,269 75184 25.2 26
Unallccated shares 92,334 Q2334 4.6 33
601,603 167518 29.8 59

The shares have a nominal value of £60,160 (2020: £16,752).

Hedging reserve
The hedging reserve comprises the effective portion of the cumulative net change in the fair value of cash flow hedging instruments
net of taxation — see note 26

C17. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
The Company 15 exempt under FRS 101 from disclosing transactions with other members of the Group.

C18. CAPITAL AND OTHER CCMMITMENTS
At 30 June 2027, outstanding contracted capital expenditure amounted to £nit (2020 E£nil).

C19. PENSIONS, GUARANTEES AND CONTINGENCIES

The NMR pension assigned to Genus plc under the Flexible Apportionment Agreement, recorded an actuarial gain of £2.9m, which has
increased the asset restriction made in previous years. As the Company does not have unilaterai right to this surplus, as required in
accordance with IFRIC 14 it is restricted to £nil. For additional information on the MPF pension scheme, of which NMR was one of the
participating employers, please see note 29.

The retirement benefit obligations referred to in note 29 to the Group Financial Statements include obligations relating to the MPF
defined benefit scheme. Genus, together with other participating employers, is joint and severally liable for the scheme's obligations.
Genus has accounted for its section and its share of any arphan assets and liabilities, collectively representing approximately B6%
(2020: 86%) of the MPF. As o result of the joint and several liability, Genus has a contingent liability for the scheme’s obligations that it
has not accounted for. The total deficit of the MPF scheme from the most recent triennial valuation can be found in note 29.

Certain UK subsidiaries, which are detaled in note 37 ta the Group Financial Statements, will take advantage of the audit exemption
set out within section 4794 of the Companies Act 2006 for the year ended 30 June 2021 The Company has given a statutory guarantee
over all of the habilities held by those UK subsidiaries for the year ended 30 June 2021 The Company has assessed the probability of
loss under the guarantee as remote.

At 30 June 2021, the Company had entered into bank guarantees tatalling £13.9m (2020: Enil).
C20. POST BALANCE SHEET EVENTS

In August 2021, the first of two available extension options for extending our banking facilities was exercised, extending the matunty
date of our banking facilities to 24 August 2024,
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FIVE-YEAR RECORD - CONSOLIDATED RESULTS

The information included in the five-year record below is in accordance with IFRS as adopted for use in the European Union.
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2021 20207 20197 2008° 207
Financial results £m £m £m Em £m
Revenue from continuing aperations 574.3 5514 488.5 4703 4591
Adjusted operating profit from continuing operations' 769 40.1 51.8 555 551
Adjusted operating profit including joint ventures and associates' 898 708 590 609 60.1
Adjusted profit before tax’ 84.8 4658 551 563 564
Basic adjusted earnings per share 100.9p 773p 638p 723p 424D
Diluted adjusted eaimings wer shuie! 100.1p 76.7p &617p 713p 48.4p
Operating profit from continuing operations 47.7 424 28 60 38.2
Profit before tax from continuing operations 55.8 463 40 56 407
Profit after tax from continuing operations 46.8 357 08 304 343
Net profit attributable to owners of the Company &7.3 353 19 405 328
Basic earnings per share 72.6p S4.4p 30p 66.1p 5i8p
Diluted earnings per share 72.0p S540p 2%p &5.2p 530p
Net assets 496.6 4945 4730 401.7 402.1
Net debt 105.6 1026 %6 1085 1116

1

2
3

Adgjusted operating profit, ag usted profit before tox ona od,ustea basic ana dilutea earings per share are befcra net 1AS 41 valuation Tovement an biclogical assets,
amort:sation of acquirea intangible assets, share-based payment expense, excent onal items and other gaing ond losses

Restated see note 2,

As previously reported, the results of FY17 have nat been restatea for the praor penied ad;ustment cutlined In the FY20 Annual Report nete 2 as it wolld be mpract:icable to do

so Consequently, the net assets of this penod is ~ot direct'y comparable to those in the subsequent years
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ALTERNATIVE PERFORMANCE MEASURES GLOSSARY

The Group tracks a number of

APMs in managing its business, which
are not defined or specified under the
reuirements of IFRS because they
exclude amounts that are included in,
or include amounts that are exciuded
from, the most directly comparable
measure calculated and presented in
accordance with IFRS, or are calculated
using financial measures that are not
calculated in occordance with (FRS,

The Group believes that these APMs,
which are not considered to be @

substitute for or superior to IFRS measures,

provide stakehalders with additioncl
helpful information an the performance of
the business. These APMs are consistent
with how the business performance

is planned and reported within the
internal management reporting to

the Board and GELT. Some of these

APMs are also used for the purpose

of setting remunergtion targéts.

These APMs should be viewed as
supplemental to, but not as o substitute
for, measures presented in the
censolidated financial information relating
to the Group, which are prepared in
accordance with IFRS. The Group believes
that these APMs are useful indicators of its
performance. However, they may not be
comparabla to similarly-titled measures
reported by other companies, due to
differences in the way they are calcuiated,

The key APMs that the Group usés include:

Alternative Performance
Measures

Calculation methodology and closest equivalent IFRS measure
{whare applicable)

Reasons why we believe the
APMs are useful

Income Statement measures

Adjusted operating profit
exc JVs

Adjusted operating profit is operating profit with the net LAS 41
valuation mavement on biological assets, amortisation of acquired
intangible assets, share-based payment expense and exceptional

items added back and excludes JV and gssociate results.
Closest equivalent IFRS measure: Qperating profit!

See reconciliation on page 183

Adjusted operating profit
inc JVs

Including adjusted operating profit from JV and associate results.

See reconciliation on page 183,

Adjusted operating profit
inc JVs exc gene editing
costs

Adjusted operating profit
in¢ JVs after tax

Including adjusted operating profit from JV and associate results
but excluding gene editing costs.

See recongiliation on page 183.

Adjusted operating profit including JV less adjusted effective tax

See reconciliation on page 183.

Adjusted profitinc JVs
before tax

Adjusted operating profit including JVs less net finance costs.

See reconciliation on page 183.

Adjusted profitinc JVs
after tax

Adjusted profit including JVs before tax less adjusted effective tax.

See reconciliation on page 183.

Allows the comparison of underlying
financial performance by exciuding
the impacts of exceptional items
and is o performance indicator
against which short-term and
long-term incentive putcomes for
cur senior executives are measured:
> net [AS 41 valuation movements
on biological assets — these
movements can be materially
voiatile and do not directly
correlate to the underlying
trading performance in the
period. Furthermore, the
movement is nen-cash reloted
and rmany assumnptions used in
the valuation model are based
an projections rather than current
trading;
> amortisation of acguired
intangible assets - excluding this
improves the comparability
between acquired and
organically grown operations, as
the latter cannot recognise
internally generated intangible
assets. Adjusting for amortisation
provides a more consistent basis
for companson between the two;
> share-based payments - this
expense is considered to be
relatively volatile and not fully
reflective of the current period
trading, as the performance
critena qre based on EPS
performance over a three-year
period and include estimates of
future performance; and
> exceptional items — these are
items which dug to either their
size of thelr nature are excludeq,
to improve the understanding of
the Group's underlying
performance.

Adjusted profitinc JVs
before tax exc Saas
impact

Adjusted aperating profit before tax, excluding the impact of
the change in accounting palicy related 1o the accounting for
‘Software as a Service' [Saal} (See note 2)

See reconciliation on page 183.

> This measure is presented only
this year to demonstrate the
impact of our change in
accounting palicy, and will not
be presented in future perieds.
We present this measure 1o
allow comparability of financial
performance with the
expectations of the year, which
were based on our pre-existing
accounting policy
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Calculation methodology and closest equivalent IFRS measure
(where applicable)
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Redasons why we believe tha
APMs are useful

Adjusted effective tax
rate

Adjusted basic earnings
per share

Adjusted profit alter lux profil divided oy the

Total income tax charge for the Group excluding the tox impact of
adjusting items, divided by the adjusted operating profit.

Closest equivalent IFRS measure: Effective tax rate

See reconciliation on page 184,

weighted basic average number of shares.
Closest equivalent [FRS measure: Earmings per share

See calculation on page 184.

Adjusted diluted earnings Underlying attributable profit divided by the diluted weighted basic

per share

Adjusted earnings cover

Adjusted EBITDA -
calculated in accordance
with the definitions used
in our financing facilities

Adjusted operating
margin

Adjusted operating
margin (exc JVs)

Constant currency basis

Balance Sheet measures

Net debt

Net debt — calculated in
accordance with the
definitions used in our
financing facilities

average number of shares.
Closest equivalent IFRS measure’ Diluted earnings per share

See calculation on page 184.

Adjusted earnings per share divided by the expected dividend for
the year.

See calculation on page 184.

This is adjusted operating profit, adding back cash received

from our JVs, depreciation of property, plant and equipment,
depreciation of the historical cast of biological assets, operational
amortisation li.e excluding amartisation of acguired intangibles)
and deducting the omount attributable to minority interest.

Closest equivalent IFRS measure: Operating profit

See reconciliation on page 184,

Adjusted operating profit {including JVs) divided by revenue.

Adjusted operating profit divided by revenue.

The Group reports certain inancial measures, on both a reported
and constant currency basis and retranslates the current year's
results at the average actual exchange rates used In the previous
financial year.

Net debt is gross debt, made up of unsecured bank loans and
overdrafts and obligations under finance leases, with o deduction
for cash and cash equivalents.

See reconciliation on page 185.
Net debt excluding the impact of adopting IFRS 16 and adding
back guarantees and deferred purchase arrangements.

See reconciliation on page 185,

Provides an underlying tax rate to
allow comparability of underlying
financial performance, by excluding
the impacts of net IAS 41 valuation
movement on biclogical assets,
amortisation of ccquired intangible
assets, share-based payment
expense and excaptional items.

On a per share basis, this allows the
comparability of underlying
financial performance by excluding
the impacts of adjusting items.

The Board dividend policy targsts
the adjusted earning cover to be
between 2.5-3 times.

This APM is presented because it is
used in calculating our ratio of net
debt to EBITDA and our interest
cover, which we report to our banks
to ensure compliance with our bank
covencnts,

Allows for the comparability of
underlying financial performance
by excluding the impacts of
axceptional items.

The Group's business operates in

multipte countries worldwide and its
trading results are translated back
into the Group's functionai currency
of Sterling. This measure eliminates
the effects of exchange rate
fluctuations when comparing
year-on-year reported results.

This allows the Group to monitor its
levels of debt.

This is o key metric that we report to
our banks to ensure complionce
with our bank covenants.
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Alternative Performance Calculation methodology and closest equivalent IFRS measure
Measures {where applicable)

Reasons why we beliave the
APMs are useful

Cash flow measures

Cash conversion Cash generated by operations as a percentage of adjusted
operating profit excluding Jvs.

See calculation on page 185.

Free cash fiow Cash generated by the Group before debt repayments,
acquisitions and investments, dividends and proceeds from share
issugs.

Closest IFRS measure: Net cash flow from aperating actinties

Sea reconciliotion on page 185,
Other measures

Interest cover The ratio of adjusted net finance costs, caiculated in accordance
with the definitions used in our financing facilities, is net finance
costs with a deducticon for pension interest, interest from adopting
[FRS 16, unwinding of discount on put options and amortisation of
refinancing fees, to adjusted EBITDA.

Closest equivalent IFRS components for the ratio: The equivalent
FRS companents are fnarnce costs, Ainance ooma and aperating
profit

See calculation and recenciliation on page 186.

Ratio of net debt to The ratio of net debt, calculated in accordance with the definitions

adjusted EBITDA used in our financing facilities, 1s gross debt, made up of unsecured
bank loans and overdrafts and cbligations under finance leases,
with o deduction for cash and cash equivalents and adding back
amounts reloted to guarantees and deferred purchase
arrgngements, to adjusted EBITDA.

Closest equivalent IFRS components for the ratio: The equivaient
IFRS components are gross debtt, cash and cash equivalents and
operating profit

See caiculation on page 186,

Return on adjusted The Group's return on adjusted invested capital is measured on the

invested capitai basis of adjusted operating profit inciuding JVs after tax, which is
operating profit with the pre-tax share of prefits from Jvs and
associatas, net 1AS 41 valuation movement on rological assets,
amaortisation of acquired intangible assets, share-based payment
expense and exceptional itemns added back, net of amounts
attributable to non-controling interest and tax.

The adjusted operating profit including JVs after tax is divided by
adjusted invested capital, which is the equity attributable to
owners of the Company adding back net debt, pension liability net
of related geferred tax and deducting biclogical assets {less
historical cost) and goodwill, net of related deferred tax

Closest equivalent IFRS compaonents for the ratio;
Return on invested capital

See calculation and raeconciligtion on page 186 and 187,

This is used to measure how much

operating cash flow we are
generating and how efficient we
are at converting our operating
profit into cash.

Shows the cash retained by the
Group inthe year.

This APM is used to understand our
ability to meet our interest
payments and is also o key metric
that we report 1o our banks to
ensure compliance with cur bank
covenants.

This APM is used os @ measurement
of our leverage and is also a key
metric that we report to our banks
to ensure compliance with our bank
covenants.

This APM 1s used to measure our
ability to efficiently invest our
capita! and gives us a sense of how
well we are using our resources to
generate returns,

I Toeat~g profit s ~ot defi~ed per IFRS it 5 presertac = tha Group Incor-e Stoterart ard s stowr as oot oetore tox fingrce ~come. costs ora shore of post-tax profit of

Sis ana ossecetes retared
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THE TABLES BELOW RECONCILE THE CLOSEST EQUIVALENT IFRS MEASURE TO THE APM OR OUTLINE THE CALCULATION OF THE APM

INCOME STATEMENT MEASURES

Adjusted operating profit exc JVs

Adjusted operating profit inc JVs

Adjusted operating profit inc JVs and exc gene editing costs

(restated)

202 20
£m £m £rm Zm Reference
Operating profit 57.7 42.4 Group Income Statement
Add back:
Net IAS 41 valuation moverment un biolugical assets 108 (15.8} Group Income Statement
Amortsation of acquired intangible assets 74 85 Group income Statement
Share-based payment expense 77 58 Group Income Statement
Exceptional items 33 192 Group income Statement
Adjusted operating profit exc JVs 769 60.1 Group Income Statement
Less: amounts attributable to non-controlling interest {01} {04 Group Income Statement
Operating profit from JVs and associates 131 89 Group Income Statement
Tax on JVs and associntes 30 2.3 Note 11 — Income tax expense
Net IAS 41 valuation movement (3.1) 01 Note 18 — Equity accounted
nvestees
Adjusted operating profit from Jvs 130 113
Adjusted operating profitinc Vs 898 70.8
Gene editing costs 78 52 Note 5 - Segmental
information
Adjusted operating profit inc JVs and exc gene editing 7.4 760
costs
Adjusted operating profit inc JVs after tax
Irestated)'
o 2620 o
£m £ Refercnce
Adjusted operating profit inc JVs 89.8 70.8 See APM
Adjusted tax (20.2) (148} At effective tax rate — see
note 12
Adjusted cperating profit inc JVs after tax &9.6 54.0
Adjusted profit inc JVs before tax
Adjusted profitinc JVs after tax
[restated)'
2021 200
£m fm Reference
Adjusted operating profit inc JVs 89.8 70.8 See APM
Less net inance costs (50 (5.0} Note 10 - Net finance costs
Adjusted profit inc JVs before tax 84.8 65.8
Adjusted tax (121) {156} Note 12 - Earnings per share
Adjusted profit inc JVs after tax 45.7 50.2
Adjusted profit inc JVs before tax exc SaaS impact
{restated]’
_ _ zon 2020
£m £m Reference
Adjusted profit inc JVs before tax 84.8 65.8 See APM
Impact of change it accounting policy 27 5.2 Fincncial review
Adjusted profit inc JVs before tax exc SaaS impact 87.5 710

1 Seenote 2 for detars of the prio- penod restatement
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Adjusted effective tax £Em/rate

restated]'
2021 2020
£m % fatad] % Refe-gnce
Adjusted effective tax Em/rate 19.1 225 15.6 23.7 MNote 12 - Earnings per share
Exceptional items (1.1) (333) (.5} {23.4) Note 12 ~ Eamings per share
Share-based paoyment expense (1.6 (20.8} (1.1) {190) Note 12 - Eamings per share
Amortisation of acquired intangible assets (1.5} (20.3) {18 (21.2} Note 12 — Earnings per share
Net 1AS 41 valuation movement on biclogical assets 29 (269) 47 277 Note 12 - Earnings per share
Effective tax Em/rate 120 20.4 12,9 26,5 Note 11 — Taxation and
deferred taxation
Adjusted basic earnings per share
{restoled})
2021 2020 Reference
Adjusted profit inc JVs after tax (Em) 65,7 50.2 See APM
Weighted average number of ordinary shares (G00s) 65108 64508 Note 12 — Earnings per share
Adjusted basic earnings per share [pence) 1009 773
Adjusted diluted earnings per share
(restatedy
20 2020 Reference
Adjusted profit inc JVs after tax (Em) &57 50.2 Soe APM
Weighted overcge number of diluted orainary shares 65,662 65,427 Note 12 — Earnings per share
(Q00s)
Adjusted diluted earnings per share (pence) 100.1 76.7
Adjusted earnings cover
{restated)!
202 2070
pence times pence tires Reference
Adjusted earnings per share 1009 773 See APM
Dividend for the year 32.0 29.1 Note 12 - Dividends
Adijusted earnings ¢over 3.2 27
Adjusted EBITDA - as calculated under our financing facilities
lrestatea)
_ 2021 - 206G
£m £m Zm Em Reference
Operating profit 477 42,4 Group Income Statement
Ada back:
Net |AS 41 valuation movement on biclogical assets 108 (158) Group Income Statement
Amgrtisation of acquired intangible assets 7 85 Group Income Statement
Share-based payment expense 77 58 Group Income Statement
Exceptional items 33 182 Group Income Statement
Adjusted operating profit exc Jvs 768 501 Group Income Statement
Adjust for:
Adjusted cperating profit mpact of change in
accounting policy n/a 5.2 Note 2 - Basis of preparation
Cash received from JVs [dividend and loan repayment) 4.1 57 Group Statement of Cash
Flows
Depreciotion: property. plant and equipment 240 240 Note 17 — Property, plant and
equipment
Operotional leose poyments {12.5) (12.1) Note 28 - Obligotions under
leases
Depreciatian: historical cost of biologicol ossets 100 110 See Financial Review
Amartisation and impairment (excluding separately
identifioble ocquired intongible assets) 37 46 Note 15 - Intangible ossets
Amortisation impact of change in accounting policy n/a a5 Note 2 - Basis of preparation
Less amounts ottributable 10 non-controling imerest o1 06 Group Income Statement
Adjusted EBITDA -~ as ealculated under our financing
facilities 106.1 96.4

1 Sgzenote 2 for getots of the pr o” oer od restatement

2 Follown~g Gerus enter ~Q a ~ew cred tfec, ity see note 271 the aefin t ans of EBITDA, Borrowings ard Net Debt were ame~geo Corsenuanty, the Coroorol v va ues have

peen - estated 1o eflect the ame~aed gefin tors cs reperted to the bonks
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BALANCE SHEET MEASURES
Het debt
Net debt as calculated under our financing facilities
[restatedl' ™
20 o202
£m £m £ £ Reference
Current unsecured bank loans and overdrafts 1392 22
Non-current unsecured bank loans and overdrafts 1094 1036
Unsecurad bank loans and overdrafts 1233 1128 Group Balance Sheet
Current okhigations under finance leases 30 100
Non-current obligations under finance leases 193 211
Obligations under finance leases 283 311 Group Balance Sheet
Total dent inancing 1516 1439 Note 32 - Notes to the cash
flow statement
Deduct:
Cash and cash eguivalents {46.0) {41.3) Group Balance Sheet
Net debt 105.6 102.6
Deduct:
Lower of obligations under finance leases or £30m’ (283 (Za0)
Add back:
Guarantees 191 59 Note 35 - Contingencies and
bank guarantees
Deferred purchase arrangements 0l 0.2 No direct reference
Net debt — as calculated under our financing facilities 96.5 787
CASH FLOW MEASURES
Cash conversion
(restateal’?
2021 2020
Em £m Fn Eim Reference
Cash generated by operations 86.6 77.2 Note 32 — Notes to the cash
flow statement
Operating profit 477 424 Group Inceme Statement
Add back:
Net IAS 41 valuation movement on biclegical assets 108 {15.8) Group Income Statement
Amortisation of acquired intangible assets 74 85 Group Income Statement
Share-based payment expense 77 58 Group Income Statement
Exceptional items 3.3 192 Group Income Statement
Adjusted operating profit exc JVs 76.9 60.1 Group Income Statement
Cash conversion (%) 113% 128%
Free cash flow
frestated)
) 2021 o 020
£m £m £m fm  Reference
Cash generated by operations 86.6 772 Note 32 — Notes to cash flow
statement
Interest and tax paid (19.1) (171} Note 32 - Notes to cash flow
stotement
Capital expenditure (33.8) (597} Group Statement of Cash
Flows
Dividends received from JV and associates 4.1 25 Group Statement of Cash
Flows
Joint venture and associate loan (paymentl/repayment (0.4) 12 Group Statement of Cash
Flows
Proceeds from sale of property, plant and equipment 0.3 11 Group Statement of Cash
Flows
Dividend to non-controlling interest (0.2} — Group Statement of Cash
Flows
Free cash flow 37.5 352

1 Folowing Gerus enteri~g g new credit fac.lity {see note 27) thre definitions of EBITDA, Borrowings and Net Debt were amrended Corsequently, the comparotive values nave

been restated to reflect the amended defintions as repcrted 1o the bonks

2 Seenote 2 for detan s of the pr or perod restatement.
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ALTERNATIVE PERFORMANCE MEASURES GLOSSARY CONTINUED

OTHER MEASURES
Interest cover
estated) *
2021 2070
£m Times £m Tmes Refererce
Finance costs 5.4 53 Group Income Statement
Finance income {0.4) {0.3) Group Income Statermeant
Net finance costs 50 50 Note 10 - Net finonce costs
Deduct:
Pension interast 03 0.4) Note 10 ~ Nat fingnce costs
Interest on lease liabilities 0.8} {10) Note 10 - Net finance costs
Unwinding discount on put options 06} (05} Note 10 — Net finance costs
Armortisation of refinanding fegs (0%} (04} Note 10 ~ Net finance costs
Adjusted net finance costs 2.4 2.7
Adjusted EBITDA - as calculated under our financing
facilities 106.1 6.4 See APM
Interest cover 45 3s
Ratic of net debt to adjusted EBITDA
restated)
2071 2020
Em Times £ Twres Refere~ce
Net debt ~ as calcutated under our financing focilities 96.5 78.7 Seo aAPM
Adjusted EBITDA - as calculated under our financing
facilities 106.1 96.4 See APM
Ratio of net debt to EBITDA 09 0.8
Return on adjusted invested capital
{restatedp
202 2020
£ * £ % Referarce
Adjusted operating profit inc JVs after tax &69.6 54.0 See APM
Equity attributable to owners of the Company 4981 4955 Group Balance Shest
Add back:
Net debt 1056 1026 Note 32 - Notes 1o the cash
flow statement
Pension liability 111 1’1 Group Balance Sheet
Related deferred tax 2.0 [2.5) Note N1 - Taxation and
deferred taxation
Adjust for:
Biological assets - carrying value {3195) (34699) Note 16 - Biological assets
Biological assets’ harvest ¢lassed as inventories (178) (203) Note 20 - inventories
Biological assets ~ histonc cost 651 575 See Financial Review
Goodwill {101.5} {105.6) Group Balance Sheet
Related deferred 1ax 637 This Note 11 - Toxotion and
deferred taxation
Adjusted invested capital 302.7 268.8
Return on adjusted invested capital 23.0% 20.1%

1 Faowrg Gerus entarng G new credit fag ty isee nate 27), the defiminars of EBITDA. Bor-ow rgs ard Net Deot we'e amendea. Consequant’y, tre cormoarat v& vawes hove

peen restated 1o reflect tre arendad cefintions as reported to tme oanks

Z  Seenote 2 for detorls of toe oro- per od restaterent
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Return on adjusted invested capital
restated)
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2021 2020 B
£m % £m % Reference

Return on adjusted invested capital 23.0% 20.1% see APM
Adjusted operating profit inc JVs after tax 626 540 see APM
Tax rate 20.2 225% 168 237% Note 12 - Earnings per share
Adjusted cperating profit inc JVs 398 708 Group Income Statement
Adjusted operating profit attnboutable to nen-cantrolling

Interest 01 0o Group Income Statemeant
Pre-tax share of profits from Ve oxe not 1AS &1 valualion

movernant (130 {11.3} Group Income Statement
Adjusted operating profit exc JVs 769 601 Group Income Staterment
Fair value moverment on biological assets {108) 158 Group Income Statement
Amortisation of acquired intangibles (74) (8.5) Group Income Statement
Share-based payment expense (77 (5.8 Group Income Statement
Exceptional items (33 (19.2} Group Income Statement
Share of post-tax profit of JVs 131 89 Group Income Statement
Finance costs (5.0 (5.0} Group Income Statement
Profit before tax 558 463 Group Income Statement
Tax (20) (10.6) Group Income Statement
Profit 46.8 357 Group Income Statement
Equity attributable to owners of the Company 498.1 495.5 Group Balance Sheet
Return on invested capital 4% 72%

1 See ~ote 2 for details of the prio- pernod restatament
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GLOSSARY

AGM - Annuc] General Meeting.

Artificial insemination (Al'] - Using semen
collected from a bull or boar to
impregnate a cow Or sow when in estrus.
Artificial insemination allows ¢ genetically
superior male ta be used to mate with
many more females than would be
possible with natural mating

ASF — African Swine Fever

Biosecurity — The precautions taken o
reduce the chance of transmitting disease
agents from one livestock operation to
another,

Boar - A male pig.

BRD - Bovine Respiratory Disease, o
complex, bacterial and viral infection that
causes lung disease in cattle (particularly
calves) and s often fatal,

CPI - Consumer Price Index.

CRISPR-Cas 9 - Technology which
accurately targets and cuts DNA to
produce precise and controfiable changes
to the genome,

CS5R - Corporate Social Responsibility.
DSBP — Deferred Share Bonus Plan.
EPS — Earnings per share.

Farrow — When g sow gives birth to
piglets.

GELT - Genus Executive Leadership Team.

Gender skew — The ability to influence the
propaortion of offspring being of a
particutar sex.

Genetic gain - The change of the genetic
make up of a particular animal population
in response 1o having selected parents
thot excelled genetically for impaortant
traits.

Genetic lag — The amount of time required
to disseminate genetic gain from a
nucleus herd to the commaercial customer.

Genetic nucleus - A specialised pig herd,
where Genus PIC keeps its pure ines. Pigs
are genetically tested at the nucleus to
select the best animais to produce the
next generation.

Genomic bull — A bull which has been
assessed through genomic testing. This
typically refers to buls which have not
been progeny-tested.

Genomically tested - An animat that has
besn DNA profiled.

Genomies - The study of the gencme,
which is the DNA sequence of an animal's
chromosomes.

Gilt — A young female pig, which has not
yet given birth.

GMS - ABS's Genetic Management
System, which creates g genetic solution
talored 1o each individual dairy producer
to obtan improved herd genetics.

Grandparent - The relationship of @
breeding pig to the generation of terminagl
rnarket pigs. A grandparent produces
paremts, who in turmn produce the
comrmercial generation of terminal pigs

Group ~ Genus plc and its subsidiary
companies.

In vitro fertilisation ['IVF') - The
fertilisation of an oocyte with semen
{outside an animall in o laboratary for
transfer into @ surrogate.

Index/Indices — A formula incorporating
economically important traits for ranking
the genetic potential of animals as
parents of the next generation.

Integrated perk producet — Producers of
pork typicatly involved in rafsing animats to
slaughter weaight all the way through to
packaged and/or branded pork products.

IntelliGen — The technology platform used
to process sexed bovine semen for ABS
and third-party customers and
commercialised by ABS globally as Sexcel.

1P - inteflectual property.

PR - inter Partes Review before the US
Patent and Trademarks Office.

IVB - In Vitro Brosil S A,
JV — Joint venture.

Line - Multple animals that have been
mated together in a closed breeding
population. Pure lines can have their
origins in one founding breed or in several
breeds.

Market pig equivalents {MPE') - Refers to
a standardised measure of our customers’
production of slaughter animals that
contain our genstics with genes from each
of the sow and boar counting for half of
the animal,

Multiplier - A producer whose farm
containg grandparent sows. The farm
crosses together two lines of
grandparents, multiplying the number of
genetically improved parents that are
available for sale.

NuEra - The ABS beef breeding
programme and index designed to drive
the custormer’s genetic improvement and
defiver total system profitability for the
beef supply chain

PQA ~ Pork Quality Assurance.

Progeny tested - Elite cnimals whose
genetic volue as o parent hos been tested
and validated through the performance of
their offspring.

PRRSv — Porcine Reproductive and
Respiratory Syndrome Virus.

PSP - Performance Share Plan.

PTAB - Patent Trigl ond Appeal Board
before the US Patent and Trademarks
Office.

R&D — Research and development.

RMS — ABS's Reproductive Management
Systemn, which is a systematic approach to
maximising pregnancy production and its
contribution to herd profitability.

RPi - Retail Price index.

RWD - ABS's Real World Data System of
observed performance data from many
dairy herds,

Sexcel - The ABS brand of sexed bovine
genetics produced using IntelliGen.

Sire - The mafe parent of an animal.

Sire line — The maile line selected for traits
desirable for the market.

Sow - A female pig which has given birth
at least once.

Straw — A narrow tube used to package
frozen bull semen.

Stud - Locations where bulls or boars are
housed and their semen collected,
evaluated, diluted into multiple doses/
straws and packaged, ready for shicping
to farms,

Terminal bears — The male pig that is used
1o mate with a parent female ta produce o
terminal pig.

Trait - A measurable characternstic that
may be o target for genetic selection.

TransitionRight - Genus ABS's patent-
pending genstic selection tool to help
prevent multiple post calving metabolic
disorders that oceur during transition

Unit - A straw of frozen bull semen or
wbe/bag of fresh boar semen seld to a
customer,

3
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